
BROWNFIELDS COMMITTEE 
Monday, April 15, 2024  

Participation via Zoom1 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88055614529?pwd=c2dVaTMvUnc0VU55bUd1TExTWjkzUT09 

Dial in via phone:  +1 929 436 2866 | Meeting ID: 880 5561 4529| Passcode: 215936 
Download the app at least 5 minutes before the meeting starts: https://zoom.us/download. 

Persons with disabilities who require assistance or alternate arrangements to participate 
are encouraged to contact Nancy Chartrand at 802-229-0389 or chartrand@cvregion.com at 
least 3 business days prior to the meeting for which services are requested. 

AGENDA 
6:002 Adjustments to the Agenda 
 6:05 Review and Approval of Draft Minutes from 07/31/2023 Meeting (Action - 

enclosed)3 
Public Comment 

6:10 Elect Chair and Vice Chair | Appoint Interest Group Representative (Action)3 
6:20 Program Updates 

Staff will provide updates on enrolled properties. 
a. 18 South Main Street, Barre City (BRF State Program Award Letter enclosed)
b. 11 North Main Street, Northfield (Phase II and Phase II Supplemental Report and

VTDEC funded ECAA Report enclosed)
6:25 New Project Ideas 

Staff will lead conversation on new potential Brownfields projects. Share resource UConn 
Tab Brownfields Library https://tab.program.uconn.edu/brownfields-library/ 

6:40 Adjourn 

1 Dial-in telephone numbers are “Toll” numbers.  Fees may be charged to the person calling in dependent 
on their phone service. 
2 All times are approximate unless otherwise advertised 
3 Anticipated Action Item 

2

5

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88055614529?pwd=c2dVaTMvUnc0VU55bUd1TExTWjkzUT09
about:blank
mailto:chartrand@cvregion.com
https://tab.program.uconn.edu/brownfields-library/


 

 

 

BROWNFIELDS COMMITTEE 
Monday, April 15, 2024  

Participation via Zoom1 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88055614529?pwd=c2dVaTMvUnc0VU55bUd1TExTWjkzUT09  

Dial in via phone:  +1 929 436 2866 | Meeting ID: 880 5561 4529| Passcode: 215936 
Download the app at least 5 minutes before the meeting starts: https://zoom.us/download. 

 
Persons with disabilities who require assistance or alternate arrangements to participate 
are encouraged to contact Nancy Chartrand at 802-229-0389 or chartrand@cvregion.com at 
least 3 business days prior to the meeting for which services are requested. 

 
 AGENDA 
 6:002 Adjustments to the Agenda 
  6:05 Review and Approval of Draft Minutes from 07/31/2023 Meeting (Action - 

enclosed)3 
  Public Comment 
 6:10 Elect Chair and Vice Chair | Appoint Interest Group Representative (Action)3 
 6:20 Program Updates 

Staff will provide updates on enrolled properties. 
a. 18 South Main Street, Barre City (BRF State Program Award Letter enclosed) 
b. 11 North Main Street, Northfield (Phase II and Phase II Supplemental Report and 

VTDEC funded ECAA Report enclosed) 
 6:25 New Project Ideas  

Staff will lead conversation on new potential Brownfields projects. Share resource UConn 
Tab Brownfields Library https://tab.program.uconn.edu/brownfields-library/ 

 6:40 Adjourn  
 
                                                           
1 Dial-in telephone numbers are “Toll” numbers.  Fees may be charged to the person calling in dependent 
on their phone service. 
2 All times are approximate unless otherwise advertised 
3 Anticipated Action Item 
 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 2

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88055614529?pwd=c2dVaTMvUnc0VU55bUd1TExTWjkzUT09
about:blank
mailto:chartrand@cvregion.com
https://tab.program.uconn.edu/brownfields-library/


CENTRAL VERMONT REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
Brownfields Advisory Committee  

July 31, 2023 at 4:00 pm 
Remote Participation via Zoom & In Person  

 
Draft Minutes 

 
Brownfields Advisory Committee Members 

 
 1 
 2 
 3 
 4 
 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 

 12 
Staff: Clare Rock, Nancy Chartrand  13 
Meeting was held with members of the Executive Committee, additional people present: Jerry D’Amico, 14 
Roxbury (CVRPC Board and Executive Committee Chair); Lexi Leacock, Warren (Executive Committee); 15 
Michael Gray, Woodbury (Executive Committee); Lee Cattaneo, Orange (Executive Committee) 16 
 17 
(Staff and Board Chair in person at CVRPC office, all other participants joined via zoom.) 18 
 19 
Chair J Shatney called the meeting to order at 4:02 pm 20 
 21 
Adjustments to the Agenda 22 
none 23 
 24 
Public Comment 25 
none 26 
 27 
Program Updates 28 
Staff summarized the contents of the staff memo as contained within the meeting materials regarding 29 
updates on new round of funding from ACCD.  30 
 31 
Enrollment and Funding Requests 32 
Consideration of additional or increased funding for already enrolled properties:  33 

a) 18 South Main Street, Barre City 34 
Staff confirmed the Phase I ESA is necessary for due diligence purposes. CVRPC did not fund the 35 
initial Phase I, but this sometimes happens to sites which have undergone subsequent assessment 36 
work, as the first Phase I expires and needs to be redone or updated.  37 

 38 
G Clain made a motion to recommend approval for paying for the Phase I for the Turning Point 39 

x Ron Krauth, Middlesex Commissioner 

x Peter Carbee, Washington Commissioner (Alternate Seat) 

x George H Clain, Barre Town Commissioner 

x Paula Emery, Plainfield CVRPC Alternate 

x Janet Shatney, Barre City Commissioner 

x Melissa Bounty, CVEDC 

x Joan Marie Misek, Department of Health 

 Vacant, Downstreet 

x Liz Scharf, Capstone 

 Vacant, Friend of the Winooski (or similar org) 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 3



 
 

CVRPC Brownfields Committee   Meeting Minutes   July 31, 2023 

Center, seconded by R Krauth. All in favor, motion carried.  1 
 2 

b) 11 North Main Street, Northfield 3 
 4 
G Clain asked why CVRPC would approve a proposal for $34,614 (as presented in the table on page 2 of 5 
the memo) which is higher than the $28,336 (as presented in the paragraph below the table.) Staff 6 
responded that the paragraph should have been updated, as this was left over text from when the 7 
memo was first drafted, and before all proposals had been received. Based upon a review of all 8 
proposals the higher cost proposal was determined to include a more appropriate testing plan which 9 
best suits the needs of the project and may create efficiencies as the project progresses.  10 
 11 
Staff asked for a ‘not-to-exceed approval’ as this would help the project proceed without delays if either 12 
additional testing might be needed or if the project moved into the Corrective Action Plan phase.  13 
 14 
P Carbee made a motion to increase initial funding for the project and recommend funding to not-to-15 
exceed $50,000 for this project. Seconded by L Scharf. Roll call vote as follows: 16 

Ron Krauth – yes 17 
Peter Carbee – yes 18 
George Clain – no 19 
Paula Emery – yes 20 
Janet Shatney – yes 21 
Melissa Bounty – yes 22 
Joan Marie Misek – yes 23 
Liz Scharf - yes 24 

Motion carried.  25 
 26 
R. Krauth asked about the possible flood impacts and contamination at brownfield sites. Staff responded 27 
that DEC Site Managers have been following up on this. To staff knowledge no recent CVRPC brownfield 28 
sites (past or present) sustained significant damage to do not believe this should be an issue. But DEC is 29 
monitoring sites incase installed corrective action mitigation steps have been disturbed or if flooding has 30 
exacerbated existing or new contamination.  31 
 32 
Adjourn 33 
 34 
P Carbee made motion to adjourn, seconded by JM Misek.  All in favor. Motion carried. 35 
 36 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 4



 

 
 

UPDATED MEMO  
 
Date:  April 11, 2024 
To:  Brownfields Advisory Committee 
From:  Eli Toohey, Planner 
Re:  Brownfields Program  

 
 
Program Update 
CVRPC has received another round of funding from ACCD. The available amount is up to $100,000 for FY24. 
Making the cumulative available amount $200,000 (minus administrative costs) 
 
 Available Funding & Program Timeline 

o $100,000 is available through June 30, 2024. 
o $50,000 already awarded (in process), and up to $50,000 available only after 75% of the initial 

award has been spent or encumbered.  
o Status report detailing the anticipated expenditure and encumbrance of the grant funds was 

submitted January, 2024 
o Remaining portion of funds may be reallocated for use by other RPCS that have requested 

additional funds.  
o Any unexpended or unencumbered as of June 30, 2024 will be returned to the State. 
o Eligible use of funds: 

 to hire Qualified Environmental Professionals (QEPs). CVRPC will contract with QEPs to 
undertake assessment work, funds will not be granted to the property owner or 
prospective purchaser to undertake the work. 

 Cap of $50,000 can be used on one site (previous round has no limit.)  
 for administrative services performed by the RPC. The maximum allowable 

reimbursement for these administrative services is 9% of the award. This is down from 
10% during the last round.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 5



Funding Status 
 

Project 
Name 

Date of 
DEC 
Approval 

Project 
Type 

Funded 
Project 
Activity 

BRELLA 
Status 

QEP 
Company 

Project 
Status 

QEP 
Contract 
Date 

QEP 
Encumbered 
Amount 
(proposed/ 
contracted) 

18 South 
Main 
Street, 
Barre City 

4/8/2022 Commercial Phase II Enrolled Stone Contract 
Fully 
Disbursed 

6/10/2022 $56,591  

  
Commercial CAP Enrolled Stone Contract 

Fully 
Disbursed 

4/13/2023 $24,322  

  
Commercial Phase I Enrolled TBD Contract 

Fully  
Disbursed 

09/05/23 $4,500  

11 North 
Main 
Street, 
Northfield 

1/9/2023 Residential Phase II Enrolled TBD Contract 
Completed 

08/01/23 $47,589  

       
Total  $133,002  

 
There is $11,970.14 remaining for projects from a disbursed amount that exceeded the invoiced amount that 
MARC asked us if there were projects it could be used towards rather than returning it.  
 
Funding Requests 
18 South Main Street, Barre City - (for a definition of terms see the last page of this memo.) A Phase I was done 
over a 1.5 years ago, they expire after a certain period as environmental conditions may change. An updated 
Phase I is a due diligence requirement and a requirement of the Turning Point receiving their VCPD grant which 
will be used to purchase the property. We did an updated Phase I completed in Fall 2023. Stone Environmental 
requested another updated with an estimated cost of $2,000-4,000 on March 1, 2024. This site has exhausted 
(and gone over) the $50,000 per site cap so we explained that funding for the Phase I updated update would 
need to come from a different source.  
 
11 North Main Street, Northfield – At the last meeting the Committee approved spending up to $20,000 on a 
Phase II. Staff understands this amount was based upon an estimate the applicant had received and based upon 
the limited amount of remaining funding from the first round (and prior to knowledge of the second round of 
funding.) CVRPC issued an RFP last month and Proposal are due at noon on Monday July 17, 2023. CVRPC has 
received one response to date and the amount is $28,336. Staff will share the other proposal estimates at the 
meeting. Staff is asking if the Committee might reconsider increasing the original approval amount and 
consider approving funding site assessment work (including a Phase II ESA) with a not-to-exceed $50,000. (The 
current funding prohibits spending more than $50,000 on one site. Approving general site assessment work 
instead of approving a specific Phase II provides efficiency if any supplemental test might be needed or to 
transition straight into Corrective Action planning if deemed necessary.) 
The original contract (08/01/23) of $34,614 was amended to include $12,975 for a supplemental Phase II 
required for a total contract amount of $47,589. This contract was completed in February with the total spent 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 6



$44,238.26, $3,350.74 under the contracted amount and leaving $5,761.74 before site limit of $50,000 is 
reached.  
 
63 Sawmill Rd, Cabot   
On April 9, 2024 the CVRPC Board of Commissioners approved use of State Brownfields Revitalization Grant 
Assessment funding, not to exceed $20,000 to be used for a Phase I Environmental Assessment of the 63 
Sawmill Road property in Cabot, Vermont.  
 
See memo to the Board of Commissioners; 

MEMO  
 
Date: April 5, 2024 
To: Board of Commissioners 
From: Eli Toohey, Community Development Planner  
Re: Brownfields, Phase I Assessment, Cabot (Clark’s) Sawmill 
 
 
  ACTION REQUESTED:  That the Commission approve use of State Brownfields Revitalization 

Grant Assessment funding, not to exceed $20,000 to be used for a Phase I Environmental 
Assessment of the 63 Sawmill Road property in Cabot, Vermont. 

 
Why this item is before the Commission: It has been a challenge to get a quorum for the CVRPC 
Brownfields Advisory Committee (BAC). During our last meeting, (1 committee member shy of a 
quorum), the Cabot Sawmill Phase I project was presented and all present committee members 
wanted to move forward with funding the Phase I. The BAC Rules of Procedure states that: 

“New or amended plans, policies, positions or resolutions shall be ratified/approved by the Board of 
Commissioners. Expenditure of Commission funds as recommended by the Committee may only be 
authorized by the Executive Committee. The Commission has the ultimate authority over program 
decisions.” 

Project Background: The Clarks Sawmill property at 63 Sawmill Road contains a dam and mostly 
collapsed sawmill located just west of VT Route 215 (Main Street), north of Sawmill Road and south of 
the confluence of Jug Brook in Lower Cabot. The property has been repeatedly damaged by flood 
events and, due to a dam located on the parcel, has seen a great deal of erosion and consequently 
frequent river bank repair work. The location of the dam also impacts properties upstream and 
downstream in flooding events. The dam and sawmill are no longer in use with the sawmill falling in 
and the dam destroyed by the July 2023 flood event with debris spread throughout the property.  

A Phase I Environmental Assessment is necessary because there needs to be one for both the BRELLA 
application and within 6 months of the closing date on the property transfer. The last Phase I was done 
some time before 2018’s Phase II. 

The history of the site includes factories, mills and manufacturing. A 2018 Phase II environmental site 
assessment found soil contamination with hazardous materials and a Vermont Department of 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 7



Environmental Conservation (DEC) Sites Management Section (SMS) hazardous waste number was 
issued for the site. The Phase II Site Investigation Report and the Correction to Phase II Site 
Investigation Report & Additional Site Investigation conducted by ATC Environmental dated June 1, 
2018 and September 27, 2018 respectively, found the following: 

"The ATC SI report presented semi-volatile organic compound (SVC) data in …, which highlighted 
exceedances of the EPA Regional Screening Levels (RSLs) for Residential an Industrial soils for the 
compound benzaldehyde. Soil samples SS-1 and SS-4 were presented as Residential RSL exceedances 
of benzaldehyde, and soil sample SS-2 was presented as an Industrial exceedance. All three of these 
soil samples were collected on the east side of the Winooski River. Other Residential soil RSL 
exceedances were reported for benzo(a)anthracene, benzo(a)pyrene, benzo(b)fluoranthene, 
dibenzo(a,h)anthracene, and indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene, in three soil samples on the west side of the 
river."   

The town is working to purchase the property and the owner has agreed to quit claim deed the 
property to the town. The proposed project is to remove the dam to ameliorate the impact of flooding 
events along the Winooski River upstream and downstream of the dam. The Town is proposing the 
property be turned into a green space with picnic tables and a possible boat launch for kayaks and 
canoes. 

CVRPC, through the Municipal Technical Assistance Program (MTAP), is currently working on a 
Brownfields Environmental Liability Limitation Act (BRELLA) application for the site and a Phase I 
Environmental Assessment is required prior to the submission of the BRELLA application. A Phase I EA 
estimated cost is $3,500-5,500 

 
 

Brownfield Assessment Activities 
Acronym Assessment Activity Description 
Phase I ESA* Phase I 

Environmental Site 
Assessment 

-Background information gathering and historical records 
review 
-Visual site inspections 
-Other requirements according to ASTM standards 

Phase II ESA 
 

Phase II 
Environmental Site 
Assessment 

-Subsurface Soil Sampling 
-Groundwater Sampling 
-Ecological Assessment (if necessary) 
-Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) required by EPA 

Supplemental 
Phase II ESA 

Supplemental Phase 
II Environmental Site 
Assessments 

-Subsurface soil sampling and groundwater sampling to 
determine the extent of contamination found in the initial 
Phase II ESA 

SSQAPP** Site Specific Quality 
Assurance Project 
Plan 

- a document that outlines the procedures that those who 
conduct a monitoring project will take to ensure that the 
data they collect and analyze meets project requirements.  
- invaluable planning and operating tool that outlines the 
project’s methods of data collection, storage and analysis 

HBM Hazardous Building 
Materials 
Assessment 

- Assessments for the hazardous materials that impact 
building use, renovation or demolition.  

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 8



- Determines if hazardous substances are present and in 
what quantities, and then develop options and costs for 
management or removal. 

ECAA Evaluation of 
Corrective Action 
Alternatives 

- Evaluation of remediation options and associated costs, 
while balancing environmental protection and site 
redevelopment goals 
- Identification of redevelopment scenarios 
- Identification of remedial alternatives 
Engineering evaluation of remedial alternatives and 
selection of preferred alternative 
- Required by DEC to be included in all DEC approved 
Corrective Action Plans 

CAP Corrective Action 
Planning Activities 

A plan detailing the specific remedial actions necessary to 
implement the preferred alternative selected in the ECAA 
process. 

Notes:  *Phase I ESAs for current owners of a property may be eligible projects. This would be 
reviewed by DEC on a project basis as this funding is not intended to benefit potentially liable parties. 
**This is State funding so SSQAPPs are not needed. However, the expense may be eligible if a SSQAPP 
is needed, such as if state funding is partnered with federal funding for the project. This can be 
determined on a project basis. 

 
 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 9



Firefox about:blank

1 of 1 11/1/2023, 9:10 AM

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 10



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

WESTON & SAMPSON ENGINEERS, INC. 

98 South Main Street, Suite 2 

Waterbury, VT 05676 

tel: 802.244.5051 Report 
 

October 16, 2023 

  

 11 North Main Street  

Northfield, Vermont  

 

Phase II Environmental Site Assessment Report  

 
Prepared for: 

Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission  

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 11



 

 

 

 
i 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 Page 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................................ ES-1 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS ........................................................................................................................ i 

 

LIST OF FIGURES ............................................................................................................................... iii 

 

LIST OF TABLES ................................................................................................................................. iii 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES ........................................................................................................................ iii 

 

1.0 SITE BACKGROUND ........................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.1 Site Location .................................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.2 Current Use of Property ................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.3 Current Use of Adjacent Properties ................................................................................. 1-1 
1.4 Site History ...................................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.5 Previous Environmental Investigations ............................................................................ 1-2 
1.6 Purpose ........................................................................................................................... 1-3 

2.0 FIELD ACTIVITIES ................................................................................................................ 2-1 
2.1 Approach ......................................................................................................................... 2-1 
2.2 Surficial Soil Assessment ................................................................................................ 2-1 
2.3 Subsurface Soil Assessment ........................................................................................... 2-2 
2.4 Groundwater Assessment ............................................................................................... 2-2 
2.5 Soil Gas Assessment ...................................................................................................... 2-3 
2.6 Standard Operating Procedures ..................................................................................... 2-3 
2.7 Investigation Derived Waste ............................................................................................ 2-3 
2.8 Deviations from the Work Plan ........................................................................................ 2-3 

3.0 RESULTS ............................................................................................................................. 3-1 
3.1 Screening Criteria ............................................................................................................ 3-1 
3.2 Surficial Soil ..................................................................................................................... 3-1 
3.3 Subsurface Soil ............................................................................................................... 3-1 
3.4 Groundwater .................................................................................................................... 3-2 
3.5 Soil Gas ........................................................................................................................... 3-2 

4.0 DATA USABILITY ................................................................................................................. 4-1 
4.1 Data Usability .................................................................................................................. 4-1 

4.1.1 Laboratory Data Evaluation ......................................................................................... 4-1 
4.1.2 PARCCS Evaluation .................................................................................................... 4-1 

5.0 CONCEPTUAL SITE MODEL ............................................................................................... 5-1 
5.1 Site Description ............................................................................................................... 5-1 
5.2 Geology ........................................................................................................................... 5-1 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 12



 

 

 

 
ii 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

5.3 Contaminants of Concern ............................................................................................... 5-2 
5.4 Distribution and Potential Sources .................................................................................. 5-2 

5.4.1 Surficial Soil ................................................................................................................. 5-2 
5.4.2 Soil Gas ....................................................................................................................... 5-2 

5.5 Migration Pathway ........................................................................................................... 5-3 
5.6 Sensitive Receptors ......................................................................................................... 5-3 
5.7 Exposure Pathways ......................................................................................................... 5-4 

6.0 DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSIONS ................................................................................... 6-1 
6.1 Data Gaps ....................................................................................................................... 6-1 

7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS ........................................................................................................ 7-1 

8.0 SIGNATURE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONAL ........................................................ 8-1 

9.0 LIMITATIONS ....................................................................................................................... 9-1 

10.0 REFERENCES ................................................................................................................... 10-1 
 

  

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 13



 

 

 

 
iii 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

LIST OF FIGURES 

 

Figure 1 ............................................................................................................................... Locus Map 

 

Figure 2 ................................................................................................................................... Site Plan 

 

Figure 3 .............................................................................................. Site Plan and Sample Locations 

 

Figure 4 .............................................................................................................................. PAHs in Soil 

 

Figure 5 ....................................................................................................................... Soil Gas Results 

 

Figure 6 ................................................................................................................. Sensitive Receptors 

 

 

LIST OF TABLES 

 

Table 1 .................................................................................................................. Surface Soil Results 

 

Table 2 ............................................................................................................ Subsurface Soil Results 

 

Table 3 ................................................................................................................ Groundwater Results 

 

Table 4 ........................................................................................................................ Soil Gas Results 

 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES 

 

Appendix A ........................................................... Soil Boring Logs and Groundwater Sample Forms 

 

Appendix B .............................................................................................................. Select Site Photos 

 

Appendix C ......................................................................................... Laboratory Analytical Packages 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2023 Phase II ESA\Report Parts\Phase II ESA 

Draft.docx 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 14



 

 

 

 
1-1 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

Weston & Sampson Engineers, Inc. (Weston & Sampson) has prepared this Phase II Environmental Site 

Assessment (ESA) report for the property located at 11 North Main Street in Northfield, Vermont (the 

Site). The Site is currently vacant but was first developed circa 1812 as a woolen mill prior to use as 

granite works. Other commercial/industrial Site uses have included a machine shop, auto repair facility, 

and gasoline filling station. The Site buildings were demolished in 2000 following the closure of the 

granite works. Portions of the former buildings concrete foundations and structural columns are still 

present. Findings of the Phase II ESA are as follows: 

• Surface soil in the western half of the Site is impacted with polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons 

(PAHs) exceeding the urban background Vermont Soil Standard (VSS) and non-residential VSS. 

PAH impacts appear to be limited to surface soil within previously developed areas of the Site 

where past industrial practices included granite cutting and processing, operation of a machine 

shop, and operation of a gasoline filling station and automotive repair shop. 

• Lead was identified in soil but does not exceed the current residential VSS. However, the 

Vermont Department of Environmental Conservation (VTDEC) is expected to lower the lead VSS 

within the timeframe of proposed Site redevelopment. The proposed VSS applicable to the Site 

would be an urban background value of 111 milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg). Two discrete 

shallow soil samples collected from less than 3 feet below grade on the western portion of the 

Site contained lead concentrations exceeding the proposed urban background VSS for lead. 

• No polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), semi-volatile organic compounds (SVOCs) other than 

PAHs, or volatile organic compounds (VOCs) were identified in soil above the laboratory 

reporting limits. 

• No VOCs were detected in groundwater except for low levels of acetone (a common lab 

contaminant) at one location. Acetone concentrations were below the Vermont Groundwater 

Enforcement Standard (VGES). 

• Soil gas is impacted with the VOCs benzene, ethylbenzene, tetrachloroethylene (PCE), and 

carbon tetrachloride exceeding the residential Vapor Intrusion Standards for Subslab Soil Gas 

(VIS-SSG). Benzene also exceeded the non-residential VIS-SSG at one location.  

• Remaining data gaps include defining the nature and extent of soil gas impacts and determining 

if these contaminants pose a risk to indoor air at nearby buildings.   

Weston & Sampson recommends performing supplemental soil gas assessment to evaluate the nature 

and extent of VOCs detected above the residential VIS-SSG. 

 

 

 

 

 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2023 Phase II ESA\Report Parts\Phase II ESA 

Draft.docx

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 15



 

 

 

 
1-1 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

1.0 SITE BACKGROUND 

 

Weston & Sampson Engineers, Inc. (Weston & Sampson), on behalf of the Central Vermont Regional 

Planning Commission (CVRPC), has prepared this Phase II Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) for 

the property located at 11 North Main Street in Northfield, Vermont (the Site; Figure 1).  

1.1 Site Location 

Street Address: 11 North Main Street, Northfield, VT  

Latitude (North): 44.1504430 - 44˚ 9’ 1.59’’  

Longitude (West): 72.6549170 - 72˚ 39’ 17.70’’  

Universal Transverse Mercator: Zone 18  

UTM X (Meters): 687546.2  

UTM Y (Meters): 4891040.0  

Elevation: 713 feet above sea level  

Site Owner: Cetrangolo Finishing Works, Inc. 

Site Occupants: Vacant  

County: Washington  

Parcel ID: 923023000  

Size: 1.30-acres 

1.2 Current Use of Property  

The Site is currently vacant. A Site map is included as Figure 2. 

1.3 Current Use of Adjacent Properties 

The Site is in a mixed residential and commercial area of Northfield. Adjoining commercial properties 

include a Dollar General retail store to the south; a gasoline filling station, convenience store, and 

hardware store to the west; a former clothing company and a food company warehouse to the 

northwest; and a visual design/photographer and furniture maker to the north. 

1.4 Site History 

According to historical records available in a 2022 Phase I ESA completed by Wilcox & Barton, Inc. 

(Wilcox & Barton), the Site was first developed circa 1812 as a woolen mill. The Site was developed prior 

to 1897 as the Cross Brothers Granite Works, which processed and finished granite until 1942 and again 

between 1986 and 1999. The granite works extended onto the current Dollar General property to the 

south. Site buildings and features apparent on historical Sanborn Fire Insurance maps from 1897 until 

1940 include a blacksmith shop, cutting shed, granite sawing & machine shop, carriage shop, painting 

building, a railroad spur, saddlery, machine shop with printing and repair rooms, a gasoline 

underground storage tank (UST) along Main Street, a “tank” located centrally on the Site, and a conveyer 

in the eastern portion of the Site connected to a dust collector. Mr. Nick Cetrangolo, the current Site 

owner, purchased the Site circa 1956 and redeveloped it to include a machine shop, auto repair facility, 

and gasoline filling station. These Site uses continued until approximately 1976. As noted above, granite 

processing/finishing operations resumed from 1986 to 1999. The Site buildings were demolished in 

2000 following the closure of the granite works. Portions of the former buildings concrete foundations 

and structural columns are still present at the Site. Historical Site features are shown on Figure 2. 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 16



 

 

 

 
1-2 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

1.5 Previous Environmental Investigations 

Previous environmental investigations have been limited to the 2022 Phase I ESA completed by Wilcox 

& Barton. Environmental investigations completed at adjoining properties have documented releases of 

petroleum products and hazardous materials as described below. The Phase I ESA identified the 

following recognized environmental conditions (RECs) in association with the Site: 

1. Historical underground storage and documented release of petroleum at an adjacent property. 

An undocumented 500-gallon No. 2 fuel oil UST was encountered on the Dollar General property 

(108 North Main Street) during excavation in October 2012 (see Figure 2). The UST was 

damaged during excavation and approximately 100 gallons of oily water were released. The 

VTDEC assigned Spill #2012WMD529 to the release. Spill response actions included removal 

of the UST, recovery of oily water from the excavation, excavation and offsite disposal of 

impacted soil, and post-excavation soil sampling and analysis. Post-excavation soil sampling 

did not identify contaminant concentrations exceeding applicable standards. The damaged UST 

contents were reported to have impacted groundwater; however, groundwater sampling was 

not performed. The Spill incident was closed on December 12, 2012. 

 

2. Historical underground storage of petroleum on an adjoining property. The Site is identified as 

UST Facility ID 4855711 for one 10,000-gallon UST containing No. 2 or No. 4 fuel oil that was 

removed in 1998. However, at the time of removal, the Site and southerly adjoining parcel (108 

North Main Street/General Dollar) were both identified as 11 North Main Street. The former 

10,000-gallon UST was located on the 108 North Main Street property south of the Site; however, 

the exact location of the former 10,000-gallon UST is not documented. A UST closure 

assessment completed by Griffin International, Inc. indicated that the UST was in very good 

condition with only minor soil impacts observed around the fill pipe and below the UST. These 

were attributed to small spills and/or overfills.  

 

3. Documented arsenic contamination at an adjacent property. Elevated concentrations of arsenic 

were detected in soil at the adjacent 108 North Main Street property (Dollar General) in 2011. 

VTDEC assigned Site #2012-4284 to the release. Shallow arsenic-impacted soil was buried on-

site under five feet of clean fill in accordance with a VTDEC-approved Corrective Action Plan 

(CAP). 

 

4. Current and historical underground storage and documented petroleum contamination at an 

adjacent property. The property located at 73 North Main Street and adjoining the Site to the 

west-southwest is currently operated as a gasoline filling station. Elevated concentrations of 

petroleum compounds and lead were identified in soil and groundwater in 2011. A Supplemental 

Site investigation completed by KAS Environmental Science and Engineering (KAS) in October 

2022 identified petroleum-related volatile organic compounds (VOCs) at concentrations 

exceeding non-residential use Vermont Soil Standards (VSS) and Vermont Groundwater 

Enforcement Standards (VGES) near a former gasoline pump island approximately 100 feet 

southwest of the Site. The extent of soil and groundwater contamination has not been defined. 

 

5. Historical underground storage and release(s) of petroleum at an adjacent property. A 1989 site 

assessment identified soil contamination at the adjoining 127 North Main Street property. 

Available records did not indicate the type of contamination but did indicate soil was excavated 

and “landfarmed” on the property. The VTDEC issued a Sites Management Activity Completed 

(SMAC) letter for the release on March 7, 1994. Available records also indicate one 10,000-gallon 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 17



 

 

 

 
1-3 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

fuel oil UST was removed from the property in 1998, and one 12,000-gallon fuel oil UST was 

removed in 2017. During the 1998 UST removal, petroleum contamination was identified. The 

release condition was tracked by the VTDEC under Site #90-0619. A letter from the VTDEC, 

dated October 26, 1998, indicates that impacted soil encountered during UST removal was 

stockpiled at the property. Closure documents associated with the 2017 UST removal were not 

reviewed. 

 

6. Historical industrial use and underground storage of petroleum at the subject property. The Site 

was used for various industrial uses beginning in the late 1800s until at least 1999. Historical 

property uses included granite processing, automotive repair, gasoline filling, and machining. 

These industrial operations would have included the use and storage of various types of oil 

and/or hazardous materials. A historical Sanborn Map from 1919 depicts a buried gasoline tank 

and an unidentified tank at the property. 

1.6 Purpose 

A residential development is proposed for the Site. This Phase II ESA is being conducted to evaluate 

whether previously identified RECs have resulted in a release to the environment and to determine 

appropriate remediation and/or mitigation measures that may be required during Site redevelopment.

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 18



 

 

 

 
2-1 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

2.0 FIELD ACTIVITIES 

2.1 Approach 

Field activities included the sampling of soil, groundwater, and soil gas in accordance with the Phase II 

ESA work plan dated August 18, 2023, and approved by the VTDEC on August 18, 2023. Sample 

locations are shown on Figure 3. Soil boring logs and groundwater sampling forms are provided as 

Appendix A. Select Site photos are provided as Appendix B. 

2.2 Surficial Soil Assessment 

On August 29
th

, 2023, Weston & Sampson collected surface soil samples from two decision units (DUs) 

following incremental sampling methodology (ISM). DUs (shown on Figure 3), were based on the 

proposed Site redevelopment plan, and included: 

 

1. DU1: The western flat area of the Site where the proposed building and parking lot will be 

constructed. Increments in DU1 were positioned around the former building foundations.  

 

2. DU2: The eastern area of the site between DU1 and the river embankment. The area of soil 

disturbance associated with the Dollar General truck turn-around was excluded from DU2 since 

engineered fill was likely imported to construct this feature. 

 

Three ISM replicate samples (labeled with the DU identification followed by -A, -B, and -C) were collected 

from each of the two DUs, for a total of six ISM replicate samples. Each replicate sample was composed 

of 30 aliquots collected from 30 relatively equal size grid-based increments within the DUs (Figure 3). 

Sampling grids were established using a Global Positioning System (GPS) with pin flags placed in the 

center of each grid square. Samples were collected in the following manner: 

• At each increment, three aliquots (one for each replicate sample -A, -B, and -C) were collected 

from 0.0 – 1.5 feet below ground surface (bgs). Aliquot locations within each increment were 

chosen by field personnel following a systematic random sampling procedure. 

• Hand tools were used to remove vegetation, where present, then used to collect the aliquots. 

Soil was logged for texture, color, moisture content, and presence/absence of fill materials. 

• Each aliquot was approximately 20 grams (g) of soil, as determined by using a field scale, and 

was placed in separate aluminum trays labeled A, B, or C. 

• The sampling procedure was repeated until each tray had aliquots from all 30 increments. Soil 

was then thoroughly mixed, removing stones and organic matter, and spread to uniform 

thickness. The soil was then divided into sampling containers. This process was repeated for 

each ISM replicate. 

 

Duplication is inherent in ISM; therefore, no field duplicates were collected. Sampling was 

decontaminated prior to use and between DUs, but not between collection increments within a DU. 

 

ISM replicate samples were submitted to Pace Analytical Services of East Longmeadow Massachusetts 

(Pace) for analysis of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs) by EPA Method 8270 with selected ion 

monitoring (SIM), thirteen priority pollutant (PP13) metals and barium by EPA Methods 6010/6020 and 

7471 (mercury), and polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) by EPA Method 8082 with manual Soxhlet 

extraction.  

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 19



 

 

 

 
2-2 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

2.3 Subsurface Soil Assessment 

Five soil borings (SB-1 through SB-5; Figure 3) were advanced to evaluate subsurface soil quality. SB-

1 was co-located with a groundwater sampling location (GW-1), to evaluate potential on-Site migration 

of VOCs. SB-2 was located within the mapped location of a former gasoline UST identified on the 1919 

Sanborn fire insurance map. SB-3 was co-located with GW-3 near the former filling station and 

associated with underground storage tanks. SB-4 was co-located with GW-4 near the footprint of both 

the historical and proposed site building. SB-4 had to be relocated multiple times due to shallow 

refusals. SB-5 was in the eastern part of the Site. 

Soil borings were advanced using direct push drilling techniques to at least five feet below the observed 

water table or refusal. Recovered soil was logged for texture, color, moisture content, and 

visual/olfactory evidence of contamination. Soil was also screened for the presence of VOCs using a 

calibrated photoionization detector (PID). One soil sample was collected from each boring and analyzed 

by Pace for: 

• VOCs by EPA Method 8260 

• SVOCs by EPA Method 8270 

• 13 PP Metals and barium by EPA Methods 6010/6020 and 7471 

• PCBs by EPA Method 8082 with manual Soxhlet extraction 

One additional sample was collected from 0-2 feet bgs from SB-5 for VOC analysis based on a PID 

screening result of 1.4 parts per million by volume (ppm/v). Sample depths were determined by the field 

geologist based on visual, olfactory, and/or PID screening evidence of contamination. In the absence 

of evidence of VOC contamination, the VOC sample was collected from the interface between the 

vadose and saturated zone. SVOC, metals, and PCB soil samples were collected from depths 

representative of fill or disturbed soils, except at SB-3 where one sample was collected of undisturbed 

native soil. One blind field duplicate was collected for each analytical parameter. 

Sample Location Depth (ft) Parameter Nature of Soil Blind Field Duplicate 

SB-1 0-2 SVOCs, PCBs, Metals Fill No 

SB-1 10 VOCs Native No 

SB-2 0-2 SVOCs, PCBs, Metals Fill No 

SB-2 15 VOCs Native No 

SB-3 10-12 SVOCs, PCBs, Metals Native No 

SB-3 11 VOCs Native No 

SB-4 0-3 SVOCs, PCBs, Metals Fill Yes 

SB-4 7 VOCs Native Yes 

SB-5 1 VOCs Fill No 

 

2.4 Groundwater Assessment 

Five groundwater samples (GW-1 through GW-5; Figure 3) were collected by temporarily installing 

screen points positioned to intersect the water table. Soil borings were completed at each location, in 

the same manner as described above for subsurface soil assessment, to determine what depth to install 

the screen points. Groundwater samples were collected using a peristaltic pump in general accordance 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 20



 

 

 

 
2-3 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

with the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) for 

low flow sampling of groundwater monitoring wells except that permanent wells were not installed or 

developed. One blind field duplicate sample was collected. 

2.5 Soil Gas Assessment 

Two soil gas samples (SG-1 and SG-3; Figure 3) were collected from within the footprint of the proposed 

Site building. SG-2, initially intended to be installed near SB-4/GW-4, was relocated to the location of 

the former filling station, as groundwater was too shallow to collect a soil gas sample.  

Soil gas samples were collected from between 2 and 4 feet below grade using the Geoprobe
®

 post-run-

tubing (PRT) system. Each location was screened for VOCs with a PID. Dedicated tubing was secured 

from the PRT system to Summa canisters equipped with flow regulators calibrated to 30-minute 

sampling periods. One blind field duplicate was collected. Soil gas samples were submitted to Pace for 

VOC analysis by EPA Method TO-15. 

2.6 Standard Operating Procedures 

The following Weston & Sampson Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) were followed during this 

Phase II ESA. Copies have previously been provided to the VTDEC.  

SOP 1 Composite Soil Sampling 

SOP-2 Jar Headspace Screening 

SOP-3 Sampling Soil from Split Spoon/Direct Push Sampling Device 

SOP-5 Pre-Marking Boring Locations 

SOP-7 Observing Direct Push Soil Borings 

SOP-8 Decontaminating Equipment 

SOP-10 Sampling Soil with a Scoop or Hand Auger   

SOP-11 Low Flow Groundwater Sampling 

SOP-14 Air and Soil Gas Sampling 

SOP-22 Soil Gas Monitoring Point Installation 

2.7 Investigation Derived Waste 

Soil cuttings were used to backfill soil borings. No excess soil was generated. Purged groundwater was 

discharged to the screen point from which it was generated after sampling was complete.  

2.8 Deviations from the Work Plan 

Several deviations from the work plan were made, including the following: 

• An additional soil sample for VOCs was taken at SB-5 due to encountering a PID reading or 1.3 

ppm/v between 0 – 2 feet.  

• A soil sample for VOCs was not collected at SB-2 between 0 – 5 feet where a PID reading of 1.4 

ppm was encountered because the core sat in the sun for an extended period. No visual or 

olfactory evidence of contamination was observed. Volatiles were presumed too no longer be 

present in the recovered soil core. A sample was instead collected from the groundwater 

interface at 15 feet bgs. We believe that sufficient data was collected to support the conclusions 

of the report. 

• When collecting composite samples for DU1 and DU2 there was not enough volume after mixing 

the aliquots in the trays to be divided and collected from thirty equally sized grid squares as 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 21



 

 

 

 
2-4 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

planned. Instead, the replicate samples were collected evenly from the composited trays. This 

does not affect the data quality or usability as the soil was thoroughly mixed before being placed 

in sample containers.  

 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2023 Phase II ESA\Report Parts\Phase II ESA 

Draft.docx 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 22



 

 

 

 
3-1 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

3.0 RESULTS 

3.1 Screening Criteria 

Soil analytical results were compared to the Vermont Soil Standards (VSS) for residential, non-

residential, and urban background uses published in the VTDEC Investigation and Remediation of 

Contaminated Properties Rule (I-Rule), effective July 6, 2019. Soil results were also compared to draft 

VSS expected to be promulgated in the next year within an update to the I-Rule. In the new update, the 

lead standard is expected to change from 400 milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg) to 41 mg/kg for 

residential and non-residential properties and 111 mg/kg for the Urban Background VSS. The Site is in 

a Designated Urban Soil Zone as defined by the VTDEC and shown on the Agency of Natural Resources 

(ANR) Atlas and lead concentrations were compared to the urban background VSS.  

 

Groundwater analytical results were compared to the Vermont Groundwater Enforcement Standards 

(VGES), as listed in Chapter 12: Groundwater Protection Rule and Strategy of the State of Vermont 

Environmental Protection Rules, adopted July 6, 2019. 

 

Soil gas results were compared to the Vapor Intrusion Standards for Subslab Soil Gas (VIS-SSG) for 

residential and non-residential use published in the I-Rule.  

 

Applicable soil and soil gas screening criteria are included in the full analytical results tables (Tables 1 

through 4). Laboratory analytical reports are provided in Appendix C.  

3.2 Surficial Soil  

PAHs were detected in all ISM replicate samples. In DU1, PAH concentrations, expressed as 

benzo(a)pyrene toxic equivalents (B[a]P-TE) for all replicates were above the urban background VSS 

(0.58 mg/kg) and ranged between 1.08 and 1.56 mg/kg. One replicate (DU-1A) exceeded the non-

residential VSS (1.54 mg/kg).  

 

The 95% upper confidence level (UCL) of the mean PAH concentration was calculated using the 

Chebyshev method. The 95% UCL represents the upper bound of the range within which we are 95% 

confident that the true mean lies. The 95% UCL for PAHs in DU1 is 2.0 mg/kg, above the non-residential 

VSS (1.54 mg/kg).  

 

In DU2, PAH concentrations in all replicates were below the urban background VSS, ranging from 0.24 

mg/kg and 0.29 mg/kg. The 95% UCL for PAHs in DU2 is 0.30 mg/kg, below the urban background 

VSS.  

 

No metals were detected at concentrations above their respective residential VSS. No PCBs were 

detected at concentrations above the laboratory method detection limit. ISM soil sample results are 

presented in Table 1 and shown on Figure 4. 

3.3 Subsurface Soil 

PAH concentrations, expressed as B(a)P-TE, exceeded the urban background VSS at 0-2 feet bgs in 

soil at SB-2. All other PAH concentrations were below the urban background VSS.  

No PCBs or VOCs were detected above laboratory reporting limits in subsurface soil samples. No metals 

were detected at concentrations exceeding the residential VSS. However, the VTDEC is expected to 

lower the VSS for lead within the timeframe of proposed Site redevelopment. The proposed lead VSS 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 23



 

 

 

 
3-2 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

applicable to the Site would be an urban background value of 111 mg/kg. Lead concentrations in 

shallow soil at locations SB-1 (160 mg/kg) and SB-4 (350 mg/kg), both on the western half of the Site, 

exceed the proposed urban background VSS.  

Subsurface soil sample results are summarized as Table 2 and shown on Figure 4. 

3.4 Groundwater 

No VOCs were detected in groundwater samples GW-1 through GW-5, except for GW-3 where acetone 

was detected. The acetone concentration in GW-3 (64 ug/l) is well below the VGES (950 ug/l). 

Groundwater sample results are summarized as Table 3. 

3.5 Soil Gas 

Four VOC compounds were detected in soil gas above the residential VIS-SSG. These include benzene 

(SG-2, SG-3, and SG-4), carbon tetrachloride (SG-4), ethylbenzene (SG-4), and tetrachloroethene (PCE; 

SG-2 and SG-3). Soil gas analytical results are summarized as Table 4 and shown on Figure 5. 

 

 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2023 Phase II ESA\Report Parts\Phase II ESA 

Draft.docx 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 24



 

 

 

 
4-1 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

4.0 DATA USABILITY 

4.1 Data Usability 

4.1.1 Laboratory Data Evaluation 

Weston & Sampson will perform a Tier I evaluation of the data to identify bias or other interference that 

could affect the quality of sample results. Quality control (QC) components that will be evaluated include 

the following: 

• Data completeness 

• Holding times 

• Sample preservation 

• Blank results 

• Surrogate recoveries 

• Laboratory control sample results 

• Field duplicates 

The following QA/QC Samples were collected: 

Parameter Matrix 

Number 

of 

Samples 

Trip Blanks 
Blind Field 

Duplicates 

VOCs 

Soil 6 1 1 

Groundwater 5 1 1 

Soil Gas 4 0 1 

PAHs Soil – ISM* 6 0 0 

SVOCs Soil – Boring 4 0 1 

PP13 Metals and Barium 

Soil – ISM* 6 0 0 

Soil – Boring 4 0 1 

PCBs 

Soil – ISM* 6 0 0 

Soil – Boring 4 0 1 

*Duplication is inherent in ISM; three replicate samples are collected for each decision unit. 

4.1.2 PARCCS Evaluation 

Weston & Sampson evaluated the data in general accordance with the PARCCS (precision, accuracy, 

representativeness, completeness, comparability, and sensitivity) parameters outlined in the U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency Guidance on Quality Assurance Project Plans. 

Precision 

Precision is a measure of agreement among individual measurements of the same property and is 

generally expressed as the reproducibility of the analytical result between initial sample and field 

duplicate as expressed by the relative percent difference (RPD). Precision is a measure of the 

reproducibility of sampling technique, matrix homogeneity, and analytical method. An RPD value of 

<50% is considered acceptable for soil and soil gas. An RPD value of <30% is considered acceptable 

for aqueous samples. 

RPD values for the SB-4 original and duplicate soil samples could not be calculated for PCBs, SVOCs, 

or VOCs as none were detected in either the primary or duplicate samples. RPD values for the SB-4 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 25



 

 

 

 
4-2 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

original and duplicate samples for metals and PAHs ranged between 1% and 64% and 0% and 82% 

respectively. RPD values outside of the acceptance criteria of 50% for soil is likely due to soil and 

contaminant heterogeneity. Metals and PAH data is considered suitably precise to support the 

conclusions of this assessment.  

 

RPD values for the SG-2 original and duplicate soil gas sample were within the acceptance criteria of 

50%, ranging between 0% and 4%. RPD values could not be calculated for the GW-4 original and 

duplicate groundwater sample as no VOCs were detected. 

Accuracy 

Accuracy is the degree of measurement with an accepted reference or true value. Weston & Sampson 

evaluated accuracy by reviewing surrogate results, laboratory control sample results, and calibration 

QC results. For several soil and soil gas analytes, fortified blank/laboratory control sample recovery, 

continuing calibration verification (CCV), initial calibration verification (ICV), surrogate recoveries or 

matrix spikes were outside of control limits. The results for these compounds may have been biased 

low or high. The affected analytes are not considered compounds of concern for the Site or were not 

detected above reporting limits. Weston & Sampson is of the opinion that the data are suitably accurate 

to support the conclusions of this report. 

Representativeness 

Representativeness expresses the degree to which data accurately and precisely represent a 

characteristic of the population, parameter variation, or environmental condition. Weston & Sampson 

designed the sampling protocol to ensure representativeness by incorporating factors such as Site 

history, visual and olfactory observations, physical features, proper sample collection and preservation 

procedures, appropriate testing methodology, and field screening data. The samples collected at the 

Site are considered representative based on the known conditions and potential contaminant release 

mechanisms. 

Completeness 

Completeness is a measure of whether enough data has been collected to support a regulatory opinion 

and is expressed as a percentage representing the ratio of valid data to expected data. Data may be 

considered invalid for reasons such as exceeding the holding time, poor calibration of analytical 

instruments, and poor surrogate or matrix spike recoveries. Based on a review of the case narratives 

and lab QA/QC samples, the data collected for this Site are complete. 

Comparability 

Comparability refers to the level of confidence with the correlation of data collected during separate 

events or by different persons or analyzed by different methods. This may be measured qualitatively 

based on a review of sampling and testing procedures or quantitatively by comparison of sample data 

collected at the same location using the same sampling and testing procedures. All sampling and 

testing procedures were followed utilizing accepted standards for quality assurance and quality control 

and are expected to be comparable to any future data collected at the Site. 

Sensitivity 

Sensitivity is a measure of whether the laboratory method was sufficient to report detected contaminants 

at concentrations at or below the applicable regulatory criteria. All laboratory reporting limits were below 

their corresponding VSS, VIS, and VGES. 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 26



 

 

 

 
5-1 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

5.0 CONCEPTUAL SITE MODEL 

5.1 Site Description 

The Site is in a mixed commercial and residential area of Northfield, Vermont. The Site is currently vacant 

and anecdotal reports by Town of Northfield employees suggest that it is used by the Town as a snow 

dump in winter. It has been developed for various industrial and commercial uses since the early 1800s 

including a woolen mill, granite works, automotive repair shop, gasoline filling station, and machine 

shop. The Site is accessed from the west by North Main Street by a gravel drive. Concrete foundation 

and structural support remnants are present in the west-central portion. The eastern approximate two-

thirds of the Site is vegetated except for an asphalt drive easement that extends from the Dollar General 

property and is used as a truck turnaround. Overhead electrical and communication utilities traverse the 

northern extent of the Site from east to west. Site features are shown on Figure 2.  

The Site is situated approximately 713 feet above mean sea level. The eastern portion, defined by the 

gravel drive and foundation remnants, is relatively flat. The west-central portion is covered with a 

concrete slab. A pit was observed in the concrete slab adjacent to one of the foundation remnants and 

was filled with water. Topography slopes steeply downward to the east towards the Dog River, which 

defines the eastern property boundary. A steep drainage defines the northern Site boundary.  

The area is served by municipal water although one private water supply is mapped on the property 

adjoining the Site to the north. The Site and surrounding area are served by municipal wastewater 

disposal infrastructure. No wetlands are mapped on the Site or surrounding area. 

5.2 Geology 

The Site is within a Designated Urban Soil Zone as defined by the VTDEC and shown on the ANR Atlas. 

Designated Urban Soil Zones are areas where the use of VTDEC urban background concentrations for 

PAHs, arsenic, and lead may be used when evaluating contaminant concentrations. Soil in the western 

approximate two-thirds of the Site is mapped as pebbly sand, a glaciolacustrine deposit associated with 

Glacial Lake Winooski, which extended into Northfield along the current Dog River channel 

approximately 14,000 – 13,500 years before present during the retreat of the Laurentide ice sheet.  

Subsurface soils observed at the Site consisted of 0-7 feet of fill overlying native brown fine sand. Fill 

soils consisted of light brown and grey medium to coarse sand and some gravel, with glass and granite 

rubble. The thickest fill soils were observed in the westernmost (SB-2) and easternmost (SB-5) areas of 

the Site and thinnest fill soils were observed centrally (SB-4). Native soil observed consisted of brown 

fine sand and was seen from 7 ft bgs to a maximum depth of 20 ft bgs in the southwestern corner of the 

site. Native soils appeared to be reworked in the north and southwest of the Site from 0-5 feet bgs and 

consisted of fine to coarse sand and gravel with no bedding structure. The native sandy soil encountered 

is consistent with the mapped pebbly sand and soil described on the adjoining gas station property 

(KAS, 2022). Fill soils on the site are consistent with the fill soils described on the property adjoining the 

Site to the south, which contained wood, pieces of granite, metal, and concrete (ATC, 2012).  

Bedrock at the Site is mapped as phyllite and metasiltstone members of the Cram Hill Formation 

(Ratcliffe et al, 2011). Exposed schist outcrops were present at the north of the site, which is somewhat 

consistent with the mapped bedrock as schist has undergone higher grade metamorphism compared 

to phyllite. Refusal on what was presumed to be bedrock was encountered between 8 and 12 feet bgs 

in the northwest area of the Site (SB-1). Refusal was not encountered at a maximum depth of 20 ft bgs 

in the southwest corner of the Site (GW-2).  

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 27



 

 

 

 
5-2 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

Groundwater was encountered between approximately 2 and 15 ft bgs at the Site and was shallower 

near the bedrock on the north side of the property. Groundwater elevation was not determined due to 

the use of temporary screen point wells, which were not surveyed. 

Groundwater flow, based on previous investigations (ATC, 2011 and KAS, 2022), is to the south. A 

groundwater seep was observed from the bedrock outcrop on the north of the Site.  

5.3 Contaminants of Concern 

Based on the results of the Phase II ESA, the primary contaminants of concern (COC) include the 

following: 

• Surficial Soil: PAHs and lead 

• Soil Gas: Benzene, ethylbenzene, tetrachloroethene, and carbon tetrachloride 

5.4 Distribution and Potential Sources 

5.4.1 Surficial Soil 

The 95% UCL for PAHs in surficial soil in DU1 (western half of the Site) is 2.0 mg/kg, above the non-

residential VSS (1.54 mg/kg). PAH concentrations appear to decrease with depth, with no subsurface 

samples exceeding the non-residential VSS. PAHs were not detected in native soils. 

 

The 95% UCL for PAHs in surficial soil in DU2 (eastern half of the Site) is 0.30 mg/kg, below the urban 

background VSS.  

 

Potential sources of PAHs in surface soil include former industrial uses of the property (granite works, 

automotive repair shop, machine shop, and woolen mill), use as a snow dump, aerial deposition within 

an urban setting, and importation of contaminated fill from an unknown location, or a combination of 

these sources.  

Lead is present in shallow soil above the proposed urban background VSS in two locations on the 

northwest of the site (SB-1 (0-2) and SB-4(0-3)) to a maximum depth of 3 feet bgs. Lead concentrations 

appear to be present throughout the Site in low levels, with a few locations above the Urban Background 

VSS likely due to heterogeneity of the contaminant in soil. Lead was not detected above the proposed 

Urban Background VSS in native soils. Potential sources of lead in shallow soil includes former industrial 

uses of the property, possible lead paint on historical Site buildings, use as a snow dump, and 

contaminated fill from an unknown location, or a combination of these sources.  

5.4.2 Soil Gas 

Benzene and ethylbenzene were identified in soil gas above the residential VIS-SSG, with the highest 

concentrations on the western side of the Site at SG-4.  Benzene concentrations at SG-4 also exceeded 

the non-residential VIS-SSG. Neither compound was detected in soil or groundwater.  Releases due to 

former Site uses (automotive repair shop, filling station, and machine shop) or a former on-Site gasoline 

UST from the early 1900s (see Figure 2) are potential sources for these petroleum-related VOCs. Several 

potential off-Site sources also exist, including two former USTs at the adjacent Dollar General property 

to the south, two former USTs at the adjoining 127 North Main Street property to the northwest, and 

petroleum-related VOCs documented in groundwater at 73 North Main Street (SMS #2011-4199), 

approximately 100 feet southwest of the Site.  

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 28



 

 

 

 
5-3 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

Carbon tetrachloride and PCE were also detected in soil gas above their residential VIS-SSGs, with the 

highest concentration of PCE on the southern edge of the Site at SG-2, and the highest concentration 

of carbon tetrachloride on the western side of the Site at SG-4. Neither compound was detected in soil 

or groundwater.  Releases related to the use, storage, and disposal of PCE solvents potentially used as 

a degreaser in automotive maintenance activities in the former filling station are a potential source for 

these chlorinated VOCs.   

The extent of these petroleum-related and chlorinated VOC soil gas exceedances has not been defined.   

5.5 Migration Pathway 

PAHs and lead are expected to be relatively immobile in soil and do not appear to have leached 

downwards into subsurface soil. The primary migration pathway for PAHs and lead at the Site is via 

erosion. 

Potential VOC releases associated with past on-Site activities do not appear to have impacted soil or 

groundwater, though at least one potential off-Site source for petroleum-related VOCs (73 North Main 

Street) has confirmed petroleum-related VOCs in soil and groundwater.  

Whether sourced on-Site of off-Site, once in the subsurface, migration of VOCs in soil gas will occur 

through advection (bulk movement with the flow of a fluid such as air or groundwater) or diffusion 

(moving from areas of higher concentration to lower concentration).  The remnant building foundation 

in one portion of the Site may cause VOCs to accumulate below the concrete and may prevent surface 

water from infiltrating and transporting VOCs to groundwater.  

Where VOCs in soil gas are in contact with a building slab or utility spaces, they may impact air quality 

through vapor intrusion. There is a vapor intrusion risk to indoor air in the future Site building and/or 

nearby buildings.  

5.6 Sensitive Receptors 

A Sensitive Receptor Map, generated with the Agency of Natural Resources online Natural Resources 

Atlas, is provided as Figure 6. 

The Site is in a mixed commercial/industrial and residential area of Northfield, Vermont. The area is 

served by municipal water and no private wells are mapped on or downgradient of the Site. A private 

water supply is mapped on the adjoining property to the north. 

Potential human receptors to PAHs and lead in soil include Site users such as nearby residents and 

trespassers. Future potential human receptors include construction and utility workers performing 

subsurface work, or occupants of the future residential development.  

Potential human receptors to VOCs in soil gas include future occupants of the proposed residential 

development and current occupants of nearby buildings that may be at risk of vapor intrusion. Other 

potential human receptors to VOCs in soil gas include construction and utility workers performing 

subsurface work.  

No wetlands are located on or downgradient of the Site and the Site is in an urban area. Potential 

ecological receptors are limited to aquatic biota in the Dog River. 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 29



 

 

 

 
5-4 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

5.7 Exposure Pathways 

Potential exposure pathways to sensitive receptors include direct contact through ingestion of 

contaminated soil, dermal contact with contaminated soil, and inhalation due to vapor intrusion into 

excavations or buildings. The following exposure pathways are considered complete: 

• Site Users could encounter surface soil impacted with PAHs and lead. 

• Future Site Users completing subsurface work (such as construction or utility workers) could 

encounter soil gas impacted with benzene, ethylbenzene, PCE, and carbon tetrachloride.  

• Future building occupants could encounter benzene, ethylbenzene, PCE, and/or carbon 

tetrachloride via the vapor intrusion pathway. 

The following exposure pathways may be complete, but their status is currently unknown: 

• Nearby property users could encounter surface soil impacted with PAHs. 

• Nearby property users may encounter benzene, ethylbenzene, tetrachloroethene, and carbon 

tetrachloride in indoor air if these contaminants are migrating off-Site or are from an off-Site 

source. 

The following table summarizes the potentially impacted media, sensitive receptors, and whether each 

exposure pathway is considered complete, incomplete, or is currently unknown. 

Media 
Contaminants of 

Concern 
Sensitive Receptors Exposure Pathways 

Exposure 

Pathway 

Complete? 

Surface Soil PAHs, Lead Site Users  Direct Contact, Ingestion Complete 

Subsurface 

Soil 
PAHs and Lead Future Site Users (construction/utility workers) Direct Contact, Ingestion Incomplete 

Groundwater VOCs 

Site Users Direct Contact, Ingestion Incomplete 

Future Site Users (construction/utility workers) Direct Contact, Ingestion Incomplete 

Nearby Residents Direct Contact, Ingestion Incomplete 

Future Off-Site Construction/Utility workers Direct Contact, Ingestion Incomplete 

Surface 

Water 
PAHs and Lead 

Users of Dog River Direct Contact, Ingestion Unknown 

Aquatic Biota in Dog River Direct Contact, Ingestion Unknown 

Indoor Air 

Benzene, 

Ethylbenzene, PCE, 

Carbon tetrachloride 

Site Users – Future Building Occupants Inhalation Complete 

Nearby Building Occupants Inhalation Unknown 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2023 Phase II ESA\Report Parts\Phase II ESA 

Draft.docx 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 30



 

 

 

 
6-1 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

6.0 DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSIONS 

 

Weston & Sampson has completed a Phase II ESA for CVRPC for the property located at 11 North Main 

Street in Northfield, Vermont (the Site). The findings of the Phase II ESA include the following: 

• Surface soil in the western half of the Site is impacted with polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons 

(PAHs) exceeding the urban background Vermont Soil Standard (VSS) and non-residential VSS. 

PAH impacts appear to be limited to surface soil within previously developed areas of the Site 

where past industrial practices included granite cutting and processing, operation of a machine 

shop, and operation of a gasoline filling station and automotive repair shop. 

• Lead was identified in soil but does not exceed the current residential VSS. However, the 

Vermont Department of Environmental Conservation (VTDEC) is expected to lower the lead VSS 

within the timeframe of proposed Site redevelopment. The proposed VSS applicable to the Site 

would be an urban background value of 111 milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg). Two discrete 

shallow soil samples collected from less than 3 feet below grade on the western portion of the 

Site contained lead concentrations exceeding the proposed urban background VSS for lead. 

• No polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), semi-volatile organic compounds (SVOCs) other than 

PAHs, or volatile organic compounds (VOCs) were identified in soil above the laboratory 

reporting limits. 

• No VOCs were detected in groundwater except for low levels of acetone (a common lab 

contaminant) at one location. Acetone concentrations were below the Vermont Groundwater 

Enforcement Standard (VGES). 

• Soil gas is impacted with the VOCs benzene, ethylbenzene, tetrachloroethylene (PCE), and 

carbon tetrachloride exceeding the residential Vapor Intrusion Standards for Subslab Soil Gas 

(VIS-SSG). Benzene also exceeded the non-residential VIS-SSG at one location.  

6.1 Data Gaps 

Remaining data gaps include defining the nature and extent of benzene, ethylbenzene, PCE, and carbon 

tetrachloride impacts identified in Site soil gas and determining if these contaminants pose a risk to 

indoor air at nearby buildings. 

 

 

 

 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2023 Phase II ESA\Report Parts\Phase II ESA 

Draft.docx 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 31



 

 

 

 
7-1 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Based on the findings of the Phase II ESA, we recommend performing supplemental soil gas 

assessment to evaluate the nature and extent of VOCs detected above the resident VIS-SSG. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2023 Phase II ESA\Report Parts\Phase II ESA 

Draft.docx 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 32



 

 

 

 
8-1 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

8.0 SIGNATURE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONAL 

 

This report was prepared by the following individuals: 

 

Daniel Schuckers 

Geologist I 

 

 

I certify under penalty of perjury that I am an environmental professional and that all content contained 

within this deliverable is to the best of my knowledge true and correct. 

 

 

Lee Rosberg 

Senior Project Manager 

 

 

 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2023 Phase II ESA\Report Parts\Phase II ESA 

Draft.docx 

 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 33



 

 

 

 
9-1 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

9.0 LIMITATIONS 

 
This Phase II ESA was prepared exclusively for the use of the Central Vermont Regional Planning 

Commission (CVRPC). The conclusions provided by Weston & Sampson in this report are based solely 

on the information reported in this document. Future investigations, and/or information that were not 

available to Weston & Sampson at the time of this investigation may result in a modification of the 

conclusions stated in this report.  

 

Should additional information become available concerning this Site or neighboring properties that 

could directly impact the Site in the future; that information should be made available to Weston & 

Sampson for review so, if necessary, conclusions presented in this report may be modified. The 

conclusions of this report are based on Site conditions observed by Weston & Sampson personnel at 

the time of the investigation, information provided by the users and information provided by federal, 

state, and local agencies. This report has been prepared in general accordance with accepted 

engineering and environmental assessment practices. No other warranty, expressed or implied, is 

made. 

 

 

 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2023 Phase II ESA\Report Parts\Phase II ESA 

Draft.docx 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 34



 

 

 

 
10-1 

Phase II ESA  CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

10.0 REFERENCES 

 

ATC Associates, Inc., 2011. Limited Phase II Environmental Site Assessment, Proposed Dollar General, 

11 North Main Street, Northfield, Vermont. November 9. 

 

ATC Associates, Inc., 2012. Corrective Action Plan, Proposed Dollar General, 11 North Main Street, 

Northfield, Vermont, VT DEC SMS #2012-4284. September 21. 

 

Griffin international, Inc., 1998. Underground Storage Tank (UST) Permanent Closure inspection – 

Cetrangolo Finishing Works, inc. (UST Facility ID #4855711), September 29. 

 

KAS Environmental Science & Engineering, 2022. Supplemental Site Investigation Report, Northfield 

Gulf, 73 North Main Street, Northfield, Vermont VTDEC #2011-4199, October 24. 

 

Ratcliffe, N.M., Stanley, R.S, Gale, M.H., Thompson, P.J., and Walsh, G.J., 2011, Bedrock Geologic 

Map of Vermont: U.S. Geological Survey Scientific Investigations Map 3184, 3 sheets, scale 1:100,000. 

 

State of Vermont, Agency of Natural Resources. Natural Resources Online Atlas. Vermont ANR - 

Natural Resources Atlas HTML5 Viewer Accessed August 2023. 

 

Vermont Department of Environmental Conservation, 1994. Site Management Activity Completed, 

Rabbit Hollow, Northfield (site #90-0619), March 7. 

 

Vermont Department of Environmental Conservation, 1998. Letter to Barry Chouinard, Inc. RE: WMD 

Site #90-0619, Barry Chouinard, Inc., October 26. 

 

Wilcox & Barton, Inc., 2022. ASTM E 1527-21 Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, 11 North Main 

Street, SPAN: 441-139-10312, Northfield, Vermont. October 18. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 35

https://anrmaps.vermont.gov/websites/anra5/
https://anrmaps.vermont.gov/websites/anra5/


 

 

 

 westonandsampson.com 

FIGURES 

 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 36



Service Layer Credits: Copyright:© 2013
National Geographic Society, i-cubed

FIGURE 1
LOCUS MAP

11 NORTH MAIN STREET, NORTHFIELD, VT

Pa
th

: \\
ws

e0
3.l

oc
al\

WS
E\

Pr
oje

cts
\V

T\C
VR

PC
\11

 N
ort

h M
ain

 S
tre

et 
No

rth
fie

ld\
3. 

Dr
aw

ing
s\L

oc
us

 M
ap

.m
xd

   U
se

r: 
Ha

ley
.So

ph
ia 

  S
av

ed
: 8

/9/
20

23
  1

2:1
9:5

2 P
M 

  O
pe

ne
d:

 8/
11

/20
23

  1
0:5

9:2
8 A

M

³

1 in = 1,250 ft

Site

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 37



P
ath

: \\w
se03.local\W

S
E

\P
rojects\V

T
\C

V
R

P
C

\11 N
orth M

ain S
treet N

orthfield\3. D
raw

ings\S
ite P

lan\S
ite P

lan.aprx   M
ap

: S
ite P

lan U
ser: S

chuckers.D
aniel   S

aved
: 8/18/2023  11:16 A

M
   O

p
en

ed
: 8/18/2023  11:17 A

M

AUTO
REP.

FILLING STATION

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF "TANK"
IDENTIFIED IN 1919 SANBORN MAP

FORMER 500-GALLON #2 FUEL
OIL UST CLOSED IN 2012

FORMER 40-GALLON
HYDRAULIC OIL UST
CLOSED IN 2012

OBSERVED CONCRETE COLUMNS AND
FOUNDATION

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
BURIED GASOLINE TANK

 IDENTIFIED ON 1919 SANBORN MAP

OHU-E

OHU-E

OHU-E

OHU-E

OHU-E

OHU-E

OHU-E

OHU-E

OHU-E

168 NORTH MAIN STREET
127 & 141 NORTH MAIN

STREET

93 NORTH MAIN STREET

73 NORTH MAIN
STREET

108 NORTH
MAIN STREET

117 KING
STREET

141 KING STREET

WATER STREET

N
O

R
T

H
 M

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

MACHINE SHOP

VCGI, Maxar, MicrosoftSCALE: NOTEDAUGUST, 2023

SITE PLAN

11 NORTH MAIN STREET
NORTHFIELD, VT

FIGURE 2

³

60 0 6030

Feet

Legend

Site

Parcels

Historical Buildings

Overhead Electric Lines

Anticipated
Groundwater Flow

OHU-E

INFORMATION ON AND LOCATIONS OF
FORMER USTs OBTAINED FROM
SANBORN MAPS DATED 1919, 1969,
AND FIGURE 2 FROM UNDERGROUND
STORAGE TANK CLOSURE REPORT
 PREPARED BY CARDNO ATC (ATC)
DATED NOVEMBER 21, 2012.

INFERRED DIRECTION OF
GROUNDWATER FLOW

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 38



P
ath

: \\w
se03.local\W

S
E

\P
rojects\V

T
\C

V
R

P
C

\11 N
orth M

ain S
treet N

orthfield\3. D
raw

ings\S
ite P

lan\S
ite P

lan.aprx   M
ap

: P
roposed S

am
ple Locations U

ser: S
chuckers.D

aniel   S
aved

: 10/16/2023  9:37 A
M

   O
p

en
ed

: 10/16/2023  9:37 A
M

A

A
A

A

A

GW-1

GW-2

GW-3

GW-4

GW-5

SB-1

SB-2

SB-3

SB-4

SB-5

DU-1

DU-2

SG-1

SG-2
SG-3

SG-4

VCGI, Maxar, MicrosoftSCALE: NOTEDOCTOBER, 2023

SITE PLAN AND SAMPLE LOCATIONS

11 NORTH MAIN STREET
NORTHFIELD, VT

FIGURE 3

³

40 0 4020

Feet

Legend

Site

Parcels

Historical Buildings

Anticipated
Groundwater Flow

A
Groundwater Monitoring
Wells

Soil Borings

Soil Gas Point

Decision Unit 2

Decision Unit 1

INFERRED DIRECTION OF
GROUNDWATER FLOW

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 39



P
ath

: \\w
se03.local\W

S
E

\P
rojects\V

T
\C

V
R

P
C

\11 N
orth M

ain S
treet N

orthfield\3. D
raw

ings\S
ite P

lan\S
ite P

lan.aprx   M
ap

: P
roposed S

am
ple Locations U

ser: S
chuckers.D

aniel   S
aved

: 10/16/2023  9:33 A
M

   O
p

en
ed

: 10/16/2023  9:34 A
M

SB-1

SB-2

SB-3

SB-4

SB-5

DU-2A: 0.295
DU-2B: 0.244
DU-2C: 0.280
95% UCL: 0.30

DU-1A: 1.56
DU-1B: 1.08
DU-1C: 1.46
95% UCL: 2.0

SB-1: 0.304

SB-2: 0.87

SB-3: 0.003

SB-4: 0.514

DU-1

DU-2

VCGI, Maxar, MicrosoftSCALE: NOTEDOCTOBER, 2023

PAHS IN SOIL

11 NORTH MAIN STREET
NORTHFIELD, VT

FIGURE 4

³

40 0 4020

Feet

INFERRED DIRECTION OF
GROUNDWATER FLOW

Legend

Site

Parcels

Historical Buildings

Anticipated
Groundwater Flow

Soil Borings

Decision Unit 2

Decision Unit 1

Exceedance of non-resident VSS for B(a)P-TE: 1.54 (I-Rule, 2019)

Exceedance of urban background value for B(a)P-TE: 0.58 (I-Rule, 2019)

Detected above laboratory reporting limit.

Non-detect (U)

Notes:
All results reported in milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg)
VSS: Vermont Soil Standard
I-Rule: Investigation and Remediation of Contaminated Properties Rule
95% UCL: 95% Upper Confidence Level of the arithmetic mean
(Chebyshev method)

1.67

0.78

0.24

0.19

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 40



P
ath

: \\w
se03.local\W

S
E

\P
rojects\V

T
\C

V
R

P
C

\11 N
orth M

ain S
treet N

orthfield\3. D
raw

ings\S
ite P

lan\S
ite P

lan.aprx   M
ap

: P
roposed S

am
ple Locations U

ser: S
chuckers.D

aniel   S
aved

: 10/10/2023  8:30 A
M

   O
p

en
ed

: 10/10/2023  8:31 A
M

Benzene: 0.69
Carbon tetrachloride: 1.3 U
Ethylbenzene: 0.87 U
Tetrachloroethene: 1.4 U

Benzene: 14
Carbon tetrachloride: 1.3 U
Ethylbenzene: 4.6
Tetrachloroethene: 27

Benzene: 5.8
Carbon tetrachloride: 1.3 U
Ethylbenzene: 0.87 U
Tetrachloroethene: 110

Benzene: 47
Carbon tetrachloride: 12
Ethylbenzene: 14
Tetrachloroethene: 10 U

SG-1

SG-2

SG-3

SG-4

VCGI, Maxar, MicrosoftSCALE: NOTEDAUGUST, 2023

SOIL GAS RESULTS

11 NORTH MAIN STREET
NORTHFIELD, VT

FIGURE 5

³

25 0 2512.5

Feet

Legend

Site

Parcels

Historical Buildings

Soil Gas Point

Exceedance of Resident VIS - SSG, Benzene: 35, Carbon
tetrachloride: 45, Ethylbenzene: 110, Tetrachloroethene: 170
(I-Rule, 2019)

Exceedance of Resident VIS - SSG, Benzene: 4.3, Carbon
tetrachloride: 5.7, Ethylbenzene: 13, Tetrachloroethene: 21
(I-Rule, 2019)

Below Resident VIS - SSG (I-Rule, 2019)

Non-detect (U)

Notes:
All results reported in micrograms per cubic meter (ug/mg3)
VIS - SSG: Vapor intrusion Standards - Subslab Soil Gas
I-Rule: Investigation and Remediation of Contaminated
Properties Rule

4.7

0.5

0.87

45

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 41



04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 42



 

 

 

 westonandsampson.com 

TABLES 

 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 43



TABLE 1

SURFACE SOIL RESULTS

11 N MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag

Metals

Antimony mg/kg 31 470 26 319 1.8 U 2 U 1.9 U 2.2 U 2.2 U 2.2 U

Arsenic mg/kg 0.68 3 16 16 5.7 6.5 6.3 6.4 6.5 5.9

Barium mg/kg 15,000 220,000 11,247 127,382 32 38 34 64 68 61

Beryllium mg/kg 160 2,300 35 289 0.18 U 0.23 0.19 U 0.24 0.25 0.24

Cadmium mg/kg 71 980 6.9 87 0.37 U 0.4 U 0.38 U 0.43 U 0.47 0.45 U

Chromium mg/kg 40,223 360,223 15 16 15 14 14 15

Copper mg/kg 3,100 47,000 10,407 139,231 29  56  31  34  33  38  

Lead mg/kg 400 800 400 800 35 44 41 61 59 55

Mercury mg/kg 11 46 3.1 3.1 0.049 0.055 0.063 0.07 0.078 0.078

Nickel mg/kg 1,500 22,000 940 9,707 22 43 22 14 14 14

Selenium mg/kg 390 5,800 366 4,900 3.7 U 4 U 3.8 U 4.3 U 4.3 U 4.5 U

Silver mg/kg 390 5,800 237 2,483 1.5 1.9 1.6 2.3 2.6 2.4

Thallium mg/kg 0.78 12 0.73 196,100 1.8 U 2 U 1.9 U 2.2 U 2.2 U 2.2 U

Zinc mg/kg 23,000 350,000 21,986 294,150 61 70 71 99 83 81

Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs)-8082

Aroclor-1016 mg/kg 4.1 27 0.092 U 0.098 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 

Aroclor-1221 mg/kg 0.2 0.83 0.092 U 0.098 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 

Aroclor-1232 mg/kg 0.17 0.72 0.092 U 0.098 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 

Aroclor-1242 mg/kg 0.23 0.95 0.092 U 0.098 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 

Aroclor-1248 mg/kg 0.23 0.94 0.092 U 0.098 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 

Aroclor-1254 mg/kg 0.24 0.97 0.092 U 0.098 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 

Aroclor-1260 mg/kg 0.24 0.99 0.092 U 0.098 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 

Aroclor-1262 mg/kg 0.092 U 0.098 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 

Aroclor-1268 mg/kg 0.092 U 0.098 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 

Total PCBs mg/kg 0.114 0.68 0.092 U, Y 0.098 U, Y 0.095 U, Y 0.11 U, Y 0.11 U, Y 0.11 U, Y

Semi-Volatile Organic Compounds (SVOCs)-8270

2-Methylnaphthalene mg/kg 240 3,000 5.8 U 6.1 U 5.9 U 1.3 U 1.3 U 1.3 U

Acenaphthene mg/kg 3,600 45,000 1.7 U 1.8 U 1.8 U 0.4 U 0.4 U 0.39 U

Acenaphthylene mg/kg 1.2 U 1.2 U 1.2 U 0.27 U 0.27 U 0.26 U

Anthracene mg/kg 18,000 230,000 1.2 U 1.2 U 1.2 U 0.27 U 0.27 U 0.26 U

Benzo(g,h,i)perylene mg/kg 2.9 U 3.1 U 3 U 0.67 U 0.67 U 0.66 U

Fluoranthene mg/kg 2,400 30,000 2,301 26,371 2.9 U 3.1 U 3 U 0.67 U 0.67 U 0.66 U

Fluorene mg/kg 2,400 30,000 2,301 26,371 5.8 U 6.1 U 5.9 U 1.3 U 1.3 U 1.3 U

Naphthalene mg/kg 2 8.6 2.7 16 5.8 U 6.1 U 5.9 U 1.3 U 1.3 U 1.3 U

Phenanthrene mg/kg 0.55  0.31 U 0.53  0.16 0.13 0.22

Pyrene mg/kg 1,800 23,000 5.8 U 6.1 U 5.9 U 1.3 U 1.3 U 1.3 U

Benz(a)anthracene mg/kg 0.1 0.9  0.56  0.79  0.17 0.12 0.24

Benzo(a)pyrene mg/kg 1 0.11 2.1 0.58* 1.54 1.0  0.61  0.92  0.17 0.14 0.15

Benzo(b)fluoranthene mg/kg 0.1 1.1 21 1.1  0.71  1.0  0.27 0.19 0.23

Benzo(k)fluoranthene mg/kg 0.01 11 210 1.2 U 1.2 U 1.2 U 0.27 U 0.27 U 0.26 U

Chrysene mg/kg 0.001 110 2,100 1.2 U 1.2 U 1.2 U 0.27 U 0.27 U 0.3

Dibenz(a,h)anthracene mg/kg 1 0.11 2.1 0.58 U 0.61 U 0.59 U 0.13 U 0.13 U 0.13 U

Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene mg/kg 0.1 1.1 21 0.68  0.61 U 0.63  0.14 0.13 U 0.16

B(a)P-TE mg/kg 0.11 2.1 0.58* 1.54 1.5646 Y 1.0791 Y 1.4636 Y 0.2945 Y 0.244 Y 0.2796 Y

B(a)P-TE 95% UCL mg/kg 0.11 2.1 0.58* 1.54

2540G

% Solids % Weight 86.9 81.7 84.2 74.6 75.2 76.1

Notes:
VSS Vermont Soil Standard (July 6, 2019)

EPA RSL Environmental Protection Agency Regional Screening Level (November 2020)

RPF Relative potency factor

B(a)P-TE Benzo(a)pyrene toxic equivalents

* Urban Background Value for B(a)P-TE

95% UCL 95% Upper Confidence Level of the arithmetic mean (Chebyshev method)

mg/kg milligrams per kilogram

U not detected above laboratory reporting limit

Y calculated value

Bold Detected above laboratory reporting limit

Bold Exceedance of EPA RSL - Resident and/or of VSS - Resident/Urban Background

Bold Exceedance of EPA RSL - Industrial and/or of VSS - Non-Resident

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2023 Phase II ESA\Tables\[Northfield ISM.xlsx]Results 

2.0 0.30

DU-1A

8/29/2023

DU-1B

8/29/2023

DU-1C

8/29/2023

DU-2A DU-2C

8/29/2023
VSS Non-

Resident
8/29/2023

DU-2B

8/29/2023VSS Resident
EPA RSL - 

Industrial

EPA RSL - 

Resident
UnitsParameter RPF

Page 1 of 1 Weston & Sampson

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 44



TABLE 2

DISCRETE SOIL SAMPLE RESULTS

11 N MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag

Metals-6010

Antimony mg/kg 31 470 26 319 2 U 1.8 U 2 U 2.1 U 2 U --

Arsenic mg/kg 0.68 3 16 16 8.2 5.4 7.2 8.7 8.6 1%

Barium mg/kg 15,000 220,000 11,247 127,382 45 50 30 96 66 37%

Beryllium mg/kg 160 2,300 35 289 0.32 0.19 0.2 U 0.21 U 0.2 5%

Cadmium mg/kg 71 980 6.9 87 0.4 U 0.36 U 0.4 U 0.42 U 0.39 U --

Chromium mg/kg 40,223 360,223 14 16 15 16 31 64%

Copper mg/kg 3,100 47,000 10,407 139,231 41 33 32 73 43 52%

Lead mg/kg 400 800 400 800 160 83 8.9 350 190 59%

Mercury mg/kg 11 46 3.1 3.1 0.21 0.028 U 0.029 U 1.3  1.1  17%

Nickel mg/kg 1,500 22,000 940 9,707 15 19 23 22 20 10%

Selenium mg/kg 390 5,800 366 4,900 4 U 3.6 U 4 U 4.9 3.9 U --

Silver mg/kg 390 5,800 237 2,483 1.2 1.4 0.96 0.42 U 0.39 U --

Thallium mg/kg 0.78 12 0.73 196,100 2 U 1.8 U 2 U 2.1 U 2 U --

Zinc mg/kg 23,000 350,000 21,986 294,150 120 74 43 160 110 37%

Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs)-8082

Aroclor-1016 mg/kg 4.1 27 0.097 U 0.087 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.097 U --

Aroclor-1221 mg/kg 0.2 0.83 0.097 U 0.087 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.097 U --

Aroclor-1232 mg/kg 0.17 0.72 0.097 U 0.087 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.097 U --

Aroclor-1242 mg/kg 0.23 0.95 0.097 U 0.087 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.097 U --

Aroclor-1248 mg/kg 0.23 0.94 0.097 U 0.087 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.097 U --

Aroclor-1254 mg/kg 0.24 0.97 0.097 U 0.087 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.097 U --

Aroclor-1260 mg/kg 0.24 0.99 0.097 U 0.087 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.097 U --

Aroclor-1262 mg/kg 0.097 U 0.087 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.097 U --

Aroclor-1268 mg/kg 0.097 U 0.087 U 0.095 U 0.11 U 0.097 U --

Total PCBs mg/kg 0.114 0.68 0.097 U, Y 0.087 U, Y 0.095 U, Y 0.11 U, Y 0.097 U, Y --

Semi-Volatile Organic Compounds (SVOCs)-8270

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene mg/kg 24 110 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

1,2-Dichlorobenzene mg/kg 1,800 9,300 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

1,3-Dichlorobenzene mg/kg 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

1,4-Dichlorobenzene mg/kg 2.6 11 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

1,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene mg/kg 23 350 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

1,2-Diphenylhydrazine mg/kg 0.68 2.9 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

1-Methylnaphthalene mg/kg 18 73 0.21 U 0.19 U 0.21 U 0.2 U 0.22 U 0.21 U --

2,4,5-Trichlorophenol mg/kg 6,300 82,000 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

2,4,6-Trichlorophenol mg/kg 49 210 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

2,4-Dichlorophenol mg/kg 190 2,500 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

2,4-Dimethylphenol mg/kg 1,300 16,000 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

2,4-Dinitrophenol mg/kg 130 1,600 0.8 U 0.72 U 0.82 U 0.79 U 0.87 U 0.8 U --

2,4-Dinitrotoluene mg/kg 1.7 7.4 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

2,6-Dinitrotoluene mg/kg 0.36 1.5 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

2-Chloronaphthalene mg/kg 4,800 60,000 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

2-Chlorophenol mg/kg 390 5,800 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

2-Methylphenol mg/kg 3,200 41,000 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

2-Nitroaniline mg/kg 630 8,000 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

2-Nitrophenol mg/kg 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

3,3-Dichlorobenzidine mg/kg 1.2 5.1 0.21 U 0.19 U 0.21 U 0.2 U 0.22 U 0.21 U --

3/4-Methylphenol mg/kg 3,200 41,000 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

3-Nitroaniline mg/kg 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

4,6-Dinitro-2-methylphenol mg/kg 5.1 66 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

4-Bromophenyl phenyl ether mg/kg 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

4-Chloro-3-methylphenol mg/kg 6,300 82,000 0.8 U 0.72 U 0.82 U 0.79 U 0.87 U 0.8 U --

4-Chloroaniline mg/kg 2.7 11 0.8 U 0.72 U 0.82 U 0.79 U 0.87 U 0.8 U --

4-Chlorophenyl phenyl ether mg/kg 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

4-Nitroaniline mg/kg 27 110 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

4-Nitrophenol mg/kg 0.8 U 0.72 U 0.82 U 0.79 U 0.87 U 0.8 U --

Acetophenone mg/kg 7,800 120,000 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Aniline mg/kg 95 400 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Benzidine mg/kg 0.00053 0.01 0.8 U 0.72 U 0.82 U 0.79 U 0.87 U 0.8 U --

Benzoic acid mg/kg 250,000 3,300,000 1.2 U 1.1 U 1.2 U 1.2 U 1.3 U 1.2 U --

bis(2-Chloroethoxy)methane mg/kg 190 2,500 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

bis(2-Chloroethyl)ether mg/kg 0.23 1 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

bis(2-Chloroisopropyl)ether mg/kg 3,100 47,000 2,804 36,274 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate mg/kg 39 160 20 120 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Butyl benzyl phthalate mg/kg 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Carbazole mg/kg 0.21 U 0.19 U 0.21 U 0.2 U 0.22 U 0.21 U --

Dibenzofuran mg/kg 78 1,200 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Diethylphthalate mg/kg 51,000 660,000 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Dimethyl phthalate mg/kg 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Di-n-butyl phthalate mg/kg 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Di-n-octyl phthalate mg/kg 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Hexachlorobenzene mg/kg 0.21 0.96 0.13 0.69 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Hexachlorobutadiene mg/kg 1.2 5.3 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Hexachlorocyclopentadiene mg/kg 1.8 7.5 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Hexachloroethane mg/kg 1.8 8 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Isophorone mg/kg 570 2,400 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Nitrobenzene mg/kg 5.1 22 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

N-Nitrosodimethylamine mg/kg 0.002 0.034 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

N-Nitrosodi-n-propylamine mg/kg 0.078 0.33 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

N-Nitrosodiphenylamine mg/kg 110 470 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Pentachloronitrobenzene mg/kg 2.7 13 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Pentachlorophenol mg/kg 1 4 0.48 2.9 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Phenol mg/kg 19,000 250,000 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Pyridine mg/kg 78 1,200 0.41 U 0.37 U 0.42 U 0.41 U 0.45 U 0.41 U --

Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PAHs)-8270

2-Methylnaphthalene mg/kg 240 3,000 0.04 U 0.047 0.21 U 0.039 U 0.044 U 0.04 U --

Acenaphthene mg/kg 3,600 45,000 0.01 U 0.018 0.21 U 0.01 U 0.019 0.03 45%

Acenaphthylene mg/kg 0.041 0.25 0.21 U 0.01 U 0.13 0.13 0%

Anthracene mg/kg 18,000 230,000 0.042 0.13 0.21 U 0.008 U 0.1 0.12 18%

Benzo(g,h,i)perylene mg/kg 0.13 0.5  0.21 U 0.019 U 0.25 0.3 18%

Fluoranthene mg/kg 2,400 30,000 2,301 26,371 0.39 0.98  0.21 U 0.019 U 0.52  0.96  59%

Fluorene mg/kg 2,400 30,000 2,301 26,371 0.04 U 0.036 U 0.21 U 0.039 U 0.044 U 0.055 --

Naphthalene mg/kg 2 8.6 2.7 16 0.04 U 0.046 0.21 U 0.039 U 0.044 U 0.052 --

Phenanthrene mg/kg 0.19 0.27 0.21 U 0.01 U 0.29 0.69  82%

Pyrene mg/kg 1,800 23,000 0.36 0.9  0.21 U 0.039 U 0.56  0.82  38%

Benz(a)anthracene mg/kg 0.1 0.19 0.52  0.21 U 0.002 U 0.23 0.37 47%

Benzo(a)pyrene mg/kg 1 0.11 2.1 0.58* 1.54 0.21 0.59  0.21 U 0.002 U 0.36 0.33 9%

Benzo(b)fluoranthene mg/kg 0.1 1.1 21 0.26 0.84  0.21 U 0.002 U 0.42 0.6  35%

Benzo(k)fluoranthene mg/kg 0.01 11 210 0.099 0.28 0.21 U 0.008 U 0.16 0.22 32%

Chrysene mg/kg 0.001 110 2,100 0.22 0.67  0.21 U 0.008 U 0.35 0.53  41%

Dibenz(a,h)anthracene mg/kg 1 0.11 2.1 0.033 0.087 0.21 U 0.002 U 0.061 0.074 19%

Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene mg/kg 0.1 1.1 21 0.15 0.54  0.21 U 0.008 U 0.26 0.32 21%

B(a)P-TE mg/kg 0.58* 1.54 0.304 0.87 0.2427 0.003 0.514 0.536 4%

VSS 

Resident

EPA RSL - 

Industrial

EPA RSL - 

Resident
UnitsParameter RPF

SB-5 (1)

9/6/2023

VSS Non-

Resident
RPD RPD

SB-4 (0-3)

9/6/2023

SB-4 (7)

9/6/2023

SB-3 (10-12)

9/6/2023

SB-3 (11)

9/6/2023

SB-2 (0-2)

9/6/2023

SB-2 (15)

9/6/2023

SB-1 (0-2)

9/6/2023

SB-1 (10)

9/6/2023

SB-4 (0-3) 

(DUP)

9/6/2023

SB-4 (7) (DUP-1)

9/6/2023

Page 1 of 2 Weston & Sampson

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 45



TABLE 2

DISCRETE SOIL SAMPLE RESULTS

11 N MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag

VSS 

Resident

EPA RSL - 

Industrial

EPA RSL - 

Resident
UnitsParameter RPF

SB-5 (1)

9/6/2023

VSS Non-

Resident
RPD RPD

SB-4 (0-3)

9/6/2023

SB-4 (7)

9/6/2023

SB-3 (10-12)

9/6/2023

SB-3 (11)

9/6/2023

SB-2 (0-2)

9/6/2023

SB-2 (15)

9/6/2023

SB-1 (0-2)

9/6/2023

SB-1 (10)

9/6/2023

SB-4 (0-3) 

(DUP)

9/6/2023

SB-4 (7) (DUP-1)

9/6/2023

Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs)-8260

1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane mg/kg 2 8.8 1.3 8 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

1,1,1-Trichloroethane mg/kg 8,100 36,000 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane mg/kg 0.6 2.7 0.001 U 0.0008 U 0.001 U 0.001 U 0.0009 U -- 0.001 U

1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane mg/kg 6,700 28,000 0.012 U 0.0077 U 0.011 U 0.011 U 0.0092 U -- 0.012 U

1,1,2-Trichloroethane mg/kg 1.1 5 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

1,1-Dichloroethane mg/kg 3.6 16 2.1 13 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

1,1-Dichloroethene mg/kg 230 1,000 0.005 U 0.0031 U 0.004 U 0.005 U 0.0037 U -- 0.005 U

1,1-Dichloropropene mg/kg 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene mg/kg 63 930 0.005 U 0.0031 U 0.004 U 0.005 U 0.0037 U -- 0.005 U

1,2,3-Trichloropropane mg/kg 0.0051 0.11 0.00311 0.07 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene mg/kg 24 110 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

1,2-Dibromoethane mg/kg 0.036 0.16 0.02 0.14 0.001 U 0.0008 U 0.001 U 0.001 U 0.0009 U -- 0.001 U

1,2-Dichlorobenzene mg/kg 1,800 9,300 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

1,2-Dichloroethane mg/kg 0.46 2 0.29 1.7 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

1,2-Dichloropropane mg/kg 2.5 11 1.5 9.1 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

1,3,5-Trichlorobenzene mg/kg 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

1,3-Dichlorobenzene mg/kg 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

1,3-Dichloropropane                               mg/kg 1,600 23,000 0.001 U 0.0008 U 0.001 U 0.001 U 0.0009 U -- 0.001 U

1,4-Dichlorobenzene mg/kg 2.6 11 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

1,4-Dioxane mg/kg 5.3 24 2.8 17 0.12 U 0.077 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 0.092 U -- 0.12 U

2,2-Dichloropropane                               mg/kg 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

2-Chlorotoluene                                   mg/kg 1,600 23,000 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

2-Hexanone mg/kg 200 1,300 0.025 U 0.015 U 0.021 U 0.022 U 0.018 U -- 0.023 U

4-Chlorotoluene                                   mg/kg 1,600 23,000 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

4-Methyl-2-pentanone mg/kg 33,000 140,000 0.025 U 0.015 U 0.021 U 0.022 U 0.018 U -- 0.023 U

Acetone mg/kg 61,000 670,000 40,609 100,028 0.12 U 0.077 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 0.092 U -- 0.12 U

Acrylonitrile mg/kg 0.25 1.1 0.007 U 0.0046 U 0.006 U 0.007 U 0.0055 U -- 0.007 U

Benzene mg/kg 1.2 5.1 0.7 4.2 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Bromobenzene                                      mg/kg 290 1,800 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Bromochloromethane mg/kg 150 630 193 597 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Bromodichloromethane mg/kg 0.29 1.3 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Bromoform mg/kg 19 86 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Bromomethane mg/kg 6.8 30 0.012 U 0.0077 U 0.011 U 0.011 U 0.0092 U -- 0.012 U

Butylbenzene, n- mg/kg 3,900 58,000 3,504 51,100 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Butylbenzene, sec- mg/kg 7,800 120,000 7,009 102,200 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Butylbenzene, tert- mg/kg 7,800 120,000 7,009 102,200 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Carbon disulfide mg/kg 770 3,500 608 662 0.012 U 0.0077 U 0.011 U 0.011 U 0.0092 U -- 0.012 U

Carbon tetrachloride mg/kg 0.65 2.9 0.37 2.2 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Chlorobenzene mg/kg 280 1,300 414 726 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Chloroethane mg/kg 14,000 57,000 0.025 U 0.015 U 0.021 U 0.022 U 0.018 U -- 0.023 U

Chloroform mg/kg 0.32 1.4 0.005 U 0.0031 U 0.004 U 0.005 U 0.0037 U -- 0.005 U

Chloromethane mg/kg 110 460 0.012 U 0.0077 U 0.011 U 0.011 U 0.0092 U -- 0.012 U

cis-1,2-Dichloroethene mg/kg 160 2,300 140 1,814 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

cis-1,3-Dichloropropene mg/kg 1.8 8.2 0.001 U 0.0008 U 0.001 U 0.001 U 0.0009 U -- 0.001 U

Dibromo(chloro)methane mg/kg 0.001 U 0.0008 U 0.001 U 0.001 U 0.0009 U -- 0.001 U

Dibromochloropropane mg/kg 0.0053 0.064 0.01 0.06 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Dibromomethane mg/kg 24 99 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Dichlorodifluoromethane mg/kg 87 370 0.025 U 0.015 U 0.021 U 0.022 U 0.018 U -- 0.023 U

Diethyl Ether mg/kg 16,000 230,000 0.025 U 0.015 U 0.021 U 0.022 U 0.018 U -- 0.023 U

Diisopropyl Ether mg/kg 2,200 9,400 0.001 U 0.0008 U 0.001 U 0.001 U 0.0009 U -- 0.001 U

Ethylbenzene mg/kg 5.8 25 3.7 22 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Hexachlorobutadiene mg/kg 1.2 5.3 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Isopropylbenzene mg/kg 1,900 9,900 256 264 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Methyl Acetate mg/kg 78,000 1,200,000 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Methyl ethyl ketone (MEK) mg/kg 27,000 190,000 16,952 26,991 0.049 U 0.031 U 0.042 U 0.045 U 0.037 U -- 0.047 U

Methyl tert butyl ether (MTBE) mg/kg 47 210 649 4,464 0.005 U 0.0031 U 0.004 U 0.005 U 0.0037 U -- 0.005 U

Methylcyclohexane mg/kg 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Methylene chloride mg/kg 57 1,000 0.025 U 0.015 U 0.021 U 0.022 U 0.018 U -- 0.023 U

Naphthalene mg/kg 2 8.6 2.7 16 0.012 U 0.0077 U 0.011 U 0.011 U 0.0092 U -- 0.012 U

n-Propyl benzene mg/kg 3,800 24,000 253 261 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

p-Isopropyltoluene mg/kg 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Styrene mg/kg 6,000 35,000 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME) mg/kg 0.001 U 0.0008 U 0.001 U 0.001 U 0.0009 U -- 0.001 U

tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA) mg/kg 0.12 U 0.077 U 0.11 U 0.11 U 0.092 U -- 0.12 U

tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether mg/kg 0.001 U 0.0008 U 0.001 U 0.001 U 0.0009 U -- 0.001 U

Tetrachloroethene mg/kg 24 100 2.4 14 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Tetrahydrofuran                                   mg/kg 18,000 95,000 0.012 U 0.0077 U 0.011 U 0.011 U 0.0092 U -- 0.012 U

Toluene mg/kg 4,900 47,000 706 798 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

trans-1,2-Dichloroethene mg/kg 70 300 1,402 18,137 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

trans-1,3-Dichloropropene mg/kg 1.8 8.2 0.001 U 0.0008 U 0.001 U 0.001 U 0.0009 U -- 0.001 U

trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene mg/kg 0.0074 0.032 0.005 U 0.0031 U 0.004 U 0.005 U 0.0037 U -- 0.005 U

Trichloroethene mg/kg 0.94 6 0.68 6.5 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Trichlorofluoromethane mg/kg 23,000 350,000 0.012 U 0.0077 U 0.011 U 0.011 U 0.0092 U -- 0.012 U

Trimethylbenzene, 1,2,4- mg/kg 300 1,800 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Trimethylbenzene, 1,3,5- mg/kg 270 1,500 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

Vinyl Chloride mg/kg 0.059 1.7 0.1 0.59 0.012 U 0.0077 U 0.011 U 0.011 U 0.0092 U -- 0.012 U

Xylene, m,p- mg/kg 550 2,400 0.005 U 0.0031 U 0.004 U 0.005 U 0.0037 U -- 0.005 U

Xylene, o- mg/kg 650 2,800 0.003 U 0.0015 U 0.002 U 0.002 U 0.0018 U -- 0.002 U

2540G

% Solids % Weight 82.4 78.3 91.7 80.6 83.9 75.5 76.1 82.2 8% 75 80 6% 79

Notes:
VSS Vermont Soil Standard (July 6, 2019)

EPA RSL Environmental Protection Agency Regional Screening Level (November 2020)

RPF Relative potency factor

B(a)P-TE Benzo(a)pyrene toxic equivalents

* Urban Background Value for B(a)P-TE

-- No comparison because analytes were not detected above laboratory reporting limits

RPD Relative Percent Difference between the sample result and the blind field duplicate result

mg/kg milligrams per kilogram

U not detected above laboratory reporting limit

Y calculated value

Bold Detected above laboratory reporting limit

Bold Exceedance of EPA RSL - Resident and/or of VSS - Resident

Bold Exceedance of EPA RSL - Industrial and/or of VSS - Non-Resident

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2023 Phase II ESA\Tables\[Northfield ISM.xlsx]Results 

Page 2 of 2 Weston & Sampson

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 46



TABLE 3

GROUNDWATER RESULTS

11 N MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag

Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs)-8260

1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane ug/l 70 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

1,1,1-Trichloroethane ug/l 200 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane ug/l 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U -- 0.50 U

1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

1,1,2-Trichloroethane ug/l 5 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

1,1-Dichloroethane ug/l 70 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

1,1-Dichloroethene ug/l 7 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

1,1-Dichloropropene ug/l 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U -- 2.0 U

1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene ug/l 0.9 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U -- 5.0 U

1,2,3-Trichloropropane ug/l 0.02 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U -- 2.0 U

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene ug/l 70 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

1,2-Dibromoethane ug/l 0.05 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U -- 0.50 U

1,2-Dichlorobenzene ug/l 600 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

1,2-Dichloroethane ug/l 5 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

1,2-Dichloropropane ug/l 5 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

1,3,5-Trichlorobenzene ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

1,3-Dichlorobenzene ug/l 600 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

1,3-Dichloropropane                               ug/l 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U -- 0.50 U

1,4-Dichlorobenzene ug/l 75 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

1,4-Dioxane ug/l 0.3 50 U 50 U 50 U 50 U 50 U -- 50 U

2,2-Dichloropropane                               ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

2-Chlorotoluene                                   ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

2-Hexanone ug/l 10 U 10 U 10 U 10 U 10 U -- 10 U

4-Chlorotoluene                                   ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

4-Methyl-2-pentanone ug/l 10.0 U 10.0 U 10.0 U 10.0 U 10.0 U -- 10.0 U

Acetone ug/l 950 50 U 50 U 64 50 U 50 U -- 50 U

Acrylonitrile ug/l 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U -- 5.0 U

Benzene ug/l 5 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Bromobenzene                                      ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Bromochloromethane ug/l 8 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Bromodichloromethane ug/l 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U -- 0.50 U

Bromoform ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Bromomethane ug/l 5 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U -- 2.0 U

Butylbenzene, n- ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Butylbenzene, sec- ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Butylbenzene, tert- ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Carbon disulfide ug/l 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U -- 5.0 U

Carbon tetrachloride ug/l 5 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U -- 5.0 U

Chlorobenzene ug/l 100 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Chloroethane ug/l 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U -- 2.0 U

Chloroform ug/l 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U -- 2.0 U

Chloromethane ug/l 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U -- 2.0 U

cis-1,2-Dichloroethene ug/l 70 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

cis-1,3-Dichloropropene ug/l 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U -- 0.50 U

Dibromo(chloro)methane ug/l 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U -- 0.50 U

Dibromochloropropane ug/l 0.2 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U -- 5.0 U

Dibromomethane ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Dichlorodifluoromethane ug/l 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U -- 2.0 U

Diethyl Ether ug/l 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U -- 2.0 U

Diisopropyl Ether ug/l 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U -- 0.50 U

UnitsParameter

GW-4

9/6/2023

GW-1

9/6/2023

GW-4 (DUP-2)

9/6/2023VGES

GW-2

9/6/2023

GW-3

9/6/2023 RPD

GW-5

9/6/2023

Page 1 of 2 Weston & Sampson

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 47



TABLE 3

GROUNDWATER RESULTS

11 N MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag

Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs)-8260

UnitsParameter

GW-4

9/6/2023

GW-1

9/6/2023

GW-4 (DUP-2)

9/6/2023VGES

GW-2

9/6/2023

GW-3

9/6/2023 RPD

GW-5

9/6/2023

Ethylbenzene ug/l 700 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Hexachlorobutadiene ug/l 0.60 U 0.60 U 0.60 U 0.60 U 0.60 U -- 0.60 U

Isopropylbenzene ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Methyl Acetate ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Methyl ethyl ketone (MEK) ug/l 511 20 U 20 U 20 U 20 U 20 U -- 20 U

Methyl tert butyl ether (MTBE) ug/l 11 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Methylcyclohexane ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Methylene chloride ug/l 5 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U 5.0 U -- 5.0 U

Naphthalene ug/l 0.5 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U -- 2.0 U

n-Propyl benzene ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

p-Isopropyltoluene ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Styrene ug/l 100 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME) ug/l 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U -- 0.50 U

tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA) ug/l 20 U 20 U 20 U 20 U 20 U -- 20 U

tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether ug/l 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U -- 0.50 U

Tetrachloroethene ug/l 5 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Tetrahydrofuran                                   ug/l 10 U 10 U 10 U 10 U 10 U -- 10 U

Toluene ug/l 1,000 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

trans-1,2-Dichloroethene ug/l 100 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

trans-1,3-Dichloropropene ug/l 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U 0.50 U -- 0.50 U

trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene ug/l 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U -- 2.0 U

Trichloroethene ug/l 5 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Trichlorofluoromethane ug/l 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U -- 2.0 U

Trimethylbenzene, 1,2,4- ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Trimethylbenzene, 1,3,5- ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

Vinyl Chloride ug/l 2 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U -- 2.0 U

Xylene, m,p- ug/l 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U 2.0 U -- 2.0 U

Xylene, o- ug/l 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U

NOTES:

VGES Groundwater:  Vermont Groundwater Enforcement Standard (Groundwater Protection Rule; July 6, 2019)
-- No comparison because analytes were not detected above laboratory reporting limits

RPD Relative Percent Difference between the sample result and the blind field duplicate result

ug/L micrograms per liter

U not detected above laboratory reporting limit

Bold Detected above laboratory reporting limit

Bold Exceedance of VGES

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2023 Phase II ESA\Tables\[Northfield GW.xlsx]Results 

Page 2 of 2 Weston & Sampson

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 48



TABLE 4

SOIL GAS RESULTS

11 NORTH MAIN STREET 

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag Result Flag

Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) - TO-15

1,1,1-Trichloroethane ug/m3 1.1 U 2.4  2.3  4% 1.7  8.2 U 

1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane ug/m3 1.4 U 1.4 U 1.4 U -- 1.4 U 10 U 

1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane ug/m3 6.1 U 6.1 U 6.1 U -- 6.1 U 46 U 

1,1,2-Trichloroethane ug/m3 1.1 U 1.1 U 1.1 U -- 1.1 U 8.2 U 

1,1-Dichloroethane ug/m3 21 170 0.81 U 0.81 U 0.81 U -- 0.81 U 6.1 U 

1,1-Dichloroethene ug/m3 6,700 23,000 0.79 U 0.79 U 0.79 U -- 0.79 U 5.9 U 

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene ug/m3 1.5 U 1.5 U 1.5 U -- 1.5 U 11 U 

1,2-Dibromoethane ug/m3 1.5 U 1.5 U 1.5 U -- 1.5 U 12 U 

1,2-Dichloro-1,1,2,2-tetrafluoroethane ug/m3 1.4 U 1.4 U 1.4 U -- 1.4 U 10 U 

1,2-Dichlorobenzene ug/m3 1.2 U 1.2 U 1.2 U -- 1.2 U 9 U 

1,2-Dichloroethane ug/m3 0.81 U 0.81 U 0.81 U -- 0.81 U 6.1 U 

1,2-Dichloropropane ug/m3 0.92 U 0.92 U 0.92 U -- 0.92 U 6.9 U 

1,3-Butadiene ug/m3 0.44 U 0.44 U 0.44 U -- 0.44 U 3.3 U 

1,3-Dichlorobenzene ug/m3 1.2 U 1.2 U 1.2 U -- 1.2 U 9 U 

1,4-Dichlorobenzene ug/m3 1.2 U 1.2 U 1.2 U -- 1.2 U 9 U 

1,4-Dioxane ug/m3 7.2 U 7.2 U 7.2 U -- 7.2 U 54 U 

2-Hexanone ug/m3 3.3 U 5.1  4.9  4% 3.3  25 U 

4-Ethyltoluene ug/m3 0.98 U 0.98 U 0.98 U -- 0.98 U 7.4 U 

4-Methyl-2-pentanone ug/m3 0.82 U 0.82 U 0.82 U -- 0.82 U 6.1 U 

Acetone ug/m3 280  900  870  3% 600  140 U 

Benzene ug/m3 4.3 35 0.69  5.8  5.7  2% 14  47  

Benzyl chloride ug/m3 4.1 U 4.1 U 4.1 U -- 4.1 U 31 U 

Bromodichloromethane ug/m3 1.3 U 1.3 U 1.3 U -- 1.3 U 10 U 

Bromoform ug/m3 2.1 U 2.1 U 2.1 U -- 2.1 U 16 U 

Bromomethane ug/m3 0.78 U 0.78 U 0.78 U -- 0.78 U 5.8 U 

Carbon disulfide ug/m3 6.2 U 6.2 U 6.2 U -- 6.2 U 47 U 

Carbon tetrachloride ug/m3 5.7 45 1.3 U 1.3 U 1.3 U -- 1.3 U 12  

Chlorobenzene ug/m3 0.92 U 0.92 U 0.92 U -- 0.92 U 6.9 U 

Chloroethane ug/m3 330,000 1,200,000 0.53 U 0.53 U 0.53 U -- 0.53 U 4 U 

Chloroform ug/m3 1.3 12 0.98 U 0.98 U 0.98 U -- 0.98 U 7.3 U 

Chloromethane ug/m3 0.98  0.83 U 0.83 U -- 1.0  6.2 U 

cis-1,2-Dichloroethene ug/m3 0.79 U 0.79 U 0.79 U -- 0.79 U 5.9 U 

cis-1,3-Dichloropropene ug/m3 0.91 U 0.91 U 0.91 U -- 0.91 U 6.8 U 

Cyclohexane ug/m3 0.69 U 0.69 U 0.69 U -- 24  5.2 U 

Dibromo(chloro)methane ug/m3 1.7 U 1.7 U 1.7 U -- 1.7 U 13 U 

Dichlorodifluoromethane ug/m3 2.6  5.4  5.4  0% 3.3  7.4 U 

Ethanol ug/m3 15 U 15 U 15 U -- 15 U 110 U 

Ethyl acetate ug/m3 7.2 U 7.2 U 7.2 U -- 7.2 U 54 U 

Ethylbenzene ug/m3 13 110 0.87 U 0.87 U 0.87 U -- 4.6  14  

Heptane ug/m3 0.82 U 7.6  7.8  3% 5.1  9,500  

Hexachlorobutadiene ug/m3 2.1 U 2.1 U 2.1 U -- 2.1 U 16 U 

Hexane ug/m3 28 U 28 U 28 U -- 28 U 15,000  

Isopropanol ug/m3 20 U 20 U 20 U -- 20 U 150 U 

Methyl ethyl ketone (MEK) ug/m3 26  28  29  4% 24 U 180 U 

Methyl tert butyl ether (MTBE) ug/m3 0.72 U 0.72 U 0.72 U -- 0.72 U 5.4 U 

Methylene chloride ug/m3 2,000 27,000 6.9 U 6.9 U 6.9 U -- 6.9 U 52 U 

Naphthalene ug/m3 1 8 1.0 U 1.0 U 1.0 U -- 1.0 U 7.9 U 

Propene ug/m3 14 U 14 U 14 U -- 14 U 100 U 

Styrene ug/m3 0.85 U 1.7  1.7  0% 1.2  6.4 U 

Tetrachloroethene ug/m3 21 170 1.4 U 110  110  0% 27  10 U 

Tetrahydrofuran                                   ug/m3 5.9 U 5.9 U 5.9 U -- 5.9 U 44 U 

Toluene ug/m3 0.95  3.4  3.4  0% 30  35  

trans-1,2-Dichloroethene ug/m3 0.79 U 0.79 U 0.79 U -- 0.79 U 5.9 U 

trans-1,3-Dichloropropene ug/m3 0.91 U 0.91 U 0.91 U -- 0.91 U 6.8 U 

Trichloroethene ug/m3 6.7 23 1.1 U 1.1 U 1.1 U -- 1.1 U 8.1 U 

Trichlorofluoromethane ug/m3 4.5 U 4.5 U 4.5 U -- 4.5 U 34 U 

Trimethylbenzene, 1,2,4- ug/m3 0.98 U 2.6  2.6  0% 2.3  7.4 U 

Trimethylbenzene, 1,3,5- ug/m3 0.98 U 0.98 U 0.98 U -- 0.98 U 7.4 U 

Vinyl Acetate ug/m3 14 U 18  18  0% 22  5,200  

Vinyl Chloride ug/m3 3.7 62 0.51 U 0.51 U 0.51 U -- 0.51 U 3.8 U 

Xylene, m,p- ug/m3 1.7 U 1.7 U 1.7 U -- 7.8  13 U 

Xylene, o- ug/m3 0.87 U 0.87 U 0.87 U -- 7.7  6.8  

NOTES:

VIS - SSG Vapor Intrusion Standards - Subslab Soil Gas (I-Rule, July 6, 2019)

-- No comparison because analytes were not detected above laboratory reporting limits

RPD Relative Percent Difference between the sample result and the blind field duplicate result

ug/m3 micrograms per cubic meter

U not detected above laboratory reporting limit

Bold Detected above laboratory reporting limit

Bold Exceedance of VIS - SSG (Resident)

Bold Exceedance of VIS - SSG (Non-Resident)

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2023 Phase II ESA\Tables\[Northfield SG.xlsx]Results 

SG-4

9/7/2023

VIS-SSG - 

Resident
UnitsParameter RPD

SG-3

9/7/2023

VIS-SSG - Non-

Resident

SG-1

9/7/2023

SG-2 (DUP-3)

9/7/2023

SG-2

9/7/2023

Page 1 of 1 Weston & Sampson

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 49



 

 

 

 westonandsampson.com 

APPENDIX A 

 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 50



REPORT OF BORING No.  

SHEET OF

Project No.

CHKD  BY

BORING Co. BORING LOCATION

BORING Co Rep. GROUND SURFACE ELEV. DATUM 

WSE Rep.: DATE START DATE END 

Drill Rig:

Sampler: DATE TIME

CASING:

CASING SIZE: Method Continuous

CASING PID

(lb/ft) No. PEN/REC (in) DEPTH (ft) BLOWS/6" (ppm)

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

REMARKS:

BLOWS/FT DENSITY

0-2 V. SOFT

2-4 SOFT

4-8 M. STIFF

8-15 STIFF

15-30 V. STIFF

> 30 HARD

NOTES:

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\5. Field Documentation\[Boring Logs.xls]SB-1

All Fill

Native

Refusal @ 12.3

Sample for SVOCs, PCBs, Metals: SB-1 (0-2) @ 830

Sample for VOCs: SB-1 (10) @ 845

0

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0-2 in: Grey Gravel, dry

2 in-2.5 ft: Dark Brown medium-course 

SAND, some gravel, dry

2.5-5 ft: Light Brown fine SAND, iron 

mottling, moist

10-12.328/60

5-8 ft: Grey very fine SAND, iron 

mottling, wet

8-9.5 ft: Grey medium SAND, some 

gravel, pieces of schist, dry

9.5-11.5 ft: Brown fine SAND, iron 

mottling, wet

11.5-12.3: Weathered Bedrock

34.5/60

51/60

Mike Jordan

DPS & TDS

Geoprobe 7822DT

2.25 x 5 in

0-5

5-10

STRATUM DESCRIPTION

6

BORING No. 

CASING AT

1

ENG23-0862

NOTES

PROJECT

DEPTH

Platform Inc.

SAMPLE

11 North Main Street

GW-1/SB-1

9/6/23 9/6/23

STABILIZATION TIMEWATER AT

GROUNDWATER READINGS

(feet)

COHESIVE SOILS

10-30

0-4

30-50

GRANULAR SOILS

BLOWS/FT DENSITY

4-10

> 50

V. LOOSE

LOOSE

M. DENSE

DENSE

SAMPLE DESCRIPTION

V. DENSE

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 51



REPORT OF BORING No.  

SHEET OF

Project No.

CHKD  BY

BORING Co. BORING LOCATION

BORING Co Rep. GROUND SURFACE ELEV. DATUM 

WSE Rep.: DATE START DATE END 

Drill Rig:

Sampler: DATE TIME

CASING:

CASING SIZE: Method Continuous

CASING PID

(lb/ft) No. PEN/REC (in) DEPTH (ft) BLOWS/6" (ppm)

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

REMARKS:

BLOWS/FT DENSITY

0-2 V. SOFT

2-4 SOFT

4-8 M. STIFF

8-15 STIFF

15-30 V. STIFF

> 30 HARD

NOTES:

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\5. Field Documentation\[Boring Logs.xls]SB-1

Reworked Native

Native

BORING No. 

30-50 DENSE

> 50 V. DENSE

EOB @ 200-4 V. LOOSE

4-10 LOOSE

10-30 M. DENSE

GRANULAR SOILS COHESIVE SOILS

BLOWS/FT DENSITY

20/60 15-20

29/60 0-5

45/60 5-10

27/60 10-15

DEPTH SAMPLE
SAMPLE DESCRIPTION NOTES STRATUM DESCRIPTION

(feet)

2.25 x 5 in

Geoprobe 7822DT GROUNDWATER READINGS

WATER AT CASING AT STABILIZATION TIME

Platform Inc. GW-2

Mike Jordan

DPS & TDS 9/6/23 9/6/23

7-13 ft: Brown fine SAND, moist

PROJECT

11 North Main Street
3 6

ENG23-0862

13-15 ft: Brown fine-course SAND, 

some gravel, crushed stone, wet

15-19 ft: Brown SAND and gravel, 

rounded river stones, wet

19-20 ft: Brown fine SAND, wet

0.0

0.0

0-2.5 ft: Brown fine-course SAND, 

some gravel, iron mottling, dry

2.5 - 7 ft: Light Brown fine- course 

SAND, some gravel, dry

0.0

0.0

0.1

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 52



REPORT OF BORING No.  

SHEET OF

Project No.

CHKD  BY

BORING Co. BORING LOCATION

BORING Co Rep. GROUND SURFACE ELEV. DATUM 

WSE Rep.: DATE START DATE END 

Drill Rig:

Sampler: DATE TIME

CASING:

CASING SIZE: Method Continuous

CASING PID

(lb/ft) No. PEN/REC (in) DEPTH (ft) BLOWS/6" (ppm)

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

REMARKS:

BLOWS/FT DENSITY

0-2 V. SOFT

2-4 SOFT

4-8 M. STIFF

8-15 STIFF

15-30 V. STIFF

> 30 HARD

NOTES:

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\5. Field Documentation\[Boring Logs.xls]SB-1

1.4*

0.4

0.2

0.4

Native

Fill

0.1 Ambient PID

* - No Sample taken, shallow core sat in sun, volatiles likely gone

EOB @ 20 ft

0-1 ft: Brown medium-course SAND, 

some gravel, dry

1-4 ft: Light Brown medium-course 

SAND, gravel, fractured rock, changes 

to grey, dry 

4-5.5 ft: Dark colored Schist, fractured

5.5-7 ft: Brown medium SAND, 

fractured schist

11-20 ft: Brown fine SAND, some 

gravel/fractured rock, wet

7-11 ft: Brown fine SAND, moist

30-50 DENSE

> 50 V. DENSE

GRANULAR SOILS COHESIVE SOILS

BLOWS/FT DENSITY

BORING No. 

Sample for SVOCs, PCBs, Metals: SB-2 (0-2) @ 950

Sample for  VOCs: SB-2 (15) @ 945

0-4 V. LOOSE

4-10 LOOSE

10-30 M. DENSE

33/60 15-20

44/60 0-5

36/40 5-10

39/60 10-15

2.25 x 5 in

DEPTH SAMPLE
SAMPLE DESCRIPTION NOTES STRATUM DESCRIPTION

(feet)

DPS & TDS 9/6/23 9/6/23

Geoprobe 7822DT GROUNDWATER READINGS

WATER AT CASING AT STABILIZATION TIME

Platform Inc. SB-2

Mike Jordan

PROJECT

11 North Main Street
2 6

ENG23-0862

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 53



REPORT OF BORING No.  

SHEET OF

Project No.

CHKD  BY

BORING Co. BORING LOCATION

BORING Co Rep. GROUND SURFACE ELEV. DATUM 

WSE Rep.: DATE START DATE END 

Drill Rig:

Sampler: DATE TIME

CASING:

CASING SIZE: Method Continuous

CASING PID

(lb/ft) No. PEN/REC (in) DEPTH (ft) BLOWS/6" (ppm)

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

REMARKS:

BLOWS/FT DENSITY

0-2 V. SOFT

2-4 SOFT

4-8 M. STIFF

8-15 STIFF

15-30 V. STIFF

> 30 HARD

NOTES:

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\5. Field Documentation\[Boring Logs.xls]SB-1

Reworked Native

Native

BORING No. SB-3

30-50 DENSE

> 50 V. DENSE

Sample for SVOCs, PCBs, Metals: SB-3 (10-12) @ 1145, undisturbed native soils

Sample for VOCs: SB-3 (11) @ 1130

Refusal @ 12.80-4 V. LOOSE

4-10 LOOSE

10-30 M. DENSE

GRANULAR SOILS COHESIVE SOILS

BLOWS/FT DENSITY

45/60 0-5

30/60 5-10

10-12.829/60

2.25 x 5 in

DEPTH SAMPLE
SAMPLE DESCRIPTION NOTES STRATUM DESCRIPTION

(feet)

DPS & TDS 9/6/23 9/6/23

Geoprobe 7822DT GROUNDWATER READINGS

WATER AT CASING AT STABILIZATION TIME

Platform Inc. GW-3/SB-3

Mike Jordan

PROJECT SB-3

11 North Main Street
4 6

ENG23-0862

0.0

0.0

0.0

0-4.5 ft: Brown medium sand, iron 

mottling, color transition to grey @ 3ft, 

some gravel, dry

4.5-5.5 ft: Brown fine to medium SAND

5.5-9 ft: Brown fine to medium SAND, 

iron mottling, gravel, moist

9-12.8 ft: Brown very fine SAND, wet

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 54



REPORT OF BORING No.  

SHEET OF

Project No.

CHKD  BY

BORING Co. BORING LOCATION

BORING Co Rep. GROUND SURFACE ELEV. DATUM 

WSE Rep.: DATE START DATE END 

Drill Rig:

Sampler: DATE TIME

CASING:

CASING SIZE: Method Continuous

CASING PID

(lb/ft) No. PEN/REC (in) DEPTH (ft) BLOWS/6" (ppm)

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

REMARKS:

BLOWS/FT DENSITY

0-2 V. SOFT

2-4 SOFT

4-8 M. STIFF

8-15 STIFF

15-30 V. STIFF

> 30 HARD

NOTES:

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\5. Field Documentation\[Boring Logs.xls]SB-1

PROJECT SB-4

11 North Main Street
5 6

ENG23-0862

Platform Inc. GW-4/SB-4

Mike Jordan

DPS & TDS 9/6/23 9/6/23

Geoprobe 7822DT GROUNDWATER READINGS

WATER AT CASING AT STABILIZATION TIME

2.25 x 5 in

DEPTH SAMPLE
SAMPLE DESCRIPTION NOTES STRATUM DESCRIPTION

(feet)

40/60 0-5

40/60

GRANULAR SOILS COHESIVE SOILS

BLOWS/FT DENSITY

V. LOOSE

4-10 LOOSE

10-30 M. DENSE

5-8

Hit refusal in multiple previous locations @ 2-5 ft no groundwater

30-50 DENSE

> 50 V. DENSE

Sample for SVOCs, PCBs, Metals: SB-4 (0-3) @ 1310, undisturbed native soils, Dup taken

Sample for VOCs: SB-4 (7) @ 1320, Dup-1 taken

Refusal @ 8 ft0-4

Fill

Native

BORING No. SB-4

0-2 ft: Grey course SAND, gravel (0-4 in 

topsoil), dry

2-3 ft: Dark brown fine SAND, organics, 

glass and granite pieces

3-8 ft: Brown fine SAND some grey, wet

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 55



REPORT OF BORING No.  

SHEET OF

Project No.

CHKD  BY

BORING Co. BORING LOCATION

BORING Co Rep. GROUND SURFACE ELEV. DATUM 

WSE Rep.: DATE START DATE END 

Drill Rig:

Sampler: DATE TIME

CASING:

CASING SIZE: Method Continuous

CASING PID

(lb/ft) No. PEN/REC (in) DEPTH (ft) BLOWS/6" (ppm)

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

REMARKS:

BLOWS/FT DENSITY

0-2 V. SOFT

2-4 SOFT

4-8 M. STIFF

8-15 STIFF

15-30 V. STIFF

> 30 HARD

NOTES:

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\5. Field Documentation\[Boring Logs.xls]SB-1

Fill

Native

PROJECT SB-5

11 North Main Street
6 6

ENG23-0862

Platform Inc. GW-5/SB-5

Mike Jordan

DPS & TDS 9/6/23 9/6/23

Geoprobe 7822DT GROUNDWATER READINGS

WATER AT CASING AT STABILIZATION TIME

2.25 x 5 in

DEPTH SAMPLE
SAMPLE DESCRIPTION NOTES STRATUM DESCRIPTION

(feet)

51/60 0-5

50/60 5-9

GRANULAR SOILS COHESIVE SOILS

BLOWS/FT DENSITY

Refusal @ 9 ft0-4 V. LOOSE

4-10 LOOSE

10-30 M. DENSE

30-50 DENSE

> 50 V. DENSE

Additional Sample for VOCs taken due to evidence of contamination (PID hit): SB-4 (1) @ 1420

BORING No. SB-5

0-2 ft: Light brown fine SAND/SILT, dry 

(topsoil 0-2in)

2-4 ft: Brown Fine SAND, some gravel, 

dry

4-6.5 ft: Grey fine SAND, some silt, 

granite pieces, dry

3

1.4

0.8 6.5-7.5 ft:Brown fine SAND, moist

7.5-9 ft: Grey very fine SAND some silt, 

wet

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 56



Generic Low Flow Purge Report

Record: 207

Location northfield

Date and Time On Site 2023-09-06 09:10:38

Total Cost of Equipment/Supplies Used ($)

Date and Time Off Site 2023-09-06 16:30:05

 

Well Details

Well ID gw-1

Purge Water Final Conditions clear

Total Purge Volume (include unit of
measurement in reading)

2.5

Sample Collection Status Yes

Sample Collected vocs

Field Filtered No

Sample Date and Time 2023-09-06 09:40:05

 

Purge Details

Time 09:11:00

Flow 300

ORP -138.3

Temp 16

SpC 371.8

Page 1/11

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 57



DO 0.13

pH 6.88

 

Purge Details

Time 09:16:00

Flow 200

ORP -146.9

Temp 16.5

SpC 362.3

DO 0.14

pH 6.80

 

Purge Details

Time 09:21:00

Flow 200

ORP -146.7

Temp 16.4

SpC 360.9

DO 0.13

pH 6.77

 

Page 2/11

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 58



Purge Details

Time 09:26:00

Flow 200

ORP -147.3

Temp 16.3

SpC 357.3

DO 0.12

pH 6.74

 

Purge Details

Time 09:32:00

ORP -145.4

Temp 16

SpC 351.8

DO 0.13

pH 6.68

 

Purge Details

Time 09:37:00

ORP 141.6

Temp 16

SpC 350.1

Page 3/11

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 59



DO 0.15

pH 6.62

 

Well Details

Well ID gw-2

Purge Water Final Conditions cloudy

Sample Collection Status Yes

Sample Collected 11:50

Field Filtered No

Sample Date and Time 2023-09-06 11:50:43

 

Purge Details

Time 11:21:00

Flow 200

ORP -44.6

Temp 15.3

SpC 735

DO 0.35

pH 6.68

 

Page 4/11

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 60



Purge Details

Time 11:27:00

Flow 200

ORP -65.5

Temp 15.1

SpC 735

DO 0.07

pH 6.69

 

Purge Details

Time 11:37:00

Flow 200

ORP -77.9

Temp 15.9

SpC 734

DO 0.05

pH 6.69

 

Purge Details

Time 11:44:00

ORP -82.4

Temp 15.9

Page 5/11

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 61



SpC 732

DO 0.05

pH 6.70

 

Well Details

Well ID gw-3

Sample Collection Status Yes

Sample Collected 12:30

Field Filtered No

Sample Date and Time 2023-09-06 12:30:59

Notes went dry immediately, allowed to recharge and sampled

 

Purge Details

Time 12:23:00

ORP -34.5

Temp 22.2

SpC 807

DO 3.11

pH 6.74

 

Page 6/11

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 62



Well Details

Well ID gw-4

Purge Water Final Conditions clear

Total Purge Volume (include unit of
measurement in reading)

2 ga

Sample Collection Status Yes

Sample Collected vocs

Field Filtered No

Sample Date and Time 2023-09-06 14:15:13

Notes dup2 here

 

Purge Details

Time 13:35:00

Flow 250

ORP -135.5

Temp 20.4

SpC 1289

DO 0.31

pH 7.18

 

Page 7/11

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 63



Purge Details

Time 13:41:00

Flow 250

ORP -143.8

Temp 20.1

SpC 1259

DO 0.14

pH 7.09

 

Purge Details

Time 13:51:00

ORP -140

Temp 19.9

SpC 1227

DO 0.18

pH 7.04

 

Purge Details

Time 13:56:00

ORP .139

Temp 19.6

SpC 1197

Page 8/11

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 64



DO 0.14

pH 7.01

 

Purge Details

Time 13:59:00

ORP -136.9

Temp 19.5

SpC 1203

DO 0.15

pH 7.0

 

Purge Details

Time 14:03:00

ORP -134.2

Temp 19.2

SpC 1199

DO 0.16

pH 7.0

 

Page 9/11

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 65



Well Details

Well ID gw-5

Purge Water Final Conditions clear

Total Purge Volume (include unit of
measurement in reading)

2 ga

Sample Collection Status Yes

Sample Collected vocs

Field Filtered No

Sample Date and Time 2023-09-06 15:00:56

 

Purge Details

Time 14:38:00

Flow 250

ORP -45.3

Temp 17.7

SpC 511.6

DO 0.03

pH 6.72

 

Purge Details

Time 14:42:00

ORP -53.7

Temp 16.6

Page 10/11

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 66



SpC 435.2

DO 0.04

pH 6.62

 

Purge Details

Time 14:45:00

ORP -53.5

Temp 16.3

SpC 420.3

DO 0.03

pH 6.6

 

Purge Details

Time 14:48:00

ORP -53.5

Temp 16.2

SpC 422.2

DO 0.05

pH 6.6

 

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

Page 11/11

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 67

http://www.tcpdf.org


 

 

 

 westonandsampson.com 

APPENDIX B 

 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 68



SELECTED SITE PHOTOGRAPHS

11 NORTH MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Photo #1 Standing water 

observed in northern area of 

Site near foundation remnants. 

Photo #2 Steep river 

embankment in east part of Site.

Photo #3 Compositing DU1 ISM 

replicate samples. 

Page 1

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 69



SELECTED SITE PHOTOGRAPHS

11 NORTH MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Photo #4 Advancing soil boring 

SB-4 near foundation remnants. 

Photo #5 Typical soil core 

logging and PID screening. 

Photo #6 Typical groundwater 

sampling from screen points.

Page 2

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 70



Photo #7 Soil gas sampling at 

SG-3 using the Geoprobe
®

 PRT 

system.

Photo #8  Apparent pit in former 

building slab filled with water.

Page 3

SELECTED SITE PHOTOGRAPHS

11 NORTH MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 71



 

 

 

 westonandsampson.com 

APPENDIX C 

 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 72



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

September 29, 2023       

Lee Rosberg

Weston & Sampson - Waterbury, VT

98 South Main Street

Waterbury, VT 05676

Project Location: 11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Client Job Number: 

Project Number: [none]

Laboratory Work Order Number: 23I0150

Enclosed are results of analyses for samples as received by the laboratory on September 1, 2023. If you have any questions 

concerning this report, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

Rebecca Faust

Project Manager

Page 1 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 73



Table of Contents

     Sample Summary     3

     Case Narrative     4

     Sample Results     5

          23I0150-01     5

          23I0150-02     9

          23I0150-03    13

          23I0150-04    17

          23I0150-05    21

          23I0150-06    25

     Sample Preparation Information    29

     QC Data    30

          Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS    30

               B351423    30

          Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction    32

               B351351    32

          Metals Analyses (Total)    33

               B350975    33

               B351437    33

     Dual Column RPD Report    35

     Flag/Qualifier Summary    37

     Certifications    38

     Chain of Custody/Sample Receipt    40

Page 2 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 74



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

ANALYTICAL SUMMARY

9/29/2023

Weston & Sampson - Waterbury, VT

98 South Main Street

Waterbury, VT 05676

ATTN: Lee Rosberg

[none]

23I0150

The results of analyses performed on the following samples submitted to CON-TEST, a Pace Analytical Laboratory, are found in this report.

PROJECT LOCATION:

PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER:

PROJECT NUMBER:

REPORT DATE:

WORK ORDER NUMBER:

FIELD SAMPLE # LAB ID: MATRIX TESTSAMPLE DESCRIPTION SUB LAB

11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

DU-1A 23I0150-01 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 6010D

SW-846 7471B

SW-846 8082A

SW-846 8270E

DU-1B 23I0150-02 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 6010D

SW-846 7471B

SW-846 8082A

SW-846 8270E

DU-1C 23I0150-03 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 6010D

SW-846 7471B

SW-846 8082A

SW-846 8270E

DU-2A 23I0150-04 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 6010D

SW-846 7471B

SW-846 8082A

SW-846 8270E

DU-2B 23I0150-05 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 6010D

SW-846 7471B

SW-846 8082A

SW-846 8270E

DU-2C 23I0150-06 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 6010D

SW-846 7471B

SW-846 8082A

SW-846 8270E

[TOC_1]Sample Summary[TOC]

Page 3 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 75



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CASE NARRATIVE SUMMARY

All reported results are within defined laboratory quality control objectives unless listed below or otherwise qualified in this report.

REVISED REPORT - 9/29/23 - PAH SIM data units revised. 

For method 8270E, only PAHs were requested and reported.

[TOC_1]Case Narrative[TOC]

SW-846 6010D

Qualifications:

Analyte is found in the associated laboratory blank as well as in the sample.

Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

B

Copper

23I0150-01[DU-1A], 23I0150-02[DU-1B], 23I0150-03[DU-1C], 23I0150-04[DU-2A], 23I0150-05[DU-2B], 23I0150-06[DU-2C], B351437-BS1, B351437-BSD1

Data is not affected by elevated level in laboratory blank since sample result is >10x level found in the blank.

Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

B-07

Copper

23I0150-01[DU-1A], 23I0150-02[DU-1B], 23I0150-03[DU-1C], 23I0150-04[DU-2A], 23I0150-05[DU-2B], 23I0150-06[DU-2C], B351437-BLK1

The interference check sample was outside of control limits.  Data validation is not affected since the sample result is "not detected" and the 

bias is on the high side.
Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

M-08

Selenium

23I0150-01[DU-1A], 23I0150-02[DU-1B], 23I0150-03[DU-1C], 23I0150-04[DU-2A], 23I0150-05[DU-2B], 23I0150-06[DU-2C]

SW-846 8270E

Qualifications:

Continuing calibration verification (CCV) did not meet method specifications and was biased on the high side for this compound.

Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

V-06

p-Terphenyl-d14

23I0150-01[DU-1A], 23I0150-02[DU-1B], 23I0150-03[DU-1C], 23I0150-04[DU-2A], 23I0150-05[DU-2B], 23I0150-06[DU-2C], B351423-BLK1, B351423-BS1, 

B351423-BSD1, S093392-CCV1

The results of analyses reported only relate to samples submitted to Con-Test, a Pace Analytical Laboratory, for testing.

I certify that the analyses listed above, unless specifically listed as subcontracted, if any, were performed under my direction according to the approved methodologies listed 

in this document, and that based upon my inquiry of those individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the information, the material contained in this report is, to the 

best of my knowledge and belief, accurate and complete.

Meghan E. Kelley

Reporting Specialist

Page 4 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 76



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-01

Field Sample #:  DU-1A

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  11:45

[TOC_2]23I0150-01[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 1.7 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Acenaphthene (SIM)

ND 1.2 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Acenaphthylene (SIM)

ND 1.2 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Anthracene (SIM)

0.90 0.29 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Benzo(a)anthracene (SIM)

1.0 0.58 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Benzo(a)pyrene (SIM)

1.1 0.29 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Benzo(b)fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 2.9 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Benzo(g,h,i)perylene (SIM)

ND 1.2 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Benzo(k)fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 1.2 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Chrysene (SIM)

ND 0.58 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Dibenz(a,h)anthracene (SIM)

ND 2.9 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 5.8 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Fluorene (SIM)

0.68 0.58 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene (SIM)

ND 5.8 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E52-Methylnaphthalene (SIM)

ND 5.8 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Naphthalene (SIM)

0.55 0.29 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Phenanthrene (SIM)

ND 5.8 9/12/23 16:42 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Pyrene (SIM)

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Nitrobenzene-d5 65.4 9/12/23  16:4230-130

2-Fluorobiphenyl 77.6 9/12/23  16:4230-130

p-Terphenyl-d14 82.9 9/12/23  16:42V-0630-130

[TOC_1]Sample Results[TOC]

Page 5 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 77



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-01

Field Sample #:  DU-1A

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  11:45

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction

ND 0.092 9/13/23  2:55 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1016 [1]

ND 0.092 9/13/23  2:55 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1221 [1]

ND 0.092 9/13/23  2:55 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1232 [1]

ND 0.092 9/13/23  2:55 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1242 [1]

ND 0.092 9/13/23  2:55 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1248 [1]

ND 0.092 9/13/23  2:55 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1254 [1]

ND 0.092 9/13/23  2:55 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1260 [1]

ND 0.092 9/13/23  2:55 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1262 [1]

ND 0.092 9/13/23  2:55 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1268 [1]

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Decachlorobiphenyl [1] 80.9 9/13/23   2:5530-150

Decachlorobiphenyl [2] 78.3 9/13/23   2:5530-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [1] 81.1 9/13/23   2:5530-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2] 78.9 9/13/23   2:5530-150

Page 6 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 78



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-01

Field Sample #:  DU-1A

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  11:45

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Metals Analyses (Total)

ND 1.8 9/11/23 18:04 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Antimony

5.7 3.7 9/11/23 18:04 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Arsenic

32 1.8 9/11/23 18:04 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Barium

ND 0.18 9/11/23 18:04 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Beryllium

ND 0.37 9/11/23 18:04 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Cadmium

15 0.74 9/11/23 18:04 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Chromium

29 0.74 9/11/23 18:04 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1 B-07, BCopper

35 0.55 9/11/23 18:04 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Lead

0.049 0.030 9/6/23 14:09 AAJmg/Kg dry 9/5/23SW-846 7471B1Mercury

22 0.74 9/11/23 18:04 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Nickel

ND 3.7 9/11/23 18:04 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1 M-08Selenium

1.5 0.37 9/11/23 18:04 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Silver

ND 1.8 9/11/23 18:04 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Thallium

61 0.74 9/11/23 18:04 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Zinc

Page 7 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 79



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-01

Field Sample #:  DU-1A

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  11:45

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

86.9 9/5/23 10:08 JL% Wt 9/5/23SM 2540G1% Solids

Page 8 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 80



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-02

Field Sample #:  DU-1B

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  11:50

[TOC_2]23I0150-02[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 1.8 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Acenaphthene (SIM)

ND 1.2 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Acenaphthylene (SIM)

ND 1.2 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Anthracene (SIM)

0.56 0.31 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Benzo(a)anthracene (SIM)

0.61 0.61 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Benzo(a)pyrene (SIM)

0.71 0.31 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Benzo(b)fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 3.1 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Benzo(g,h,i)perylene (SIM)

ND 1.2 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Benzo(k)fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 1.2 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Chrysene (SIM)

ND 0.61 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Dibenz(a,h)anthracene (SIM)

ND 3.1 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 6.1 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Fluorene (SIM)

ND 0.61 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene (SIM)

ND 6.1 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E52-Methylnaphthalene (SIM)

ND 6.1 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Naphthalene (SIM)

ND 0.31 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Phenanthrene (SIM)

ND 6.1 9/12/23 17:11 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Pyrene (SIM)

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Nitrobenzene-d5 60.8 9/12/23  17:1130-130

2-Fluorobiphenyl 71.5 9/12/23  17:1130-130

p-Terphenyl-d14 71.9 9/12/23  17:11V-0630-130

Page 9 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 81



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-02

Field Sample #:  DU-1B

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  11:50

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction

ND 0.098 9/13/23  3:12 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1016 [1]

ND 0.098 9/13/23  3:12 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1221 [1]

ND 0.098 9/13/23  3:12 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1232 [1]

ND 0.098 9/13/23  3:12 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1242 [1]

ND 0.098 9/13/23  3:12 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1248 [1]

ND 0.098 9/13/23  3:12 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1254 [1]

ND 0.098 9/13/23  3:12 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1260 [1]

ND 0.098 9/13/23  3:12 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1262 [1]

ND 0.098 9/13/23  3:12 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1268 [1]

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Decachlorobiphenyl [1] 86.6 9/13/23   3:1230-150

Decachlorobiphenyl [2] 84.4 9/13/23   3:1230-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [1] 87.8 9/13/23   3:1230-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2] 85.4 9/13/23   3:1230-150

Page 10 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 82



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-02

Field Sample #:  DU-1B

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  11:50

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Metals Analyses (Total)

ND 2.0 9/11/23 18:08 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Antimony

6.5 4.0 9/11/23 18:08 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Arsenic

38 2.0 9/11/23 18:08 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Barium

0.23 0.20 9/11/23 18:08 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Beryllium

ND 0.40 9/11/23 18:08 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Cadmium

16 0.80 9/11/23 18:08 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Chromium

56 0.80 9/11/23 18:08 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1 B-07, BCopper

44 0.60 9/11/23 18:08 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Lead

0.055 0.030 9/7/23 10:33 AAJmg/Kg dry 9/5/23SW-846 7471B1Mercury

43 0.80 9/11/23 18:08 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Nickel

ND 4.0 9/11/23 18:08 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1 M-08Selenium

1.9 0.40 9/11/23 18:08 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Silver

ND 2.0 9/11/23 18:08 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Thallium

70 0.80 9/11/23 18:08 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Zinc

Page 11 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 83



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-02

Field Sample #:  DU-1B

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  11:50

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

81.7 9/5/23 10:08 JL% Wt 9/5/23SM 2540G1% Solids

Page 12 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 84



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-03

Field Sample #:  DU-1C

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  12:00

[TOC_2]23I0150-03[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 1.8 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Acenaphthene (SIM)

ND 1.2 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Acenaphthylene (SIM)

ND 1.2 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Anthracene (SIM)

0.79 0.30 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Benzo(a)anthracene (SIM)

0.92 0.59 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Benzo(a)pyrene (SIM)

1.0 0.30 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Benzo(b)fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 3.0 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Benzo(g,h,i)perylene (SIM)

ND 1.2 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Benzo(k)fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 1.2 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Chrysene (SIM)

ND 0.59 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Dibenz(a,h)anthracene (SIM)

ND 3.0 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 5.9 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Fluorene (SIM)

0.63 0.59 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene (SIM)

ND 5.9 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E52-Methylnaphthalene (SIM)

ND 5.9 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Naphthalene (SIM)

0.53 0.30 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Phenanthrene (SIM)

ND 5.9 9/12/23 17:40 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E5Pyrene (SIM)

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Nitrobenzene-d5 59.5 9/12/23  17:4030-130

2-Fluorobiphenyl 69.8 9/12/23  17:4030-130

p-Terphenyl-d14 73.8 9/12/23  17:40V-0630-130

Page 13 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 85



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-03

Field Sample #:  DU-1C

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  12:00

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction

ND 0.095 9/13/23  3:29 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1016 [1]

ND 0.095 9/13/23  3:29 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1221 [1]

ND 0.095 9/13/23  3:29 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1232 [1]

ND 0.095 9/13/23  3:29 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1242 [1]

ND 0.095 9/13/23  3:29 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1248 [1]

ND 0.095 9/13/23  3:29 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1254 [1]

ND 0.095 9/13/23  3:29 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1260 [1]

ND 0.095 9/13/23  3:29 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1262 [1]

ND 0.095 9/13/23  3:29 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1268 [1]

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Decachlorobiphenyl [1] 87.9 9/13/23   3:2930-150

Decachlorobiphenyl [2] 86.1 9/13/23   3:2930-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [1] 90.4 9/13/23   3:2930-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2] 88.1 9/13/23   3:2930-150

Page 14 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 86



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-03

Field Sample #:  DU-1C

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  12:00

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Metals Analyses (Total)

ND 1.9 9/11/23 18:15 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Antimony

6.3 3.8 9/11/23 18:15 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Arsenic

34 1.9 9/11/23 18:15 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Barium

ND 0.19 9/11/23 18:15 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Beryllium

ND 0.38 9/11/23 18:15 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Cadmium

15 0.76 9/11/23 18:15 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Chromium

31 0.76 9/11/23 18:15 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1 B-07, BCopper

41 0.57 9/11/23 18:15 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Lead

0.063 0.029 9/6/23 14:12 AAJmg/Kg dry 9/5/23SW-846 7471B1Mercury

22 0.76 9/11/23 18:15 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Nickel

ND 3.8 9/11/23 18:15 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1 M-08Selenium

1.6 0.38 9/11/23 18:15 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Silver

ND 1.9 9/11/23 18:15 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Thallium

71 0.76 9/11/23 18:15 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Zinc

Page 15 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 87



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-03

Field Sample #:  DU-1C

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  12:00

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

84.2 9/5/23 10:08 JL% Wt 9/5/23SM 2540G1% Solids

Page 16 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 88



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-04

Field Sample #:  DU-2A

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  14:30

[TOC_2]23I0150-04[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.40 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthene (SIM)

ND 0.27 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthylene (SIM)

ND 0.27 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Anthracene (SIM)

0.17 0.067 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)anthracene (SIM)

0.17 0.13 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)pyrene (SIM)

0.27 0.067 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(b)fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 0.67 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(g,h,i)perylene (SIM)

ND 0.27 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(k)fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 0.27 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Chrysene (SIM)

ND 0.13 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Dibenz(a,h)anthracene (SIM)

ND 0.67 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 1.3 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Fluorene (SIM)

0.14 0.13 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene (SIM)

ND 1.3 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E12-Methylnaphthalene (SIM)

ND 1.3 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Naphthalene (SIM)

0.16 0.067 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Phenanthrene (SIM)

ND 1.3 9/12/23 18:09 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Pyrene (SIM)

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Nitrobenzene-d5 42.9 9/12/23  18:0930-130

2-Fluorobiphenyl 44.8 9/12/23  18:0930-130

p-Terphenyl-d14 52.6 9/12/23  18:09V-0630-130

Page 17 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 89



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-04

Field Sample #:  DU-2A

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  14:30

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction

ND 0.11 9/13/23  3:46 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1016 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  3:46 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1221 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  3:46 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1232 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  3:46 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1242 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  3:46 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1248 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  3:46 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1254 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  3:46 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1260 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  3:46 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1262 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  3:46 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1268 [1]

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Decachlorobiphenyl [1] 89.9 9/13/23   3:4630-150

Decachlorobiphenyl [2] 90.5 9/13/23   3:4630-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [1] 89.3 9/13/23   3:4630-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2] 87.9 9/13/23   3:4630-150

Page 18 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 90



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-04

Field Sample #:  DU-2A

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  14:30

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Metals Analyses (Total)

ND 2.2 9/11/23 18:32 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Antimony

6.4 4.3 9/11/23 18:32 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Arsenic

64 2.2 9/11/23 18:32 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Barium

0.24 0.22 9/11/23 18:32 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Beryllium

ND 0.43 9/11/23 18:32 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Cadmium

14 0.86 9/11/23 18:32 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Chromium

34 0.86 9/11/23 18:32 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1 B-07, BCopper

61 0.65 9/11/23 18:32 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Lead

0.070 0.033 9/6/23 14:14 AAJmg/Kg dry 9/5/23SW-846 7471B1Mercury

14 0.86 9/11/23 18:32 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Nickel

ND 4.3 9/11/23 18:32 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1 M-08Selenium

2.3 0.43 9/11/23 18:32 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Silver

ND 2.2 9/11/23 18:32 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Thallium

99 0.86 9/11/23 18:32 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Zinc

Page 19 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 91



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-04

Field Sample #:  DU-2A

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  14:30

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

74.6 9/5/23 10:08 JL% Wt 9/5/23SM 2540G1% Solids

Page 20 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 92



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-05

Field Sample #:  DU-2B

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  14:35

[TOC_2]23I0150-05[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.40 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthene (SIM)

ND 0.27 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthylene (SIM)

ND 0.27 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Anthracene (SIM)

0.12 0.067 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)anthracene (SIM)

0.14 0.13 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)pyrene (SIM)

0.19 0.067 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(b)fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 0.67 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(g,h,i)perylene (SIM)

ND 0.27 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(k)fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 0.27 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Chrysene (SIM)

ND 0.13 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Dibenz(a,h)anthracene (SIM)

ND 0.67 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 1.3 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Fluorene (SIM)

ND 0.13 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene (SIM)

ND 1.3 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E12-Methylnaphthalene (SIM)

ND 1.3 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Naphthalene (SIM)

0.13 0.067 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Phenanthrene (SIM)

ND 1.3 9/12/23 18:38 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Pyrene (SIM)

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Nitrobenzene-d5 39.1 9/12/23  18:3830-130

2-Fluorobiphenyl 43.9 9/12/23  18:3830-130

p-Terphenyl-d14 49.2 9/12/23  18:38V-0630-130

Page 21 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 93



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-05

Field Sample #:  DU-2B

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  14:35

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:04 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1016 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:04 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1221 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:04 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1232 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:04 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1242 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:04 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1248 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:04 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1254 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:04 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1260 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:04 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1262 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:04 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1268 [1]

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Decachlorobiphenyl [1] 82.2 9/13/23   4:0430-150

Decachlorobiphenyl [2] 80.8 9/13/23   4:0430-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [1] 82.3 9/13/23   4:0430-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2] 79.5 9/13/23   4:0430-150

Page 22 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 94



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-05

Field Sample #:  DU-2B

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  14:35

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Metals Analyses (Total)

ND 2.2 9/11/23 18:36 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Antimony

6.5 4.3 9/11/23 18:36 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Arsenic

68 2.2 9/11/23 18:36 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Barium

0.25 0.22 9/11/23 18:36 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Beryllium

0.47 0.43 9/11/23 18:36 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Cadmium

14 0.87 9/11/23 18:36 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Chromium

33 0.87 9/11/23 18:36 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1 B-07, BCopper

59 0.65 9/11/23 18:36 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Lead

0.078 0.034 9/6/23 14:16 AAJmg/Kg dry 9/5/23SW-846 7471B1Mercury

14 0.87 9/11/23 18:36 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Nickel

ND 4.3 9/11/23 18:36 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1 M-08Selenium

2.6 0.43 9/11/23 18:36 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Silver

ND 2.2 9/11/23 18:36 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Thallium

83 0.87 9/11/23 18:36 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Zinc

Page 23 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 95



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-05

Field Sample #:  DU-2B

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  14:35

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

75.2 9/5/23 10:08 JL% Wt 9/5/23SM 2540G1% Solids

Page 24 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 96



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-06

Field Sample #:  DU-2C

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  14:40

[TOC_2]23I0150-06[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.39 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthene (SIM)

ND 0.26 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthylene (SIM)

ND 0.26 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Anthracene (SIM)

0.24 0.066 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)anthracene (SIM)

0.15 0.13 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)pyrene (SIM)

0.23 0.066 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(b)fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 0.66 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(g,h,i)perylene (SIM)

ND 0.26 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(k)fluoranthene (SIM)

0.30 0.26 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Chrysene (SIM)

ND 0.13 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Dibenz(a,h)anthracene (SIM)

ND 0.66 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Fluoranthene (SIM)

ND 1.3 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Fluorene (SIM)

0.16 0.13 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene (SIM)

ND 1.3 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E12-Methylnaphthalene (SIM)

ND 1.3 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Naphthalene (SIM)

0.22 0.066 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Phenanthrene (SIM)

ND 1.3 9/12/23 19:06 AYHmg/Kg dry 9/3/23SW-846 8270E1Pyrene (SIM)

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Nitrobenzene-d5 50.8 9/12/23  19:0630-130

2-Fluorobiphenyl 54.3 9/12/23  19:0630-130

p-Terphenyl-d14 64.1 9/12/23  19:06V-0630-130

Page 25 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 97



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-06

Field Sample #:  DU-2C

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  14:40

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:21 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1016 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:21 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1221 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:21 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1232 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:21 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1242 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:21 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1248 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:21 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1254 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:21 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1260 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:21 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1262 [1]

ND 0.11 9/13/23  4:21 TGmg/Kg dry 9/7/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1268 [1]

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Decachlorobiphenyl [1] 85.8 9/13/23   4:2130-150

Decachlorobiphenyl [2] 84.9 9/13/23   4:2130-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [1] 83.0 9/13/23   4:2130-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2] 83.8 9/13/23   4:2130-150

Page 26 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 98



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-06

Field Sample #:  DU-2C

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  14:40

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Metals Analyses (Total)

ND 2.2 9/11/23 18:41 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Antimony

5.9 4.5 9/11/23 18:41 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Arsenic

61 2.2 9/11/23 18:41 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Barium

0.24 0.22 9/11/23 18:41 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Beryllium

ND 0.45 9/11/23 18:41 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Cadmium

15 0.89 9/11/23 18:41 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Chromium

38 0.89 9/11/23 18:41 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1 B-07, BCopper

55 0.67 9/11/23 18:41 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Lead

0.078 0.033 9/6/23 14:18 AAJmg/Kg dry 9/5/23SW-846 7471B1Mercury

14 0.89 9/11/23 18:41 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Nickel

ND 4.5 9/11/23 18:41 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1 M-08Selenium

2.4 0.45 9/11/23 18:41 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Silver

ND 2.2 9/11/23 18:41 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Thallium

81 0.89 9/11/23 18:41 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/8/23SW-846 6010D1Zinc

Page 27 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 99



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/1/2023

Work Order:   23I0150Sample Description:Project Location:  11 North Main St., Northfield, VT

Sample ID:  23I0150-06

Field Sample #:  DU-2C

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  8/29/2023  14:40

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

76.1 9/5/23 10:08 JL% Wt 9/5/23SM 2540G1% Solids

Page 28 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 100



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Sample Extraction Data

Prep Method:% Solids        Analytical Method:SM 2540G

Lab Number [Field ID] Batch Date

B351013 09/05/2323I0150-01 [DU-1A]

B351013 09/05/2323I0150-02 [DU-1B]

B351013 09/05/2323I0150-03 [DU-1C]

B351013 09/05/2323I0150-04 [DU-2A]

B351013 09/05/2323I0150-05 [DU-2B]

B351013 09/05/2323I0150-06 [DU-2C]

Prep Method:SW-846 3050B        Analytical Method:SW-846 6010D

Lab Number [Field ID] Batch DateInitial [g] Final [mL]

B351437 09/08/231.56 50.023I0150-01 [DU-1A]

B351437 09/08/231.53 50.023I0150-02 [DU-1B]

B351437 09/08/231.57 50.023I0150-03 [DU-1C]

B351437 09/08/231.55 50.023I0150-04 [DU-2A]

B351437 09/08/231.53 50.023I0150-05 [DU-2B]

B351437 09/08/231.47 50.023I0150-06 [DU-2C]

Prep Method:SW-846 7471        Analytical Method:SW-846 7471B

Lab Number [Field ID] Batch DateInitial [g] Final [mL]

B350975 09/05/230.580 50.023I0150-01 [DU-1A]

B350975 09/05/230.604 50.023I0150-02 [DU-1B]

B350975 09/05/230.608 50.023I0150-03 [DU-1C]

B350975 09/05/230.606 50.023I0150-04 [DU-2A]

B350975 09/05/230.588 50.023I0150-05 [DU-2B]

B350975 09/05/230.589 50.023I0150-06 [DU-2C]

Prep Method:SW-846 3540C        Analytical Method:SW-846 8082A

Lab Number [Field ID] Batch DateInitial [g] Final [mL]

B351351 09/07/2310.0 10.023I0150-01 [DU-1A]

B351351 09/07/2310.0 10.023I0150-02 [DU-1B]

B351351 09/07/2310.0 10.023I0150-03 [DU-1C]

B351351 09/07/2310.0 10.023I0150-04 [DU-2A]

B351351 09/07/2310.0 10.023I0150-05 [DU-2B]

B351351 09/07/2310.0 10.023I0150-06 [DU-2C]

Prep Method:SW-846 3546        Analytical Method:SW-846 8270E

Lab Number [Field ID] Batch DateInitial [g] Final [mL]

B351423 09/03/2330.0 1.0023I0150-01 [DU-1A]

B351423 09/03/2330.0 1.0023I0150-02 [DU-1B]

B351423 09/03/2330.0 1.0023I0150-03 [DU-1C]

B351423 09/03/2330.0 1.0023I0150-04 [DU-2A]

B351423 09/03/2330.0 1.0023I0150-05 [DU-2B]

B351423 09/03/2330.0 1.0023I0150-06 [DU-2C]

[TOC_1]Sample Preparation Information[TOC]

Page 29 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 101



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

[TOC_2]Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS[TOC]

Batch B351423 - SW-846 3546
[TOC_3]B351423[TOC]

Blank (B351423-BLK1) Prepared: 09/03/23  Analyzed: 09/12/23 

Acenaphthene (SIM) mg/Kg wet0.30ND

Acenaphthylene (SIM) mg/Kg wet0.20ND

Anthracene (SIM) mg/Kg wet0.20ND

Benzo(a)anthracene (SIM) mg/Kg wet0.050ND

Benzo(a)pyrene (SIM) mg/Kg wet0.10ND

Benzo(b)fluoranthene (SIM) mg/Kg wet0.050ND

Benzo(g,h,i)perylene (SIM) mg/Kg wet0.50ND

Benzo(k)fluoranthene (SIM) mg/Kg wet0.20ND

Chrysene (SIM) mg/Kg wet0.20ND

Dibenz(a,h)anthracene (SIM) mg/Kg wet0.10ND

Fluoranthene (SIM) mg/Kg wet0.50ND

Fluorene (SIM) mg/Kg wet1.0ND

Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene (SIM) mg/Kg wet0.10ND

2-Methylnaphthalene (SIM) mg/Kg wet1.0ND

Naphthalene (SIM) mg/Kg wet1.0ND

Phenanthrene (SIM) mg/Kg wet0.050ND

Pyrene (SIM) mg/Kg wet1.0ND

mg/Kg wet 3.33 30-130Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 71.92.40

mg/Kg wet 3.33 30-130Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 78.92.63

mg/Kg wet 3.33 V-0630-130Surrogate: p-Terphenyl-d14 98.43.28

LCS (B351423-BS1) Prepared: 09/03/23  Analyzed: 09/12/23 

Acenaphthene (SIM) mg/Kg wet6.0 1.67 40-14075.21.25

Acenaphthylene (SIM) mg/Kg wet4.0 1.67 40-14078.51.31

Anthracene (SIM) mg/Kg wet4.0 1.67 40-14078.71.31

Benzo(a)anthracene (SIM) mg/Kg wet1.0 1.67 40-14079.91.33

Benzo(a)pyrene (SIM) mg/Kg wet2.0 1.67 40-14081.21.35

Benzo(b)fluoranthene (SIM) mg/Kg wet1.0 1.67 40-14085.91.43

Benzo(g,h,i)perylene (SIM) mg/Kg wet10 1.67 40-14082.01.37

Benzo(k)fluoranthene (SIM) mg/Kg wet4.0 1.67 40-14089.61.49

Chrysene (SIM) mg/Kg wet4.0 1.67 40-14082.11.37

Dibenz(a,h)anthracene (SIM) mg/Kg wet2.0 1.67 40-14083.31.39

Fluoranthene (SIM) mg/Kg wet10 1.67 40-14077.41.29

Fluorene (SIM) mg/Kg wet20 1.67 40-14076.61.28

Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene (SIM) mg/Kg wet2.0 1.67 40-14085.21.42

2-Methylnaphthalene (SIM) mg/Kg wet20 1.67 40-14080.61.34

Naphthalene (SIM) mg/Kg wet 1.67 40-14072.41.21

Phenanthrene (SIM) mg/Kg wet1.0 1.67 40-14076.71.28

Pyrene (SIM) mg/Kg wet20 1.67 40-14080.11.34

mg/Kg wet 3.33 30-130Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 69.42.31

mg/Kg wet 3.33 30-130Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 88.92.96

mg/Kg wet 3.33 V-0630-130Surrogate: p-Terphenyl-d14 92.33.08

[TOC_1]QC Data[TOC]

Page 30 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 102



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B351423 - SW-846 3546

LCS Dup (B351423-BSD1) Prepared: 09/03/23  Analyzed: 09/12/23 

Acenaphthene (SIM) mg/Kg wet6.0 1.67 2040-14080.8 7.181.35

Acenaphthylene (SIM) mg/Kg wet4.0 1.67 2040-14084.3 7.131.40

Anthracene (SIM) mg/Kg wet4.0 1.67 2040-14081.7 3.791.36

Benzo(a)anthracene (SIM) mg/Kg wet1.0 1.67 2040-14081.0 1.291.35

Benzo(a)pyrene (SIM) mg/Kg wet2.0 1.67 2040-14082.6 1.661.38

Benzo(b)fluoranthene (SIM) mg/Kg wet1.0 1.67 2040-14087.0 1.301.45

Benzo(g,h,i)perylene (SIM) mg/Kg wet10 1.67 2040-14083.6 1.931.39

Benzo(k)fluoranthene (SIM) mg/Kg wet4.0 1.67 2040-14092.2 2.861.54

Chrysene (SIM) mg/Kg wet4.0 1.67 2040-14083.0 1.071.38

Dibenz(a,h)anthracene (SIM) mg/Kg wet2.0 1.67 2040-14085.2 2.281.42

Fluoranthene (SIM) mg/Kg wet10 1.67 2040-14080.0 3.251.33

Fluorene (SIM) mg/Kg wet20 1.67 2040-14082.1 6.961.37

Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene (SIM) mg/Kg wet2.0 1.67 2040-14085.9 0.8891.43

2-Methylnaphthalene (SIM) mg/Kg wet20 1.67 2040-14086.0 6.481.43

Naphthalene (SIM) mg/Kg wet 1.67 2040-14077.5 6.781.29

Phenanthrene (SIM) mg/Kg wet1.0 1.67 2040-14079.6 3.791.33

Pyrene (SIM) mg/Kg wet20 1.67 2040-14081.9 2.221.37

mg/Kg wet 3.33 30-130Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 68.52.28

mg/Kg wet 3.33 30-130Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 93.03.10

mg/Kg wet 3.33 V-0630-130Surrogate: p-Terphenyl-d14 93.23.11

Page 31 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 103



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

[TOC_2]Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction[TOC]

Batch B351351 - SW-846 3540C
[TOC_3]B351351[TOC]

Blank (B351351-BLK1) Prepared: 09/07/23  Analyzed: 09/13/23 

Aroclor-1016 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1016 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1221 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1221 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1232 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1232 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1242 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1242 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1248 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1248 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1254 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1254 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1260 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1260 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1262 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1262 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1268 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1268 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Decachlorobiphenyl 96.00.192

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Decachlorobiphenyl [2C] 93.70.187

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Tetrachloro-m-xylene 89.40.179

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2C] 92.20.184

LCS (B351351-BS1) Prepared: 09/07/23  Analyzed: 09/13/23 

Aroclor-1016 mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 40-14075.00.15

Aroclor-1016 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 40-14077.30.15

Aroclor-1260 mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 40-14071.70.14

Aroclor-1260 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 40-14071.60.14

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Decachlorobiphenyl 89.70.179

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Decachlorobiphenyl [2C] 87.40.175

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Tetrachloro-m-xylene 78.80.158

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2C] 80.30.161

LCS Dup (B351351-BSD1) Prepared: 09/07/23  Analyzed: 09/13/23 

Aroclor-1016 mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 3040-14078.8 4.930.16

Aroclor-1016 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 3040-14079.8 3.150.16

Aroclor-1260 mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 3040-14072.3 0.8520.14

Aroclor-1260 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 3040-14072.1 0.6960.14

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Decachlorobiphenyl 93.00.186

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Decachlorobiphenyl [2C] 91.30.183

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Tetrachloro-m-xylene 89.50.179

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2C] 90.90.182

Page 32 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 104



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Metals Analyses (Total) - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

[TOC_2]Metals Analyses (Total)[TOC]

Batch B350975 - SW-846 7471
[TOC_3]B350975[TOC]

Blank (B350975-BLK1) Prepared: 09/05/23  Analyzed: 09/06/23 

Mercury mg/Kg wet0.026ND

LCS (B350975-BS1) Prepared: 09/05/23  Analyzed: 09/06/23 

Mercury mg/Kg wet3.7 25.6 67.2-132.891.523.4

LCS Dup (B350975-BSD1) Prepared: 09/05/23  Analyzed: 09/06/23 

Mercury mg/Kg wet3.7 25.6 2067.2-132.882.8 10.021.2

Batch B351437 - SW-846 3050B
[TOC_3]B351437[TOC]

Blank (B351437-BLK1) Prepared: 09/08/23  Analyzed: 09/11/23 

Antimony mg/Kg wet1.7ND

Arsenic mg/Kg wet3.4ND

Barium mg/Kg wet1.7ND

Beryllium mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Cadmium mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Chromium mg/Kg wet0.68ND

Copper mg/Kg wet0.68 B-071.9

Lead mg/Kg wet0.51ND

Nickel mg/Kg wet0.68ND

Selenium mg/Kg wet3.4ND

Silver mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Thallium mg/Kg wet1.7ND

Zinc mg/Kg wet0.68ND

LCS (B351437-BS1) Prepared: 09/08/23  Analyzed: 09/11/23 

Antimony mg/Kg wet5.1 144 6.3-193.874.7108

Arsenic mg/Kg wet10 180 81.1-119.487.6158

Barium mg/Kg wet5.1 354 81.6-118.195.9339

Beryllium mg/Kg wet0.51 152 82.9-117.895.4145

Cadmium mg/Kg wet1.0 105 82.8-118.192.096.6

Chromium mg/Kg wet2.0 232 81.5-118.594.5219

Copper mg/Kg wet2.0 124 B83.1-116.9103127

Lead mg/Kg wet1.5 145 82.1-117.991.6133

Nickel mg/Kg wet2.0 108 85.2-117.694.3102

Selenium mg/Kg wet10 96.3 78.8-121.593.389.8

Silver mg/Kg wet1.0 47.3 79.5-120.511152.4

Thallium mg/Kg wet5.1 172 80.8-118.689.3154

Zinc mg/Kg wet2.0 369 80.2-120.191.4337

LCS Dup (B351437-BSD1) Prepared: 09/08/23  Analyzed: 09/11/23 

Antimony mg/Kg wet5.0 144 306.3-193.876.2 1.95110

Arsenic mg/Kg wet10 180 3081.1-119.487.5 0.0986157

Barium mg/Kg wet5.0 354 2081.6-118.199.9 4.14354

Beryllium mg/Kg wet0.50 152 3082.9-117.898.4 3.08150

Cadmium mg/Kg wet1.0 105 2082.8-118.194.1 2.3398.9

Chromium mg/Kg wet2.0 232 3081.5-118.596.6 2.21224

Copper mg/Kg wet2.0 124 30 B83.1-116.9103 0.774128

Lead mg/Kg wet1.5 145 3082.1-117.991.2 0.375132

Nickel mg/Kg wet2.0 108 3085.2-117.695.2 0.963103

Selenium mg/Kg wet10 96.3 3078.8-121.593.4 0.096489.9

Silver mg/Kg wet1.0 47.3 3079.5-120.5110 0.44252.2

Thallium mg/Kg wet5.0 172 3080.8-118.690.2 1.05155

Zinc mg/Kg wet2.0 369 3080.2-120.191.7 0.414338

Page 33 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 105



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Metals Analyses (Total) - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B351437 - SW-846 3050B

Reference (B351437-SRM1) MRL CHECK Prepared: 09/08/23  Analyzed: 09/11/23 

Lead mg/Kg wet0.48 0.482 80-12095.00.458

Page 34 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 106



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

IDENTIFICATION SUMMARY

FOR SINGLE COMPONENT ANALYTES LCS

SW-846 8082A

Lab Sample ID: Date(s) Analyzed:B351351-BS1

Instrument ID (1):

GC Column (1): ID: (mm) (mm)ID:GC Column (2):

ECD11 Instrument ID (2): ECD11

09/13/2023 09/13/2023

ANALYTE CONCENTRATION %RPDCOL RT
RT WINDOW

FROM TO

Aroclor-1016 1 0.000 -0.030 0.030 0.15

0.150.030-0.0300.0002 0.0

Aroclor-1260 1 0.000 -0.030 0.030 0.14

0.140.030-0.0300.0002 0.0

[TOC_1]Dual Column RPD Report[TOC]

Page 35 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 107



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

IDENTIFICATION SUMMARY

FOR SINGLE COMPONENT ANALYTES LCS Dup

SW-846 8082A

Lab Sample ID: Date(s) Analyzed:B351351-BSD1

Instrument ID (1):

GC Column (1): ID: (mm) (mm)ID:GC Column (2):

ECD11 Instrument ID (2): ECD11

09/13/2023 09/13/2023

ANALYTE CONCENTRATION %RPDCOL RT
RT WINDOW

FROM TO

Aroclor-1016 1 0.000 -0.030 0.030 0.16

0.160.030-0.0300.0002 0.0

Aroclor-1260 1 0.000 -0.030 0.030 0.14

0.140.030-0.0300.0002 6.9

Page 36 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 108



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

FLAG/QUALIFIER SUMMARY

* QC result is outside of established limits.

� Wide recovery limits established for difficult compound.

� Wide RPD limits established for difficult compound.

# Data exceeded client recommended or regulatory level 

Percent recoveries and relative percent differences (RPDs) are determined by the software using values in the 

calculation which have not been rounded.

No results have been blank subtracted unless specified in the case narrative section.

RL Reporting Limit is at the level of quantitation (LOQ)

DL Detection Limit is the lower limit of detection determined by the MDL study

MCL Maximum Contaminant Level

ND Not Detected

Analyte is found in the associated laboratory blank as well as in the sample.B

Data is not affected by elevated level in laboratory blank since sample result is >10x level found in the blank.B-07

The interference check sample was outside of control limits.  Data validation is not affected since the sample 

result is "not detected" and the bias is on the high side.

M-08

Continuing calibration verification (CCV) did not meet method specifications and was biased on the high side for 

this compound.

V-06

[TOC_1]Flag/Qualifier Summary[TOC]

Page 37 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 109



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CertificationsAnalyte

CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Analyses included in this Report

SW-846 6010D in Product/Solid

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCAntimony

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCArsenic

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCBarium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCBeryllium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCCadmium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCChromium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCCopper

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCLead

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCNickel

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCSelenium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCSilver

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCThallium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCZinc

SW-846 6010D in Soil

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCAntimony

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCArsenic

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCBarium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCBeryllium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCCadmium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCChromium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCCopper

CT,NH,NY,AIHA,ME,VA,NCLead

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCNickel

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCSelenium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCSilver

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCThallium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCZinc

SW-846 6010D in Water

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCAntimony

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,RI,NCArsenic

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCBarium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCBeryllium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCCadmium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCChromium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCCopper

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCLead

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCNickel

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCSelenium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCSilver

CT,NH,NY,VA,NCThallium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCZinc

SW-846 7471B in Soil

CT,NH,NY,NC,ME,VAMercury

SW-846 8082A in Soil

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1016

[TOC_1]Certifications[TOC]

Page 38 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 110



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CertificationsAnalyte

CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Analyses included in this Report

SW-846 8082A in Soil

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1016 [2C]

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1221

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1221 [2C]

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1232

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1232 [2C]

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1242

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1242 [2C]

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1248

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1248 [2C]

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1254

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1254 [2C]

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1260

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1260 [2C]

NY,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1262

NY,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1262 [2C]

NY,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1268

NY,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1268 [2C]

Con-Test, a Pace Environmental Laboratory, operates under the following certifications and accreditations:

Code Description Number Expires

100033AIHA-LAP, LLC - ISO 17025:2017AIHA 03/1/2024

PH-0821Connecticut Department of Public HealthCT 12/31/2024

10899 NELAPNew York State Department of HealthNY 04/1/2024

2516 NELAPNew Hampshire Environmental LabNH 02/5/2024

LAO00373Rhode Island Department of HealthRI 12/30/2023

652North Carolina Div. of Water QualityNC 12/31/2023

MA00100State of MaineME 06/9/2025

460217Commonwealth of VirginiaVA 12/14/2023

68-05812Commonwealth of Pennsylvania DEPPA 06/30/2024

Page 39 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 111



Page 40 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 112



Page 41 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 113



Page 42 of 42

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 114



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

October 3, 2023       

Lee Rosberg

Weston & Sampson - Waterbury, VT

98 South Main Street

Waterbury, VT 05676

Project Location: 11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Client Job Number: 

Project Number: 00142205 - 11 N Main Street

Laboratory Work Order Number: 23I0963

Enclosed are results of analyses for samples as received by the laboratory on September 8, 2023. If you have any questions 

concerning this report, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

Rebecca Faust

Project Manager

Page 1 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 115



Table of Contents

     Sample Summary     4

     Case Narrative     6

     Sample Results     9

          23I0963-01     9

          23I0963-02    14

          23I0963-03    17

          23I0963-04    22

          23I0963-05    27

          23I0963-06    32

          23I0963-07    35

          23I0963-08    40

          23I0963-09    43

          23I0963-10    46

          23I0963-11    49

          23I0963-12    54

          23I0963-13    56

          23I0963-14    58

          23I0963-15    60

          23I0963-16    62

          23I0963-17    64

          23I0963-18    66

     Sample Preparation Information    68

     QC Data    70

          Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS    70

               B351660    70

Page 2 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 116



Table of Contents (continued)

               B351707    74

          Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS    80

               B353275    80

          Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction    88

               B351933    88

          Metals Analyses (Total)    89

               B351913    89

               B352185    89

               B352500    89

     Dual Column RPD Report    91

     Flag/Qualifier Summary    93

     Certifications    94

     Chain of Custody/Sample Receipt   102

Page 3 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 117



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

ANALYTICAL SUMMARY

10/3/2023

Weston & Sampson - Waterbury, VT

98 South Main Street

Waterbury, VT 05676

ATTN: Lee Rosberg

00142205 - 11 N Main Street

23I0963

The results of analyses performed on the following samples submitted to CON-TEST, a Pace Analytical Laboratory, are found in this report.

PROJECT LOCATION:

PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER:

PROJECT NUMBER:

REPORT DATE:

WORK ORDER NUMBER:

FIELD SAMPLE # LAB ID: MATRIX TESTSAMPLE DESCRIPTION SUB LAB

11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

SB-1 (0-2) 23I0963-01 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 6010D

SW-846 7471B

SW-846 8082A

SW-846 8270E

SB-1 (10) 23I0963-02 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 8260D

SB-2 (0-2) 23I0963-03 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 6010D

SW-846 7471B

SW-846 8082A

SW-846 8270E

SB-2 (15) 23I0963-04 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 8260D

SW-846 8270E

SB-3 (10-12) 23I0963-05 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 6010D

SW-846 7471B

SW-846 8082A

SW-846 8270E

SB-3 (11) 23I0963-06 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 8260D

SB-4 (0-3) 23I0963-07 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 6010D

SW-846 7471B

SW-846 8082A

SW-846 8270E

SB-4 (7) 23I0963-08 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 8260D

SB-5 (1) 23I0963-09 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 8260D

DUP-1 23I0963-10 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 8260D

DUP 23I0963-11 Soil SM 2540G

SW-846 6010D

SW-846 7471B

SW-846 8082A

SW-846 8270E

GW-1 23I0963-12 Ground Water SW-846 8260D

GW-2 23I0963-13 Ground Water SW-846 8260D

GW-3 23I0963-14 Ground Water SW-846 8260D

[TOC_1]Sample Summary[TOC]

Page 4 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 118



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

ANALYTICAL SUMMARY

10/3/2023

Weston & Sampson - Waterbury, VT

98 South Main Street

Waterbury, VT 05676

ATTN: Lee Rosberg

00142205 - 11 N Main Street

23I0963

The results of analyses performed on the following samples submitted to CON-TEST, a Pace Analytical Laboratory, are found in this report.

PROJECT LOCATION:

PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER:

PROJECT NUMBER:

REPORT DATE:

WORK ORDER NUMBER:

FIELD SAMPLE # LAB ID: MATRIX TESTSAMPLE DESCRIPTION SUB LAB

11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

GW-4 23I0963-15 Ground Water SW-846 8260D

GW-5 23I0963-16 Ground Water SW-846 8260D

DUP-2 23I0963-17 Ground Water SW-846 8260D

TRIP BLANK 23I0963-18 Trip Blank Water SW-846 8260D

Page 5 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 119



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CASE NARRATIVE SUMMARY

All reported results are within defined laboratory quality control objectives unless listed below or otherwise qualified in this report.

For method 8270E, only PAHs were requested and reported.

REVISED REPORT: 8270 Standard requested for -01, -03, -04, -07, -11. 9/27/23

[TOC_1]Case Narrative[TOC]

Page 6 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 120



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

SM 2540G

Qualifications:

Sample was extracted past the recommended holding time.

Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

H-06

% Solids

23I0963-01[SB-1 (0-2)], 23I0963-02[SB-1 (10)], 23I0963-03[SB-2 (0-2)], 23I0963-04[SB-2 (15)], 23I0963-05[SB-3 (10-12)], 23I0963-06[SB-3 ( 11)], 23I0963-07[SB-4 

(0-3)], 23I0963-08[SB-4 (7)], 23I0963-09[SB-5 (1)], 23I0963-10[DUP-1], 23I0963-11[DUP]

SW-846 8260D

Qualifications:

Either laboratory fortified blank/laboratory control sample or duplicate recovery is outside of control limits, but the other is within limits. RPD 

between the two LFB/LCS results is within method specified criteria.
Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

L-07

Acetone

B351707-BSD1

Continuing calibration verification (CCV) did not meet method specifications and was biased on the low side for this compound.

Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

V-05

Acetone

23I0963-02[SB-1 (10)], 23I0963-04[SB-2 (15)], 23I0963-06[SB-3 (11)], 23I0963-08[SB-4 (7)], 23I0963-09[SB-5 (1)], 23I0963-10[DUP-1], B351707-BLK1, B351707-BS1, 

B351707-BSD1, S093285-CCV1

Tetrahydrofuran

23I0963-12[GW-1], 23I0963-13[GW-2], 23I0963-14[GW-3], 23I0963-15[GW-4], 23I0963-16[GW-5], 23I0963-17[DUP-2], 23I0963-18[ TRIP BLANK], B351660-BLK1, 

B351660-BS1, B351660-BSD1, S093333-CCV1

Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

23I0963-02[SB-1 (10)], 23I0963-04[SB-2 (15)], 23I0963-06[SB-3 (11)], 23I0963-08[SB-4 (7)], 23I0963-09[SB-5 (1)], 23I0963-10[DUP-1], B351707-BLK1, B351707-BS1, 

B351707-BSD1, S093285-CCV1

Initial calibration verification (ICV) did not meet method specifications and was biased on the low side for this compound. Reported result is 

estimated.
Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

V-34

Bromomethane

23I0963-02[SB-1 (10)], 23I0963-04[SB-2 (15)], 23I0963-06[SB-3 (11)], 23I0963-08[SB-4 (7)], 23I0963-09[SB-5 (1)], 23I0963-10[DUP-1], B351707-BLK1, B351707-BS1, 

B351707-BSD1, S093285-CCV1

Initial calibration verification (ICV) did not meet method specifications and was biased on the high side for this compound. Reported result is 

estimated.
Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

V-35

Acetone

B351707-BS1, B351707-BSD1, S093285-CCV1

SW-846 8270E

Qualifications:

Sample was extracted past the recommended holding time.

Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

H-06

23I0963-01[SB-1 (0-2)], 23I0963-03[SB-2 (0-2)], 23I0963-04[SB-2 (15)], 23I0963-05[SB-3 (10-12)], 23I0963-07[SB-4 (0-3)], 23I0963-11[DUP]

Matrix spike and spike duplicate recovery is outside of control limits.  Analysis is in control based on laboratory fortified blank recovery. 

Possibility of matrix effects that lead to low bias or non-homogeneous sample aliquot cannot be eliminated.
Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

MS-07A

Bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

B353275-MSD1

Hexachlorocyclopentadiene

B353275-MS1

Page 7 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 121



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Initial calibration did not meet method specifications.  Compound was calibrated using a response factor where %RSD is outside of method 

specified criteria. Reported result is estimated.
Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

V-04

Benzidine

23I0963-01[SB-1 (0-2)], 23I0963-03[SB-2 (0-2)], 23I0963-04[SB-2 (15)], 23I0963-05[SB-3 (10-12)], 23I0963-07[SB-4 (0-3)], 23I0963- 11[DUP], B353275-BLK1, 

B353275-BS1, B353275-BSD1, B353275-MS1, B353275-MSD1, S094203-CCV1

Continuing calibration verification (CCV) did not meet method specifications and was biased on the low side for this compound.

Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

V-05

Benzidine

23I0963-01[SB-1 (0-2)], 23I0963-03[SB-2 (0-2)], 23I0963-04[SB-2 (15)], 23I0963-05[SB-3 (10-12)], 23I0963-07[SB-4 (0-3)], 23I0963- 11[DUP], B353275-BLK1, 

B353275-BS1, B353275-BSD1, B353275-MS1, B353275-MSD1, S094203-CCV1

Hexachlorocyclopentadiene

23I0963-01[SB-1 (0-2)], 23I0963-03[SB-2 (0-2)], 23I0963-04[SB-2 (15)], 23I0963-05[SB-3 (10-12)], 23I0963-07[SB-4 (0-3)], 23I0963- 11[DUP], B353275-BLK1, 

B353275-BS1, B353275-BSD1, B353275-MS1, B353275-MSD1, S094203-CCV1

Continuing calibration verification (CCV) did not meet method specifications and was biased on the high side for this compound.

Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

V-06

Bis(2-chloroethyl)ether

23I0963-01[SB-1 (0-2)], 23I0963-03[SB-2 (0-2)], 23I0963-04[SB-2 (15)], 23I0963-05[SB-3 (10-12)], 23I0963-07[SB-4 (0-3)], 23I0963- 11[DUP], B353275-BLK1, 

B353275-BS1, B353275-BSD1, B353275-MS1, B353275-MSD1, S094203-CCV1

Bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

23I0963-01[SB-1 (0-2)], 23I0963-03[SB-2 (0-2)], 23I0963-04[SB-2 (15)], 23I0963-05[SB-3 (10-12)], 23I0963-07[SB-4 (0-3)], 23I0963- 11[DUP], B353275-BLK1, 

B353275-BS1, B353275-BSD1, B353275-MS1, B353275-MSD1, S094203-CCV1

Bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate

23I0963-01[SB-1 (0-2)], 23I0963-03[SB-2 (0-2)], 23I0963-04[SB-2 (15)], 23I0963-05[SB-3 (10-12)], 23I0963-07[SB-4 (0-3)], 23I0963- 11[DUP], B353275-BLK1, 

B353275-BS1, B353275-BSD1, B353275-MS1, B353275-MSD1, S094203-CCV1

Di-n-octylphthalate

23I0963-01[SB-1 (0-2)], 23I0963-03[SB-2 (0-2)], 23I0963-04[SB-2 (15)], 23I0963-05[SB-3 (10-12)], 23I0963-07[SB-4 (0-3)], 23I0963- 11[DUP], B353275-BLK1, 

B353275-BS1, B353275-BSD1, B353275-MS1, B353275-MSD1, S094203-CCV1

Initial calibration verification (ICV) did not meet method specifications and was biased on the low side for this compound. Reported result is 

estimated.
Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

V-34

Aniline

S093746-ICV1

The results of analyses reported only relate to samples submitted to Con-Test, a Pace Analytical Laboratory, for testing.

I certify that the analyses listed above, unless specifically listed as subcontracted, if any, were performed under my direction according to the approved methodologies listed 

in this document, and that based upon my inquiry of those individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the information, the material contained in this report is, to the 

best of my knowledge and belief, accurate and complete.

Lisa A. Worthington

Technical Representative

Page 8 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 122



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-01

Field Sample #:  SB-1 (0-2)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  08:30

[TOC_2]23I0963-01[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Sample Flags: H-06 Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthylene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acetophenone

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Aniline

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Anthracene

ND 0.80 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-04, V-05Benzidine

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)anthracene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)pyrene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(b)fluoranthene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(g,h,i)perylene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(k)fluoranthene

ND 1.2 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzoic Acid

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-chloroethyl)ether

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Bromophenylphenylether

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Butylbenzylphthalate

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Carbazole

ND 0.80 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chloroaniline

ND 0.80 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chloro-3-methylphenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Chloronaphthalene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Chlorophenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chlorophenylphenylether

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Chrysene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dibenz(a,h)anthracene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dibenzofuran

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Di-n-butylphthalate

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13,3-Dichlorobenzidine

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dichlorophenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Diethylphthalate

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dimethylphenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dimethylphthalate

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14,6-Dinitro-2-methylphenol

ND 0.80 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dinitrophenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dinitrotoluene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,6-Dinitrotoluene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Di-n-octylphthalate

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2-Diphenylhydrazine/Azobenzene

0.33 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Fluoranthene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Fluorene

[TOC_1]Sample Results[TOC]

Page 9 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 123



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-01

Field Sample #:  SB-1 (0-2)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  08:30

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Sample Flags: H-06 Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachlorobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-05Hexachlorocyclopentadiene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachloroethane

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Isophorone

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11-Methylnaphthalene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Methylnaphthalene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Methylphenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13/4-Methylphenol

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Naphthalene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Nitroaniline

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13-Nitroaniline

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Nitroaniline

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Nitrobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Nitrophenol

ND 0.80 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Nitrophenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodimethylamine

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodiphenylamine/Diphenylamine

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodi-n-propylamine

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pentachloronitrobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pentachlorophenol

ND 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Phenanthrene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Phenol

0.30 0.21 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pyrene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pyridine

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4,5-Trichlorophenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 18:42 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4,6-Trichlorophenol

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

2-Fluorophenol 59.7 9/30/23  18:4230-130

Phenol-d6 68.8 9/30/23  18:4230-130

Nitrobenzene-d5 64.9 9/30/23  18:4230-130

2-Fluorobiphenyl 70.1 9/30/23  18:4230-130

2,4,6-Tribromophenol 53.6 9/30/23  18:4230-130

p-Terphenyl-d14 74.2 9/30/23  18:4230-130

Page 10 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 124



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-01

Field Sample #:  SB-1 (0-2)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  08:30

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction

ND 0.097 9/19/23 12:16 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1016 [1]

ND 0.097 9/19/23 12:16 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1221 [1]

ND 0.097 9/19/23 12:16 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1232 [1]

ND 0.097 9/19/23 12:16 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1242 [1]

ND 0.097 9/19/23 12:16 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1248 [1]

ND 0.097 9/19/23 12:16 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1254 [1]

ND 0.097 9/19/23 12:16 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1260 [1]

ND 0.097 9/19/23 12:16 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1262 [1]

ND 0.097 9/19/23 12:16 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1268 [1]

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Decachlorobiphenyl [1] 91.5 9/19/23  12:1630-150

Decachlorobiphenyl [2] 85.8 9/19/23  12:1630-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [1] 93.6 9/19/23  12:1630-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2] 89.8 9/19/23  12:1630-150

Page 11 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 125



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-01

Field Sample #:  SB-1 (0-2)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  08:30

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Metals Analyses (Total)

ND 2.0 9/19/23 19:13 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Antimony

8.2 4.0 9/19/23 19:13 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Arsenic

45 2.0 9/19/23 19:13 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Barium

0.32 0.20 9/19/23 19:13 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Beryllium

ND 0.40 9/19/23 19:13 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Cadmium

14 0.79 9/19/23 19:13 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Chromium

41 0.79 9/19/23 19:13 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Copper

160 0.59 9/19/23 19:13 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Lead

0.21 0.031 9/19/23 13:59 AAJmg/Kg dry 9/18/23SW-846 7471B1Mercury

15 0.79 9/19/23 19:13 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Nickel

ND 4.0 9/20/23 23:13 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Selenium

1.2 0.40 9/19/23 19:13 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Silver

ND 2.0 9/19/23 19:13 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Thallium

120 0.79 9/19/23 19:13 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Zinc

Page 12 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 126



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-01

Field Sample #:  SB-1 (0-2)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  08:30

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

82.4 9/14/23 16:11 AV% Wt 9/14/23SM 2540G1 H-06% Solids

Page 13 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 127



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-02

Field Sample #:  SB-1 (10)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  08:45

[TOC_2]23I0963-02[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.12 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Acetone

ND 0.0074 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acrylonitrile

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME)

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Benzene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromobenzene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromochloromethane

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromodichloromethane

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromoform

ND 0.012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-34Bromomethane

ND 0.049 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Butanone (MEK)

ND 0.12 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA)

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Butylbenzene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1sec-Butylbenzene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butylbenzene

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE)

ND 0.012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Disulfide

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Tetrachloride

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorobenzene

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorodibromomethane

ND 0.025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroethane

ND 0.0049 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroform

ND 0.012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloromethane

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Chlorotoluene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Chlorotoluene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dibromomethane

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0049 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene

ND 0.025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethane

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloroethane

ND 0.0049 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichloropropane

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloropropene

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diethyl Ether

Page 14 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 128



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-02

Field Sample #:  SB-1 (10)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  08:45

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE)

ND 0.12 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dioxane

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Ethylbenzene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 0.025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Hexanone (MBK)

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Isopropylbenzene (Cumene)

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene)

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Acetate

ND 0.0049 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Cyclohexane

ND 0.025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methylene Chloride

ND 0.025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

ND 0.012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Naphthalene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Propylbenzene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Styrene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrachloroethylene

ND 0.012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrahydrofuran

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Toluene

ND 0.0049 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1-Trichloroethane

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloroethane

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichloroethylene

ND 0.012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichloropropane

ND 0.012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane 

(Freon 113)

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

ND 0.012 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Vinyl Chloride

ND 0.0049 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1m+p Xylene

ND 0.0025 9/12/23 11:03 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1o-Xylene

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 94.9 9/12/23  11:0370-130

Toluene-d8 94.7 9/12/23  11:0370-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene 90.8 9/12/23  11:0370-130

Page 15 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 129



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-02

Field Sample #:  SB-1 (10)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  08:45

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

78.3 9/14/23 16:11 AV% Wt 9/14/23SM 2540G1 H-06% Solids

Page 16 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 130



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-03

Field Sample #:  SB-2 (0-2)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  09:50

[TOC_2]23I0963-03[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Sample Flags: H-06 Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthene

ND 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthylene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acetophenone

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Aniline

ND 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Anthracene

ND 0.72 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-04, V-05Benzidine

0.46 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)anthracene

0.59 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)pyrene

0.81 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(b)fluoranthene

0.51 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(g,h,i)perylene

0.32 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(k)fluoranthene

ND 1.1 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzoic Acid

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-chloroethyl)ether

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Bromophenylphenylether

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Butylbenzylphthalate

ND 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Carbazole

ND 0.72 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chloroaniline

ND 0.72 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chloro-3-methylphenol

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Chloronaphthalene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Chlorophenol

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chlorophenylphenylether

0.57 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Chrysene

ND 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dibenz(a,h)anthracene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dibenzofuran

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Di-n-butylphthalate

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13,3-Dichlorobenzidine

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dichlorophenol

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Diethylphthalate

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dimethylphenol

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dimethylphthalate

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14,6-Dinitro-2-methylphenol

ND 0.72 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dinitrophenol

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dinitrotoluene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,6-Dinitrotoluene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Di-n-octylphthalate

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2-Diphenylhydrazine/Azobenzene

0.85 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Fluoranthene

ND 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Fluorene

Page 17 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 131



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-03

Field Sample #:  SB-2 (0-2)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  09:50

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Sample Flags: H-06 Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachlorobenzene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-05Hexachlorocyclopentadiene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachloroethane

0.50 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Isophorone

ND 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11-Methylnaphthalene

ND 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Methylnaphthalene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Methylphenol

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13/4-Methylphenol

ND 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Naphthalene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Nitroaniline

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13-Nitroaniline

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Nitroaniline

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Nitrobenzene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Nitrophenol

ND 0.72 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Nitrophenol

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodimethylamine

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodiphenylamine/Diphenylamine

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodi-n-propylamine

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pentachloronitrobenzene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pentachlorophenol

0.27 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Phenanthrene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Phenol

0.88 0.19 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pyrene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pyridine

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4,5-Trichlorophenol

ND 0.37 9/30/23 19:03 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4,6-Trichlorophenol

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

2-Fluorophenol 65.7 9/30/23  19:0330-130

Phenol-d6 75.5 9/30/23  19:0330-130

Nitrobenzene-d5 78.6 9/30/23  19:0330-130

2-Fluorobiphenyl 84.3 9/30/23  19:0330-130

2,4,6-Tribromophenol 47.7 9/30/23  19:0330-130

p-Terphenyl-d14 87.3 9/30/23  19:0330-130

Page 18 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 132



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-03

Field Sample #:  SB-2 (0-2)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  09:50

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction

ND 0.087 9/19/23 12:33 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1016 [1]

ND 0.087 9/19/23 12:33 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1221 [1]

ND 0.087 9/19/23 12:33 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1232 [1]

ND 0.087 9/19/23 12:33 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1242 [1]

ND 0.087 9/19/23 12:33 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1248 [1]

ND 0.087 9/19/23 12:33 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1254 [1]

ND 0.087 9/19/23 12:33 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1260 [1]

ND 0.087 9/19/23 12:33 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1262 [1]

ND 0.087 9/19/23 12:33 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1268 [1]

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Decachlorobiphenyl [1] 95.6 9/19/23  12:3330-150

Decachlorobiphenyl [2] 91.6 9/19/23  12:3330-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [1] 94.8 9/19/23  12:3330-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2] 90.9 9/19/23  12:3330-150

Page 19 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 133



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-03

Field Sample #:  SB-2 (0-2)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  09:50

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Metals Analyses (Total)

ND 1.8 9/19/23 19:18 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Antimony

5.4 3.6 9/19/23 19:18 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Arsenic

50 1.8 9/19/23 19:18 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Barium

0.19 0.18 9/19/23 19:18 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Beryllium

ND 0.36 9/19/23 19:18 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Cadmium

16 0.72 9/19/23 19:18 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Chromium

33 0.72 9/19/23 19:18 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Copper

83 0.54 9/19/23 19:18 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Lead

ND 0.028 9/18/23 17:08 AAJmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 7471B1Mercury

19 0.72 9/19/23 19:18 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Nickel

ND 3.6 9/20/23 23:20 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Selenium

1.4 0.36 9/19/23 19:18 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Silver

ND 1.8 9/19/23 19:18 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Thallium

74 0.72 9/19/23 19:18 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Zinc

Page 20 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 134



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-03

Field Sample #:  SB-2 (0-2)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  09:50

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

91.7 9/14/23 16:11 AV% Wt 9/14/23SM 2540G1 H-06% Solids

Page 21 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 135



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-04

Field Sample #:  SB-2 (15)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  09:45

[TOC_2]23I0963-04[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Acetone

ND 0.0046 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acrylonitrile

ND 0.00077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME)

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Benzene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromobenzene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromochloromethane

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromodichloromethane

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromoform

ND 0.0077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-34Bromomethane

ND 0.031 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Butanone (MEK)

ND 0.077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA)

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Butylbenzene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1sec-Butylbenzene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butylbenzene

ND 0.00077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE)

ND 0.0077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Disulfide

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Tetrachloride

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorobenzene

ND 0.00077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorodibromomethane

ND 0.015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroethane

ND 0.0031 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroform

ND 0.0077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloromethane

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Chlorotoluene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Chlorotoluene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)

ND 0.00077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dibromomethane

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0031 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene

ND 0.015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethane

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloroethane

ND 0.0031 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.00077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichloropropane

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloropropene

ND 0.00077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.00077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diethyl Ether

Page 22 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 136



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-04

Field Sample #:  SB-2 (15)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  09:45

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.00077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE)

ND 0.077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dioxane

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Ethylbenzene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 0.015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Hexanone (MBK)

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Isopropylbenzene (Cumene)

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene)

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Acetate

ND 0.0031 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Cyclohexane

ND 0.015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methylene Chloride

ND 0.015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

ND 0.0077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Naphthalene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Propylbenzene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Styrene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.00077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrachloroethylene

ND 0.0077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrahydrofuran

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Toluene

ND 0.0031 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1-Trichloroethane

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloroethane

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichloroethylene

ND 0.0077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichloropropane

ND 0.0077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane 

(Freon 113)

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

ND 0.0077 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Vinyl Chloride

ND 0.0031 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1m+p Xylene

ND 0.0015 9/12/23 11:28 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1o-Xylene

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 95.9 9/12/23  11:2870-130

Toluene-d8 95.6 9/12/23  11:2870-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene 91.4 9/12/23  11:2870-130

Page 23 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 137



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-04

Field Sample #:  SB-2 (15)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  09:45

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Sample Flags: H-06 Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthylene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acetophenone

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Aniline

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Anthracene

ND 0.82 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-04, V-05Benzidine

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)anthracene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)pyrene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(b)fluoranthene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(g,h,i)perylene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(k)fluoranthene

ND 1.2 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzoic Acid

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-chloroethyl)ether

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Bromophenylphenylether

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Butylbenzylphthalate

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Carbazole

ND 0.82 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chloroaniline

ND 0.82 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chloro-3-methylphenol

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Chloronaphthalene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Chlorophenol

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chlorophenylphenylether

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Chrysene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dibenz(a,h)anthracene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dibenzofuran

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Di-n-butylphthalate

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13,3-Dichlorobenzidine

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dichlorophenol

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Diethylphthalate

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dimethylphenol

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dimethylphthalate

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14,6-Dinitro-2-methylphenol

ND 0.82 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dinitrophenol

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dinitrotoluene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,6-Dinitrotoluene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Di-n-octylphthalate

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2-Diphenylhydrazine/Azobenzene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Fluoranthene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Fluorene

Page 24 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 138



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-04

Field Sample #:  SB-2 (15)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  09:45

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Sample Flags: H-06 Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachlorobenzene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-05Hexachlorocyclopentadiene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachloroethane

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Isophorone

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11-Methylnaphthalene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Methylnaphthalene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Methylphenol

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13/4-Methylphenol

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Naphthalene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Nitroaniline

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13-Nitroaniline

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Nitroaniline

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Nitrobenzene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Nitrophenol

ND 0.82 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Nitrophenol

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodimethylamine

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodiphenylamine/Diphenylamine

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodi-n-propylamine

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pentachloronitrobenzene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pentachlorophenol

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Phenanthrene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Phenol

ND 0.21 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pyrene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pyridine

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4,5-Trichlorophenol

ND 0.42 9/30/23 19:23 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4,6-Trichlorophenol

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

2-Fluorophenol 74.8 9/30/23  19:2330-130

Phenol-d6 80.9 9/30/23  19:2330-130

Nitrobenzene-d5 74.9 9/30/23  19:2330-130

2-Fluorobiphenyl 78.4 9/30/23  19:2330-130

2,4,6-Tribromophenol 65.2 9/30/23  19:2330-130

p-Terphenyl-d14 84.4 9/30/23  19:2330-130

Page 25 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 139



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-04

Field Sample #:  SB-2 (15)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  09:45

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

80.6 9/14/23 16:11 AV% Wt 9/14/23SM 2540G1 H-06% Solids

Page 26 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 140



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-05

Field Sample #:  SB-3 (10-12)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  11:45

[TOC_2]23I0963-05[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Sample Flags: H-06 Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthene

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthylene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acetophenone

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Aniline

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Anthracene

ND 0.79 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-04, V-05Benzidine

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)anthracene

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)pyrene

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(b)fluoranthene

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(g,h,i)perylene

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(k)fluoranthene

ND 1.2 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzoic Acid

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-chloroethyl)ether

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Bromophenylphenylether

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Butylbenzylphthalate

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Carbazole

ND 0.79 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chloroaniline

ND 0.79 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chloro-3-methylphenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Chloronaphthalene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Chlorophenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chlorophenylphenylether

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Chrysene

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dibenz(a,h)anthracene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dibenzofuran

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Di-n-butylphthalate

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13,3-Dichlorobenzidine

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dichlorophenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Diethylphthalate

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dimethylphenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dimethylphthalate

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14,6-Dinitro-2-methylphenol

ND 0.79 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dinitrophenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dinitrotoluene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,6-Dinitrotoluene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Di-n-octylphthalate

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2-Diphenylhydrazine/Azobenzene

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Fluoranthene

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Fluorene

Page 27 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 141



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-05

Field Sample #:  SB-3 (10-12)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  11:45

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Sample Flags: H-06 Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachlorobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-05Hexachlorocyclopentadiene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachloroethane

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Isophorone

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11-Methylnaphthalene

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Methylnaphthalene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Methylphenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13/4-Methylphenol

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Naphthalene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Nitroaniline

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13-Nitroaniline

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Nitroaniline

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Nitrobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Nitrophenol

ND 0.79 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Nitrophenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodimethylamine

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodiphenylamine/Diphenylamine

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodi-n-propylamine

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pentachloronitrobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pentachlorophenol

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Phenanthrene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Phenol

ND 0.20 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pyrene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pyridine

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4,5-Trichlorophenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 19:44 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4,6-Trichlorophenol

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

2-Fluorophenol 77.4 9/30/23  19:4430-130

Phenol-d6 82.5 9/30/23  19:4430-130

Nitrobenzene-d5 77.2 9/30/23  19:4430-130

2-Fluorobiphenyl 80.5 9/30/23  19:4430-130

2,4,6-Tribromophenol 66.7 9/30/23  19:4430-130

p-Terphenyl-d14 86.2 9/30/23  19:4430-130

Page 28 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 142



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-05

Field Sample #:  SB-3 (10-12)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  11:45

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction

ND 0.095 9/19/23 12:45 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1016 [1]

ND 0.095 9/19/23 12:45 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1221 [1]

ND 0.095 9/19/23 12:45 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1232 [1]

ND 0.095 9/19/23 12:45 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1242 [1]

ND 0.095 9/19/23 12:45 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1248 [1]

ND 0.095 9/19/23 12:45 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1254 [1]

ND 0.095 9/19/23 12:45 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1260 [1]

ND 0.095 9/19/23 12:45 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1262 [1]

ND 0.095 9/19/23 12:45 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1268 [1]

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Decachlorobiphenyl [1] 92.4 9/19/23  12:4530-150

Decachlorobiphenyl [2] 86.0 9/19/23  12:4530-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [1] 88.9 9/19/23  12:4530-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2] 83.0 9/19/23  12:4530-150

Page 29 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 143



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-05

Field Sample #:  SB-3 (10-12)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  11:45

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Metals Analyses (Total)

ND 2.0 9/19/23 19:23 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Antimony

7.2 4.0 9/19/23 19:23 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Arsenic

30 2.0 9/19/23 19:23 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Barium

ND 0.20 9/19/23 19:23 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Beryllium

ND 0.40 9/19/23 19:23 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Cadmium

15 0.79 9/19/23 19:23 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Chromium

32 0.79 9/19/23 19:23 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Copper

8.9 0.59 9/19/23 19:23 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Lead

ND 0.029 9/18/23 17:09 AAJmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 7471B1Mercury

23 0.79 9/19/23 19:23 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Nickel

ND 4.0 9/20/23 23:26 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Selenium

0.96 0.40 9/19/23 19:23 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Silver

ND 2.0 9/19/23 19:23 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Thallium

43 0.79 9/19/23 19:23 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Zinc

Page 30 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 144



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-05

Field Sample #:  SB-3 (10-12)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  11:45

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

83.9 9/14/23 16:11 AV% Wt 9/14/23SM 2540G1 H-06% Solids

Page 31 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 145



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-06

Field Sample #:  SB-3 (11)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  11:30

[TOC_2]23I0963-06[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.11 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Acetone

ND 0.0063 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acrylonitrile

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME)

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Benzene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromobenzene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromochloromethane

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromodichloromethane

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromoform

ND 0.011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-34Bromomethane

ND 0.042 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Butanone (MEK)

ND 0.11 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA)

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Butylbenzene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1sec-Butylbenzene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butylbenzene

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE)

ND 0.011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Disulfide

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Tetrachloride

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorobenzene

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorodibromomethane

ND 0.021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroethane

ND 0.0042 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroform

ND 0.011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloromethane

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Chlorotoluene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Chlorotoluene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dibromomethane

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0042 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene

ND 0.021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethane

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloroethane

ND 0.0042 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichloropropane

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloropropene

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diethyl Ether

Page 32 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 146



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-06

Field Sample #:  SB-3 (11)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  11:30

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE)

ND 0.11 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dioxane

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Ethylbenzene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 0.021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Hexanone (MBK)

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Isopropylbenzene (Cumene)

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene)

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Acetate

ND 0.0042 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Cyclohexane

ND 0.021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methylene Chloride

ND 0.021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

ND 0.011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Naphthalene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Propylbenzene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Styrene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrachloroethylene

ND 0.011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrahydrofuran

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Toluene

ND 0.0042 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1-Trichloroethane

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloroethane

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichloroethylene

ND 0.011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichloropropane

ND 0.011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane 

(Freon 113)

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

ND 0.011 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Vinyl Chloride

ND 0.0042 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1m+p Xylene

ND 0.0021 9/12/23 11:54 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1o-Xylene

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 98.0 9/12/23  11:5470-130

Toluene-d8 95.1 9/12/23  11:5470-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene 93.8 9/12/23  11:5470-130

Page 33 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 147



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-06

Field Sample #:  SB-3 (11)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  11:30

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

75.5 9/14/23 16:11 AV% Wt 9/14/23SM 2540G1 H-06% Solids

Page 34 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 148



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-07

Field Sample #:  SB-4 (0-3)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  13:10

[TOC_2]23I0963-07[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Sample Flags: H-06 Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthene

ND 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthylene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acetophenone

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Aniline

ND 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Anthracene

ND 0.87 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-04, V-05Benzidine

ND 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)anthracene

0.23 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)pyrene

0.35 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(b)fluoranthene

ND 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(g,h,i)perylene

ND 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(k)fluoranthene

ND 1.3 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzoic Acid

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-chloroethyl)ether

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Bromophenylphenylether

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Butylbenzylphthalate

ND 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Carbazole

ND 0.87 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chloroaniline

ND 0.87 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chloro-3-methylphenol

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Chloronaphthalene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Chlorophenol

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chlorophenylphenylether

0.28 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Chrysene

ND 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dibenz(a,h)anthracene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dibenzofuran

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Di-n-butylphthalate

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13,3-Dichlorobenzidine

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dichlorophenol

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Diethylphthalate

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dimethylphenol

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dimethylphthalate

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14,6-Dinitro-2-methylphenol

ND 0.87 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dinitrophenol

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dinitrotoluene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,6-Dinitrotoluene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Di-n-octylphthalate

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2-Diphenylhydrazine/Azobenzene

0.55 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Fluoranthene

ND 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Fluorene

Page 35 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 149



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-07

Field Sample #:  SB-4 (0-3)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  13:10

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Sample Flags: H-06 Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachlorobenzene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-05Hexachlorocyclopentadiene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachloroethane

ND 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Isophorone

ND 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11-Methylnaphthalene

ND 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Methylnaphthalene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Methylphenol

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13/4-Methylphenol

ND 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Naphthalene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Nitroaniline

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13-Nitroaniline

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Nitroaniline

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Nitrobenzene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Nitrophenol

ND 0.87 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Nitrophenol

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodimethylamine

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodiphenylamine/Diphenylamine

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodi-n-propylamine

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pentachloronitrobenzene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pentachlorophenol

0.44 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Phenanthrene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Phenol

0.51 0.22 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pyrene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pyridine

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4,5-Trichlorophenol

ND 0.45 9/30/23 20:04 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4,6-Trichlorophenol

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

2-Fluorophenol 68.3 9/30/23  20:0430-130

Phenol-d6 75.1 9/30/23  20:0430-130

Nitrobenzene-d5 70.6 9/30/23  20:0430-130

2-Fluorobiphenyl 72.5 9/30/23  20:0430-130

2,4,6-Tribromophenol 50.7 9/30/23  20:0430-130

p-Terphenyl-d14 74.5 9/30/23  20:0430-130

Page 36 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 150



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-07

Field Sample #:  SB-4 (0-3)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  13:10

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction

ND 0.11 9/19/23 12:57 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1016 [1]

ND 0.11 9/19/23 12:57 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1221 [1]

ND 0.11 9/19/23 12:57 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1232 [1]

ND 0.11 9/19/23 12:57 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1242 [1]

ND 0.11 9/19/23 12:57 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1248 [1]

ND 0.11 9/19/23 12:57 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1254 [1]

ND 0.11 9/19/23 12:57 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1260 [1]

ND 0.11 9/19/23 12:57 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1262 [1]

ND 0.11 9/19/23 12:57 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1268 [1]

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Decachlorobiphenyl [1] 87.9 9/19/23  12:5730-150

Decachlorobiphenyl [2] 83.8 9/19/23  12:5730-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [1] 90.2 9/19/23  12:5730-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2] 84.4 9/19/23  12:5730-150

Page 37 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 151



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-07

Field Sample #:  SB-4 (0-3)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  13:10

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Metals Analyses (Total)

ND 2.1 9/20/23 23:33 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Antimony

8.7 4.2 9/19/23 19:39 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Arsenic

96 2.1 9/19/23 19:39 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Barium

ND 0.21 9/19/23 19:39 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Beryllium

ND 0.42 9/19/23 19:39 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Cadmium

16 0.84 9/19/23 19:39 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Chromium

73 0.84 9/19/23 19:39 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Copper

350 0.63 9/19/23 19:39 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Lead

1.3 0.064 9/18/23 17:42 AAJmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 7471B2Mercury

22 0.84 9/19/23 19:39 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Nickel

4.9 4.2 9/21/23 19:25 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Selenium

ND 0.42 9/21/23 19:25 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Silver

ND 2.1 9/19/23 19:39 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Thallium

160 0.84 9/19/23 19:39 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Zinc

Page 38 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 152



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-07

Field Sample #:  SB-4 (0-3)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  13:10

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

76.1 9/14/23 16:11 AV% Wt 9/14/23SM 2540G1 H-06% Solids

Page 39 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 153



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-08

Field Sample #:  SB-4 (7)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  13:20

[TOC_2]23I0963-08[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.11 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Acetone

ND 0.0067 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acrylonitrile

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME)

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Benzene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromobenzene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromochloromethane

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromodichloromethane

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromoform

ND 0.011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-34Bromomethane

ND 0.045 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Butanone (MEK)

ND 0.11 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA)

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Butylbenzene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1sec-Butylbenzene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butylbenzene

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE)

ND 0.011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Disulfide

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Tetrachloride

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorobenzene

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorodibromomethane

ND 0.022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroethane

ND 0.0045 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroform

ND 0.011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloromethane

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Chlorotoluene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Chlorotoluene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dibromomethane

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0045 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene

ND 0.022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethane

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloroethane

ND 0.0045 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichloropropane

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloropropene

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diethyl Ether

Page 40 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 154



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-08

Field Sample #:  SB-4 (7)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  13:20

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE)

ND 0.11 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dioxane

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Ethylbenzene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 0.022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Hexanone (MBK)

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Isopropylbenzene (Cumene)

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene)

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Acetate

ND 0.0045 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Cyclohexane

ND 0.022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methylene Chloride

ND 0.022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

ND 0.011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Naphthalene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Propylbenzene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Styrene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.0011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrachloroethylene

ND 0.011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrahydrofuran

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Toluene

ND 0.0045 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1-Trichloroethane

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloroethane

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichloroethylene

ND 0.011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichloropropane

ND 0.011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane 

(Freon 113)

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

ND 0.011 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Vinyl Chloride

ND 0.0045 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1m+p Xylene

ND 0.0022 9/12/23 12:19 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1o-Xylene

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 96.9 9/12/23  12:1970-130

Toluene-d8 95.4 9/12/23  12:1970-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene 93.1 9/12/23  12:1970-130

Page 41 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 155



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-08

Field Sample #:  SB-4 (7)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  13:20

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

75.0 9/14/23 16:11 AV% Wt 9/14/23SM 2540G1 H-06% Solids

Page 42 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 156



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-09

Field Sample #:  SB-5 (1)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  14:20

[TOC_2]23I0963-09[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.12 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Acetone

ND 0.0070 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acrylonitrile

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME)

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Benzene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromobenzene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromochloromethane

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromodichloromethane

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromoform

ND 0.012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-34Bromomethane

ND 0.047 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Butanone (MEK)

ND 0.12 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA)

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Butylbenzene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1sec-Butylbenzene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butylbenzene

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE)

ND 0.012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Disulfide

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Tetrachloride

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorobenzene

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorodibromomethane

ND 0.023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroethane

ND 0.0047 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroform

ND 0.012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloromethane

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Chlorotoluene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Chlorotoluene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dibromomethane

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0047 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene

ND 0.023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethane

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloroethane

ND 0.0047 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichloropropane

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloropropene

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diethyl Ether

Page 43 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 157



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-09

Field Sample #:  SB-5 (1)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  14:20

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE)

ND 0.12 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dioxane

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Ethylbenzene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 0.023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Hexanone (MBK)

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Isopropylbenzene (Cumene)

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene)

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Acetate

ND 0.0047 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Cyclohexane

ND 0.023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methylene Chloride

ND 0.023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

ND 0.012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Naphthalene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Propylbenzene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Styrene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.0012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrachloroethylene

ND 0.012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrahydrofuran

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Toluene

ND 0.0047 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1-Trichloroethane

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloroethane

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichloroethylene

ND 0.012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichloropropane

ND 0.012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane 

(Freon 113)

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

ND 0.012 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Vinyl Chloride

ND 0.0047 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1m+p Xylene

ND 0.0023 9/12/23 12:45 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1o-Xylene

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 94.6 9/12/23  12:4570-130

Toluene-d8 95.4 9/12/23  12:4570-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene 93.2 9/12/23  12:4570-130

Page 44 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 158



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-09

Field Sample #:  SB-5 (1)

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  14:20

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

79.0 9/14/23 16:11 AV% Wt 9/14/23SM 2540G1 H-06% Solids

Page 45 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 159



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-10

Field Sample #:  DUP-1

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  00:00

[TOC_2]23I0963-10[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Acetone

ND 0.0055 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acrylonitrile

ND 0.00092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME)

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Benzene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromobenzene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromochloromethane

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromodichloromethane

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromoform

ND 0.0092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-34Bromomethane

ND 0.037 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Butanone (MEK)

ND 0.092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA)

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Butylbenzene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1sec-Butylbenzene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butylbenzene

ND 0.00092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE)

ND 0.0092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Disulfide

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Tetrachloride

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorobenzene

ND 0.00092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorodibromomethane

ND 0.018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroethane

ND 0.0037 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroform

ND 0.0092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloromethane

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Chlorotoluene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Chlorotoluene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)

ND 0.00092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dibromomethane

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.0037 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene

ND 0.018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethane

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloroethane

ND 0.0037 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.00092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichloropropane

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloropropene

ND 0.00092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.00092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diethyl Ether

Page 46 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 160



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-10

Field Sample #:  DUP-1

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  00:00

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.00092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE)

ND 0.092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dioxane

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Ethylbenzene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 0.018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Hexanone (MBK)

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Isopropylbenzene (Cumene)

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene)

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Acetate

ND 0.0037 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Cyclohexane

ND 0.018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methylene Chloride

ND 0.018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

ND 0.0092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Naphthalene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Propylbenzene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Styrene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.00092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrachloroethylene

ND 0.0092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrahydrofuran

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Toluene

ND 0.0037 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1-Trichloroethane

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloroethane

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichloroethylene

ND 0.0092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichloropropane

ND 0.0092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane 

(Freon 113)

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

ND 0.0092 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Vinyl Chloride

ND 0.0037 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1m+p Xylene

ND 0.0018 9/12/23 13:10 MFFmg/Kg dry 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1o-Xylene

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 95.8 9/12/23  13:1070-130

Toluene-d8 94.5 9/12/23  13:1070-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene 93.1 9/12/23  13:1070-130

Page 47 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 161



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-10

Field Sample #:  DUP-1

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  00:00

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

80.0 9/14/23 16:11 AV% Wt 9/14/23SM 2540G1 H-06% Solids

Page 48 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 162



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-11

Field Sample #:  DUP

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  00:00

[TOC_2]23I0963-11[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Sample Flags: H-06 Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acenaphthylene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Acetophenone

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Aniline

ND 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Anthracene

ND 0.80 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-04, V-05Benzidine

ND 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)anthracene

0.25 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(a)pyrene

0.36 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(b)fluoranthene

0.21 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(g,h,i)perylene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzo(k)fluoranthene

ND 1.2 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Benzoic Acid

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-chloroethyl)ether

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Bromophenylphenylether

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Butylbenzylphthalate

ND 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Carbazole

ND 0.80 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chloroaniline

ND 0.80 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chloro-3-methylphenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Chloronaphthalene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Chlorophenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Chlorophenylphenylether

0.32 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Chrysene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dibenz(a,h)anthracene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dibenzofuran

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Di-n-butylphthalate

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13,3-Dichlorobenzidine

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dichlorophenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Diethylphthalate

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dimethylphenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Dimethylphthalate

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14,6-Dinitro-2-methylphenol

ND 0.80 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dinitrophenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4-Dinitrotoluene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,6-Dinitrotoluene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-06Di-n-octylphthalate

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2-Diphenylhydrazine/Azobenzene

0.58 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Fluoranthene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Fluorene

Page 49 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 163



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-11

Field Sample #:  DUP

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  00:00

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Sample Flags: H-06 Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachlorobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1 V-05Hexachlorocyclopentadiene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Hexachloroethane

0.21 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Isophorone

ND 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11-Methylnaphthalene

ND 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Methylnaphthalene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Methylphenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13/4-Methylphenol

ND 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Naphthalene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Nitroaniline

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E13-Nitroaniline

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Nitroaniline

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Nitrobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12-Nitrophenol

ND 0.80 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E14-Nitrophenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodimethylamine

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodiphenylamine/Diphenylamine

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1N-Nitrosodi-n-propylamine

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pentachloronitrobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pentachlorophenol

0.45 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Phenanthrene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Phenol

0.55 0.21 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pyrene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E1Pyridine

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4,5-Trichlorophenol

ND 0.41 9/30/23 20:25 AR2mg/Kg dry 9/27/23SW-846 8270E12,4,6-Trichlorophenol

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

2-Fluorophenol 70.3 9/30/23  20:2530-130

Phenol-d6 77.6 9/30/23  20:2530-130

Nitrobenzene-d5 73.2 9/30/23  20:2530-130

2-Fluorobiphenyl 74.8 9/30/23  20:2530-130

2,4,6-Tribromophenol 52.1 9/30/23  20:2530-130

p-Terphenyl-d14 79.5 9/30/23  20:2530-130

Page 50 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 164



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-11

Field Sample #:  DUP

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  00:00

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction

ND 0.097 9/19/23 13:09 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1016 [1]

ND 0.097 9/19/23 13:09 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1221 [1]

ND 0.097 9/19/23 13:09 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1232 [1]

ND 0.097 9/19/23 13:09 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1242 [1]

ND 0.097 9/19/23 13:09 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1248 [1]

ND 0.097 9/19/23 13:09 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1254 [1]

ND 0.097 9/19/23 13:09 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1260 [1]

ND 0.097 9/19/23 13:09 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1262 [1]

ND 0.097 9/19/23 13:09 TGmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 8082A4Aroclor-1268 [1]

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

Decachlorobiphenyl [1] 89.8 9/19/23  13:0930-150

Decachlorobiphenyl [2] 89.2 9/19/23  13:0930-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [1] 97.3 9/19/23  13:0930-150

Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2] 92.9 9/19/23  13:0930-150

Page 51 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 165



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-11

Field Sample #:  DUP

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  00:00

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Metals Analyses (Total)

ND 2.0 9/19/23 19:46 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Antimony

8.6 3.9 9/19/23 19:46 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Arsenic

66 2.0 9/19/23 19:46 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Barium

0.20 0.20 9/19/23 19:46 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Beryllium

ND 0.39 9/19/23 19:46 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Cadmium

31 0.78 9/19/23 19:46 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Chromium

43 0.78 9/19/23 19:46 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Copper

190 0.59 9/19/23 19:46 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Lead

1.1 0.062 9/18/23 17:44 AAJmg/Kg dry 9/14/23SW-846 7471B2Mercury

20 0.78 9/19/23 19:46 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Nickel

ND 3.9 9/20/23 23:40 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Selenium

ND 0.39 9/21/23 19:30 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Silver

ND 2.0 9/19/23 19:46 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Thallium

110 0.78 9/19/23 19:46 ATPmg/Kg dry 9/15/23SW-846 6010D1Zinc

Page 52 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 166



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-11

Field Sample #:  DUP

Sample Matrix:  Soil

Sampled:  9/6/2023  00:00

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Conventional Chemistry Parameters by EPA/APHA/SW-846 Methods (Total)

82.2 9/14/23 16:11 AV% Wt 9/14/23SM 2540G1 H-06% Solids

Page 53 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 167



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-12

Field Sample #:  GW-1

Sample Matrix:  Ground Water

Sampled:  9/6/2023  09:40

[TOC_2]23I0963-12[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 50 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acetone

ND 5.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acrylonitrile

ND 0.50 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Benzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromochloromethane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromodichloromethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromoform

ND 2.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromomethane

ND 20 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Butanone (MEK)

ND 20 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Butylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1sec-Butylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butylbenzene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE)

ND 5.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Disulfide

ND 5.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Tetrachloride

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorobenzene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorodibromomethane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroethane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroform

ND 2.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloromethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Chlorotoluene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Chlorotoluene

ND 5.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)

ND 0.50 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dibromomethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichloropropane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12,2-Dichloropropane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloropropene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diethyl Ether

Page 54 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 168



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-12

Field Sample #:  GW-1

Sample Matrix:  Ground Water

Sampled:  9/6/2023  09:40

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.50 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE)

ND 50 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dioxane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Ethylbenzene

ND 0.60 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 10 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Hexanone (MBK)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Isopropylbenzene (Cumene)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Acetate

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Cyclohexane

ND 5.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methylene Chloride

ND 10 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

ND 2.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Naphthalene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Propylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Styrene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrachloroethylene

ND 10 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Tetrahydrofuran

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Toluene

ND 5.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1-Trichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichloroethylene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

ND 2.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichloropropane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane 

(Freon 113)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Vinyl Chloride

ND 2.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1m+p Xylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 12:49 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1o-Xylene

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 97.0 9/12/23  12:4970-130

Toluene-d8 99.7 9/12/23  12:4970-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene 98.8 9/12/23  12:4970-130

Page 55 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 169



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-13

Field Sample #:  GW-2

Sample Matrix:  Ground Water

Sampled:  9/6/2023  11:50

[TOC_2]23I0963-13[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 50 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acetone

ND 5.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acrylonitrile

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Benzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromochloromethane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromodichloromethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromoform

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromomethane

ND 20 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Butanone (MEK)

ND 20 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Butylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1sec-Butylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butylbenzene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE)

ND 5.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Disulfide

ND 5.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Tetrachloride

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorobenzene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorodibromomethane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroethane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroform

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloromethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Chlorotoluene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Chlorotoluene

ND 5.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dibromomethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichloropropane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12,2-Dichloropropane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloropropene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diethyl Ether

Page 56 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 170



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-13

Field Sample #:  GW-2

Sample Matrix:  Ground Water

Sampled:  9/6/2023  11:50

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE)

ND 50 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dioxane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Ethylbenzene

ND 0.60 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 10 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Hexanone (MBK)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Isopropylbenzene (Cumene)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Acetate

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Cyclohexane

ND 5.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methylene Chloride

ND 10 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Naphthalene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Propylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Styrene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrachloroethylene

ND 10 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Tetrahydrofuran

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Toluene

ND 5.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1-Trichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichloroethylene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichloropropane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane 

(Freon 113)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Vinyl Chloride

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1m+p Xylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:15 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1o-Xylene

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 98.4 9/12/23  13:1570-130

Toluene-d8 96.6 9/12/23  13:1570-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene 99.0 9/12/23  13:1570-130

Page 57 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 171



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-14

Field Sample #:  GW-3

Sample Matrix:  Ground Water

Sampled:  9/6/2023  12:30

[TOC_2]23I0963-14[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

64 50 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acetone

ND 5.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acrylonitrile

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Benzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromochloromethane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromodichloromethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromoform

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromomethane

ND 20 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Butanone (MEK)

ND 20 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Butylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1sec-Butylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butylbenzene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE)

ND 5.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Disulfide

ND 5.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Tetrachloride

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorobenzene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorodibromomethane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroethane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroform

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloromethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Chlorotoluene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Chlorotoluene

ND 5.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dibromomethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichloropropane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12,2-Dichloropropane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloropropene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diethyl Ether

Page 58 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 172



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-14

Field Sample #:  GW-3

Sample Matrix:  Ground Water

Sampled:  9/6/2023  12:30

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE)

ND 50 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dioxane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Ethylbenzene

ND 0.60 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 10 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Hexanone (MBK)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Isopropylbenzene (Cumene)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Acetate

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Cyclohexane

ND 5.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methylene Chloride

ND 10 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Naphthalene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Propylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Styrene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrachloroethylene

ND 10 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Tetrahydrofuran

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Toluene

ND 5.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1-Trichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichloroethylene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichloropropane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane 

(Freon 113)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Vinyl Chloride

ND 2.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1m+p Xylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 13:41 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1o-Xylene

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 98.2 9/12/23  13:4170-130

Toluene-d8 99.5 9/12/23  13:4170-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene 98.9 9/12/23  13:4170-130

Page 59 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 173



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-15

Field Sample #:  GW-4

Sample Matrix:  Ground Water

Sampled:  9/6/2023  14:15

[TOC_2]23I0963-15[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 50 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acetone

ND 5.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acrylonitrile

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Benzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromochloromethane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromodichloromethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromoform

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromomethane

ND 20 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Butanone (MEK)

ND 20 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Butylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1sec-Butylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butylbenzene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE)

ND 5.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Disulfide

ND 5.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Tetrachloride

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorobenzene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorodibromomethane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroethane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroform

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloromethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Chlorotoluene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Chlorotoluene

ND 5.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dibromomethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichloropropane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12,2-Dichloropropane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloropropene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diethyl Ether

Page 60 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 174



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-15

Field Sample #:  GW-4

Sample Matrix:  Ground Water

Sampled:  9/6/2023  14:15

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE)

ND 50 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dioxane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Ethylbenzene

ND 0.60 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 10 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Hexanone (MBK)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Isopropylbenzene (Cumene)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Acetate

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Cyclohexane

ND 5.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methylene Chloride

ND 10 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Naphthalene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Propylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Styrene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrachloroethylene

ND 10 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Tetrahydrofuran

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Toluene

ND 5.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1-Trichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichloroethylene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichloropropane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane 

(Freon 113)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Vinyl Chloride

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1m+p Xylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:08 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1o-Xylene

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 95.8 9/12/23  14:0870-130

Toluene-d8 98.5 9/12/23  14:0870-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene 97.9 9/12/23  14:0870-130

Page 61 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 175



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-16

Field Sample #:  GW-5

Sample Matrix:  Ground Water

Sampled:  9/6/2023  15:00

[TOC_2]23I0963-16[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 50 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acetone

ND 5.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acrylonitrile

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Benzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromochloromethane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromodichloromethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromoform

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromomethane

ND 20 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Butanone (MEK)

ND 20 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Butylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1sec-Butylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butylbenzene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE)

ND 5.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Disulfide

ND 5.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Tetrachloride

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorobenzene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorodibromomethane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroethane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroform

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloromethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Chlorotoluene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Chlorotoluene

ND 5.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dibromomethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichloropropane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12,2-Dichloropropane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloropropene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diethyl Ether

Page 62 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 176



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-16

Field Sample #:  GW-5

Sample Matrix:  Ground Water

Sampled:  9/6/2023  15:00

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE)

ND 50 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dioxane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Ethylbenzene

ND 0.60 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 10 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Hexanone (MBK)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Isopropylbenzene (Cumene)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Acetate

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Cyclohexane

ND 5.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methylene Chloride

ND 10 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Naphthalene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Propylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Styrene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrachloroethylene

ND 10 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Tetrahydrofuran

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Toluene

ND 5.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1-Trichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichloroethylene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichloropropane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane 

(Freon 113)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Vinyl Chloride

ND 2.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1m+p Xylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 14:34 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1o-Xylene

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 98.5 9/12/23  14:3470-130

Toluene-d8 100 9/12/23  14:3470-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene 99.1 9/12/23  14:3470-130

Page 63 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 177



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-17

Field Sample #:  DUP-2

Sample Matrix:  Ground Water

Sampled:  9/6/2023  00:00

[TOC_2]23I0963-17[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 50 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acetone

ND 5.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acrylonitrile

ND 0.50 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Benzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromochloromethane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromodichloromethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromoform

ND 2.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromomethane

ND 20 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Butanone (MEK)

ND 20 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Butylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1sec-Butylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butylbenzene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE)

ND 5.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Disulfide

ND 5.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Tetrachloride

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorobenzene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorodibromomethane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroethane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroform

ND 2.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloromethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Chlorotoluene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Chlorotoluene

ND 5.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)

ND 0.50 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dibromomethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichloropropane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12,2-Dichloropropane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloropropene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diethyl Ether

Page 64 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 178



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-17

Field Sample #:  DUP-2

Sample Matrix:  Ground Water

Sampled:  9/6/2023  00:00

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.50 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE)

ND 50 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dioxane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Ethylbenzene

ND 0.60 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 10 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Hexanone (MBK)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Isopropylbenzene (Cumene)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Acetate

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Cyclohexane

ND 5.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methylene Chloride

ND 10 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

ND 2.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Naphthalene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Propylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Styrene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrachloroethylene

ND 10 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Tetrahydrofuran

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Toluene

ND 5.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1-Trichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichloroethylene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

ND 2.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichloropropane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane 

(Freon 113)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Vinyl Chloride

ND 2.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1m+p Xylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 15:00 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1o-Xylene

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 98.6 9/12/23  15:0070-130

Toluene-d8 98.9 9/12/23  15:0070-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene 98.0 9/12/23  15:0070-130

Page 65 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 179



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-18

Field Sample #:  TRIP BLANK

Sample Matrix:  Trip Blank Water

Sampled:  8/22/2023  00:00

[TOC_2]23I0963-18[TOC]

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 50 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acetone

ND 5.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Acrylonitrile

ND 0.50 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Benzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromochloromethane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromodichloromethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromoform

ND 2.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Bromomethane

ND 20 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Butanone (MEK)

ND 20 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Butylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1sec-Butylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butylbenzene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE)

ND 5.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Disulfide

ND 5.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Carbon Tetrachloride

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorobenzene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chlorodibromomethane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroethane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloroform

ND 2.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Chloromethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Chlorotoluene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Chlorotoluene

ND 5.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)

ND 0.50 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dibromomethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dichlorobenzene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2-Dichloropropane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3-Dichloropropane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12,2-Dichloropropane

ND 2.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1-Dichloropropene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 0.50 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diethyl Ether

Page 66 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 180



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Date Received:  9/8/2023

Work Order:   23I0963Sample Description:Project Location:  11 N. Main St., Northfield, VT.

Sample ID:  23I0963-18

Field Sample #:  TRIP BLANK

Sample Matrix:  Trip Blank Water

Sampled:  8/22/2023  00:00

AnalystAnalyzedDilution Flag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

Units

Date

PreparedMethod

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS

ND 0.50 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE)

ND 50 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,4-Dioxane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Ethylbenzene

ND 0.60 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Hexachlorobutadiene

ND 10 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D12-Hexanone (MBK)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Isopropylbenzene (Cumene)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Acetate

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methyl Cyclohexane

ND 5.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Methylene Chloride

ND 10 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D14-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

ND 2.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Naphthalene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1n-Propylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Styrene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 0.50 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Tetrachloroethylene

ND 10 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1 V-05Tetrahydrofuran

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Toluene

ND 5.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trichlorobenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,1-Trichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloroethane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichloroethylene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

ND 2.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,3-Trichloropropane

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane 

(Freon 113)

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D11,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

ND 2.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1Vinyl Chloride

ND 2.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1m+p Xylene

ND 1.0 9/12/23 11:31 LBDµg/L 9/12/23SW-846 8260D1o-Xylene

Surrogates % Recovery Recovery Limits Flag/Qual

1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 95.0 9/12/23  11:3170-130

Toluene-d8 98.0 9/12/23  11:3170-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene 99.9 9/12/23  11:3170-130

Page 67 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 181



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Sample Extraction Data

Prep Method:% Solids        Analytical Method:SM 2540G

Lab Number [Field ID] Batch Date

B351990 09/14/2323I0963-01 [SB-1 (0-2)]

B351990 09/14/2323I0963-02 [SB-1 (10)]

B351990 09/14/2323I0963-03 [SB-2 (0-2)]

B351990 09/14/2323I0963-04 [SB-2 (15)]

B351990 09/14/2323I0963-05 [SB-3 (10-12)]

B351990 09/14/2323I0963-06 [SB-3 (11)]

B351990 09/14/2323I0963-07 [SB-4 (0-3)]

B351990 09/14/2323I0963-08 [SB-4 (7)]

B351990 09/14/2323I0963-09 [SB-5 (1)]

B351990 09/14/2323I0963-10 [DUP-1]

B351990 09/14/2323I0963-11 [DUP]

Prep Method:SW-846 3050B        Analytical Method:SW-846 6010D

Lab Number [Field ID] Batch DateInitial [g] Final [mL]

B352500 09/15/231.54 50.023I0963-01 [SB-1 (0-2)]

B352500 09/15/231.51 50.023I0963-03 [SB-2 (0-2)]

B352500 09/15/231.50 50.023I0963-05 [SB-3 (10-12)]

B352500 09/15/231.57 50.023I0963-07 [SB-4 (0-3)]

B352500 09/15/231.55 50.023I0963-11 [DUP]

Prep Method:SW-846 7471        Analytical Method:SW-846 7471B

Lab Number [Field ID] Batch DateInitial [g] Final [mL]

B351913 09/14/230.592 50.023I0963-03 [SB-2 (0-2)]

B351913 09/14/230.613 50.023I0963-05 [SB-3 (10-12)]

B351913 09/14/230.613 50.023I0963-07 [SB-4 (0-3)]

B351913 09/14/230.589 50.023I0963-11 [DUP]

Prep Method:SW-846 7471        Analytical Method:SW-846 7471B

Lab Number [Field ID] Batch DateInitial [g] Final [mL]

B352185 09/18/230.593 50.023I0963-01 [SB-1 (0-2)]

Prep Method:SW-846 3540C        Analytical Method:SW-846 8082A

Lab Number [Field ID] Batch DateInitial [g] Final [mL]

B351933 09/14/2310.0 10.023I0963-01 [SB-1 (0-2)]

B351933 09/14/2310.0 10.023I0963-03 [SB-2 (0-2)]

B351933 09/14/2310.0 10.023I0963-05 [SB-3 (10-12)]

B351933 09/14/2310.0 10.023I0963-07 [SB-4 (0-3)]

B351933 09/14/2310.0 10.023I0963-11 [DUP]

Prep Method:SW-846 5035        Analytical Method:SW-846 8260D

Lab Number [Field ID] Batch DateInitial [g] Final [mL]

B351707 09/12/235.21 10.023I0963-02 [SB-1 (10)]

B351707 09/12/238.10 10.023I0963-04 [SB-2 (15)]

B351707 09/12/236.27 10.023I0963-06 [SB-3 (11)]

[TOC_1]Sample Preparation Information[TOC]

Page 68 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 182



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Sample Extraction Data

Prep Method:SW-846 5035        Analytical Method:SW-846 8260D

Lab Number [Field ID] Batch DateInitial [g] Final [mL]

B351707 09/12/235.96 10.023I0963-08 [SB-4 (7)]

B351707 09/12/235.42 10.023I0963-09 [SB-5 (1)]

B351707 09/12/236.77 10.023I0963-10 [DUP-1]

Prep Method:SW-846 5030B        Analytical Method:SW-846 8260D

Lab Number [Field ID] Batch DateInitial [mL] Final [mL]

B351660 09/12/235 5.0023I0963-12 [GW-1]

B351660 09/12/235 5.0023I0963-13 [GW-2]

B351660 09/12/235 5.0023I0963-14 [GW-3]

B351660 09/12/235 5.0023I0963-15 [GW-4]

B351660 09/12/235 5.0023I0963-16 [GW-5]

B351660 09/12/235 5.0023I0963-17 [DUP-2]

B351660 09/12/235 5.0023I0963-18 [TRIP BLANK]

Prep Method:SW-846 3546        Analytical Method:SW-846 8270E

Lab Number [Field ID] Batch DateInitial [g] Final [mL]

B353275 09/27/2330.0 1.0023I0963-01 [SB-1 (0-2)]

B353275 09/27/2330.0 1.0023I0963-03 [SB-2 (0-2)]

B353275 09/27/2330.0 1.0023I0963-04 [SB-2 (15)]

B353275 09/27/2330.0 1.0023I0963-05 [SB-3 (10-12)]

B353275 09/27/2330.0 1.0023I0963-07 [SB-4 (0-3)]

B353275 09/27/2330.0 1.0023I0963-11 [DUP]

Page 69 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 183



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

[TOC_2]Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS[TOC]

Batch B351660 - SW-846 5030B
[TOC_3]B351660[TOC]

Blank (B351660-BLK1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

Acetone µg/L50ND

Acrylonitrile µg/L5.0ND

tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME) µg/L0.50ND

Benzene µg/L1.0ND

Bromobenzene µg/L1.0ND

Bromochloromethane µg/L1.0ND

Bromodichloromethane µg/L0.50ND

Bromoform µg/L1.0ND

Bromomethane µg/L2.0ND

2-Butanone (MEK) µg/L20ND

tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA) µg/L20ND

n-Butylbenzene µg/L1.0ND

sec-Butylbenzene µg/L1.0ND

tert-Butylbenzene µg/L1.0ND

tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE) µg/L0.50ND

Carbon Disulfide µg/L5.0ND

Carbon Tetrachloride µg/L5.0ND

Chlorobenzene µg/L1.0ND

Chlorodibromomethane µg/L0.50ND

Chloroethane µg/L2.0ND

Chloroform µg/L2.0ND

Chloromethane µg/L2.0ND

2-Chlorotoluene µg/L1.0ND

4-Chlorotoluene µg/L1.0ND

1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) µg/L5.0ND

1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) µg/L0.50ND

Dibromomethane µg/L1.0ND

1,2-Dichlorobenzene µg/L1.0ND

1,3-Dichlorobenzene µg/L1.0ND

1,4-Dichlorobenzene µg/L1.0ND

trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene µg/L2.0ND

Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12) µg/L2.0ND

1,1-Dichloroethane µg/L1.0ND

1,2-Dichloroethane µg/L1.0ND

1,1-Dichloroethylene µg/L1.0ND

cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene µg/L1.0ND

trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene µg/L1.0ND

1,2-Dichloropropane µg/L1.0ND

1,3-Dichloropropane µg/L0.50ND

2,2-Dichloropropane µg/L1.0ND

1,1-Dichloropropene µg/L2.0ND

cis-1,3-Dichloropropene µg/L0.50ND

trans-1,3-Dichloropropene µg/L0.50ND

Diethyl Ether µg/L2.0ND

Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE) µg/L0.50ND

1,4-Dioxane µg/L50ND

Ethylbenzene µg/L1.0ND

Hexachlorobutadiene µg/L0.60ND

2-Hexanone (MBK) µg/L10ND

Isopropylbenzene (Cumene) µg/L1.0ND

p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene) µg/L1.0ND

Methyl Acetate µg/L1.0ND

[TOC_1]QC Data[TOC]

Page 70 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 184



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B351660 - SW-846 5030B

Blank (B351660-BLK1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE) µg/L1.0ND

Methyl Cyclohexane µg/L1.0ND

Methylene Chloride µg/L5.0ND

4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) µg/L10ND

Naphthalene µg/L2.0ND

n-Propylbenzene µg/L1.0ND

Styrene µg/L1.0ND

1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane µg/L1.0ND

1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane µg/L0.50ND

Tetrachloroethylene µg/L1.0ND

Tetrahydrofuran µg/L10 V-05ND

Toluene µg/L1.0ND

1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene µg/L5.0ND

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene µg/L1.0ND

1,3,5-Trichlorobenzene µg/L1.0ND

1,1,1-Trichloroethane µg/L1.0ND

1,1,2-Trichloroethane µg/L1.0ND

Trichloroethylene µg/L1.0ND

Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11) µg/L2.0ND

1,2,3-Trichloropropane µg/L2.0ND

1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (Freon 

113)

µg/L1.0ND

1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene µg/L1.0ND

1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene µg/L1.0ND

Vinyl Chloride µg/L2.0ND

m+p Xylene µg/L2.0ND

o-Xylene µg/L1.0ND

µg/L 25.0 70-130Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 96.424.1

µg/L 25.0 70-130Surrogate: Toluene-d8 98.124.5

µg/L 25.0 70-130Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 97.724.4

LCS (B351660-BS1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

Acetone µg/L50 100 70-16098.1 �98.1

Acrylonitrile µg/L5.0 10.0 70-13093.09.30

tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME) µg/L0.50 10.0 70-13090.59.05

Benzene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13091.99.19

Bromobenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13098.69.86

Bromochloromethane µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13098.69.86

Bromodichloromethane µg/L0.50 10.0 70-13010410.4

Bromoform µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010210.2

Bromomethane µg/L2.0 10.0 40-16090.7 �9.07

2-Butanone (MEK) µg/L20 100 40-16093.0 �93.0

tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA) µg/L20 100 40-16091.2 �91.2

n-Butylbenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13093.49.34

sec-Butylbenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13092.49.24

tert-Butylbenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13094.39.43

tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE) µg/L0.50 10.0 70-13093.69.36

Carbon Disulfide µg/L5.0 100 70-130112112

Carbon Tetrachloride µg/L5.0 10.0 70-13093.79.37

Chlorobenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010210.2

Chlorodibromomethane µg/L0.50 10.0 70-13010510.5

Chloroethane µg/L2.0 10.0 70-13011011.0

Chloroform µg/L2.0 10.0 70-13096.99.69

Page 71 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 185



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B351660 - SW-846 5030B

LCS (B351660-BS1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

Chloromethane µg/L2.0 10.0 40-16094.2 �9.42

2-Chlorotoluene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13096.19.61

4-Chlorotoluene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13096.09.60

1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) µg/L5.0 10.0 70-13010110.1

1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) µg/L0.50 10.0 70-13010810.8

Dibromomethane µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13011311.3

1,2-Dichlorobenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010710.7

1,3-Dichlorobenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010210.2

1,4-Dichlorobenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010310.3

trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene µg/L2.0 10.0 70-13086.08.60

Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12) µg/L2.0 10.0 40-160112 �11.2

1,1-Dichloroethane µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13094.69.46

1,2-Dichloroethane µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13011511.5

1,1-Dichloroethylene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010410.4

cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13094.39.43

trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13096.29.62

1,2-Dichloropropane µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010010.0

1,3-Dichloropropane µg/L0.50 10.0 70-13010310.3

2,2-Dichloropropane µg/L1.0 10.0 40-130104 �10.4

1,1-Dichloropropene µg/L2.0 10.0 70-13010010.0

cis-1,3-Dichloropropene µg/L0.50 10.0 70-13010010.0

trans-1,3-Dichloropropene µg/L0.50 10.0 70-13099.99.99

Diethyl Ether µg/L2.0 10.0 70-13099.29.92

Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE) µg/L0.50 10.0 70-13090.89.08

1,4-Dioxane µg/L50 100 40-13094.9 �94.9

Ethylbenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010410.4

Hexachlorobutadiene µg/L0.60 10.0 70-13093.99.39

2-Hexanone (MBK) µg/L10 100 70-160100 �100

Isopropylbenzene (Cumene) µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13097.59.75

p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene) µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13091.99.19

Methyl Acetate µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13094.09.40

Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE) µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13095.39.53

Methyl Cyclohexane µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010510.5

Methylene Chloride µg/L5.0 10.0 70-13090.99.09

4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) µg/L10 100 70-160103 �103

Naphthalene µg/L2.0 10.0 40-13097.5 �9.75

n-Propylbenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13097.69.76

Styrene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13099.39.93

1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010810.8

1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane µg/L0.50 10.0 70-13010810.8

Tetrachloroethylene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13011411.4

Tetrahydrofuran µg/L10 10.0 V-0570-13083.58.35

Toluene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010410.4

1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene µg/L5.0 10.0 70-13010510.5

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010510.5

1,3,5-Trichlorobenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010210.2

1,1,1-Trichloroethane µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010110.1

1,1,2-Trichloroethane µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010610.6

Trichloroethylene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010810.8

Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11) µg/L2.0 10.0 70-13011311.3

1,2,3-Trichloropropane µg/L2.0 10.0 70-13011011.0

Page 72 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 186



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B351660 - SW-846 5030B

LCS (B351660-BS1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (Freon 

113)

µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13011511.5

1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13097.99.79

1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13098.29.82

Vinyl Chloride µg/L2.0 10.0 40-160107 �10.7

m+p Xylene µg/L2.0 20.0 70-13010120.2

o-Xylene µg/L1.0 10.0 70-13010110.1

µg/L 25.0 70-130Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 98.724.7

µg/L 25.0 70-130Surrogate: Toluene-d8 99.424.8

µg/L 25.0 70-130Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 10025.0

LCS Dup (B351660-BSD1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

Acetone µg/L50 100 2570-16097.4 0.736 �97.4

Acrylonitrile µg/L5.0 10.0 2570-13090.7 2.509.07

tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME) µg/L0.50 10.0 2570-13089.3 1.338.93

Benzene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13093.1 1.309.31

Bromobenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13099.7 1.119.97

Bromochloromethane µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13097.6 1.029.76

Bromodichloromethane µg/L0.50 10.0 2570-130107 3.1310.7

Bromoform µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130104 2.0410.4

Bromomethane µg/L2.0 10.0 2540-16095.9 5.57 �9.59

2-Butanone (MEK) µg/L20 100 2540-16094.2 1.25 �94.2

tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA) µg/L20 100 2540-16090.4 0.826 �90.4

n-Butylbenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13092.1 1.409.21

sec-Butylbenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13092.1 0.3259.21

tert-Butylbenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13093.3 1.079.33

tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE) µg/L0.50 10.0 2570-13092.0 1.729.20

Carbon Disulfide µg/L5.0 100 2570-130110 1.74110

Carbon Tetrachloride µg/L5.0 10.0 2570-13094.4 0.7449.44

Chlorobenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130101 1.3810.1

Chlorodibromomethane µg/L0.50 10.0 2570-130105 0.28610.5

Chloroethane µg/L2.0 10.0 2570-130105 5.2010.5

Chloroform µg/L2.0 10.0 2570-13094.8 2.199.48

Chloromethane µg/L2.0 10.0 2540-16090.3 4.23 �9.03

2-Chlorotoluene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13096.1 0.009.61

4-Chlorotoluene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13098.1 2.169.81

1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) µg/L5.0 10.0 2570-130101 0.19810.1

1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) µg/L0.50 10.0 2570-130109 0.92210.9

Dibromomethane µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130111 1.5211.1

1,2-Dichlorobenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130104 2.6610.4

1,3-Dichlorobenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130102 0.49110.2

1,4-Dichlorobenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130102 0.87510.2

trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene µg/L2.0 10.0 2570-13090.6 5.219.06

Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12) µg/L2.0 10.0 2540-160110 1.89 �11.0

1,1-Dichloroethane µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13091.2 3.669.12

1,2-Dichloroethane µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130114 1.0511.4

1,1-Dichloroethylene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130103 1.1510.3

cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13094.6 0.3189.46

trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13098.2 2.069.82

1,2-Dichloropropane µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130102 1.4810.2

1,3-Dichloropropane µg/L0.50 10.0 2570-130104 1.2610.4

2,2-Dichloropropane µg/L1.0 10.0 2540-130103 1.06 �10.3

1,1-Dichloropropene µg/L2.0 10.0 2570-13094.3 6.179.43

Page 73 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 187



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B351660 - SW-846 5030B

LCS Dup (B351660-BSD1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

cis-1,3-Dichloropropene µg/L0.50 10.0 2570-130100 0.39910.0

trans-1,3-Dichloropropene µg/L0.50 10.0 2570-13097.9 2.029.79

Diethyl Ether µg/L2.0 10.0 2570-13098.2 1.019.82

Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE) µg/L0.50 10.0 2570-13091.0 0.2209.10

1,4-Dioxane µg/L50 100 5040-13090.2 5.11 � �90.2

Ethylbenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130104 0.096510.4

Hexachlorobutadiene µg/L0.60 10.0 2570-13095.8 2.009.58

2-Hexanone (MBK) µg/L10 100 2570-160103 2.26 �103

Isopropylbenzene (Cumene) µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13099.3 1.839.93

p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene) µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13093.1 1.309.31

Methyl Acetate µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13089.9 4.468.99

Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE) µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13092.9 2.559.29

Methyl Cyclohexane µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130102 2.7010.2

Methylene Chloride µg/L5.0 10.0 2570-13088.9 2.228.89

4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) µg/L10 100 2570-160104 0.834 �104

Naphthalene µg/L2.0 10.0 2540-13098.8 1.32 �9.88

n-Propylbenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13098.0 0.4099.80

Styrene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130101 1.9010.1

1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130108 0.27810.8

1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane µg/L0.50 10.0 2570-130109 1.4810.9

Tetrachloroethylene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130112 2.1311.2

Tetrahydrofuran µg/L10 10.0 25 V-0570-13083.1 0.4808.31

Toluene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130102 1.5510.2

1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene µg/L5.0 10.0 2570-130106 1.0410.6

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130104 1.2510.4

1,3,5-Trichlorobenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13099.8 1.899.98

1,1,1-Trichloroethane µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13098.5 2.119.85

1,1,2-Trichloroethane µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130107 0.56210.7

Trichloroethylene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130106 1.8610.6

Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11) µg/L2.0 10.0 2570-130116 2.1011.6

1,2,3-Trichloropropane µg/L2.0 10.0 2570-130106 3.0610.6

1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (Freon 

113)

µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130112 2.7411.2

1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13097.7 0.2049.77

1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-13098.7 0.5089.87

Vinyl Chloride µg/L2.0 10.0 2540-160102 4.77 �10.2

m+p Xylene µg/L2.0 20.0 2570-130101 0.049520.2

o-Xylene µg/L1.0 10.0 2570-130102 1.6710.2

µg/L 25.0 70-130Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 93.623.4

µg/L 25.0 70-130Surrogate: Toluene-d8 99.925.0

µg/L 25.0 70-130Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 10125.3

Batch B351707 - SW-846 5035
[TOC_3]B351707[TOC]

Blank (B351707-BLK1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

Acetone mg/Kg wet0.10 V-05ND

Acrylonitrile mg/Kg wet0.0060ND

tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME) mg/Kg wet0.0010ND

Benzene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Bromobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Bromochloromethane mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Bromodichloromethane mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Bromoform mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Page 74 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 188



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B351707 - SW-846 5035

Blank (B351707-BLK1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

Bromomethane mg/Kg wet0.010 V-34ND

2-Butanone (MEK) mg/Kg wet0.040ND

tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA) mg/Kg wet0.10ND

n-Butylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

sec-Butylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

tert-Butylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE) mg/Kg wet0.0010ND

Carbon Disulfide mg/Kg wet0.010ND

Carbon Tetrachloride mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Chlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Chlorodibromomethane mg/Kg wet0.0010ND

Chloroethane mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Chloroform mg/Kg wet0.0040ND

Chloromethane mg/Kg wet0.010ND

2-Chlorotoluene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

4-Chlorotoluene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) mg/Kg wet0.0010ND

Dibromomethane mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,2-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,3-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,4-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene mg/Kg wet0.0040ND

Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12) mg/Kg wet0.020ND

1,1-Dichloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,2-Dichloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,1-Dichloroethylene mg/Kg wet0.0040ND

cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,2-Dichloropropane mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,3-Dichloropropane mg/Kg wet0.0010ND

2,2-Dichloropropane mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,1-Dichloropropene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

cis-1,3-Dichloropropene mg/Kg wet0.0010ND

trans-1,3-Dichloropropene mg/Kg wet0.0010ND

Diethyl Ether mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE) mg/Kg wet0.0010ND

1,4-Dioxane mg/Kg wet0.10ND

Ethylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Hexachlorobutadiene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

2-Hexanone (MBK) mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Isopropylbenzene (Cumene) mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene) mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Methyl Acetate mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE) mg/Kg wet0.0040ND

Methyl Cyclohexane mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Methylene Chloride mg/Kg wet0.020ND

4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Naphthalene mg/Kg wet0.010ND

n-Propylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Styrene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Page 75 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 189



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B351707 - SW-846 5035

Blank (B351707-BLK1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0010ND

Tetrachloroethylene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Tetrahydrofuran mg/Kg wet0.010ND

Toluene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0040ND

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,3,5-Trichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,1,1-Trichloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,1,2-Trichloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Trichloroethylene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11) mg/Kg wet0.010 V-05ND

1,2,3-Trichloropropane mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (Freon 

113)

mg/Kg wet0.010ND

1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

Vinyl Chloride mg/Kg wet0.010ND

m+p Xylene mg/Kg wet0.0040ND

o-Xylene mg/Kg wet0.0020ND

mg/Kg wet 0.0500 70-130Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 92.00.0460

mg/Kg wet 0.0500 70-130Surrogate: Toluene-d8 94.20.0471

mg/Kg wet 0.0500 70-130Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 92.00.0460

LCS (B351707-BS1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

Acetone mg/Kg wet0.10 0.200 V-05, V-3570-16071.0 �0.142

Acrylonitrile mg/Kg wet0.0060 0.0200 70-13090.70.0181

tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME) mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 70-13095.00.0190

Benzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13099.30.0199

Bromobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13090.00.0180

Bromochloromethane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13092.30.0185

Bromodichloromethane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13089.90.0180

Bromoform mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13086.00.0172

Bromomethane mg/Kg wet0.010 0.0200 V-3440-13085.1 �0.0170

2-Butanone (MEK) mg/Kg wet0.040 0.200 70-16086.6 �0.173

tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA) mg/Kg wet0.10 0.200 40-13085.3 �0.171

n-Butylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-1301000.0201

sec-Butylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13093.10.0186

tert-Butylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-16095.5 �0.0191

tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE) mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 70-13094.30.0189

Carbon Disulfide mg/Kg wet0.010 0.200 70-13091.60.183

Carbon Tetrachloride mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13091.00.0182

Chlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13093.60.0187

Chlorodibromomethane mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 70-13086.60.0173

Chloroethane mg/Kg wet0.020 0.0200 70-13085.10.0170

Chloroform mg/Kg wet0.0040 0.0200 70-13095.40.0191

Chloromethane mg/Kg wet0.010 0.0200 70-13080.60.0161

2-Chlorotoluene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13092.50.0185

4-Chlorotoluene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13095.20.0190

1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13097.50.0195

1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 70-13093.00.0186

Dibromomethane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13089.80.0180

1,2-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13093.00.0186

1,3-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13093.40.0187

Page 76 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 190



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B351707 - SW-846 5035

LCS (B351707-BS1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

1,4-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13092.60.0185

trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene mg/Kg wet0.0040 0.0200 70-13095.30.0191

Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12) mg/Kg wet0.020 0.0200 40-16082.7 �0.0165

1,1-Dichloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13095.90.0192

1,2-Dichloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13089.20.0178

1,1-Dichloroethylene mg/Kg wet0.0040 0.0200 70-13082.60.0165

cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13095.30.0191

trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13089.60.0179

1,2-Dichloropropane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13094.50.0189

1,3-Dichloropropane mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 70-13091.00.0182

2,2-Dichloropropane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13088.50.0177

1,1-Dichloropropene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13098.70.0197

cis-1,3-Dichloropropene mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 70-13096.50.0193

trans-1,3-Dichloropropene mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 70-13089.20.0178

Diethyl Ether mg/Kg wet0.020 0.0200 70-13085.90.0172

Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE) mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 70-13096.30.0193

1,4-Dioxane mg/Kg wet0.10 0.200 40-16091.0 �0.182

Ethylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13096.80.0194

Hexachlorobutadiene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-16086.50.0173

2-Hexanone (MBK) mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 70-16090.4 �0.181

Isopropylbenzene (Cumene) mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13099.50.0199

p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene) mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13097.40.0195

Methyl Acetate mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13091.40.0183

Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE) mg/Kg wet0.0040 0.0200 70-13088.60.0177

Methyl Cyclohexane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-1301020.0204

Methylene Chloride mg/Kg wet0.020 0.0200 40-16084.8 �0.0170

4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 70-16089.2 �0.178

Naphthalene mg/Kg wet0.010 0.0200 40-13098.5 �0.0197

n-Propylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-1301000.0201

Styrene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13096.00.0192

1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13089.40.0179

1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 70-13096.90.0194

Tetrachloroethylene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13093.80.0188

Tetrahydrofuran mg/Kg wet0.010 0.0200 70-1301060.0212

Toluene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13096.40.0193

1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0040 0.0200 70-13089.40.0179

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13092.60.0185

1,3,5-Trichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13092.20.0184

1,1,1-Trichloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13096.00.0192

1,1,2-Trichloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13095.40.0191

Trichloroethylene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13092.90.0186

Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11) mg/Kg wet0.010 0.0200 V-0570-13077.40.0155

1,2,3-Trichloropropane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13092.10.0184

1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (Freon 

113)

mg/Kg wet0.010 0.0200 70-13091.20.0182

1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-1301000.0201

1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13096.70.0193

Vinyl Chloride mg/Kg wet0.010 0.0200 40-13095.9 �0.0192

m+p Xylene mg/Kg wet0.0040 0.0400 70-13095.80.0383

o-Xylene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 70-13094.90.0190

mg/Kg wet 0.0500 70-130Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 91.20.0456

mg/Kg wet 0.0500 70-130Surrogate: Toluene-d8 93.00.0465

Page 77 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 191



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B351707 - SW-846 5035

LCS (B351707-BS1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

mg/Kg wet 0.0500 70-130Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 92.80.0464

LCS Dup (B351707-BSD1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

Acetone mg/Kg wet0.10 0.200 25 L-07, V-05, V-3570-16069.7 1.89* �0.139

Acrylonitrile mg/Kg wet0.0060 0.0200 2570-13095.4 5.050.0191

tert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME) mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 2570-13093.9 1.160.0188

Benzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13097.4 1.930.0195

Bromobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13089.1 1.010.0178

Bromochloromethane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13093.6 1.400.0187

Bromodichloromethane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13088.6 1.460.0177

Bromoform mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13086.1 0.1160.0172

Bromomethane mg/Kg wet0.010 0.0200 25 V-3440-13084.8 0.353 �0.0170

2-Butanone (MEK) mg/Kg wet0.040 0.200 2570-16085.6 1.11 �0.171

tert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA) mg/Kg wet0.10 0.200 2540-13084.1 1.42 �0.168

n-Butylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13095.2 5.220.0190

sec-Butylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13091.3 1.950.0183

tert-Butylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-16092.2 3.52 �0.0184

tert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE) mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 2570-13093.6 0.7450.0187

Carbon Disulfide mg/Kg wet0.010 0.200 2570-13087.8 4.180.176

Carbon Tetrachloride mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13088.4 2.900.0177

Chlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13093.4 0.2140.0187

Chlorodibromomethane mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 2570-13085.6 1.160.0171

Chloroethane mg/Kg wet0.020 0.0200 2570-13085.4 0.3520.0171

Chloroform mg/Kg wet0.0040 0.0200 2570-13093.6 1.900.0187

Chloromethane mg/Kg wet0.010 0.0200 2570-13075.6 6.400.0151

2-Chlorotoluene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13091.2 1.420.0182

4-Chlorotoluene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13092.0 3.420.0184

1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP) mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-130100 2.630.0200

1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 2570-13090.0 3.280.0180

Dibromomethane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13092.0 2.420.0184

1,2-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13090.2 3.060.0180

1,3-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13088.8 5.050.0178

1,4-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13090.8 1.960.0182

trans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene mg/Kg wet0.0040 0.0200 2570-13093.4 2.010.0187

Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12) mg/Kg wet0.020 0.0200 2540-16076.8 7.40 �0.0154

1,1-Dichloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13093.1 2.960.0186

1,2-Dichloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13088.8 0.4490.0178

1,1-Dichloroethylene mg/Kg wet0.0040 0.0200 2570-13082.6 0.000.0165

cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13092.6 2.870.0185

trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13087.1 2.830.0174

1,2-Dichloropropane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13094.8 0.3170.0190

1,3-Dichloropropane mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 2570-13094.3 3.560.0189

2,2-Dichloropropane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13084.0 5.220.0168

1,1-Dichloropropene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13099.3 0.6060.0199

cis-1,3-Dichloropropene mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 2570-13093.6 3.050.0187

trans-1,3-Dichloropropene mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 2570-13088.5 0.7880.0177

Diethyl Ether mg/Kg wet0.020 0.0200 2570-13074.0 14.90.0148

Diisopropyl Ether (DIPE) mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 2570-13095.0 1.360.0190

1,4-Dioxane mg/Kg wet0.10 0.200 5040-16097.5 6.94 � �0.195

Ethylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13092.9 4.110.0186

Hexachlorobutadiene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-16087.2 0.8060.0174

2-Hexanone (MBK) mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 2570-16093.2 3.11 �0.186

Page 78 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 192



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Volatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B351707 - SW-846 5035

LCS Dup (B351707-BSD1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

Isopropylbenzene (Cumene) mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13094.2 5.470.0188

p-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene) mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13094.3 3.230.0189

Methyl Acetate mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13095.2 4.070.0190

Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE) mg/Kg wet0.0040 0.0200 2570-13087.7 1.020.0175

Methyl Cyclohexane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-130101 1.480.0201

Methylene Chloride mg/Kg wet0.020 0.0200 2540-16082.7 2.51 �0.0165

4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 2570-16091.0 2.04 �0.182

Naphthalene mg/Kg wet0.010 0.0200 2540-13095.7 2.88 �0.0191

n-Propylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13096.2 4.270.0192

Styrene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13095.3 0.7320.0191

1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13088.5 1.010.0177

1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0010 0.0200 2570-13091.7 5.510.0183

Tetrachloroethylene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13093.3 0.5340.0187

Tetrahydrofuran mg/Kg wet0.010 0.0200 2570-130102 3.940.0204

Toluene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13097.1 0.7240.0194

1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0040 0.0200 2570-13088.2 1.350.0176

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13086.7 6.580.0173

1,3,5-Trichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13086.1 6.840.0172

1,1,1-Trichloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13093.0 3.170.0186

1,1,2-Trichloroethane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13096.1 0.7310.0192

Trichloroethylene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13093.2 0.3220.0186

Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11) mg/Kg wet0.010 0.0200 25 V-0570-13072.2 6.950.0144

1,2,3-Trichloropropane mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13086.8 5.930.0174

1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (Freon 

113)

mg/Kg wet0.010 0.0200 2570-13087.7 3.910.0175

1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13095.7 4.690.0191

1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13094.7 2.090.0189

Vinyl Chloride mg/Kg wet0.010 0.0200 2540-13091.4 4.81 �0.0183

m+p Xylene mg/Kg wet0.0040 0.0400 2570-13093.3 2.700.0373

o-Xylene mg/Kg wet0.0020 0.0200 2570-13094.3 0.6340.0189

mg/Kg wet 0.0500 70-130Surrogate: 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 91.90.0459

mg/Kg wet 0.0500 70-130Surrogate: Toluene-d8 94.40.0472

mg/Kg wet 0.0500 70-130Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene 93.00.0465

Page 79 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 193



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

[TOC_2]Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS[TOC]

Batch B353275 - SW-846 3546
[TOC_3]B353275[TOC]

Blank (B353275-BLK1) Prepared: 09/27/23  Analyzed: 09/30/23 

Acenaphthene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Acenaphthylene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Acetophenone mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Aniline mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Anthracene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Benzidine mg/Kg wet0.66 V-04, V-05ND

Benzo(a)anthracene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Benzo(a)pyrene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Benzo(b)fluoranthene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Benzo(g,h,i)perylene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Benzo(k)fluoranthene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Benzoic Acid mg/Kg wet1.0ND

Bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Bis(2-chloroethyl)ether mg/Kg wet0.34 V-06ND

Bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether mg/Kg wet0.34 V-06ND

Bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate mg/Kg wet0.34 V-06ND

4-Bromophenylphenylether mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Butylbenzylphthalate mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Carbazole mg/Kg wet0.17ND

4-Chloroaniline mg/Kg wet0.66ND

4-Chloro-3-methylphenol mg/Kg wet0.66ND

2-Chloronaphthalene mg/Kg wet0.34ND

2-Chlorophenol mg/Kg wet0.34ND

4-Chlorophenylphenylether mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Chrysene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Dibenz(a,h)anthracene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Dibenzofuran mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Di-n-butylphthalate mg/Kg wet0.34ND

1,2-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34ND

1,3-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34ND

1,4-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34ND

3,3-Dichlorobenzidine mg/Kg wet0.17ND

2,4-Dichlorophenol mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Diethylphthalate mg/Kg wet0.34ND

2,4-Dimethylphenol mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Dimethylphthalate mg/Kg wet0.34ND

4,6-Dinitro-2-methylphenol mg/Kg wet0.34ND

2,4-Dinitrophenol mg/Kg wet0.66ND

2,4-Dinitrotoluene mg/Kg wet0.34ND

2,6-Dinitrotoluene mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Di-n-octylphthalate mg/Kg wet0.34 V-06ND

1,2-Diphenylhydrazine/Azobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Fluoranthene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Fluorene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Hexachlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Hexachlorobutadiene mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Hexachlorocyclopentadiene mg/Kg wet0.34 V-05ND

Hexachloroethane mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Isophorone mg/Kg wet0.34ND

1-Methylnaphthalene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

2-Methylnaphthalene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Page 80 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 194



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B353275 - SW-846 3546

Blank (B353275-BLK1) Prepared: 09/27/23  Analyzed: 09/30/23 

2-Methylphenol mg/Kg wet0.34ND

3/4-Methylphenol mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Naphthalene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

2-Nitroaniline mg/Kg wet0.34ND

3-Nitroaniline mg/Kg wet0.34ND

4-Nitroaniline mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Nitrobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34ND

2-Nitrophenol mg/Kg wet0.34ND

4-Nitrophenol mg/Kg wet0.66ND

N-Nitrosodimethylamine mg/Kg wet0.34ND

N-Nitrosodiphenylamine/Diphenylamine mg/Kg wet0.34ND

N-Nitrosodi-n-propylamine mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Pentachloronitrobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Pentachlorophenol mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Phenanthrene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Phenol mg/Kg wet0.34ND

Pyrene mg/Kg wet0.17ND

Pyridine mg/Kg wet0.34ND

1,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34ND

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34ND

2,4,5-Trichlorophenol mg/Kg wet0.34ND

2,4,6-Trichlorophenol mg/Kg wet0.34ND

mg/Kg wet 6.67 30-130Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 82.25.48

mg/Kg wet 6.67 30-130Surrogate: Phenol-d6 88.65.91

mg/Kg wet 3.33 30-130Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 83.62.79

mg/Kg wet 3.33 30-130Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 85.02.83

mg/Kg wet 6.67 30-130Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 68.94.59

mg/Kg wet 3.33 30-130Surrogate: p-Terphenyl-d14 90.53.02

LCS (B353275-BS1) Prepared: 09/27/23  Analyzed: 09/30/23 

Acenaphthene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14081.01.35

Acenaphthylene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14081.31.36

Acetophenone mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14080.61.34

Aniline mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 10-14059.7 �0.995

Anthracene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14086.81.45

Benzidine mg/Kg wet0.66 1.67 V-04, V-0540-14045.60.761

Benzo(a)anthracene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14083.21.39

Benzo(a)pyrene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14084.41.41

Benzo(b)fluoranthene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14084.41.41

Benzo(g,h,i)perylene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14080.31.34

Benzo(k)fluoranthene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14089.51.49

Benzoic Acid mg/Kg wet1.0 1.67 30-13079.31.32

Bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14083.81.40

Bis(2-chloroethyl)ether mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 V-0640-14091.01.52

Bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 V-0640-1401232.06

Bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 V-0640-14099.01.65

4-Bromophenylphenylether mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14081.41.36

Butylbenzylphthalate mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14087.11.45

Carbazole mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14087.31.46

4-Chloroaniline mg/Kg wet0.66 1.67 10-14061.1 �1.02

4-Chloro-3-methylphenol mg/Kg wet0.66 1.67 30-13081.21.35

2-Chloronaphthalene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14071.81.20

Page 81 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 195



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B353275 - SW-846 3546

LCS (B353275-BS1) Prepared: 09/27/23  Analyzed: 09/30/23 

2-Chlorophenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30-13075.91.27

4-Chlorophenylphenylether mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14074.81.25

Chrysene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14083.61.39

Dibenz(a,h)anthracene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14082.81.38

Dibenzofuran mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14081.61.36

Di-n-butylphthalate mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14092.21.54

1,2-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14069.21.15

1,3-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14065.91.10

1,4-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14067.01.12

3,3-Dichlorobenzidine mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 20-14074.6 �1.24

2,4-Dichlorophenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30-13077.61.29

Diethylphthalate mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14073.01.22

2,4-Dimethylphenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30-13073.01.22

Dimethylphthalate mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14075.71.26

4,6-Dinitro-2-methylphenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30-13094.31.57

2,4-Dinitrophenol mg/Kg wet0.66 1.67 30-13066.01.10

2,4-Dinitrotoluene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14073.71.23

2,6-Dinitrotoluene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14079.51.32

Di-n-octylphthalate mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 V-0640-14097.81.63

1,2-Diphenylhydrazine/Azobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14097.01.62

Fluoranthene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14088.01.47

Fluorene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14076.31.27

Hexachlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14079.31.32

Hexachlorobutadiene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14068.51.14

Hexachlorocyclopentadiene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 V-0540-14043.70.728

Hexachloroethane mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14067.81.13

Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14097.41.62

Isophorone mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14087.21.45

1-Methylnaphthalene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14076.71.28

2-Methylnaphthalene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14079.61.33

2-Methylphenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30-13082.11.37

3/4-Methylphenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30-13086.81.45

Naphthalene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14076.81.28

2-Nitroaniline mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14085.21.42

3-Nitroaniline mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30-14068.5 �1.14

4-Nitroaniline mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14071.01.18

Nitrobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14075.71.26

2-Nitrophenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30-13076.51.27

4-Nitrophenol mg/Kg wet0.66 1.67 30-13065.81.10

N-Nitrosodimethylamine mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14071.51.19

N-Nitrosodiphenylamine/Diphenylamine mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14097.11.62

N-Nitrosodi-n-propylamine mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14088.31.47

Pentachloronitrobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14083.01.38

Pentachlorophenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30-13073.41.22

Phenanthrene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14086.11.43

Phenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30-13074.91.25

Pyrene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 40-14086.31.44

Pyridine mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30-14048.7 �0.811

1,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14073.51.22

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 40-14070.31.17

2,4,5-Trichlorophenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30-13077.01.28

2,4,6-Trichlorophenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30-13077.91.30

Page 82 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 196



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B353275 - SW-846 3546

LCS (B353275-BS1) Prepared: 09/27/23  Analyzed: 09/30/23 

mg/Kg wet 6.67 30-130Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 80.95.39

mg/Kg wet 6.67 30-130Surrogate: Phenol-d6 88.45.90

mg/Kg wet 3.33 30-130Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 78.12.60

mg/Kg wet 3.33 30-130Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 86.62.89

mg/Kg wet 6.67 30-130Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 70.64.71

mg/Kg wet 3.33 30-130Surrogate: p-Terphenyl-d14 85.62.85

LCS Dup (B353275-BSD1) Prepared: 09/27/23  Analyzed: 09/30/23 

Acenaphthene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14078.8 2.681.31

Acenaphthylene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14078.2 3.891.30

Acetophenone mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14081.6 1.231.36

Aniline mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 5010-14064.3 7.39 � �1.07

Anthracene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14083.4 3.931.39

Benzidine mg/Kg wet0.66 1.67 30 V-04, V-0540-14052.9 14.80.882

Benzo(a)anthracene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14079.0 5.081.32

Benzo(a)pyrene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14080.4 4.901.34

Benzo(b)fluoranthene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14081.4 3.721.36

Benzo(g,h,i)perylene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14077.6 3.401.29

Benzo(k)fluoranthene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14085.4 4.711.42

Benzoic Acid mg/Kg wet1.0 1.67 5030-13077.2 2.74 �1.29

Bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14087.2 4.051.45

Bis(2-chloroethyl)ether mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30 V-0640-14097.5 6.941.62

Bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30 V-0640-140135 8.572.24

Bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30 V-0640-14096.8 2.291.61

4-Bromophenylphenylether mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14076.8 5.821.28

Butylbenzylphthalate mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14084.5 3.031.41

Carbazole mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14084.5 3.311.41

4-Chloroaniline mg/Kg wet0.66 1.67 3010-14060.9 0.328 �1.01

4-Chloro-3-methylphenol mg/Kg wet0.66 1.67 3030-13080.0 1.391.33

2-Chloronaphthalene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14071.2 0.7271.19

2-Chlorophenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3030-13076.2 0.3161.27

4-Chlorophenylphenylether mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14070.8 5.471.18

Chrysene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14079.5 4.931.33

Dibenz(a,h)anthracene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14080.1 3.341.34

Dibenzofuran mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14078.1 4.361.30

Di-n-butylphthalate mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14090.7 1.621.51

1,2-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14070.2 1.461.17

1,3-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14067.0 1.721.12

1,4-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14067.6 0.9511.13

3,3-Dichlorobenzidine mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 5020-14071.0 5.03 � �1.18

2,4-Dichlorophenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3030-13075.5 2.771.26

Diethylphthalate mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14070.9 2.891.18

2,4-Dimethylphenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3030-13072.5 0.7701.21

Dimethylphthalate mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14073.3 3.111.22

4,6-Dinitro-2-methylphenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3030-13090.7 3.931.51

2,4-Dinitrophenol mg/Kg wet0.66 1.67 3030-13062.6 5.261.04

2,4-Dinitrotoluene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14071.4 3.091.19

2,6-Dinitrotoluene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14075.4 5.191.26

Di-n-octylphthalate mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30 V-0640-14095.3 2.631.59

1,2-Diphenylhydrazine/Azobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14099.8 2.911.66

Fluoranthene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14083.9 4.861.40

Fluorene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14072.7 4.781.21

Page 83 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 197



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B353275 - SW-846 3546

LCS Dup (B353275-BSD1) Prepared: 09/27/23  Analyzed: 09/30/23 

Hexachlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14074.4 6.331.24

Hexachlorobutadiene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14067.5 1.411.13

Hexachlorocyclopentadiene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 30 V-0540-14043.0 1.610.717

Hexachloroethane mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14069.5 2.481.16

Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14094.5 3.061.58

Isophorone mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14088.2 1.231.47

1-Methylnaphthalene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14075.0 2.191.25

2-Methylnaphthalene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14078.1 1.851.30

2-Methylphenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3030-13082.2 0.1221.37

3/4-Methylphenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3030-13087.1 0.4371.45

Naphthalene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14076.3 0.6271.27

2-Nitroaniline mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14086.4 1.421.44

3-Nitroaniline mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3030-14066.7 2.57 �1.11

4-Nitroaniline mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14070.9 0.1131.18

Nitrobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14078.8 3.991.31

2-Nitrophenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3030-13075.7 1.051.26

4-Nitrophenol mg/Kg wet0.66 1.67 5030-13065.1 1.04 �1.08

N-Nitrosodimethylamine mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14076.8 7.121.28

N-Nitrosodiphenylamine/Diphenylamine mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14094.7 2.461.58

N-Nitrosodi-n-propylamine mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14091.4 3.521.52

Pentachloronitrobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14075.0 10.21.25

Pentachlorophenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3030-13065.9 10.71.10

Phenanthrene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14082.8 3.911.38

Phenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3030-13074.8 0.1871.25

Pyrene mg/Kg wet0.17 1.67 3040-14082.5 4.551.37

Pyridine mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3030-14048.4 0.618 �0.806

1,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14070.5 4.171.18

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3040-14068.5 2.591.14

2,4,5-Trichlorophenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3030-13074.0 3.971.23

2,4,6-Trichlorophenol mg/Kg wet0.34 1.67 3030-13073.8 5.381.23

mg/Kg wet 6.67 30-130Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 80.45.36

mg/Kg wet 6.67 30-130Surrogate: Phenol-d6 87.75.85

mg/Kg wet 3.33 30-130Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 79.32.64

mg/Kg wet 3.33 30-130Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 82.52.75

mg/Kg wet 6.67 30-130Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 63.74.24

mg/Kg wet 3.33 30-130Surrogate: p-Terphenyl-d14 79.32.64

Matrix Spike (B353275-MS1) Prepared: 09/27/23  Analyzed: 09/30/23 Source: 23I0963-04

Acenaphthene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14080.61.67 ND

Acenaphthylene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14080.61.67 ND

Acetophenone mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14081.91.69 ND

Aniline mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14061.41.27 ND

Anthracene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14084.01.74 ND

Benzidine mg/Kg dry0.82 2.07 V-04, V-0540-14056.01.16 ND

Benzo(a)anthracene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14080.21.66 ND

Benzo(a)pyrene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14081.61.69 ND

Benzo(b)fluoranthene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14077.81.61 ND

Benzo(g,h,i)perylene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14085.51.77 ND

Benzo(k)fluoranthene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14091.41.89 ND

Benzoic Acid mg/Kg dry1.2 2.07 40-14085.21.76 ND

Bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14086.11.78 ND

Bis(2-chloroethyl)ether mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 V-0640-14094.91.96 ND

Page 84 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 198



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B353275 - SW-846 3546

Matrix Spike (B353275-MS1) Prepared: 09/27/23  Analyzed: 09/30/23 Source: 23I0963-04

Bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 V-0640-1401282.65 ND

Bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 V-0640-1401012.09 ND

4-Bromophenylphenylether mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14076.71.59 ND

Butylbenzylphthalate mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14088.51.83 ND

Carbazole mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14087.51.81 ND

4-Chloroaniline mg/Kg dry0.82 2.07 40-14060.91.26 ND

4-Chloro-3-methylphenol mg/Kg dry0.82 2.07 30-13078.81.63 ND

2-Chloronaphthalene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14066.21.37 ND

2-Chlorophenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 30-13076.21.57 ND

4-Chlorophenylphenylether mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14072.71.50 ND

Chrysene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14080.51.66 ND

Dibenz(a,h)anthracene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14084.91.75 ND

Dibenzofuran mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14079.91.65 ND

Di-n-butylphthalate mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14092.51.91 ND

1,2-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14073.81.52 ND

1,3-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14070.91.46 ND

1,4-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14071.31.47 ND

3,3-Dichlorobenzidine mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14070.61.46 ND

2,4-Dichlorophenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 30-13077.51.60 ND

Diethylphthalate mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14071.81.48 ND

2,4-Dimethylphenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 30-13073.61.52 ND

Dimethylphthalate mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14075.21.55 ND

4,6-Dinitro-2-methylphenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 30-13090.71.87 ND

2,4-Dinitrophenol mg/Kg dry0.82 2.07 30-13070.11.45 ND

2,4-Dinitrotoluene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14073.61.52 ND

2,6-Dinitrotoluene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14077.61.60 ND

Di-n-octylphthalate mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 V-0640-1401242.56 ND

1,2-Diphenylhydrazine/Azobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14093.01.92 ND

Fluoranthene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14089.11.84 ND

Fluorene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14074.81.55 ND

Hexachlorobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14076.41.58 ND

Hexachlorobutadiene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14073.31.52 ND

Hexachlorocyclopentadiene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 MS-07A, V-0530-13029.2 *0.603 ND

Hexachloroethane mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14070.41.45 ND

Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-1401002.07 ND

Isophorone mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14089.31.85 ND

1-Methylnaphthalene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14076.61.58 ND

2-Methylnaphthalene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14080.51.66 ND

2-Methylphenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 30-13080.31.66 ND

3/4-Methylphenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 30-13086.31.78 ND

Naphthalene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14079.71.65 ND

2-Nitroaniline mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14084.81.75 ND

3-Nitroaniline mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14070.11.45 ND

4-Nitroaniline mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14072.21.49 ND

Nitrobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14079.31.64 ND

2-Nitrophenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 30-13078.01.61 ND

4-Nitrophenol mg/Kg dry0.82 2.07 30-13069.31.43 ND

N-Nitrosodimethylamine mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14077.51.60 ND

N-Nitrosodiphenylamine/Diphenylamine mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14092.61.91 ND

N-Nitrosodi-n-propylamine mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14087.81.82 ND

Pentachloronitrobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14077.61.60 ND

Pentachlorophenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 30-13075.21.55 ND

Page 85 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 199



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B353275 - SW-846 3546

Matrix Spike (B353275-MS1) Prepared: 09/27/23  Analyzed: 09/30/23 Source: 23I0963-04

Phenanthrene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14083.91.73 ND

Phenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 30-13073.51.52 ND

Pyrene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 40-14088.51.83 ND

Pyridine mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14052.81.09 ND

1,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14074.31.54 ND

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 40-14073.71.52 ND

2,4,5-Trichlorophenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 30-13076.11.57 ND

2,4,6-Trichlorophenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 30-13077.91.61 ND

mg/Kg dry 8.27 30-130Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 82.16.79

mg/Kg dry 8.27 30-130Surrogate: Phenol-d6 87.07.19

mg/Kg dry 4.13 30-130Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 80.83.34

mg/Kg dry 4.13 30-130Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 85.23.52

mg/Kg dry 8.27 30-130Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 68.75.68

mg/Kg dry 4.13 30-130Surrogate: p-Terphenyl-d14 86.43.57

Matrix Spike Dup (B353275-MSD1) Prepared: 09/27/23  Analyzed: 09/30/23 Source: 23I0963-04

Acenaphthene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14083.7 3.751.73 ND

Acenaphthylene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14083.6 3.681.73 ND

Acetophenone mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14085.5 4.351.77 ND

Aniline mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14071.2 14.71.47 ND

Anthracene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14087.3 3.921.81 ND

Benzidine mg/Kg dry0.82 2.07 30 V-04, V-0540-14060.3 7.461.25 ND

Benzo(a)anthracene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14082.5 2.801.71 ND

Benzo(a)pyrene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14084.3 3.281.74 ND

Benzo(b)fluoranthene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14089.6 14.11.85 ND

Benzo(g,h,i)perylene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14084.8 0.8221.75 ND

Benzo(k)fluoranthene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14095.2 4.091.97 ND

Benzoic Acid mg/Kg dry1.2 2.07 3040-14085.0 0.2351.76 ND

Bis(2-chloroethoxy)methane mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14091.7 6.301.89 ND

Bis(2-chloroethyl)ether mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 30 V-0640-140104 8.732.14 ND

Bis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 30 MS-07A, V-0640-140143 10.7*2.95 ND

Bis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 30 V-0640-140107 5.642.21 ND

4-Bromophenylphenylether mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14078.0 1.631.61 ND

Butylbenzylphthalate mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14093.1 5.131.92 ND

Carbazole mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14090.0 2.821.86 ND

4-Chloroaniline mg/Kg dry0.82 2.07 3040-14065.9 7.851.36 ND

4-Chloro-3-methylphenol mg/Kg dry0.82 2.07 3030-13083.7 6.031.73 ND

2-Chloronaphthalene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14068.9 4.091.42 ND

2-Chlorophenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3030-13080.0 4.971.65 ND

4-Chlorophenylphenylether mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14074.4 2.311.54 ND

Chrysene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14083.3 3.421.72 ND

Dibenz(a,h)anthracene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14084.6 0.4011.75 ND

Dibenzofuran mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14082.6 3.371.71 ND

Di-n-butylphthalate mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14096.1 3.731.99 ND

1,2-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14076.2 3.251.57 ND

1,3-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14074.3 4.741.54 ND

1,4-Dichlorobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14074.0 3.771.53 ND

3,3-Dichlorobenzidine mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14078.5 10.61.62 ND

2,4-Dichlorophenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3030-13078.3 0.9501.62 ND

Diethylphthalate mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14075.8 5.391.57 ND

2,4-Dimethylphenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3030-13075.4 2.361.56 ND

Dimethylphthalate mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14079.4 5.331.64 ND

Page 86 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 200



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Semivolatile Organic Compounds by GC/MS - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B353275 - SW-846 3546

Matrix Spike Dup (B353275-MSD1) Prepared: 09/27/23  Analyzed: 09/30/23 Source: 23I0963-04

4,6-Dinitro-2-methylphenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3030-13094.0 3.571.94 ND

2,4-Dinitrophenol mg/Kg dry0.82 2.07 3030-13067.5 3.871.39 ND

2,4-Dinitrotoluene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14076.4 3.741.58 ND

2,6-Dinitrotoluene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14081.9 5.391.69 ND

Di-n-octylphthalate mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 30 V-0640-140130 4.962.69 ND

1,2-Diphenylhydrazine/Azobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-140102 9.072.10 ND

Fluoranthene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14091.4 2.481.89 ND

Fluorene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14078.2 4.421.62 ND

Hexachlorobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14077.1 0.8601.59 ND

Hexachlorobutadiene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14072.8 0.6841.51 ND

Hexachlorocyclopentadiene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 30 V-0530-13031.0 6.120.641 ND

Hexachloroethane mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14074.6 5.901.54 ND

Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14099.1 1.122.05 ND

Isophorone mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14093.9 5.001.94 ND

1-Methylnaphthalene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14078.6 2.501.62 ND

2-Methylnaphthalene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14083.0 3.081.71 ND

2-Methylphenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3030-13084.3 4.861.74 ND

3/4-Methylphenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3030-13088.4 2.311.83 ND

Naphthalene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14082.5 3.381.70 ND

2-Nitroaniline mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14093.9 10.11.94 ND

3-Nitroaniline mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14076.6 8.861.58 ND

4-Nitroaniline mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14077.5 7.081.60 ND

Nitrobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14085.3 7.221.76 ND

2-Nitrophenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3030-13080.3 2.981.66 ND

4-Nitrophenol mg/Kg dry0.82 2.07 3030-13073.7 6.151.52 ND

N-Nitrosodimethylamine mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14085.7 10.01.77 ND

N-Nitrosodiphenylamine/Diphenylamine mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14097.0 4.622.01 ND

N-Nitrosodi-n-propylamine mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14095.3 8.151.97 ND

Pentachloronitrobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14078.0 0.5401.61 ND

Pentachlorophenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3030-13075.1 0.1331.55 ND

Phenanthrene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14086.7 3.311.79 ND

Phenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3030-13078.3 6.401.62 ND

Pyrene mg/Kg dry0.21 2.07 3040-14090.7 2.411.87 ND

Pyridine mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14055.3 4.591.14 ND

1,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14076.4 2.761.58 ND

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3040-14074.5 1.161.54 ND

2,4,5-Trichlorophenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3030-13079.3 4.091.64 ND

2,4,6-Trichlorophenol mg/Kg dry0.42 2.07 3030-13079.6 2.211.65 ND

mg/Kg dry 8.27 30-130Surrogate: 2-Fluorophenol 85.47.06

mg/Kg dry 8.27 30-130Surrogate: Phenol-d6 91.37.55

mg/Kg dry 4.13 30-130Surrogate: Nitrobenzene-d5 86.03.55

mg/Kg dry 4.13 30-130Surrogate: 2-Fluorobiphenyl 87.23.60

mg/Kg dry 8.27 30-130Surrogate: 2,4,6-Tribromophenol 69.95.78

mg/Kg dry 4.13 30-130Surrogate: p-Terphenyl-d14 87.53.62

Page 87 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 201



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

[TOC_2]Polychlorinated Biphenyls with 3540 Soxhlet Extraction[TOC]

Batch B351933 - SW-846 3540C
[TOC_3]B351933[TOC]

Blank (B351933-BLK1) Prepared: 09/14/23  Analyzed: 09/19/23 

Aroclor-1016 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1016 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1221 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1221 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1232 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1232 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1242 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1242 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1248 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1248 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1254 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1254 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1260 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1260 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1262 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1262 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1268 mg/Kg wet0.020ND

Aroclor-1268 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020ND

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Decachlorobiphenyl 95.00.190

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Decachlorobiphenyl [2C] 87.20.174

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Tetrachloro-m-xylene 89.00.178

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2C] 84.20.168

LCS (B351933-BS1) Prepared: 09/14/23  Analyzed: 09/19/23 

Aroclor-1016 mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 40-14083.70.17

Aroclor-1016 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 40-14084.20.17

Aroclor-1260 mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 40-14079.40.16

Aroclor-1260 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 40-14075.10.15

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Decachlorobiphenyl 92.80.186

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Decachlorobiphenyl [2C] 87.90.176

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Tetrachloro-m-xylene 90.80.182

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2C] 89.60.179

LCS Dup (B351933-BSD1) Prepared: 09/14/23  Analyzed: 09/19/23 

Aroclor-1016 mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 3040-14084.6 1.060.17

Aroclor-1016 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 3040-14086.5 2.640.17

Aroclor-1260 mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 3040-14084.8 6.530.17

Aroclor-1260 [2C] mg/Kg wet0.020 0.200 3040-14079.9 6.200.16

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Decachlorobiphenyl 94.00.188

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Decachlorobiphenyl [2C] 91.00.182

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Tetrachloro-m-xylene 94.50.189

mg/Kg wet 0.200 30-150Surrogate: Tetrachloro-m-xylene [2C] 93.20.186

Page 88 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 202



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Metals Analyses (Total) - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

[TOC_2]Metals Analyses (Total)[TOC]

Batch B351913 - SW-846 7471
[TOC_3]B351913[TOC]

Blank (B351913-BLK1) Prepared: 09/14/23  Analyzed: 09/18/23 

Mercury mg/Kg wet0.023ND

LCS (B351913-BS1) Prepared: 09/14/23  Analyzed: 09/18/23 

Mercury mg/Kg wet3.7 25.6 67.2-132.897.124.9

LCS Dup (B351913-BSD1) Prepared: 09/14/23  Analyzed: 09/18/23 

Mercury mg/Kg wet3.7 25.6 2067.2-132.886.1 12.022.0

Batch B352185 - SW-846 7471
[TOC_3]B352185[TOC]

Blank (B352185-BLK1) Prepared: 09/18/23  Analyzed: 09/19/23 

Mercury mg/Kg wet0.024ND

LCS (B352185-BS1) Prepared: 09/18/23  Analyzed: 09/19/23 

Mercury mg/Kg wet3.7 25.6 67.2-132.899.225.4

LCS Dup (B352185-BSD1) Prepared: 09/18/23  Analyzed: 09/19/23 

Mercury mg/Kg wet3.7 25.6 2067.2-132.8110 10.428.2

Batch B352500 - SW-846 3050B
[TOC_3]B352500[TOC]

Blank (B352500-BLK1) Prepared: 09/15/23  Analyzed: 09/19/23 

Antimony mg/Kg wet1.6ND

Arsenic mg/Kg wet3.2ND

Barium mg/Kg wet1.6ND

Beryllium mg/Kg wet0.16ND

Cadmium mg/Kg wet0.32ND

Chromium mg/Kg wet0.65ND

Copper mg/Kg wet0.65ND

Lead mg/Kg wet0.49ND

Nickel mg/Kg wet0.65ND

Silver mg/Kg wet0.32ND

Thallium mg/Kg wet1.6ND

Zinc mg/Kg wet0.65ND

Blank (B352500-BLK2) Prepared: 09/15/23  Analyzed: 09/20/23 

Selenium mg/Kg wet3.2ND

LCS (B352500-BS1) Prepared: 09/15/23  Analyzed: 09/19/23 

Antimony mg/Kg wet4.7 144 6.3-193.873.0105

Arsenic mg/Kg wet9.4 180 81.1-119.499.2179

Barium mg/Kg wet4.7 354 81.6-118.1105373

Beryllium mg/Kg wet0.47 152 82.9-117.8105159

Cadmium mg/Kg wet0.94 105 82.8-118.1108113

Chromium mg/Kg wet1.9 232 81.5-118.5108251

Copper mg/Kg wet1.9 124 83.1-116.9111138

Lead mg/Kg wet1.4 145 82.1-117.9104150

Nickel mg/Kg wet1.9 108 85.2-117.6108116

Silver mg/Kg wet0.94 47.3 79.5-120.511956.4

Thallium mg/Kg wet4.7 172 80.8-118.6105180

Zinc mg/Kg wet1.9 369 80.2-120.1105386

Page 89 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 203



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Result Limit

Reporting

Units Level

Spike

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Notes  Analyte

Metals Analyses (Total) - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

Batch B352500 - SW-846 3050B

LCS (B352500-BS2) Prepared: 09/15/23  Analyzed: 09/20/23 

Selenium mg/Kg wet9.4 96.3 78.8-121.595.391.7

LCS Dup (B352500-BSD1) Prepared: 09/15/23  Analyzed: 09/19/23 

Antimony mg/Kg wet4.9 144 306.3-193.872.0 1.44104

Arsenic mg/Kg wet9.8 180 3081.1-119.495.8 3.48172

Barium mg/Kg wet4.9 354 2081.6-118.1105 0.237372

Beryllium mg/Kg wet0.49 152 3082.9-117.8104 0.422159

Cadmium mg/Kg wet0.98 105 2082.8-118.1105 2.84110

Chromium mg/Kg wet2.0 232 3081.5-118.5106 2.02246

Copper mg/Kg wet2.0 124 3083.1-116.9110 1.11136

Lead mg/Kg wet1.5 145 3082.1-117.9100 3.01146

Nickel mg/Kg wet2.0 108 3085.2-117.6105 2.42114

Silver mg/Kg wet0.98 47.3 3079.5-120.5117 1.7255.5

Thallium mg/Kg wet4.9 172 3080.8-118.6101 3.92173

Zinc mg/Kg wet2.0 369 3080.2-120.1103 1.78379

LCS Dup (B352500-BSD2) Prepared: 09/15/23  Analyzed: 09/20/23 

Selenium mg/Kg wet9.8 96.3 3078.8-121.591.9 3.6388.5

Reference (B352500-SRM1) MRL Check Prepared: 09/15/23  Analyzed: 09/19/23 

Lead mg/Kg wet0.48 0.480 80-1201140.547

Page 90 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 204



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

IDENTIFICATION SUMMARY

FOR SINGLE COMPONENT ANALYTES LCS

SW-846 8082A

Lab Sample ID: Date(s) Analyzed:B351933-BS1

Instrument ID (1):

GC Column (1): ID: (mm) (mm)ID:GC Column (2):

ECD11 Instrument ID (2): ECD11

09/19/2023 09/19/2023

ANALYTE CONCENTRATION %RPDCOL RT
RT WINDOW

FROM TO

Aroclor-1016 1 0.000 -0.030 0.030 0.17

0.170.030-0.0300.0002 0.0

Aroclor-1260 1 0.000 -0.030 0.030 0.16

0.150.030-0.0300.0002 6.5

[TOC_1]Dual Column RPD Report[TOC]

Page 91 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 205



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

IDENTIFICATION SUMMARY

FOR SINGLE COMPONENT ANALYTES LCS Dup

SW-846 8082A

Lab Sample ID: Date(s) Analyzed:B351933-BSD1

Instrument ID (1):

GC Column (1): ID: (mm) (mm)ID:GC Column (2):

ECD11 Instrument ID (2): ECD11

09/19/2023 09/19/2023

ANALYTE CONCENTRATION %RPDCOL RT
RT WINDOW

FROM TO

Aroclor-1016 1 0.000 -0.030 0.030 0.17

0.170.030-0.0300.0002 0.0

Aroclor-1260 1 0.000 -0.030 0.030 0.17

0.160.030-0.0300.0002 6.1

Page 92 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 206



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

FLAG/QUALIFIER SUMMARY

* QC result is outside of established limits.

� Wide recovery limits established for difficult compound.

� Wide RPD limits established for difficult compound.

# Data exceeded client recommended or regulatory level 

Percent recoveries and relative percent differences (RPDs) are determined by the software using values in the 

calculation which have not been rounded.

No results have been blank subtracted unless specified in the case narrative section.

RL Reporting Limit is at the level of quantitation (LOQ)

DL Detection Limit is the lower limit of detection determined by the MDL study

MCL Maximum Contaminant Level

ND Not Detected

Sample was extracted past the recommended holding time.H-06

Either laboratory fortified blank/laboratory control sample or duplicate recovery is outside of control limits, but 

the other is within limits. RPD between the two LFB/LCS results is within method specified criteria.

L-07

Matrix spike and spike duplicate recovery is outside of control limits.  Analysis is in control based on laboratory 

fortified blank recovery. Possibility of matrix effects that lead to low bias or non-homogeneous sample aliquot 

cannot be eliminated.

MS-07A

Initial calibration did not meet method specifications.  Compound was calibrated using a response factor where 

%RSD is outside of method specified criteria. Reported result is estimated.

V-04

Continuing calibration verification (CCV) did not meet method specifications and was biased on the low side for 

this compound.

V-05

Continuing calibration verification (CCV) did not meet method specifications and was biased on the high side for 

this compound.

V-06

Initial calibration verification (ICV) did not meet method specifications and was biased on the low side for this 

compound. Reported result is estimated.

V-34

Initial calibration verification (ICV) did not meet method specifications and was biased on the high side for this 

compound. Reported result is estimated.

V-35

[TOC_1]Flag/Qualifier Summary[TOC]

Page 93 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 207



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CertificationsAnalyte

CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Analyses included in this Report

SW-846 6010D in Soil

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCAntimony

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCArsenic

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCBarium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCBeryllium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCCadmium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCChromium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCCopper

CT,NH,NY,AIHA,ME,VA,NCLead

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCNickel

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCSelenium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCSilver

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCThallium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCZinc

SW-846 6010D in Water

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCAntimony

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,RI,NCArsenic

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCBarium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCBeryllium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCCadmium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCChromium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCCopper

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCLead

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCNickel

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCSelenium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCSilver

CT,NH,NY,VA,NCThallium

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA,NCZinc

SW-846 7471B in Soil

CT,NH,NY,NC,ME,VAMercury

SW-846 8082A in Soil

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1016

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1016 [2C]

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1221

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1221 [2C]

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1232

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1232 [2C]

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1242

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1242 [2C]

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1248

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1248 [2C]

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1254

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1254 [2C]

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1260

CT,NH,NY,ME,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1260 [2C]

NY,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1262

NY,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1262 [2C]

[TOC_1]Certifications[TOC]

Page 94 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 208



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CertificationsAnalyte

CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Analyses included in this Report

SW-846 8082A in Soil

NY,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1268

NY,NC,VA,PAAroclor-1268 [2C]

SW-846 8260D in Soil

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAAcetone

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAAcrylonitrile

CT,NH,NY,ME,VABenzene

NH,NY,ME,VABromobenzene

NH,NY,ME,VABromochloromethane

CT,NH,NY,ME,VABromodichloromethane

CT,NH,NY,ME,VABromoform

CT,NH,NY,ME,VABromomethane

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA2-Butanone (MEK)

NY,MEtert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA)

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAn-Butylbenzene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAsec-Butylbenzene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAtert-Butylbenzene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VACarbon Disulfide

CT,NH,NY,ME,VACarbon Tetrachloride

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAChlorobenzene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAChlorodibromomethane

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAChloroethane

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAChloroform

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAChloromethane

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA2-Chlorotoluene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA4-Chlorotoluene

NY,ME1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)

NH,NY1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

NH,NY,ME,VADibromomethane

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA1,2-Dichlorobenzene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA1,3-Dichlorobenzene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA1,4-Dichlorobenzene

NY,MEtrans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene

NH,NY,ME,VADichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA1,1-Dichloroethane

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA1,2-Dichloroethane

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA1,1-Dichloroethylene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAcis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAtrans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA1,2-Dichloropropane

NH,NY,ME,VA1,3-Dichloropropane

NH,NY,ME,VA2,2-Dichloropropane

NH,NY,ME,VA1,1-Dichloropropene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAcis-1,3-Dichloropropene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAtrans-1,3-Dichloropropene

MEDiethyl Ether

NY,ME1,4-Dioxane

Page 95 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 209



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CertificationsAnalyte

CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Analyses included in this Report

SW-846 8260D in Soil

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAEthylbenzene

NH,NY,ME,VAHexachlorobutadiene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA2-Hexanone (MBK)

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAIsopropylbenzene (Cumene)

NH,NYp-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene)

NY,MEMethyl Acetate

NY,ME,VAMethyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

NYMethyl Cyclohexane

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAMethylene Chloride

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

NH,NY,ME,VANaphthalene

NH,NY,MEn-Propylbenzene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAStyrene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

CT,NH,NY,ME,VATetrachloroethylene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAToluene

NY,ME1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

NH,NY,ME,VA1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ME1,3,5-Trichlorobenzene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA1,1,1-Trichloroethane

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA1,1,2-Trichloroethane

CT,NH,NY,ME,VATrichloroethylene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VATrichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

NH,NY,ME,VA1,2,3-Trichloropropane

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VA1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAVinyl Chloride

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAm+p Xylene

CT,NH,NY,ME,VAo-Xylene

SW-846 8260D in Water

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYAcetone

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYAcrylonitrile

ME,NH,VA,NYtert-Amyl Methyl Ether (TAME)

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYBenzene

ME,NYBromobenzene

ME,NH,VA,NYBromochloromethane

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYBromodichloromethane

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYBromoform

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYBromomethane

CT,ME,NH,VA,NY2-Butanone (MEK)

ME,NH,VA,NYtert-Butyl Alcohol (TBA)

ME,VA,NYn-Butylbenzene

ME,VA,NYsec-Butylbenzene

ME,VA,NYtert-Butylbenzene

ME,NH,VA,NYtert-Butyl Ethyl Ether (TBEE)

Page 96 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 210



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CertificationsAnalyte

CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Analyses included in this Report

SW-846 8260D in Water

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYCarbon Disulfide

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYCarbon Tetrachloride

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYChlorobenzene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYChlorodibromomethane

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYChloroethane

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYChloroform

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYChloromethane

ME,NH,VA,NY2-Chlorotoluene

ME,NH,VA,NY4-Chlorotoluene

ME,NY1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (DBCP)

ME,NY1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

ME,NH,VA,NYDibromomethane

CT,ME,NH,VA,NY1,2-Dichlorobenzene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NY1,3-Dichlorobenzene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NY1,4-Dichlorobenzene

ME,NH,VA,NYtrans-1,4-Dichloro-2-butene

ME,NH,VA,NYDichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

CT,ME,NH,VA,NY1,1-Dichloroethane

CT,ME,NH,VA,NY1,2-Dichloroethane

CT,ME,NH,VA,NY1,1-Dichloroethylene

ME,NYcis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYtrans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NY1,2-Dichloropropane

ME,VA,NY1,3-Dichloropropane

ME,NH,VA,NY2,2-Dichloropropane

ME,NH,VA,NY1,1-Dichloropropene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYcis-1,3-Dichloropropene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYtrans-1,3-Dichloropropene

ME,NYDiethyl Ether

ME,NH,VA,NYDiisopropyl Ether (DIPE)

ME,NY1,4-Dioxane

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYEthylbenzene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYHexachlorobutadiene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NY2-Hexanone (MBK)

ME,VA,NYIsopropylbenzene (Cumene)

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYp-Isopropyltoluene (p-Cymene)

ME,NYMethyl Acetate

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYMethyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

NYMethyl Cyclohexane

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYMethylene Chloride

CT,ME,NH,VA,NY4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

ME,NH,VA,NYNaphthalene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYn-Propylbenzene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYStyrene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NY1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane

CT,ME,NH,VA,NY1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYTetrachloroethylene

Page 97 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 211



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CertificationsAnalyte

CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Analyses included in this Report

SW-846 8260D in Water

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYToluene

ME,NH,VA,NY1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NY1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

ME1,3,5-Trichlorobenzene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NY1,1,1-Trichloroethane

CT,ME,NH,VA,NY1,1,2-Trichloroethane

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYTrichloroethylene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYTrichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

ME,NH,VA,NY1,2,3-Trichloropropane

VA,NY1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (Freon 113)

ME,VA,NY1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

ME,VA,NY1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYVinyl Chloride

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYm+p Xylene

CT,ME,NH,VA,NYo-Xylene

SW-846 8270E in Soil

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAAcenaphthene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAAcenaphthylene

NY,NH,ME,NC,VAAcetophenone

NY,NH,ME,NC,VAAniline

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAAnthracene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VABenzidine

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VABenzo(a)anthracene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VABenzo(a)pyrene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VABenzo(b)fluoranthene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VABenzo(g,h,i)perylene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VABenzo(k)fluoranthene

NY,NH,ME,NC,VABenzoic Acid

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VABis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VABis(2-chloroethyl)ether

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VABis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VABis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA4-Bromophenylphenylether

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAButylbenzylphthalate

NCCarbazole

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA4-Chloroaniline

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA4-Chloro-3-methylphenol

CT,NY,NH,NC,VA2-Chloronaphthalene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA2-Chlorophenol

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA4-Chlorophenylphenylether

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAChrysene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VADibenz(a,h)anthracene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VADibenzofuran

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VADi-n-butylphthalate

NY,NH,ME,NC,VA1,2-Dichlorobenzene

NY,NH,ME,NC,VA1,3-Dichlorobenzene

Page 98 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 212



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CertificationsAnalyte

CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Analyses included in this Report

SW-846 8270E in Soil

NY,NH,ME,NC,VA1,4-Dichlorobenzene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA3,3-Dichlorobenzidine

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA2,4-Dichlorophenol

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VADiethylphthalate

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA2,4-Dimethylphenol

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VADimethylphthalate

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA4,6-Dinitro-2-methylphenol

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA2,4-Dinitrophenol

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA2,4-Dinitrotoluene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA2,6-Dinitrotoluene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VADi-n-octylphthalate

NY,NH,ME,NC,VA1,2-Diphenylhydrazine/Azobenzene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAFluoranthene

NY,NH,ME,NC,VAFluorene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAHexachlorobenzene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAHexachlorobutadiene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAHexachlorocyclopentadiene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAHexachloroethane

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAIsophorone

NC1-Methylnaphthalene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA2-Methylnaphthalene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA2-Methylphenol

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA3/4-Methylphenol

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VANaphthalene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA2-Nitroaniline

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA3-Nitroaniline

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA4-Nitroaniline

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VANitrobenzene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA2-Nitrophenol

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA4-Nitrophenol

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAN-Nitrosodimethylamine

NYN-Nitrosodiphenylamine/Diphenylamine

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAN-Nitrosodi-n-propylamine

NY,NCPentachloronitrobenzene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAPentachlorophenol

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAPhenanthrene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAPhenol

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAPyrene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VAPyridine

NY,NC1,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA2,4,5-Trichlorophenol

CT,NY,NH,ME,NC,VA2,4,6-Trichlorophenol

NC2-Fluorophenol

SW-846 8270E in Water

Page 99 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 213



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CertificationsAnalyte

CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Analyses included in this Report

SW-846 8270E in Water

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAAcenaphthene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAAcenaphthylene

NY,NCAcetophenone

CT,NY,NC,ME,VAAniline

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAAnthracene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VABenzidine

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VABenzo(a)anthracene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VABenzo(a)pyrene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VABenzo(b)fluoranthene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VABenzo(g,h,i)perylene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VABenzo(k)fluoranthene

NY,NC,ME,NH,VABenzoic Acid

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VABis(2-chloroethoxy)methane

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VABis(2-chloroethyl)ether

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VABis(2-chloroisopropyl)ether

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VABis(2-Ethylhexyl)phthalate

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA4-Bromophenylphenylether

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAButylbenzylphthalate

NCCarbazole

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA4-Chloroaniline

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA4-Chloro-3-methylphenol

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA2-Chloronaphthalene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA2-Chlorophenol

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA4-Chlorophenylphenylether

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAChrysene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VADibenz(a,h)anthracene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VADibenzofuran

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VADi-n-butylphthalate

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA1,2-Dichlorobenzene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA1,3-Dichlorobenzene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA1,4-Dichlorobenzene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA3,3-Dichlorobenzidine

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA2,4-Dichlorophenol

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VADiethylphthalate

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA2,4-Dimethylphenol

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VADimethylphthalate

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA4,6-Dinitro-2-methylphenol

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA2,4-Dinitrophenol

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA2,4-Dinitrotoluene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA2,6-Dinitrotoluene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VADi-n-octylphthalate

NY,NC1,2-Diphenylhydrazine/Azobenzene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAFluoranthene

NY,NC,ME,NH,VAFluorene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAHexachlorobenzene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAHexachlorobutadiene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAHexachlorocyclopentadiene

Page 100 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 214



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CertificationsAnalyte

CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Analyses included in this Report

SW-846 8270E in Water

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAHexachloroethane

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAIsophorone

NC1-Methylnaphthalene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA2-Methylnaphthalene

CT,NY,NC,NH,VA2-Methylphenol

CT,NY,NC,NH,VA3/4-Methylphenol

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VANaphthalene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA2-Nitroaniline

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA3-Nitroaniline

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA4-Nitroaniline

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VANitrobenzene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA2-Nitrophenol

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA4-Nitrophenol

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAN-Nitrosodimethylamine

NYN-Nitrosodiphenylamine/Diphenylamine

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAN-Nitrosodi-n-propylamine

NCPentachloronitrobenzene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAPentachlorophenol

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAPhenanthrene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAPhenol

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAPyrene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VAPyridine

NY,NC1,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA2,4,5-Trichlorophenol

CT,NY,NC,ME,NH,VA2,4,6-Trichlorophenol

NC2-Fluorophenol

Con-Test, a Pace Environmental Laboratory, operates under the following certifications and accreditations:

Code Description Number Expires

100033AIHA-LAP, LLC - ISO 17025:2017AIHA 03/1/2024

PH-0821Connecticut Department of Public HealthCT 12/31/2024

10899 NELAPNew York State Department of HealthNY 04/1/2024

2516 NELAPNew Hampshire Environmental LabNH 02/5/2024

LAO00373Rhode Island Department of HealthRI 12/30/2023

652North Carolina Div. of Water QualityNC 12/31/2023

MA00100State of MaineME 06/9/2025

460217Commonwealth of VirginiaVA 12/14/2023

68-05812Commonwealth of Pennsylvania DEPPA 06/30/2024

Page 101 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 215



Page 102 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 216



Page 103 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 217



Page 104 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 218



Page 105 of 105

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 219



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

September 18, 2023       

Lee Rosberg

Weston & Sampson - Waterbury, VT

98 South Main Street

Waterbury, VT 05676

Project Location: Northfield, VT

Client Job Number: 

Project Number: 00142205 - 11 N Main Street

Laboratory Work Order Number: 23I1186

Enclosed are results of analyses for samples as received by the laboratory on September 8, 2023. If you have any questions 

concerning this report, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

Rebecca Faust

Project Manager

Page 1 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 220



Table of Contents

     Sample Summary     3

     Case Narrative     4

     Sample Results     6

     Sample Preparation Information    16

     QC Data    17

          Air Toxics by EPA Compendium Methods    17

               B352252    17

     Flag/Qualifier Summary    20

     Internal standard Area & RT Summary    21

     Continuing Calibration Check    23

     Certifications    25

     Chain of Custody/Sample Receipt    27

Page 2 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 221



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

ANALYTICAL SUMMARY

9/18/2023

Weston & Sampson - Waterbury, VT

98 South Main Street

Waterbury, VT 05676

ATTN: Lee Rosberg

00142205 - 11 N Main Street

23I1186

The results of analyses performed on the following samples submitted to CON-TEST, a Pace Analytical Laboratory, are found in this report.

PROJECT LOCATION:

PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER:

PROJECT NUMBER:

REPORT DATE:

WORK ORDER NUMBER:

FIELD SAMPLE # LAB ID: MATRIX TESTSAMPLE DESCRIPTION SUB LAB

Northfield, VT

SG-1 23I1186-01 Soil Gas -

EPA TO-15

SG-2 23I1186-02 Soil Gas -

EPA TO-15

SG-3 23I1186-03 Soil Gas -

EPA TO-15

SG-4 23I1186-04 Soil Gas -

EPA TO-15

DUP-3 23I1186-05 Soil Gas -

EPA TO-15

[TOC_1]Sample Summary[TOC]

Page 3 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 222



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CASE NARRATIVE SUMMARY

All reported results are within defined laboratory quality control objectives unless listed below or otherwise qualified in this report.

[TOC_1]Case Narrative[TOC]

EPA TO-15

Qualifications:

Analyte is found in the associated laboratory blank as well as in the sample.

Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

B

1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

B352252-BLK1

Laboratory fortified blank/laboratory control sample recovery outside of control limits.  Data validation is not affected since all results are "not 

detected" for all samples in this batch for this compound and bias is on the high side.
Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

L-01

Hexachlorobutadiene

B352252-BS1

Laboratory fortified blank/laboratory control sample recovery is outside of control limits.  Reported value for this compound is likely to be 

biased on the high side.
Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

L-05

Naphthalene

B352252-BS1

Elevated reporting limit due to high concentration of target compounds.

Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

RL-11

23I1186-04[SG-4]

Continuing calibration verification (CCV) did not meet method specifications and was biased on the high side.  Data validation is not affected 

since sample result was "not detected" for this compound.
Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

V-20

1,3-Dichlorobenzene

B352252-BS1, S093501-CCV1

Hexachlorobutadiene

B352252-BS1, S093501-CCV1

Calibrations RSD for this compound is >30% but <40%.

Analyte & Samples(s) Qualified:

Z-01

Naphthalene

23I1186-01[SG-1], 23I1186-02[SG-2], 23I1186-03[SG-3], 23I1186-04[SG-4], 23I1186-05[DUP-3], B352252-BLK1, B352252-BS1, S093501-CCV1

Page 4 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 223



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

The results of analyses reported only relate to samples submitted to Con-Test, a Pace Analytical Laboratory, for testing.

I certify that the analyses listed above, unless specifically listed as subcontracted, if any, were performed under my direction according to the approved methodologies listed 

in this document, and that based upon my inquiry of those individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the information, the material contained in this report is, to the 

best of my knowledge and belief, accurate and complete.

Meghan E. Kelley

Reporting Specialist

Page 5 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 224



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

[TOC_1]Sample Results[TOC]

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Project Location: Northfield, VT

Date Received: 9/8/2023

Work Order: 23I1186Sample Description/Location: 

Field Sample #: SG-1

Sample ID: 23I1186-01

Sample Matrix: Soil Gas

Initial Vacuum(in Hg): -29

Final Vacuum(in Hg): -4

Receipt Vacuum(in Hg): -5.8

Sampled: 9/7/2023  09:12

Canister ID: 1967

Flow Controller ID: 4090 

Sub Description/Location: 

Canister Size: 6 liter

Flow Controller Type: Fixed-Orifice

Flow Controller Calibration

RPD Pre and Post-Sampling: 

Sample Type: 30 min

RLResults AnalystAnalyzedDilutionFlag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

EPA TO-15

ppbv ug/m3

Acetone 120 9/13/23   0:19 CMR280 4198.0

Benzene 0.22 9/13/23   0:19 CMR0.69 40.640.20

Benzyl chloride ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 44.10.80

Bromodichloromethane ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 41.30.20

Bromoform ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 42.10.20

Bromomethane ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.780.20

1,3-Butadiene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.440.20

2-Butanone (MEK) 8.9 9/13/23   0:19 CMR26 4248.0

Carbon Disulfide ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 46.22.0

Carbon Tetrachloride ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 41.30.20

Chlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.920.20

Chloroethane ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.530.20

Chloroform ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.980.20

Chloromethane 0.48 9/13/23   0:19 CMR0.98 40.830.40

Cyclohexane ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.690.20

Dibromochloromethane ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 41.70.20

1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 41.50.20

1,2-Dichlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 41.20.20

1,3-Dichlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 41.20.20

1,4-Dichlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 41.20.20

Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12) 0.52 9/13/23   0:19 CMR2.6 40.990.20

1,1-Dichloroethane ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.810.20

1,2-Dichloroethane ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.810.20

1,1-Dichloroethylene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.790.20

cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.790.20

trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.790.20

1,2-Dichloropropane ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.920.20

cis-1,3-Dichloropropene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.910.20

trans-1,3-Dichloropropene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.910.20

1,2-Dichloro-1,1,2,2-tetrafluoroethane (Freon 114) ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 41.40.20

1,4-Dioxane ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 47.22.0

Ethanol ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 4158.0

Ethyl Acetate ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 47.22.0

Ethylbenzene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.870.20

4-Ethyltoluene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.980.20

Heptane ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.820.20

Hexachlorobutadiene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 42.10.20

Page 6 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 225



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Project Location: Northfield, VT

Date Received: 9/8/2023

Work Order: 23I1186Sample Description/Location: 

Field Sample #: SG-1

Sample ID: 23I1186-01

Sample Matrix: Soil Gas

Initial Vacuum(in Hg): -29

Final Vacuum(in Hg): -4

Receipt Vacuum(in Hg): -5.8

Sampled: 9/7/2023  09:12

Canister ID: 1967

Flow Controller ID: 4090 

Sub Description/Location: 

Canister Size: 6 liter

Flow Controller Type: Fixed-Orifice

Flow Controller Calibration

RPD Pre and Post-Sampling: 

Sample Type: 30 min

RLResults AnalystAnalyzedDilutionFlag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

EPA TO-15

ppbv ug/m3

Hexane ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 4288.0

2-Hexanone (MBK) ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 43.30.80

Isopropanol ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 4208.0

Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE) ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.720.20

Methylene Chloride ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 46.92.0

4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.820.20

Naphthalene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRZ-01 ND 41.00.20

Propene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 4148.0

Styrene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.850.20

1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 41.40.20

Tetrachloroethylene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 41.40.20

Tetrahydrofuran ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 45.92.0

Toluene 0.25 9/13/23   0:19 CMR0.95 40.750.20

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 41.50.20

1,1,1-Trichloroethane ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 41.10.20

1,1,2-Trichloroethane ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 41.10.20

Trichloroethylene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 41.10.20

Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11) ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 44.50.80

1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (Freon 113) ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 46.10.80

1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.980.20

1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.980.20

Vinyl Acetate ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 4144.0

Vinyl Chloride ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.510.20

m&p-Xylene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 41.70.40

o-Xylene ND 9/13/23   0:19 CMRND 40.870.20

Surrogates % Recovery % REC Limits

4-Bromofluorobenzene (1) 93.3 9/13/23   0:1970-130

Page 7 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 226



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Project Location: Northfield, VT

Date Received: 9/8/2023

Work Order: 23I1186Sample Description/Location: 

Field Sample #: SG-2

Sample ID: 23I1186-02

Sample Matrix: Soil Gas

Initial Vacuum(in Hg): -27.5

Final Vacuum(in Hg): -5

Receipt Vacuum(in Hg): -7.2

Sampled: 9/7/2023  11:24

Canister ID: 1104

Flow Controller ID: 4280 

Sub Description/Location: 

Canister Size: 6 liter

Flow Controller Type: Fixed-Orifice

Flow Controller Calibration

RPD Pre and Post-Sampling: 

Sample Type: 1 hr

RLResults AnalystAnalyzedDilutionFlag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

EPA TO-15

ppbv ug/m3

Acetone 380 9/12/23  16:56 CMR900 3014060

Benzene 1.8 9/13/23   0:43 CMR5.8 40.640.20

Benzyl chloride ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 44.10.80

Bromodichloromethane ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 41.30.20

Bromoform ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 42.10.20

Bromomethane ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.780.20

1,3-Butadiene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.440.20

2-Butanone (MEK) 9.7 9/13/23   0:43 CMR28 4248.0

Carbon Disulfide ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 46.22.0

Carbon Tetrachloride ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 41.30.20

Chlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.920.20

Chloroethane ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.530.20

Chloroform ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.980.20

Chloromethane ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.830.40

Cyclohexane ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.690.20

Dibromochloromethane ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 41.70.20

1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 41.50.20

1,2-Dichlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 41.20.20

1,3-Dichlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 41.20.20

1,4-Dichlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 41.20.20

Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12) 1.1 9/13/23   0:43 CMR5.4 40.990.20

1,1-Dichloroethane ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.810.20

1,2-Dichloroethane ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.810.20

1,1-Dichloroethylene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.790.20

cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.790.20

trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.790.20

1,2-Dichloropropane ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.920.20

cis-1,3-Dichloropropene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.910.20

trans-1,3-Dichloropropene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.910.20

1,2-Dichloro-1,1,2,2-tetrafluoroethane (Freon 114) ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 41.40.20

1,4-Dioxane ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 47.22.0

Ethanol ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 4158.0

Ethyl Acetate ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 47.22.0

Ethylbenzene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.870.20

4-Ethyltoluene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.980.20

Heptane 1.8 9/13/23   0:43 CMR7.6 40.820.20

Hexachlorobutadiene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 42.10.20

Page 8 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 227



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Project Location: Northfield, VT

Date Received: 9/8/2023

Work Order: 23I1186Sample Description/Location: 

Field Sample #: SG-2

Sample ID: 23I1186-02

Sample Matrix: Soil Gas

Initial Vacuum(in Hg): -27.5

Final Vacuum(in Hg): -5

Receipt Vacuum(in Hg): -7.2

Sampled: 9/7/2023  11:24

Canister ID: 1104

Flow Controller ID: 4280 

Sub Description/Location: 

Canister Size: 6 liter

Flow Controller Type: Fixed-Orifice

Flow Controller Calibration

RPD Pre and Post-Sampling: 

Sample Type: 1 hr

RLResults AnalystAnalyzedDilutionFlag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

EPA TO-15

ppbv ug/m3

Hexane ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 4288.0

2-Hexanone (MBK) 1.2 9/13/23   0:43 CMR5.1 43.30.80

Isopropanol ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 4208.0

Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE) ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.720.20

Methylene Chloride ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 46.92.0

4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.820.20

Naphthalene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRZ-01 ND 41.00.20

Propene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 4148.0

Styrene 0.40 9/13/23   0:43 CMR1.7 40.850.20

1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 41.40.20

Tetrachloroethylene 16 9/13/23   0:43 CMR110 41.40.20

Tetrahydrofuran ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 45.92.0

Toluene 0.90 9/13/23   0:43 CMR3.4 40.750.20

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 41.50.20

1,1,1-Trichloroethane 0.44 9/13/23   0:43 CMR2.4 41.10.20

1,1,2-Trichloroethane ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 41.10.20

Trichloroethylene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 41.10.20

Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11) ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 44.50.80

1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (Freon 113) ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 46.10.80

1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene 0.53 9/13/23   0:43 CMR2.6 40.980.20

1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.980.20

Vinyl Acetate 5.0 9/13/23   0:43 CMR18 4144.0

Vinyl Chloride ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.510.20

m&p-Xylene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 41.70.40

o-Xylene ND 9/13/23   0:43 CMRND 40.870.20

Surrogates % Recovery % REC Limits

4-Bromofluorobenzene (1) 91.6 9/12/23  16:5670-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene (1) 93.7 9/13/23   0:4370-130

Page 9 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 228



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Project Location: Northfield, VT

Date Received: 9/8/2023

Work Order: 23I1186Sample Description/Location: 

Field Sample #: SG-3

Sample ID: 23I1186-03

Sample Matrix: Soil Gas

Initial Vacuum(in Hg): -27

Final Vacuum(in Hg): -4

Receipt Vacuum(in Hg): -6.0

Sampled: 9/7/2023  10:59

Canister ID: 2483

Flow Controller ID: 4213 

Sub Description/Location: 

Canister Size: 6 liter

Flow Controller Type: Fixed-Orifice

Flow Controller Calibration

RPD Pre and Post-Sampling: 

Sample Type: 30 min

RLResults AnalystAnalyzedDilutionFlag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

EPA TO-15

ppbv ug/m3

Acetone 250 9/12/23  17:20 CMR600 3014060

Benzene 4.3 9/13/23   1:08 CMR14 40.640.20

Benzyl chloride ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 44.10.80

Bromodichloromethane ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 41.30.20

Bromoform ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 42.10.20

Bromomethane ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.780.20

1,3-Butadiene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.440.20

2-Butanone (MEK) ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 4248.0

Carbon Disulfide ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 46.22.0

Carbon Tetrachloride ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 41.30.20

Chlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.920.20

Chloroethane ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.530.20

Chloroform ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.980.20

Chloromethane 0.50 9/13/23   1:08 CMR1.0 40.830.40

Cyclohexane 6.8 9/13/23   1:08 CMR24 40.690.20

Dibromochloromethane ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 41.70.20

1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 41.50.20

1,2-Dichlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 41.20.20

1,3-Dichlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 41.20.20

1,4-Dichlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 41.20.20

Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12) 0.67 9/13/23   1:08 CMR3.3 40.990.20

1,1-Dichloroethane ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.810.20

1,2-Dichloroethane ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.810.20

1,1-Dichloroethylene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.790.20

cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.790.20

trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.790.20

1,2-Dichloropropane ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.920.20

cis-1,3-Dichloropropene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.910.20

trans-1,3-Dichloropropene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.910.20

1,2-Dichloro-1,1,2,2-tetrafluoroethane (Freon 114) ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 41.40.20

1,4-Dioxane ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 47.22.0

Ethanol ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 4158.0

Ethyl Acetate ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 47.22.0

Ethylbenzene 1.1 9/13/23   1:08 CMR4.6 40.870.20

4-Ethyltoluene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.980.20

Heptane 1.2 9/13/23   1:08 CMR5.1 40.820.20

Hexachlorobutadiene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 42.10.20

Page 10 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 229



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Project Location: Northfield, VT

Date Received: 9/8/2023

Work Order: 23I1186Sample Description/Location: 

Field Sample #: SG-3

Sample ID: 23I1186-03

Sample Matrix: Soil Gas

Initial Vacuum(in Hg): -27

Final Vacuum(in Hg): -4

Receipt Vacuum(in Hg): -6.0

Sampled: 9/7/2023  10:59

Canister ID: 2483

Flow Controller ID: 4213 

Sub Description/Location: 

Canister Size: 6 liter

Flow Controller Type: Fixed-Orifice

Flow Controller Calibration

RPD Pre and Post-Sampling: 

Sample Type: 30 min

RLResults AnalystAnalyzedDilutionFlag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

EPA TO-15

ppbv ug/m3

Hexane ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 4288.0

2-Hexanone (MBK) 0.82 9/13/23   1:08 CMR3.3 43.30.80

Isopropanol ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 4208.0

Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE) ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.720.20

Methylene Chloride ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 46.92.0

4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.820.20

Naphthalene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRZ-01 ND 41.00.20

Propene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 4148.0

Styrene 0.29 9/13/23   1:08 CMR1.2 40.850.20

1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 41.40.20

Tetrachloroethylene 4.0 9/13/23   1:08 CMR27 41.40.20

Tetrahydrofuran ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 45.92.0

Toluene 8.1 9/13/23   1:08 CMR30 40.750.20

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 41.50.20

1,1,1-Trichloroethane 0.31 9/13/23   1:08 CMR1.7 41.10.20

1,1,2-Trichloroethane ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 41.10.20

Trichloroethylene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 41.10.20

Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11) ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 44.50.80

1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (Freon 113) ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 46.10.80

1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene 0.46 9/13/23   1:08 CMR2.3 40.980.20

1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.980.20

Vinyl Acetate 6.3 9/13/23   1:08 CMR22 4144.0

Vinyl Chloride ND 9/13/23   1:08 CMRND 40.510.20

m&p-Xylene 1.8 9/13/23   1:08 CMR7.8 41.70.40

o-Xylene 1.8 9/13/23   1:08 CMR7.7 40.870.20

Surrogates % Recovery % REC Limits

4-Bromofluorobenzene (1) 85.3 9/12/23  17:2070-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene (1) 92.3 9/13/23   1:0870-130

Page 11 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 230



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Project Location: Northfield, VT

Date Received: 9/8/2023

Work Order: 23I1186Sample Description/Location: 

Field Sample #: SG-4

Sample ID: 23I1186-04

Sample Matrix: Soil Gas

Initial Vacuum(in Hg): -26

Final Vacuum(in Hg): -4

Receipt Vacuum(in Hg): -7.0

Sampled: 9/7/2023  08:37

Canister ID: 1810

Flow Controller ID: 4074 

Sub Description/Location: 

Canister Size: 6 liter

Flow Controller Type: Fixed-Orifice

Flow Controller Calibration

RPD Pre and Post-Sampling: 

Sample Type: 30 min

RLResults AnalystAnalyzedDilutionFlag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

EPA TO-15

ppbv ug/m3
Sample Flags: RL-11

Acetone ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 3014060

Benzene 15 9/12/23  17:45 CMR47 304.81.5

Benzyl chloride ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 30316.0

Bromodichloromethane ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 30101.5

Bromoform ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 30161.5

Bromomethane ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 305.81.5

1,3-Butadiene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 303.31.5

2-Butanone (MEK) ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 3018060

Carbon Disulfide ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 304715

Carbon Tetrachloride 1.8 9/12/23  17:45 CMR12 309.41.5

Chlorobenzene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 306.91.5

Chloroethane ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 304.01.5

Chloroform ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 307.31.5

Chloromethane ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 306.23.0

Cyclohexane ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 305.21.5

Dibromochloromethane ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 30131.5

1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 30121.5

1,2-Dichlorobenzene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 309.01.5

1,3-Dichlorobenzene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 309.01.5

1,4-Dichlorobenzene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 309.01.5

Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12) ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 307.41.5

1,1-Dichloroethane ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 306.11.5

1,2-Dichloroethane ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 306.11.5

1,1-Dichloroethylene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 305.91.5

cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 305.91.5

trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 305.91.5

1,2-Dichloropropane ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 306.91.5

cis-1,3-Dichloropropene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 306.81.5

trans-1,3-Dichloropropene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 306.81.5

1,2-Dichloro-1,1,2,2-tetrafluoroethane (Freon 114) ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 30101.5

1,4-Dioxane ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 305415

Ethanol ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 3011060

Ethyl Acetate ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 305415

Ethylbenzene 3.2 9/12/23  17:45 CMR14 306.51.5

4-Ethyltoluene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 307.41.5

Heptane 2300 9/13/23   2:00 CMR9500 3006115

Hexachlorobutadiene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 30161.5

Page 12 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 231



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Project Location: Northfield, VT

Date Received: 9/8/2023

Work Order: 23I1186Sample Description/Location: 

Field Sample #: SG-4

Sample ID: 23I1186-04

Sample Matrix: Soil Gas

Initial Vacuum(in Hg): -26

Final Vacuum(in Hg): -4

Receipt Vacuum(in Hg): -7.0

Sampled: 9/7/2023  08:37

Canister ID: 1810

Flow Controller ID: 4074 

Sub Description/Location: 

Canister Size: 6 liter

Flow Controller Type: Fixed-Orifice

Flow Controller Calibration

RPD Pre and Post-Sampling: 

Sample Type: 30 min

RLResults AnalystAnalyzedDilutionFlag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

EPA TO-15

ppbv ug/m3

Hexane 4200 9/13/23   2:00 CMR15000 3002100600

2-Hexanone (MBK) ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 30256.0

Isopropanol ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 3015060

Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE) ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 305.41.5

Methylene Chloride ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 305215

4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 306.11.5

Naphthalene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRZ-01 ND 307.91.5

Propene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 3010060

Styrene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 306.41.5

1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 30101.5

Tetrachloroethylene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 30101.5

Tetrahydrofuran ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 304415

Toluene 9.4 9/12/23  17:45 CMR35 305.71.5

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 30111.5

1,1,1-Trichloroethane ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 308.21.5

1,1,2-Trichloroethane ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 308.21.5

Trichloroethylene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 308.11.5

Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11) ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 30346.0

1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (Freon 113) ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 30466.0

1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 307.41.5

1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 307.41.5

Vinyl Acetate 1500 9/13/23   2:00 CMR5200 3001100300

Vinyl Chloride ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 303.81.5

m&p-Xylene ND 9/12/23  17:45 CMRND 30133.0

o-Xylene 1.6 9/12/23  17:45 CMR6.8 306.51.5

Surrogates % Recovery % REC Limits

4-Bromofluorobenzene (1) 92.7 9/13/23   2:0070-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene (1) 96.1 9/12/23  17:4570-130

Page 13 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 232



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Project Location: Northfield, VT

Date Received: 9/8/2023

Work Order: 23I1186Sample Description/Location: 

Field Sample #: DUP-3

Sample ID: 23I1186-05

Sample Matrix: Soil Gas

Initial Vacuum(in Hg): -27.5

Final Vacuum(in Hg): -5

Receipt Vacuum(in Hg): -6.8

Sampled: 9/7/2023  11:24

Canister ID: 2058

Flow Controller ID: 4280 

Sub Description/Location: 

Canister Size: 6 liter

Flow Controller Type: Fixed-Orifice

Flow Controller Calibration

RPD Pre and Post-Sampling: 

Sample Type: 1 hr

RLResults AnalystAnalyzedDilutionFlag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

EPA TO-15

ppbv ug/m3

Acetone 370 9/12/23  18:09 CMR870 3014060

Benzene 1.8 9/13/23   1:33 CMR5.7 40.640.20

Benzyl chloride ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 44.10.80

Bromodichloromethane ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 41.30.20

Bromoform ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 42.10.20

Bromomethane ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.780.20

1,3-Butadiene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.440.20

2-Butanone (MEK) 9.9 9/13/23   1:33 CMR29 4248.0

Carbon Disulfide ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 46.22.0

Carbon Tetrachloride ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 41.30.20

Chlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.920.20

Chloroethane ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.530.20

Chloroform ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.980.20

Chloromethane ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.830.40

Cyclohexane ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.690.20

Dibromochloromethane ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 41.70.20

1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB) ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 41.50.20

1,2-Dichlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 41.20.20

1,3-Dichlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 41.20.20

1,4-Dichlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 41.20.20

Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12) 1.1 9/13/23   1:33 CMR5.4 40.990.20

1,1-Dichloroethane ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.810.20

1,2-Dichloroethane ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.810.20

1,1-Dichloroethylene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.790.20

cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.790.20

trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.790.20

1,2-Dichloropropane ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.920.20

cis-1,3-Dichloropropene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.910.20

trans-1,3-Dichloropropene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.910.20

1,2-Dichloro-1,1,2,2-tetrafluoroethane (Freon 114) ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 41.40.20

1,4-Dioxane ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 47.22.0

Ethanol ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 4158.0

Ethyl Acetate ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 47.22.0

Ethylbenzene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.870.20

4-Ethyltoluene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.980.20

Heptane 1.9 9/13/23   1:33 CMR7.8 40.820.20

Hexachlorobutadiene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 42.10.20

Page 14 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 233



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Project Location: Northfield, VT

Date Received: 9/8/2023

Work Order: 23I1186Sample Description/Location: 

Field Sample #: DUP-3

Sample ID: 23I1186-05

Sample Matrix: Soil Gas

Initial Vacuum(in Hg): -27.5

Final Vacuum(in Hg): -5

Receipt Vacuum(in Hg): -6.8

Sampled: 9/7/2023  11:24

Canister ID: 2058

Flow Controller ID: 4280 

Sub Description/Location: 

Canister Size: 6 liter

Flow Controller Type: Fixed-Orifice

Flow Controller Calibration

RPD Pre and Post-Sampling: 

Sample Type: 1 hr

RLResults AnalystAnalyzedDilutionFlag/QualRLResultsAnalyte

Date/Time

EPA TO-15

ppbv ug/m3

Hexane ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 4288.0

2-Hexanone (MBK) 1.2 9/13/23   1:33 CMR4.9 43.30.80

Isopropanol ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 4208.0

Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE) ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.720.20

Methylene Chloride ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 46.92.0

4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK) ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.820.20

Naphthalene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRZ-01 ND 41.00.20

Propene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 4148.0

Styrene 0.40 9/13/23   1:33 CMR1.7 40.850.20

1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 41.40.20

Tetrachloroethylene 16 9/13/23   1:33 CMR110 41.40.20

Tetrahydrofuran ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 45.92.0

Toluene 0.91 9/13/23   1:33 CMR3.4 40.750.20

1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 41.50.20

1,1,1-Trichloroethane 0.42 9/13/23   1:33 CMR2.3 41.10.20

1,1,2-Trichloroethane ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 41.10.20

Trichloroethylene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 41.10.20

Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11) ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 44.50.80

1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (Freon 113) ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 46.10.80

1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene 0.53 9/13/23   1:33 CMR2.6 40.980.20

1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.980.20

Vinyl Acetate 5.2 9/13/23   1:33 CMR18 4144.0

Vinyl Chloride ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.510.20

m&p-Xylene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 41.70.40

o-Xylene ND 9/13/23   1:33 CMRND 40.870.20

Surrogates % Recovery % REC Limits

4-Bromofluorobenzene (1) 92.9 9/13/23   1:3370-130

4-Bromofluorobenzene (1) 88.5 9/12/23  18:0970-130

Page 15 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 234



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

Sample Extraction Data

Prep Method:TO-15 Prep        Analytical Method:EPA TO-15

Lab Number [Field ID] Batch Date

Pressure 

Dilution

Pre 

Dilution

Pre-Dil

Initial

mL

Pre-Dil 

Final

mL

Default 

Injection

mL

Actual

Injection

mL

23I1186-01 [SG-1] B352252 1.5 1 N/A 1000 200 75 09/12/23

23I1186-02 [SG-2] B352252 1.5 1 N/A 1000 200 75 09/12/23

23I1186-02RE1 [SG-2] B352252 1.5 1 N/A 1000 200 10 09/12/23

23I1186-03 [SG-3] B352252 1.5 1 N/A 1000 200 75 09/12/23

23I1186-03RE1 [SG-3] B352252 1.5 1 N/A 1000 200 10 09/12/23

23I1186-04 [SG-4] B352252 1.5 1 N/A 1000 200 10 09/12/23

23I1186-04RE1 [SG-4] B352252 1.5 200 5 1000 200 200 09/12/23

23I1186-05 [DUP-3] B352252 1.5 1 N/A 1000 200 75 09/12/23

23I1186-05RE1 [DUP-3] B352252 1.5 1 N/A 1000 200 10 09/12/23

[TOC_1]Sample Preparation Information[TOC]

Page 16 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 235



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

ug/m3 Spike Level

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Flag/Qual Analyte

Air Toxics by EPA Compendium Methods - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

RL

ppbv

Results RL Results ppbv

[TOC_2]Air Toxics by EPA Compendium Methods[TOC]

Batch B352252 - TO-15 Prep
[TOC_3]B352252[TOC]

Blank (B352252-BLK1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

0.80NDAcetone

0.020NDBenzene

0.080NDBenzyl chloride

0.020NDBromodichloromethane

0.020NDBromoform

0.020NDBromomethane

0.020ND1,3-Butadiene

0.80ND2-Butanone (MEK)

0.20NDCarbon Disulfide

0.020NDCarbon Tetrachloride

0.020NDChlorobenzene

0.020NDChloroethane

0.020NDChloroform

0.040NDChloromethane

0.020NDCyclohexane

0.020NDDibromochloromethane

0.020 BND1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

0.020ND1,2-Dichlorobenzene

0.020ND1,3-Dichlorobenzene

0.020ND1,4-Dichlorobenzene

0.020NDDichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

0.020ND1,1-Dichloroethane

0.020ND1,2-Dichloroethane

0.020ND1,1-Dichloroethylene

0.020NDcis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

0.020NDtrans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

0.020ND1,2-Dichloropropane

0.020NDcis-1,3-Dichloropropene

0.020NDtrans-1,3-Dichloropropene

0.020ND1,2-Dichloro-1,1,2,2-tetrafluoroethane 

(Freon 114)

0.20ND1,4-Dioxane

0.80NDEthanol

0.20NDEthyl Acetate

0.020NDEthylbenzene

0.020ND4-Ethyltoluene

0.020NDHeptane

0.020NDHexachlorobutadiene

0.80NDHexane

0.080ND2-Hexanone (MBK)

0.80NDIsopropanol

0.020NDMethyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

0.20NDMethylene Chloride

0.020ND4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

0.020 Z-01NDNaphthalene

0.80NDPropene

0.020NDStyrene

[TOC_1]QC Data[TOC]

Page 17 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 236



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

ug/m3 Spike Level

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Flag/Qual Analyte

Air Toxics by EPA Compendium Methods - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

RL

ppbv

Results RL Results ppbv

Batch B352252 - TO-15 Prep

Blank (B352252-BLK1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

0.020ND1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

0.020NDTetrachloroethylene

0.20NDTetrahydrofuran

0.020NDToluene

0.020ND1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

0.020ND1,1,1-Trichloroethane

0.020ND1,1,2-Trichloroethane

0.020NDTrichloroethylene

0.080NDTrichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

0.080ND1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (Freon 

113)

0.020ND1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

0.020ND1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

0.40NDVinyl Acetate

0.020NDVinyl Chloride

0.040NDm&p-Xylene

0.020NDo-Xylene

8.00 70-130Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene (1) 96.47.71

LCS (B352252-BS1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

5.00 70-13087.94.39Acetone

5.00 70-13096.94.84Benzene

5.00 70-13098.54.93Benzyl chloride

5.00 70-13098.74.94Bromodichloromethane

5.00 70-1301205.98Bromoform

5.00 70-13099.84.99Bromomethane

5.00 70-1301085.401,3-Butadiene

5.00 70-1301015.062-Butanone (MEK)

5.00 70-1301075.36Carbon Disulfide

5.00 70-1301135.65Carbon Tetrachloride

5.00 70-1301015.05Chlorobenzene

5.00 70-1301045.19Chloroethane

5.00 70-1301035.17Chloroform

5.00 70-13088.84.44Chloromethane

5.00 70-1301015.04Cyclohexane

5.00 70-1301206.00Dibromochloromethane

5.00 70-1301095.431,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

5.00 70-1301165.791,2-Dichlorobenzene

5.00 V-2070-1301226.081,3-Dichlorobenzene

5.00 70-1301135.631,4-Dichlorobenzene

5.00 70-1301095.46Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

5.00 70-1301045.221,1-Dichloroethane

5.00 70-13098.74.931,2-Dichloroethane

5.00 70-1301015.041,1-Dichloroethylene

5.00 70-13099.95.00cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

5.00 70-1301065.29trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

5.00 70-1301005.011,2-Dichloropropane

Page 18 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 237



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

ug/m3 Spike Level

Result

Source

%REC

%REC

Limits RPD

RPD

Limit Flag/Qual Analyte

Air Toxics by EPA Compendium Methods - Quality Control

QUALITY CONTROL

RL

ppbv

Results RL Results ppbv

Batch B352252 - TO-15 Prep

LCS (B352252-BS1) Prepared & Analyzed: 09/12/23 

5.00 70-1301065.31cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

5.00 70-1301206.00trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

5.00 70-13090.54.531,2-Dichloro-1,1,2,2-tetrafluoroethane 

(Freon 114)

5.00 70-13097.54.881,4-Dioxane

5.00 70-1301095.45Ethanol

5.00 70-1301015.06Ethyl Acetate

5.00 70-1301005.02Ethylbenzene

5.00 70-1301085.384-Ethyltoluene

5.00 70-1301135.64Heptane

4.25 L-01, V-2070-1301717.28Hexachlorobutadiene *

5.00 70-13097.54.87Hexane

5.00 70-13098.94.942-Hexanone (MBK)

5.00 70-13078.53.92Isopropanol

5.00 70-1301045.18Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

5.00 70-13091.24.56Methylene Chloride

5.00 70-1301135.664-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

3.68 L-05, Z-0170-1301435.25Naphthalene *

5.00 70-1301206.00Propene

5.00 70-1301085.39Styrene

5.00 70-1301065.301,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

5.00 70-13099.34.96Tetrachloroethylene

5.00 70-1301075.36Tetrahydrofuran

5.00 70-1301045.19Toluene

3.90 70-1301295.031,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

5.00 70-1301035.161,1,1-Trichloroethane

5.00 70-1301095.441,1,2-Trichloroethane

5.00 70-1301025.09Trichloroethylene

5.00 70-1301015.04Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

5.00 70-13098.04.901,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (Freon 

113)

5.00 70-1301125.601,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

5.00 70-1301205.981,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

5.00 70-1301155.74Vinyl Acetate

5.00 70-1301055.26Vinyl Chloride

10.0 70-13011511.5m&p-Xylene

5.00 70-1301135.64o-Xylene

8.00 70-130Surrogate: 4-Bromofluorobenzene (1) 1028.13

Page 19 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 238



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

FLAG/QUALIFIER SUMMARY

* QC result is outside of established limits.

� Wide recovery limits established for difficult compound.

� Wide RPD limits established for difficult compound.

# Data exceeded client recommended or regulatory level 

Percent recoveries and relative percent differences (RPDs) are determined by the software using values in the 

calculation which have not been rounded.

No results have been blank subtracted unless specified in the case narrative section.

RL Reporting Limit is at the level of quantitation (LOQ)

DL Detection Limit is the lower limit of detection determined by the MDL study

MCL Maximum Contaminant Level

ND Not Detected

Analyte is found in the associated laboratory blank as well as in the sample.B

Laboratory fortified blank/laboratory control sample recovery outside of control limits.  Data validation is not 

affected since all results are "not detected" for all samples in this batch for this compound and bias is on the high 

side.

L-01

Laboratory fortified blank/laboratory control sample recovery is outside of control limits.  Reported value for this 

compound is likely to be biased on the high side.

L-05

Elevated reporting limit due to high concentration of target compounds.RL-11

Continuing calibration verification (CCV) did not meet method specifications and was biased on the high side.  

Data validation is not affected since sample result was "not detected" for this compound.

V-20

Calibrations RSD for this compound is >30% but <40%.Z-01

[TOC_1]Flag/Qualifier Summary[TOC]

Page 20 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 239



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

INTERNAL STANDARD AREA AND RT SUMMARY

EPA TO-15

RTResponseInternal Standard Area % RT DiffResponse

Reference

RT

Reference Area %

Limits

RT Diff

Limit Q

Initial Cal Check (S085380-ICV1 ) Lab File ID: J23A090036.D Analyzed: 04/01/23 05:53

Bromochloromethane (1) 298104 2.788 289065 2.788 60 - 140103 0.0000 +/-0.50

1,4-Difluorobenzene (1) 850179 3.418 804638 3.418 60 - 140106 0.0000 +/-0.50

Chlorobenzene-d5 (1) 747035 5.036 717694 5.036 60 - 140104 0.0000 +/-0.50

INTERNAL STANDARD AREA AND RT SUMMARY

EPA TO-15

RTResponseInternal Standard Area % RT DiffResponse

Reference

RT

Reference Area %

Limits

RT Diff

Limit Q

Calibration Check (S093501-CCV1 ) Lab File ID: J23A255004.D Analyzed: 09/12/23 10:17

Bromochloromethane (1) 294241 2.805 60 - 140 +/-0.50

1,4-Difluorobenzene (1) 826904 3.433 60 - 140 +/-0.50

Chlorobenzene-d5 (1) 718595 5.039 60 - 140 +/-0.50

LCS (B352252-BS1 ) Lab File ID: J23A255005.D Analyzed: 09/12/23 10:42

Bromochloromethane (1) 302274 2.805 294241 2.805 60 - 140103 0.0000 +/-0.50

1,4-Difluorobenzene (1) 836385 3.433 826904 3.433 60 - 140101 0.0000 +/-0.50

Chlorobenzene-d5 (1) 728072 5.04 718595 5.039 60 - 140101 0.0010 +/-0.50

Blank (B352252-BLK1 ) Lab File ID: J23A255008.D Analyzed: 09/12/23 12:34

Bromochloromethane (1) 303583 2.784 294241 2.805 60 - 140103 -0.0210 +/-0.50

1,4-Difluorobenzene (1) 663422 3.417 826904 3.433 60 - 14080 -0.0160 +/-0.50

Chlorobenzene-d5 (1) 587977 5.035 718595 5.039 60 - 14082 -0.0040 +/-0.50

SG-2 (23I1186-02RE1 ) Lab File ID: J23A255018.D Analyzed: 09/12/23 16:56

Bromochloromethane (1) 285290 2.8 294241 2.805 60 - 14097 -0.0050 +/-0.50

1,4-Difluorobenzene (1) 612353 3.428 826904 3.433 60 - 14074 -0.0050 +/-0.50

Chlorobenzene-d5 (1) 555590 5.037 718595 5.039 60 - 14077 -0.0020 +/-0.50

SG-3 (23I1186-03RE1 ) Lab File ID: J23A255019.D Analyzed: 09/12/23 17:20

Bromochloromethane (1) 287345 2.79 294241 2.805 60 - 14098 -0.0150 +/-0.50

1,4-Difluorobenzene (1) 596797 3.427 826904 3.433 60 - 14072 -0.0060 +/-0.50

Chlorobenzene-d5 (1) 561509 5.038 718595 5.039 60 - 14078 -0.0010 +/-0.50

SG-4 (23I1186-04 ) Lab File ID: J23A255020.D Analyzed: 09/12/23 17:45

Bromochloromethane (1) 311282 2.8 294241 2.805 60 - 140106 -0.0050 +/-0.50

1,4-Difluorobenzene (1) 807896 3.429 826904 3.433 60 - 14098 -0.0040 +/-0.50

Chlorobenzene-d5 (1) 744337 5.037 718595 5.039 60 - 140104 -0.0020 +/-0.50

DUP-3 (23I1186-05RE1 ) Lab File ID: J23A255021.D Analyzed: 09/12/23 18:09

Bromochloromethane (1) 310389 2.795 294241 2.805 60 - 140105 -0.0100 +/-0.50

1,4-Difluorobenzene (1) 667302 3.428 826904 3.433 60 - 14081 -0.0050 +/-0.50

Chlorobenzene-d5 (1) 607448 5.038 718595 5.039 60 - 14085 -0.0010 +/-0.50

[TOC_1]Internal standard Area & RT Summary[TOC]

Page 21 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 240



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

INTERNAL STANDARD AREA AND RT SUMMARY

EPA TO-15

RTResponseInternal Standard Area % RT DiffResponse

Reference

RT

Reference Area %

Limits

RT Diff

Limit Q

SG-1 (23I1186-01 ) Lab File ID: J23A255034.D Analyzed: 09/13/23 00:19

Bromochloromethane (1) 314027 2.79 294241 2.805 60 - 140107 -0.0150 +/-0.50

1,4-Difluorobenzene (1) 714679 3.417 826904 3.433 60 - 14086 -0.0160 +/-0.50

Chlorobenzene-d5 (1) 649872 5.038 718595 5.039 60 - 14090 -0.0010 +/-0.50

SG-2 (23I1186-02 ) Lab File ID: J23A255035.D Analyzed: 09/13/23 00:43

Bromochloromethane (1) 326848 2.8 294241 2.805 60 - 140111 -0.0050 +/-0.50

1,4-Difluorobenzene (1) 764731 3.428 826904 3.433 60 - 14092 -0.0050 +/-0.50

Chlorobenzene-d5 (1) 696994 5.04 718595 5.039 60 - 14097 0.0010 +/-0.50

SG-3 (23I1186-03 ) Lab File ID: J23A255036.D Analyzed: 09/13/23 01:08

Bromochloromethane (1) 327360 2.8 294241 2.805 60 - 140111 -0.0050 +/-0.50

1,4-Difluorobenzene (1) 792940 3.429 826904 3.433 60 - 14096 -0.0040 +/-0.50

Chlorobenzene-d5 (1) 702945 5.036 718595 5.039 60 - 14098 -0.0030 +/-0.50

DUP-3 (23I1186-05 ) Lab File ID: J23A255037.D Analyzed: 09/13/23 01:33

Bromochloromethane (1) 328620 2.8 294241 2.805 60 - 140112 -0.0050 +/-0.50

1,4-Difluorobenzene (1) 780648 3.429 826904 3.433 60 - 14094 -0.0040 +/-0.50

SG-4 (23I1186-04RE1 ) Lab File ID: J23A255038.D Analyzed: 09/13/23 02:00

Bromochloromethane (1) 320019 2.785 294241 2.805 60 - 140109 -0.0200 +/-0.50

1,4-Difluorobenzene (1) 779136 3.418 826904 3.433 60 - 14094 -0.0150 +/-0.50

Chlorobenzene-d5 (1) 745229 5.035 718595 5.039 60 - 140104 -0.0040 +/-0.50

Page 22 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 241



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CONTINUING CALIBRATION CHECK

EPA TO-15

S093501-CCV1

COMPOUND TYPE CCV MIN (#) CCV LIMIT (#)CCV ICAL

CONC. (ppbv) % DIFF / DRIFTRESPONSE FACTOR

STD

0.9458424A -8.5 304.57 1.0341145.00Acetone

0.802707A -1.2 304.94 0.81236455.00Benzene

0.8129775L 6.5 305.33 0.50568525.00Benzyl chloride

0.649927A 6.6 305.33 0.60943425.00Bromodichloromethane

0.554364A 21.2 306.06 0.45738395.00Bromoform

0.7081161A 4.7 305.24 0.67619595.00Bromomethane

0.5759469A 13.1 305.66 0.50922575.001,3-Butadiene

1.167261A 1.6 305.08 1.1486475.002-Butanone (MEK)

2.140449A 7.0 305.35 2.0011545.00Carbon Disulfide

0.589147A 17.0 305.85 0.50370675.00Carbon Tetrachloride

0.8187176A 7.4 305.37 0.76227735.00Chlorobenzene

0.4414232A 5.0 305.25 0.42021375.00Chloroethane

1.705062A 8.1 305.40 1.5778375.00Chloroform

0.5965233A -0.02 305.00 0.59663745.00Chloromethane

0.3235413A -0.3 304.98 0.32464065.00Cyclohexane

0.6400913A 23.3 306.17 0.51898365.00Dibromochloromethane

0.5772776A 16.4 305.82 0.49608645.001,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

0.6171465A 25.6 306.28 0.49119515.001,2-Dichlorobenzene

0.719553A 31.9 *306.59 0.54568085.001,3-Dichlorobenzene

0.6505183A 22.5 306.12 0.53099265.001,4-Dichlorobenzene

2.096877A 15.9 305.80 1.8092855.00Dichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

1.433486A 8.8 305.44 1.3174275.001,1-Dichloroethane

0.9851625A 1.2 305.06 0.97309115.001,2-Dichloroethane

1.21607A 6.0 305.30 1.1468455.001,1-Dichloroethylene

1.004515A 5.5 305.27 0.95241035.00cis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

1.096973A 6.5 305.33 1.029795.00trans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

0.3196328A 5.4 305.27 0.30336955.001,2-Dichloropropane

0.4581833A 13.3 305.67 0.40427695.00cis-1,3-Dichloropropene

0.4060892A 23.8 306.19 0.32794155.00trans-1,3-Dichloropropene

2.034833A 3.6 305.18 1.9648885.001,2-Dichloro-1,1,2,2-tetrafluoroethane (Freon 114)

0.1563712A -3.8 304.81 0.16247845.001,4-Dioxane

0.1742354A 1.1 305.05 0.17242025.00Ethanol

0.2291129A 12.3 305.62 0.20400165.00Ethyl Acetate

1.371623A 6.0 305.30 1.2937945.00Ethylbenzene

1.322182A 12.7 305.63 1.1736015.004-Ethyltoluene

0.2665248A 11.5 305.58 0.23902285.00Heptane

0.3641217A 61.0 *308.05 0.22615635.00Hexachlorobutadiene

0.6534888L -3.5 304.82 0.67384965.00Hexane

[TOC_1]Continuing Calibration Check[TOC]

Page 23 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 242



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CONTINUING CALIBRATION CHECK

EPA TO-15

S093501-CCV1

COMPOUND TYPE CCV MIN (#) CCV LIMIT (#)CCV ICAL

CONC. (ppbv) % DIFF / DRIFTRESPONSE FACTOR

STD

0.4492099A 4.0 305.20 0.43206765.002-Hexanone (MBK)

1.086532A -6.6 304.67 1.1631665.00Isopropanol

1.852185A 5.7 305.28 1.7528875.00Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

0.7969032A -2.4 304.88 0.81611845.00Methylene Chloride

0.2343856A 17.7 305.88 0.19916765.004-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

0.5205246A 25.7 306.28 0.41409145.00Naphthalene

0.4667031A 23.4 306.17 0.37835665.00Propene

0.7303007A 17.9 305.90 0.61933875.00Styrene

0.9020358A 14.5 305.73 0.78754535.001,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

0.4332922A 6.7 305.34 0.40610335.00Tetrachloroethylene

0.5794814A 3.4 305.17 0.56022635.00Tetrahydrofuran

1.075851A 8.1 305.40 0.99527375.00Toluene

0.2248365A 15.2 305.76 0.19512365.001,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

0.570117A 10.7 305.54 0.51483625.001,1,1-Trichloroethane

0.3913659A 12.0 305.60 0.34940555.001,1,2-Trichloroethane

0.3704594A 6.8 305.34 0.34695885.00Trichloroethylene

1.998617A 9.1 305.45 1.8322275.00Trichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

1.451686A 6.4 305.32 1.3637575.001,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (Freon 113)

1.120055A 24.0 306.20 0.90357815.001,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

1.269738A 31.6 *306.58 0.96516195.001,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

1.121432A -3.4 304.83 1.1608675.00Vinyl Acetate

0.815348A 11.2 305.56 0.73308675.00Vinyl Chloride

1.236619A 22.4 3012.2 1.01021810.0m&p-Xylene

1.193707A 21.0 306.05 0.98623055.00o-Xylene

* Values outside of QC limits

# Column to be used to flag Response Factor and %Diff/Drift values with an asterisk

Page 24 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 243



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CertificationsAnalyte

CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Analyses included in this Report

EPA TO-15 in Air

AIHA,NY,ME,NHAcetone

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VABenzene

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VABenzyl chloride

AIHA,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VABromodichloromethane

AIHA,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VABromoform

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NHBromomethane

AIHA,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VA1,3-Butadiene

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VA2-Butanone (MEK)

AIHA,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VACarbon Disulfide

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VACarbon Tetrachloride

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAChlorobenzene

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAChloroethane

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAChloroform

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAChloromethane

AIHA,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VACyclohexane

AIHA,NY,ME,NHDibromochloromethane

AIHA,NJ,NY,ME,NH1,2-Dibromoethane (EDB)

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VA1,2-Dichlorobenzene

AIHA,NJ,NY,ME,NH1,3-Dichlorobenzene

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VA1,4-Dichlorobenzene

AIHA,NY,ME,NHDichlorodifluoromethane (Freon 12)

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VA1,1-Dichloroethane

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VA1,2-Dichloroethane

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VA1,1-Dichloroethylene

AIHA,FL,NY,ME,NH,VAcis-1,2-Dichloroethylene

AIHA,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAtrans-1,2-Dichloroethylene

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VA1,2-Dichloropropane

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAcis-1,3-Dichloropropene

AIHA,NY,ME,NHtrans-1,3-Dichloropropene

AIHA,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VA1,2-Dichloro-1,1,2,2-tetrafluoroethane (Freon 114)

AIHA,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VA1,4-Dioxane

AIHAEthanol

AIHAEthyl Acetate

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAEthylbenzene

AIHA4-Ethyltoluene

AIHA,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAHeptane

AIHA,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAHexachlorobutadiene

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAHexane

AIHA2-Hexanone (MBK)

AIHA,NY,ME,NHIsopropanol

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAMethyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE)

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAMethylene Chloride

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH4-Methyl-2-pentanone (MIBK)

NY,ME,NHNaphthalene

AIHAPropene

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAStyrene

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VA1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane

[TOC_1]Certifications[TOC]

Page 25 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 244



39 Spruce Street * East Longmeadow, MA 01028 * FAX 413/525-6405 * TEL. 413/525-2332

CertificationsAnalyte

CERTIFICATIONS

Certified Analyses included in this Report

EPA TO-15 in Air

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VATetrachloroethylene

AIHATetrahydrofuran

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAToluene

AIHA,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VA1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VA1,1,1-Trichloroethane

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VA1,1,2-Trichloroethane

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VATrichloroethylene

AIHA,NY,ME,NHTrichlorofluoromethane (Freon 11)

AIHA,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VA1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane (Freon 113)

AIHA,NJ,NY,ME,NH1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

AIHA,NJ,NY,ME,NH1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAVinyl Acetate

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAVinyl Chloride

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAm&p-Xylene

AIHA,FL,NJ,NY,ME,NH,VAo-Xylene

Con-Test, a Pace Environmental Laboratory, operates under the following certifications and accreditations:

Code Description Number Expires

100033AIHA-LAP, LLC - ISO 17025:2017AIHA 03/1/2024

10899 NELAPNew York State Department of HealthNY 04/1/2024

2516 NELAPNew Hampshire Environmental LabNH 02/5/2024

MA007 NELAPNew Jersey DEPNJ 06/30/2024

E871027 NELAPFlorida Department of HealthFL 06/30/2024

MA00100State of MaineME 06/9/2025

460217Commonwealth of VirginiaVA 12/14/2023

Page 26 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 245



Page 27 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 246



Page 28 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 247



Page 29 of 29

Table of Contents

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 248



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

WESTON & SAMPSON ENGINEERS, INC. 

98 South Main Street, Suite 2 

Waterbury, VT 05676 

tel: 802.244.5051 REPORT 
 

February 26, 2024 

 Evaluation of Corrective Action 
Alternatives 
 
11 North Main Street 
Northfield, Vermont 
SMS#2023-5224 
 

 Prepared for:  

Northfield Development Main, LLC  

 

and 

 

Vermont Department of Environmental 

Conservation 

 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 249



 

 

 

 

 
i 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 Page 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................................ ES-1 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS ........................................................................................................................ i 

 

LIST OF FIGURES ................................................................................................................................ ii 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES ......................................................................................................................... ii 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................. 1-1 
1.1 Site Location .................................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.2 Current Use of Property ................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.3 Current Use of Adjacent Properties ................................................................................. 1-1 
1.4 Site History ...................................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.5 Previous Environmental Investigations ............................................................................ 1-2 
1.6 Intended Future Site Reuse/Redevelopment .................................................................. 1-4 
1.7 Cleanup Criteria ............................................................................................................... 1-4 
1.8 Climate Change Impacts ................................................................................................. 1-5 

1.8.1 Increased Temperatures ............................................................................................. 1-5 
1.8.2 Increased Precipitation ................................................................................................ 1-5 
1.8.3 Extreme Weather Events ............................................................................................. 1-5 
1.8.4 Site-Specific Climate Change Risk Factors ................................................................ 1-5 

2.0 CONCEPTUAL SITE MODEL ............................................................................................... 2-1 
2.1 Site Description ............................................................................................................... 2-1 
2.2 Geology ........................................................................................................................... 2-1 
2.3 Contaminants of Concern ............................................................................................... 2-2 
2.4 Distribution and Potential Sources .................................................................................. 2-2 

2.4.1 Surficial Soil ................................................................................................................. 2-2 
2.4.2 Soil Gas ....................................................................................................................... 2-2 

2.5 Migration Pathway ........................................................................................................... 2-3 
2.6 Sensitive Receptors ......................................................................................................... 2-4 
2.7 Exposure Pathways ......................................................................................................... 2-4 

3.0 EVALUATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION ALTERNATIVES ................................................. 3-1 
3.1 Soil Alternative #1: No Action ......................................................................................... 3-1 
3.2 Soil Alternative #2: Removal and Off-Site Disposal ........................................................ 3-1 
3.3 Soil Alternative #3: Engineered Barrier ........................................................................... 3-2 
3.4 Soil Alternative #4: Limited Soil Excavation/Disposal & Engineered Barrier .................. 3-3 
3.5 Soil Gas Alternative #1:  No Action ................................................................................. 3-3 
3.6 Soil Gas Alternative #2:  Vapor Barrier and Passive Ventilation ..................................... 3-3 
3.7 Soil Gas Alternative #3:  Subslab Depressurization System .......................................... 3-4 
3.8 Soil Gas Alternative #4:  Soil Vapor Extraction ............................................................... 3-4 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 250



 

 

 

 

 
ii 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

4.0 PREFERRED CORRECTIVE ACTIONS ................................................................................ 4-1 

5.0 LIMITATIONS ....................................................................................................................... 5-1 

6.0 SIGNATURE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONAL ........................................................ 6-1 

7.0 REFERENCES ..................................................................................................................... 7-1 
 

 

LIST OF FIGURES 

 

Figure 1 ............................................................................................................................... Locus Map 

 

Figure 2 ................................................................................................................................... Site Plan 

 

Figure 3 .............................................................................................. Site Plan and Sample Locations 

 

Figure 4 .............................................................................................................................. PAHs in Soil 

 

Figure 5 ....................................................................................................................... Soil Gas Results 

 

Figure 6 ................................................................................................................. Sensitive Receptors 

 

 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES 

 

Appendix A ...................................................................... Evaluation of Corrective Action Alternatives 

 

Appendix B .................................................................................... Estimated Corrective Action Costs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2024_02 ECAA\Report Parts\11 North Main 

ECCA.docx 

 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 251



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

ES-1 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

Weston & Sampson Engineers, Inc. (Weston & Sampson) has prepared this Evaluation of Corrective 

Action Alternatives (ECAA) on behalf of) Northfield Development Main, LLC to present recommended 

corrective actions for the property located at 11 North Main Street in Northfield, Vermont (the Site). 

Funding for this ECAA was provided by the Vermont Department of Environmental Conservation 

(VTDEC). Northfield Development Main, LLC, is enrolled in the Vermont Brownfields Reuse and 

Environmental Liability Limitation Program (BRELLA) as a prospective purchaser. Site redevelopment 

plans include construction of a multi-unit residential structure, parking, and greenspace. 

Several environmental investigations have been conducted, and Site assessment activities have 

identified the following contaminants of concern (COCs) in soil and soil gas:  

• Surficial Soil: PAHs and lead 

• Soil Gas: Benzene, ethylbenzene, tetrachloroethene, and carbon tetrachloride 

The Site is in a Designated Urban Soil Zone as defined by the VTDEC. Surface soil in the western 

approximate half of the Site is impacted with PAHs at concentrations above the Vermont Soil Standards 

(VSS) for urban background. Lead is present in surface and shallow soil at concentrations above the 

urban background VSS.  

The volatile organic compounds (VOCs) benzene, ethylbenzene, carbon tetrachloride, and 

tetrachloroethylene (PCE) are present in Site soil gas at concentrations above the VTDEC Vapor 

Intrusion Standards for Subslab Soil Gas (VIS-SSG) for residential use. This condition presents a risk of 

vapor intrusion into the proposed residential building. 

Several corrective action alternatives are evaluated to prevent exposure of current and future Site Users 

to contaminated soil and vapor intrusion. Based on the results of this evaluation, the preferred corrective 

actions include limited soil excavation and off-Site disposal, installation of engineered barriers, and 

installation of a vapor barrier and passive ventilation system beneath future Site buildings. Institutional 

controls will be placed on the Site to require ongoing maintenance and monitoring of the engineered 

barriers and passive ventilation system and will require notification of the VTDEC prior to any planned 

Site renovations which would include, penetration of the vapor barrier, changes to the passive ventilation 

piping, or subsurface work that penetrates the engineered barriers.  

With ECAA approval by the VTDEC, a Corrective Action Plan (CAP) will be developed for the Site which 

will provide the design for the engineered barriers, vapor barrier, and passive ventilation system.  

 

 

 

 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2024_02 ECAA\Report Parts\11 North Main 

ECCA.docx 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 252



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1-1 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

 

Weston & Sampson Engineers, Inc. (Weston & Sampson) has prepared this Evaluation of Corrective 

Action Alternatives (ECAA) on behalf of the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission (CVRPC), 

and Northfield Development Main, LLC to evaluate recommended corrective action alternatives for the 

property located at 11 North Main Street in Northfield, Vermont (the Site, Figure 1). Funding for this ECAA 

was provided by the Vermont Department of Environmental Conservation (VTDEC), which has assigned 

the Site with Site Management Section (SMS) #2023-5224. 

1.1 Site Location 

Street Address: 11 North Main Street, Northfield, VT  

Latitude (North): 44.1504430 - 44˚ 9’ 1.59’’  

Longitude (West): 72.6549170 - 72˚ 39’ 17.70’’  

Universal Transverse Mercator: Zone 18  

UTM X (Meters): 687546.2  

UTM Y (Meters): 4891040.0  

Elevation: 713 feet above sea level  

Site Owner: Cetrangolo Finishing Works, Inc. 

Site Occupants: Vacant  

County: Washington  

Parcel ID: 923023000  

Size: 1.30-acres 

1.2 Current Use of Property  

The Site is currently vacant. A Site map is included as Figure 2. 

1.3 Current Use of Adjacent Properties 

The Site is in a mixed residential and commercial area of Northfield. Adjoining commercial properties 

(Figure 2) include a Dollar General retail store to the south (108 South Main Street); a gasoline filling 

station and convenience store (73 North Main Street), and hardware store to the west (93 North Main 

Street); a former clothing company and a food company warehouse to the northwest (127 & 141 North 

Main Street); and a visual design/photographer and furniture maker to the north (168 North Main Street).  

1.4 Site History 

According to historical records available in a 2022 Phase I ESA completed by Wilcox & Barton, Inc. 

(Wilcox & Barton), the Site was first developed circa 1812 as a woolen mill. The Site was developed prior 

to 1897 as the Cross Brothers Granite Works, which processed and finished granite until 1942 and again 

between 1986 and 1999. The granite works extended onto the current 108 North Main Street (Dollar 

General) property to the south. Site buildings and features apparent on historical Sanborn Fire Insurance 

maps from 1897 until 1940 include a blacksmith shop, cutting shed, granite sawing & machine shop, 

carriage shop, painting building, a railroad spur, saddlery, machine shop with printing and repair rooms, 

a gasoline underground storage tank (UST) along Main Street, a “tank” located centrally on the Site, 

and a conveyer in the eastern portion of the Site connected to a dust collector. Mr. Nick Cetrangolo 

purchased the Site circa 1956 and redeveloped it to include a machine shop, auto repair facility, and 

gasoline filling station. These Site uses continued until approximately 1976. As noted above, granite 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 253



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1-2 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

processing/finishing operations resumed from 1986 to 1999. The Site buildings were demolished in 

2000 following the closure of the granite works. Mr. Portions of the former buildings concrete foundations 

and structural columns are still present at the Site. Historical Site features are shown on Figure 2. 

1.5 Previous Environmental Investigations 

Wilcox & Barton completed a Phase I ESA in 2022. Environmental investigations completed at adjoining 

properties have documented releases of petroleum products and hazardous materials as described 

below. The Phase I ESA identified the following recognized environmental conditions (RECs) in 

association with the Site: 

1. Historical underground storage and documented release of petroleum at an adjacent property. 

An undocumented 500-gallon No. 2 fuel oil UST was encountered on the Dollar General property 

(108 North Main Street) during excavation in October 2012 (see Figure 2). The UST was 

damaged during excavation and approximately 100 gallons of oily water were released. The 

VTDEC assigned Spill #2012WMD529 to the release. Spill response actions included removal 

of the UST, recovery of oily water from the excavation, excavation and offsite disposal of 

impacted soil, and post-excavation soil sampling and analysis. Post-excavation soil sampling 

did not identify contaminant concentrations exceeding applicable standards. The damaged UST 

contents were reported to have impacted groundwater; however, groundwater sampling was 

not performed. The Spill incident was closed on December 12, 2012. 

 

2. Historical underground storage of petroleum on an adjoining property. The Site is identified as 

UST Facility ID 4855711 for one 10,000-gallon UST containing No. 2 or No. 4 fuel oil that was 

removed in 1998. However, at the time of removal, the Site and southerly adjoining parcel (108 

North Main Street/General Dollar) were both identified as 11 North Main Street. The former 

10,000-gallon UST was located on the 108 North Main Street property south of the Site; however, 

the exact location of the former 10,000-gallon UST is not documented. A UST closure 

assessment completed by Griffin International, Inc. indicated that the UST was in very good 

condition with only minor soil impacts observed around the fill pipe and below the UST. These 

were attributed to small spills and/or overfills.  

 

3. Documented arsenic contamination at an adjacent property. Elevated concentrations of arsenic 

were detected in soil at the adjacent 108 North Main Street property (Dollar General) in 2011. 

VTDEC assigned Site #2012-4284 to the release. Shallow arsenic-impacted soil was buried on-

site under five feet of clean fill in accordance with a VTDEC-approved Corrective Action Plan 

(CAP). 

 

4. Current and historical underground storage and documented petroleum contamination at an 

adjacent property. The property located at 73 North Main Street and adjoining the Site to the 

west-southwest is currently operated as a gasoline filling station. Elevated concentrations of 

petroleum compounds and lead were identified in soil and groundwater in 2011. A Supplemental 

Site investigation completed by KAS Environmental Science and Engineering (KAS) in October 

2022 identified petroleum-related volatile organic compounds (VOCs) at concentrations 

exceeding non-residential use Vermont Soil Standards (VSS) and Vermont Groundwater 

Enforcement Standards (VGES) near a former gasoline pump island approximately 100 feet 

southwest of the Site. The extent of soil and groundwater contamination has not been defined. 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 254



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1-3 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

 

5. Historical underground storage and release(s) of petroleum at an adjacent property. A 1989 site 

assessment identified soil contamination at the adjoining 127 North Main Street property. 

Available records did not indicate the type of contamination but did indicate soil was excavated 

and “landfarmed” on the property. The VTDEC issued a Sites Management Activity Completed 

(SMAC) letter for the release on March 7, 1994. Available records also indicate one 10,000-gallon 

fuel oil UST was removed from the property in 1998, and one 12,000-gallon fuel oil UST was 

removed in 2017. During the 1998 UST removal, petroleum contamination was identified. The 

release condition was tracked by the VTDEC under Site #90-0619. A letter from the VTDEC, 

dated October 26, 1998, indicates that impacted soil encountered during UST removal was 

stockpiled at the property. Closure documents associated with the 2017 UST removal were not 

reviewed. 

 

6. Historical industrial use and underground storage of petroleum at the subject property. The Site 

was used for various industrial uses beginning in the late 1800s until at least 1999. Historical 

property uses included granite processing, automotive repair, gasoline filling, and machining. 

These industrial operations would have included the use and storage of various types of oil 

and/or hazardous materials. A historical Sanborn Map from 1919 depicts a buried gasoline tank 

and an unidentified tank at the property. 

Weston & Sampson completed a Phase II ESA in October 2023 to evaluate whether previously identified 

RECs have resulted in a release to the environment and to determine appropriate remediation and/or 

mitigation measures that may be required during Site redevelopment. Field activities included a surface 

soil assessment using incremental sampling methodology (ISM) within two decision units (DUs), a 

subsurface soil assessment by advancing five soil borings, collection of five groundwater samples, and 

collection of four soil gas samples. Sample locations are shown on Figure 3. 

The Phase II ESA findings included the following: 

• Surface soil in the western half of the Site is impacted with polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons 

(PAHs) exceeding the urban background Vermont Soil Standard (VSS) and non-residential VSS. 

PAH impacts appear to be limited to surface soil within previously developed areas of the Site 

where past industrial practices included granite cutting and processing, operation of a machine 

shop, and operation of a gasoline filling station and automotive repair shop. PAH soil results are 

shown on Figure 4. 

• Lead was identified in soil above the urban background value of 111 milligrams per kilogram 

(mg/kg). Two discrete shallow soil samples collected from less than 3 feet below grade on the 

western portion of the Site contained lead concentrations exceeding the urban background VSS 

for lead. 

• No polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), semi-volatile organic compounds (SVOCs) other than 

PAHs, or VOCs were identified in soil above the laboratory reporting limits. 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 255



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1-4 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

• No VOCs were detected in groundwater except for low levels of acetone (a common lab 

contaminant) at one location. Acetone concentrations were below the Vermont Groundwater 

Enforcement Standard (VGES). 

• Soil gas is impacted with the VOCs benzene, ethylbenzene, tetrachloroethylene (PCE), and 

carbon tetrachloride exceeding the residential Vapor Intrusion Standards for Subslab Soil Gas 

(VIS-SSG). Benzene also exceeded the non-residential VIS-SSG at one location.  

Weston & Sampson completed a Supplemental Phase II ESA in December 2023 to further evaluate the 

nature and extent of VOCs detected in soil gas above the residential VIS-SSG. The extent of VOCs in 

soil gas above the residential VIS-SSG were defined to the west, limited to the east by the Dog River 

which abuts the Site, and limited to the north by shallow/exposed bedrock and shallow groundwater. 

Benzene and PCE were not defined south of the Site near the 108 North Main Street (Dollar General) 

property. However, this property, and all other nearby properties, are in non-residential use and are not 

expected to be at risk for vapor intrusion at levels exceeding the indoor air standards (IAS) for non-

residential use. Benzene, ethylbenzene, carbon tetrachloride, and PCE soil gas results are shown on 

Figure 5. 

1.6 Intended Future Site Reuse/Redevelopment 

Site redevelopment plans include construction of a multi-unit residential structure, parking, and 

greenspace. The prospective purchaser, Northfield Development Main, LLC, is enrolled in the Vermont 

Brownfields Reuse and Environmental Liability Limitation Program (BRELLA). 

1.7 Cleanup Criteria 

The Site is in a Designated Urban Soil Zone as defined by the VTDEC and shown on the Agency of 

Natural Resources (ANR) Atlas. The chosen cleanup criteria for PAHs in soil is the Vermont Soil 

Standards (VSS) for urban background published in the VTDEC Investigation and Remediation of 

Contaminated Properties Rule (I-Rule), effective February 23, 2024. The cleanup criteria for lead in soil 

will be the Urban background VSS for lead of 111 mg/kg. 

The following table presents the cleanup criteria for PAHs, expressed as benzo(a)pyrene toxic 

equivalents (B[a]P-TE), and lead and the maximum concentrations detected in Site soil.  

Compound Cleanup Criteria (mg/kg) Max. Concentration (mg/kg) 

Soil 

B(a)P-TE 0.58 2.0 

Lead 111 350 

 

The chosen cleanup criteria for VOCs in soil gas is the Vapor Intrusion Standards for Subslab Soil Gas 

(VIS-SSG) and Indoor Air (VIS-IAS) for residential use published in the I-Rule. The following table 

presents the cleanup criteria for benzene, ethylbenzene, carbon tetrachloride, and PCE and the 

maximum concentrations detected in Site soil gas.  

 

Compound Cleanup Criteria (µg/m
3
) Max. Concentration ((µg/m

3
) 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 256



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1-5 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

VIS-SSG VIS-IAS 

Soil Gas 

Benzene 4.3 0.13 47 

Ethylbenzene 13 0.40 14 

Carbon Tetrachloride 5.7 0.17 12 

Tetrachloroethylene (PCE) 21 0.63 110 

1.8 Climate Change Impacts 

The local area of the Site is subject to current and forecasted climate change conditions that can impact 

the local environment and necessitate careful consideration of proposed cleanup action alternatives. 

While climate data is not collected specifically for Rutland, pertinent changing climate conditions in 

Vermont are described in the following subsections.   

1.8.1 Increased Temperatures 

Vermont has experienced a temperature increase of approximately 3°F since the early 1900s, with the 

most recent 11-year period (2010–2020) being the warmest on record (Runkle et al., 2022). This is 

consistent with global climate change patterns. The winter temperatures have warmed more 

aggressively, 2.5 times the average annual temperature since 1960 (Galford et al., 2021). Projections 

indicate a continued increase in average temperatures, leading to warmer seasons and potential 

implications for ecosystem dynamics, including flora and fauna distributions. 

1.8.2 Increased Precipitation 

Annual average rainfall is increasing and has risen almost 6 inches since the 1960s (Runkle et al., 2022) 

and by 7.5 inches since 1900 (Galford et al., 2021). Forecasts suggest winter and spring precipitation 

will increase throughout this century. Warming will increase the proportion of the precipitation falling as 

rain. 

1.8.3 Extreme Weather Events 

Flood events have become more common, with recent examples including 2011 Tropical Storm Irene, 

where 3-7 inches of rainfall occurred in less than 18 hours (Runkle et al., 2022) and the recent Great 

Vermont Flood of July 2023, where 3-9 inches of rainfall occurred in less than 48 hours (NOAA, 2023). 

In general, Vermont has 2.4 more days of heavy precipitation since the 1960s (Galford et al., 2021). 

Predictions indicate an increased frequency and intensity of such events, posing risks of heightened 

flooding and related damages to infrastructure.  

1.8.4 Site-Specific Climate Change Risk Factors 

Given the projected climate impacts described above, and the location of the Site in an urban area and 

adjacent to the Dog River, site-specific risk factors that the corrective action must address include 

infrastructure vulnerability due to increased precipitation, flooding, and more extreme weather events 

and heat-island effects due to increased temperature. The selected corrective action must be designed 

with limiting vulnerability due to flooding, increased precipitation and extreme weather events and must 

address the potential for exacerbating heat island effects. If any portion of the selected corrective action 

includes or depends on vegetation, that vegetation must be selected among species expected to be 

climate resilient and able to thrive in projected conditions.  

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 257



 

 

 

 

  

 
 

2-1 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

2.0 CONCEPTUAL SITE MODEL 

2.1 Site Description 

The Site is in a mixed commercial and residential area of Northfield, Vermont. The Site is currently vacant 

and anecdotal reports by Town of Northfield employees suggest that it is used by the Town as a snow 

dump in winter. It has been developed for various industrial and commercial uses since the early 1800s 

including a woolen mill, granite works, automotive repair shop, gasoline filling station, and machine 

shop. The Site is accessed from the west by North Main Street by a gravel drive. Concrete foundation 

and structural support remnants are present in the west-central portion. The eastern approximate two-

thirds of the Site is vegetated except for an asphalt drive easement that extends from the Dollar General 

(108 North Main Street) property and is used as a truck turnaround. Overhead electrical and 

communication utilities traverse the northern extent of the Site from east to west. Site features are shown 

on Figure 2.  

The Site is situated approximately 713 feet above mean sea level. The eastern portion, defined by the 

gravel drive and foundation remnants, is relatively flat. The west-central portion is covered with a 

concrete slab. A pit was observed in the concrete slab adjacent to one of the foundation remnants and 

was filled with water. Topography slopes steeply downward to the east towards the Dog River, which 

defines the eastern property boundary. A steep drainage defines the northern Site boundary.  

The area is served by municipal water although one private water supply is mapped on the property 

adjoining the Site to the north. The Site and surrounding area are served by municipal wastewater 

disposal infrastructure. No wetlands are mapped on the Site or surrounding area. 

2.2 Geology 

The Site is within a Designated Urban Soil Zone as defined by the VTDEC and shown on the ANR Atlas. 

Designated Urban Soil Zones are areas where the use of VTDEC urban background concentrations for 

PAHs, arsenic, and lead may be used when evaluating contaminant concentrations. Soil in the western 

approximate two-thirds of the Site is mapped as pebbly sand, a glaciolacustrine deposit associated with 

Glacial Lake Winooski, which extended into Northfield along the current Dog River channel 

approximately 14,000 – 13,500 years before present during the retreat of the Laurentide ice sheet.  

Subsurface soils observed at the Site consist of 0-7 feet of fill overlying native brown fine sand. Fill soils 

consist of light brown and grey medium to coarse sand and some gravel, with glass and granite rubble. 

The thickest fill soils were observed in the westernmost (SB-2) and easternmost (SB-5) areas of the Site 

and thinnest fill soils were observed centrally (SB-4). Native soil consists of brown fine sand and was 

observed from 7 ft bgs to a maximum depth of 20 ft bgs in the southwestern corner of the site. Native 

soils appeared to be reworked in the north and southwest of the Site from 0-5 feet bgs and consisted 

of fine to coarse sand and gravel with no bedding structure. The native sandy soil encountered is 

consistent with the mapped pebbly sand and soil described on the adjoining gas station property (KAS, 

2022). Fill soils on the Site are consistent with the fill soils described on the property adjoining the Site 

to the south, which contained wood, pieces of granite, metal, and concrete (ATC, 2012).  

Bedrock at the Site is mapped as a phyllite and metasiltstone members of the Cram Hill Formation 

(Ratcliffe et al, 2011). Exposed schist outcrops were present at the north of the site, which is somewhat 

consistent with the mapped bedrock as schist has undergone higher grade metamorphism compared 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 258



 

 

 

 

  

 
 

2-2 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

to phyllite. Refusal on what was presumed to be bedrock was encountered between 8 and 12 feet bgs 

in the northwest area of the Site (SB-1). Refusal was not encountered at a maximum depth of 20 ft bgs 

in the southwest corner of the Site (GW-2).  

Groundwater was encountered between approximately 2 and 15 ft bgs at the Site and was shallower 

near the bedrock on the north side of the property. Groundwater elevation was not determined due to 

the use of temporary screen point wells, which were not surveyed. 

Groundwater flow, based on previous investigations (ATC, 2011 and KAS, 2022), is to the south. A 

groundwater seep was observed from the bedrock outcrop on the north of the Site.  

2.3 Contaminants of Concern 

Based on the results of the Phase II ESA, the primary contaminants of concern (COC) include the 

following: 

• Surficial Soil: PAHs and lead 

• Soil Gas: Benzene, ethylbenzene, tetrachloroethene, and carbon tetrachloride 

2.4 Distribution and Potential Sources 

2.4.1 Surficial Soil 

The 95% upper confidence limit (UCL) for PAHs in surficial soil in DU1 (western half of the Site) is 2.0 

mg/kg, above the non-residential VSS (1.54 mg/kg). PAH concentrations appear to decrease with depth, 

with no subsurface samples exceeding the non-residential VSS. PAHs were not detected in native soils. 

The 95% UCL for PAHs in surficial soil in DU2 (eastern half of the Site) is 0.30 mg/kg, below the urban 

background VSS.  

Potential sources of PAHs in surface soil include former industrial uses of the property (granite works, 

automotive repair shop, machine shop, and woolen mill), use as a snow dump, aerial deposition within 

an urban setting, and importation of contaminated fill from an unknown location, or a combination of 

these sources.  

Lead is present in shallow soil above the proposed urban background VSS in two locations on the 

northwest of the site (SB-1 (0-2) and SB-4(0-3)) to a maximum depth of 3 feet bgs. Lead concentrations 

appear to be present throughout the Site in low levels, with a few locations above the Urban Background 

VSS likely due to heterogeneity of the contaminant in soil. Lead was not detected above the proposed 

Urban Background VSS in native soils. Potential sources of lead in shallow soil includes former industrial 

uses of the property, possible lead paint on historical Site buildings, use as a snow dump, and 

contaminated fill from an unknown location, or a combination of these sources.  

2.4.2 Soil Gas 

Benzene and ethylbenzene were identified in soil gas above the residential VIS-SSG, with the highest 

concentrations on the western side of the Site at SG-4. Benzene concentrations at SG-4 also exceeded 

the non-residential VIS-SSG. The extent of ethylbenzene soil gas contamination appears to be limited to 

the western area of the Site near SG-4. Steep topography, exposed bedrock, and shallow groundwater 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 259



 

 

 

 

  

 
 

2-3 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

likely limits benzene and ethylbenzene migration to the north of the Site near SG-4. The extent of benzene 

soil gas contamination is more widespread in the western and southern portions of the Site where 

concentrations above the residential VIS-SSG extend off-Site within Main Street to the area immediately 

west of Dollar General (108 North Main Street; SG-9). No VOCs were detected in soil or groundwater. 

Shallow surface releases due to former Site uses (automotive repair shop, filling station, and machine 

shop) or a former on-Site gasoline UST from the early 1900s (see Figure 2) are likely sources for these 

petroleum-related VOCs. Several potential off-Site sources also exist, including two former USTs at the 

adjacent Dollar General (108 North Main Street) property to the south, two former USTs at the adjoining 

127 North Main Street property to the northwest, and petroleum-related VOCs documented in 

groundwater at 73 North Main Street (SMS #2011-4199), approximately 100 feet southwest of the Site. 

Benzene and ethylbenzene could migrate from these potential off-Site sources onto the Site through 

coarse backfill materials with utility corridors, such as the water and sewer utilities that are located in 

North Main Street and serve the adjoining properties.  

Carbon tetrachloride and PCE were also detected in soil gas above their residential VIS-SSGs, with the 

highest concentration of PCE on the southern edge of the Site at SG-2, and the highest concentration 

of carbon tetrachloride on the western side of the Site at SG-4. Neither compound was detected in soil 

or groundwater. Steep topography, exposed bedrock, and shallow groundwater likely limits carbon 

tetrachloride migration to the north of the Site near SG-4. Releases related to the use, storage, and 

disposal of PCE solvents potentially used as a degreaser in automotive maintenance activities in the 

former filling station and machine shop are potential sources for these chlorinated VOCs. Chlorinated 

VOCs were not detected in soil gas samples collected from the Main Street right-of-way. 

2.5 Migration Pathway 

PAHs and lead are expected to be relatively immobile in soil and do not appear to have leached 

downwards into subsurface soil. The primary migration pathway for PAHs and lead at the Site is via 

erosion. Elevated PAHs and lead are only present in surface soil in the western half of the Site where 

topography is generally flat. Based on topography and distance from the Dog River, surface water and 

sediment in the Dog River is unlikely to be impacted by erosion of PAH and lead contaminated soils 

from the Site. 

Potential VOC releases associated with past on-Site activities do not appear to have impacted soil or 

groundwater, though at least one potential off-Site source for petroleum-related VOCs (73 North Main 

Street) has confirmed petroleum-related VOCs in soil and groundwater.  

Whether sourced on-Site or off-Site, once in the subsurface, migration of VOCs in soil gas will occur 

through advection (bulk movement with the flow of a fluid such as air or groundwater) or diffusion 

(moving from areas of higher concentration to lower concentration). The former buildings concrete 

foundations of the Site may cause VOCs to accumulate below the concrete and may prevent surface 

water from infiltrating and transporting VOCs to groundwater.  

Where VOCs in soil gas are in contact with a building slab or utility spaces, they may impact air quality 

through vapor intrusion. There is a vapor intrusion risk to indoor air in the future Site building. There does 

not appear to be a risk to indoor air in nearby non-residential use buildings from Site-related VOC soil 

gas contamination.  

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 260



 

 

 

 

  

 
 

2-4 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

2.6 Sensitive Receptors 

A Sensitive Receptor Map, generated with the Agency of Natural Resources online Natural Resources 

Atlas, is provided as Figure 6. 

The Site is in a mixed commercial/industrial and residential area of Northfield, Vermont. The area is 

served by municipal water and no private wells are mapped on or downgradient of the Site. A private 

water supply is mapped on the adjoining property to the north. 

Potential human receptors to PAHs and lead in soil include Site users such as nearby residents and 

trespassers. Future potential human receptors include construction and utility workers performing 

subsurface work, or occupants of the future residential development.  

Potential human receptors to VOCs in soil gas include future occupants of the proposed residential 

development. Other potential human receptors to VOCs in soil gas include construction and utility 

workers performing subsurface work.  

No wetlands are located on or downgradient of the Site and the Site is in an urban area. Potential 

ecological receptors are limited to aquatic biota in the Dog River. 

2.7 Exposure Pathways 

Potential exposure pathways to sensitive receptors include direct contact through ingestion of 

contaminated soil, dermal contact with contaminated soil, and inhalation due to vapor intrusion into 

excavations or buildings. The following exposure pathways are considered complete: 

• Site Users could encounter surface soil impacted with PAHs and lead. 

• Future Site Users completing subsurface work (such as construction or utility workers) could 

encounter soil gas impacted with benzene, ethylbenzene, PCE, and carbon tetrachloride.  

• Future building occupants could encounter benzene, ethylbenzene, PCE, and/or carbon 

tetrachloride via the vapor intrusion pathway. 

The following exposure pathways may be complete, but their status is currently unknown: 

• Future off-Site Users completing subsurface work (such as construction or utility workers) could 

encounter soil gas impacted with benzene, ethylbenzene, PCE, and carbon tetrachloride on the 

108 North Main Street property or within the North Main Street right-of-way adjacent and south 

of the Site. Benzene, carbon tetrachloride, and ethylbenzene may also be encountered north of 

the Site, however, migration of soil gas to the north is likely limited by topography, bedrock, and 

shallow groundwater. 

The following table summarizes the potentially impacted media, sensitive receptors, and whether each 

exposure pathway is considered complete, incomplete, or is currently unknown. 

Media 
Contaminants of 

Concern 
Sensitive Receptors Exposure Pathways 

Exposure 

Pathway 

Complete? 

Surface Soil PAHs, Lead Site Users  Direct Contact, Ingestion Complete 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 261



 

 

 

 

  

 
 

2-5 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

Media 
Contaminants of 

Concern 
Sensitive Receptors Exposure Pathways 

Exposure 

Pathway 

Complete? 

Subsurface 

Soil 
PAHs and Lead Future Site Users (construction/utility workers) Direct Contact, Ingestion Incomplete 

Groundwater VOCs 

Site Users Direct Contact, Ingestion Incomplete 

Future Site Users (construction/utility workers) Direct Contact, Ingestion Incomplete 

Nearby Residents Direct Contact, Ingestion Incomplete 

Future Off-Site Construction/Utility workers Direct Contact, Ingestion Incomplete 

Surface 

Water 
PAHs and Lead 

Users of Dog River Direct Contact, Ingestion Incomplete 

Aquatic Biota in Dog River Direct Contact, Ingestion Incomplete 

Indoor Air 

Benzene, 

Ethylbenzene, PCE, 

Carbon tetrachloride 

Site Users – Future Building Occupants Inhalation Complete 

Nearby Building Occupants Inhalation Incomplete 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2024_02 ECAA\Report Parts\11 North Main 

ECCA.docx 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 262



 

 

 

 

  

 
 

3-1 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

3.0 EVALUATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION ALTERNATIVES 

 

Proposed corrective actions for PAHs and lead in soil and VOCs in soil gas are summarized in the table 

below and described in the following sections. Weston and Sampson evaluated corrective action 

alternatives based on the following factors: 

• compliance with legal requirements 

• protection of human health and environment 

• long-term effectiveness and permanence 

• reduction of toxicity, mobility, or volume of contaminants 

• short-term effectiveness 

• technical feasibility 

• cost 

• environmental impact and sustainability 

• community acceptance 

• climate resiliency 

Preliminary assessment tables of potential corrective actions are provided in Appendix A. Those options 

considered to be implementable at the Site are evaluated in greater depth, below.  

Appendix Matrix COCs Corrective Action Alternatives 

A-1 Soil PAHs and lead 

1. No Action 

2. Removal and Off-Site Disposal 

3. Engineered Barrier 

4. Limited Soil Excavation/Disposal & 

Engineered Barrier 

A-2 Soil Gas 
VOCs – benzene, ethylbenzene, 

carbon tetrachloride, and PCE 

1. No Action 

2. Vapor Barrier and Passive Ventilation 

3. Subslab Depressurization System 

4. Soil Vapor Extraction System 

 

3.1 Soil Alternative #1: No Action 

Taking No Action is not an acceptable alternative. PAHs and lead are present in surface soil above 

residential VSS, posing a direct contact risk to Site users. Taking no action is not compliant with cleanup 

criteria and would result in an economic loss for the Site as the proposed redevelopment could not 

occur. 

3.2 Soil Alternative #2: Removal and Off-Site Disposal 

Under this alternative, disturbed native and fill soils within the western approximate half of the Site would 

be excavated for off-Site disposal at a facility permitted to accept PAHs and lead contaminated soil. We 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 263



 

 

 

 

  

 
 

3-2 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

expect the average excavation depth to be four (4) feet below grade within a 27,500 square foot area 

based on soil borings completed during the Phase II ESA. This would generate approximately 5,100 

cubic yards of soil weighing approximately 7,650 tons. Based on previous project experience with similar 

contaminants of concern and concentrations, soil would require disposal as alternative daily cover at a 

Subtitle D landfill. The Waste USA landfill in Coventry, Vermont would likely be the closest and most cost 

effective facility permitted to accept Site soil.  

Cleanup verification sampling would be required following removal to ensure underlying soils contain 

PAHs and lead at concentrations less than their respective cleanup criteria. Clean imported fill would be 

used to backfill the excavation. If PAHs and lead are removed to concentrations below cleanup criteria, 

there would be no ongoing monitoring or maintenance obligations. 

Advantages to this alternative include elimination of risk of exposure to contaminated soil, permanence, 

reduction of contaminant mass, and no requirement for long-term monitoring. Disadvantages include 

difficulty in implementation due to the varying depth of fill soils that may contain lead above the cleanup 

criteria and high environmental impact involved with trucking and landfill disposal. 

This alternative is expected to cost approximately $1,417,000 (Appendix B). 

3.3 Soil Alternative #3: Engineered Barrier 

Alternative #3 would include capping remaining impacted soil with an engineered barrier and placing a 

land-use restriction on the Site.  

Installation of an engineered barrier would mitigate the risk of direct exposure to contaminated soils. To 

be effective, engineered soil barriers must be a minimum of 18-inches thick, if not covered by an 

impervious surface. If covered by an impervious surface, the barrier can be reduced to 6-inches of fill or 

sub-base material under the impervious surface. An indicator layer would be installed between 

underlying contaminated soil and overlying clean fill.   

Since impacted soil would be left on Site, a land-use restriction (contained in the Certificate of 

Completion) would be placed on the Site. Placing a land use restriction on the Site would include a map 

of remaining soil contamination and would require notification of the VTDEC prior to any subsurface 

work in the vicinity.  

Engineered barriers are easy to construct and are effective in mitigating the risk of direct exposure to 

contaminated soil. The proposed building slab, parking lot, and greenspaces can be designed as 

impervious and soil barriers. This alternative has a lower environmental impact than Alternative #2 and 

is also less costly. 

Disadvantages of this method include ongoing maintenance over the lifespan of the engineered barriers 

and the requirement of institutional controls. Raising grades to accommodate the engineered barrier 

may not be compatible with the site design. 

Installation of engineered barriers is estimated to cost approximately $47,000 (Appendix B). Long-term 

monitoring and maintenance will be performed by the property owner. 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 264



 

 

 

 

  

 
 

3-3 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

3.4 Soil Alternative #4: Limited Soil Excavation/Disposal & Engineered Barrier 

Under this alternative, a limited volume of soil would be excavated for off-Site disposal as described for 

alternative #2 followed by installation of engineered barriers as described for alternative #3. The volume 

of soil excavated for off-Site disposal will be based on cut/fill volumes and determined by the Site civil 

engineer.  

Should the Site civil design have a net fill condition, soil disposal will not be required. However, this 

alternative allows flexibility to manage cut soils that cannot be spoiled on-Site while minimizing off-Site 

disposal costs. Advantages and disadvantages of the engineered barrier are the same as described for 

alternative #2.  

For the purposes of estimating soil disposal costs, we assumed that a total of 300 cubic yards will be 

generated to allow installation of engineered fill around sewer and water connections and the proposed 

building foundation. Costs will need to be refined based on the Site civil design. Limited soil excavation 

and disposal and installation of engineered barriers is estimated to cost approximately $105,000 

(Appendix B). Actual soil costs will be based on cut/fill conditions to be determined by a civil engineer. 

3.5 Soil Gas Alternative #1:  No Action 

Taking No Action is not a compatible alternative with the redevelopment plan. Construction of the 

proposed residential structure requires vapor intrusion mitigation or remediation to ensure that there is 

no unacceptable exposure to contaminated indoor air. Taking no action would result in the Site 

remaining vacant. 

3.6 Soil Gas Alternative #2:  Vapor Barrier and Passive Ventilation 

Alternative #2 would include the placement of a vapor barrier and ventilation piping below the proposed 

building. This would provide both a physical barrier to vapor intrusion and alternative pathway for vapors 

other than into the building. To be effective, a vapor barrier must seal around all slab penetrations and 

must be resistant to future wear and penetration. The vapor barrier would be protected by the building’s 

concrete slab. The vapor barrier could be constructed as a vapor-proof membrane or a spray-applied 

vapor barrier such as Liquid Boot® placed below the building slab. 

The advantage to a vapor barrier is that it prevents vapor intrusion passively. However, a vapor barrier 

is generally not recommended as a sole remedy. Passive ventilation would include the installation of 

slotted piping within four to six inches of coarse engineered fill materials below the vapor barrier. The 

venting piping is plumbed through the roof and a tee or turbine ventilator attached.  The “chimney” effect 

created by the vertical pipe will passively result in collection of vapors below the vapor barrier. 

As this is a passive system there would be no long-term equipment maintenance, electric costs or noise 

associated with the remedy. This alternative also provides two methods of vapor intrusion protection 

and is easy to implement with new construction. As an enrollee in BRELLA, the site owner would be 

eligible for a Certificate of Completion with the installation of a passive vapor intrusion mitigation system 

and completion of corrective actions related to soil. 

The primary disadvantage of this alternative is the special planning and implementation for future 

renovations that could impact the system effectiveness. Any fasteners installed into the floor must be 

completed in a manner that re-seals the vapor barrier. Significant restrictions on methods of building 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 265



 

 

 

 

  

 
 

3-4 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

use and repair of damage will be necessary.  An institutional control will require that regular inspections 

and reporting of conditions to ensure the remedy is functioning as designed.   

Installation of a vapor barrier and passive ventilation system is estimated to cost approximately $49,000 

(Appendix B).  

3.7 Soil Gas Alternative #3:  Subslab Depressurization System  

Subslab depressurization systems (SSDS) mitigate vapor intrusion by depressurizing the soil pore 

space beneath the building slab relative to indoor air. This removes the driving force for soil gas transport 

through the building slab. For new construction, the SSDS would be constructed in the same manner 

as the passive ventilation described for alternative #2 except an electric blower would be installed in-

line with the ventilation piping to provide a mechanical means of soil gas depressurization and 

ventilation. 

The advantage to an SSDS is that it is an effective solution that is acceptable as a sole remedy. The 

installation would be easy to implement with new construction and depressurization of the soil pore 

space beneath the building is achievable. The primary disadvantages of an SSDS are the noise, electric 

cost, and maintenance required to run the electric blower continuously. 

The SSDS would operate on a continuous basis and be monitored throughout its operation. This 

alternative is expected to cost approximately $66,000 for installation, startup, and startup monitoring. 

Annual monitoring, electrical usage, air sampling and operation costs after the first year are expected 

to be approximately $5,000. The total cost over 20 years would be anticipated to be $166,000 (2024 

dollars).  

3.8 Soil Gas Alternative #4:  Soil Vapor Extraction  

Alternative #4 is to install a soil vapor extraction (SVE) system. With an SVE system, a high vacuum is 

applied to the subsurface with the goal of removing volatile contaminant mass from the vadose zone. If 

necessary, the recovered soil gas is treated before discharging to the atmosphere. To remove volatile 

contaminant mass an overlapping negative pressure field would need to be created with a negative 

differential pressure of at least –1.0 in. wc.  

The primary advantage to an SVE system is that active mass removal of contaminants typically allows 

the system to be turned off in the future. Typical systems operate between 1 and 3 years. The 

disadvantage to these systems is that they are not effective at mass removal at sites with minimal 

remaining source mass, such as the Site. An SVE system would be difficult to implement at the Site due 

to shallow groundwater. SVE systems are also more appropriate where subsurface materials are 

relatively permeable, allowing greater air flow and a high radius of influence. Permeability testing would 

be required to determine required air flow and radius of influence. These systems are more likely to 

require treatment of extracted vapors, significantly increasing operational costs. Installation and 

operation of the SVE system may not be compatible with redevelopment plans. 

Estimated system installation and operations costs would be 2 to 3 times that of the SSDS option above. 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2024_02 ECAA\Report Parts\11 North Main 

ECCA.docx 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 266



 

 

 

 

  

 
 

4-1 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

4.0 PREFERRED CORRECTIVE ACTIONS 

 

Based upon the evaluation presented in Section 3.0, the following corrective action is recommended.  

To address PAHs and lead in soil, engineering controls will include limited soil excavation and disposal 

and installation of engineered barriers (Soil Alternative #4). This alternative is easily implemented, 

provides a durable barrier between contaminated soil and site users, and minimizes environmental 

impact by limiting the amount of soil disposal. It also provides flexibility to only install engineered barriers 

if no excess soil is generated during construction. Monitoring and maintenance of the engineered 

barriers will be required. This alternative is expected to cost approximately $105,000 (Appendix B). 

Installation of a vapor barrier and passive ventilation (Soil Gas Alternative #2) is the recommended 

engineering control to address potential vapor intrusion of benzene, ethylbenzene, carbon tetrachloride, 

and tetrachloroethylene. This will include collection piping installed within engineered fill vented to the 

atmosphere and a continuous vapor barrier between the collection piping and building slab. Monitoring 

and maintenance of the collection piping will be required. This alternative is expected to cost 

approximately $49,000 (Appendix B). 

Institutional controls will be placed on the Site to require ongoing maintenance and monitoring of 

engineering controls and require notification of the VTDEC prior to any subsurface work that could 

impact the effectiveness of the engineered barriers or vapor barrier and passive ventilation system. 

 

  

 

 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2024_02 ECAA\Report Parts\11 North Main ECCA.docx 

 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 267



 

 

 

 

5-1 

 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

5.0 LIMITATIONS 

This ECAA was prepared exclusively for the use of the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission, 

and Northfield Development Main, LLC. The conclusions provided by Weston & Sampson in this report 

are based solely on the information reported in this document. Future investigations, and/or information 

that were not available to Weston & Sampson at the time of this investigation may result in a modification 

of the conclusions stated in this report.  

 

Should additional information become available concerning this Site or neighboring properties that 

could directly impact the Site in the future; that information should be made available to Weston & 

Sampson for review so, if necessary, conclusions presented in this report may be modified. The 

conclusions of this report are based on Site conditions observed by Weston & Sampson personnel at 

the time of the investigation, information provided by the users and information provided by federal, 

state and local agencies. This report has been prepared in general accordance with accepted 

engineering and environmental assessment practices. No other warranty, expressed or implied, is 

made. 

 

 

 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2024_02 ECAA\Report Parts\11 North Main 

ECCA.docx 

 

  

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 268



 

 

 

 

6-1 

 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

6.0 SIGNATURE OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONAL 

 
This report was prepared by the following individuals: 

I certify under penalty of perjury that I am an environmental professional and that all content contained 

within this deliverable is to the best of my knowledge true and correct. 

 

 

Lee Rosberg 

Senior Project Manager 

 

 

 

Steven LaRosa 

Senior Technical Leader 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2024_02 ECAA\Report Parts\11 North Main 

ECCA.docx 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 269



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11 North Main ECAA CVRPC 

westonandsampson.com 

7.0 REFERENCES 

 

ATC Associates, Inc., 2011. Limited Phase II Environmental Site Assessment, Proposed Dollar General, 

11 North Main Street, Northfield, Vermont. November 9. 

 

ATC Associates, Inc., 2012. Corrective Action Plan, Proposed Dollar General, 11 North Main Street, 

Northfield, Vermont, VT DEC SMS #2012-4284. September 21. 

 

Galford, G.L., Faulkner, J., Dupigny-Giroux, L.-A., Posner, S. and Edling, L. (eds.) (2021). The Vermont 

Climate Assessment 2020. Gund Institute of Environment, University of Vermont, Burlington, VT. DOI: 

10.18125/kowgvg. 

 

Griffin international, Inc., 1998. Underground Storage Tank (UST) Permanent Closure inspection – 

Cetrangolo Finishing Works, inc. (UST Facility ID #4855711), September 29. 

 

KAS Environmental Science & Engineering, 2022. Supplemental Site Investigation Report, Northfield 

Gulf, 73 North Main Street, Northfield, Vermont VTDEC #2011-4199, October 24. 

 

Ratcliffe, N.M., Stanley, R.S, Gale, M.H., Thompson, P.J., and Walsh, G.J., 2011, Bedrock Geologic 

Map of Vermont: U.S. Geological Survey Scientific Investigations Map 3184, 3 sheets, scale 1:100,000. 

 

Runkle, J., K.E. Kunkel, S.M. Champion, L.-A. Dupigny-Giroux, and J. Spaccio, 2022: Vermont State 

Climate Summary 2022. NOAA Technical Report NESDIS 150-VT. NOAA/NESDIS. 

 

State of Vermont, Agency of Natural Resources. Natural Resources Online Atlas. Vermont ANR - 

Natural Resources Atlas HTML5 Viewer Accessed August 2023. 

 

Vermont Department of Environmental Conservation, 1994. Site Management Activity Completed, 

Rabbit Hollow, Northfield (site #90-0619), March 7. 

 

Vermont Department of Environmental Conservation, 1998. Letter to Barry Chouinard, Inc. RE: WMD 

Site #90-0619, Barry Chouinard, Inc., October 26. 

 

Weston & Sampson Engineers, Inc., 2023. Phase II Environmental Site Assessment Report, 11 North 

Main Street, Northfield, Vermont, October 16. 

 

Weston & Sampson Engineers, Inc., 2024. Supplemental Phase II Environmental Site Assessment 

Report, 11 North Main Street, Northfield, Vermont, January 9. 

 

Wilcox & Barton, Inc., 2022. ASTM E 1527-21 Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, 11 North Main 

Street, SPAN: 441-139-10312, Northfield, Vermont. October 18. 

 

 

 

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2024_02 ECAA\Report Parts\11 North Main 

ECCA.docx 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 270

https://anrmaps.vermont.gov/websites/anra5/
https://anrmaps.vermont.gov/websites/anra5/


 

 

 

 westonandsampson.com 

FIGURES 

 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 271



Service Layer Credits: Copyright:© 2013
National Geographic Society, i-cubed

FIGURE 1
LOCUS MAP

11 NORTH MAIN STREET, NORTHFIELD, VT

Pa
th

: \\
ws

e0
3.l

oc
al\

WS
E\

Pr
oje

cts
\V

T\C
VR

PC
\11

 N
ort

h M
ain

 S
tre

et 
No

rth
fie

ld\
3. 

Dr
aw

ing
s\L

oc
us

 M
ap

.m
xd

   U
se

r: 
Ha

ley
.So

ph
ia 

  S
av

ed
: 8

/9/
20

23
  1

2:1
9:5

2 P
M 

  O
pe

ne
d:

 8/
11

/20
23

  1
0:5

9:2
8 A

M

³

1 in = 1,250 ft

Site

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 272



P
ath

: \\w
se03.local\W

S
E

\P
rojects\V

T
\C

V
R

P
C

\11 N
orth M

ain S
treet N

orthfield\3. D
raw

ings\S
ite P

lan\S
ite P

lan.aprx   M
ap

: S
ite P

lan U
ser: S

chuckers.D
aniel   S

aved
: 8/18/2023  11:16 A

M
   O

p
en

ed
: 8/18/2023  11:17 A

M

AUTO
REP.

FILLING STATION

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF "TANK"
IDENTIFIED IN 1919 SANBORN MAP

FORMER 500-GALLON #2 FUEL
OIL UST CLOSED IN 2012

FORMER 40-GALLON
HYDRAULIC OIL UST
CLOSED IN 2012

OBSERVED CONCRETE COLUMNS AND
FOUNDATION

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
BURIED GASOLINE TANK

 IDENTIFIED ON 1919 SANBORN MAP

OHU-E

OHU-E

OHU-E

OHU-E

OHU-E

OHU-E

OHU-E

OHU-E

OHU-E

168 NORTH MAIN STREET
127 & 141 NORTH MAIN

STREET

93 NORTH MAIN STREET

73 NORTH MAIN
STREET

108 NORTH
MAIN STREET

117 KING
STREET

141 KING STREET

WATER STREET

N
O

R
T

H
 M

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

MACHINE SHOP

VCGI, Maxar, MicrosoftSCALE: NOTEDAUGUST, 2023

SITE PLAN

11 NORTH MAIN STREET
NORTHFIELD, VT

FIGURE 2

³

60 0 6030

Feet

Legend

Site

Parcels

Historical Buildings

Overhead Electric Lines

Anticipated
Groundwater Flow

OHU-E

INFORMATION ON AND LOCATIONS OF
FORMER USTs OBTAINED FROM
SANBORN MAPS DATED 1919, 1969,
AND FIGURE 2 FROM UNDERGROUND
STORAGE TANK CLOSURE REPORT
 PREPARED BY CARDNO ATC (ATC)
DATED NOVEMBER 21, 2012.

INFERRED DIRECTION OF
GROUNDWATER FLOW

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 273



P
ath

: \\w
se03.local\W

S
E

\P
rojects\V

T
\C

V
R

P
C

\11 N
orth M

ain S
treet N

orthfield\3. D
raw

ings\S
ite P

lan\S
ite P

lan.aprx   M
ap

: S
oil G

as R
esults U

ser: S
chuckers.D

aniel   S
aved

: 1/5/2024  3:10 P
M

   O
p

en
ed

: 1/5/2024  3:25 P
M

A

A
A

A

A

DU-1
DU-2

168 NORTH MAIN STREET
127 & 141 NORTH MAIN STREET

93 NORTH MAIN STREET

73 NORTH MAIN
STREET

108 NORTH MAIN
STREET

WATER STREET

N
O

R
T

H
 M

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

AUTO
REP.

FILLING STATION

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF
"TANK" IDENTIFIED
IN 1919 SANBORN
MAPFORMER 500-GALLON #2 FUEL OIL UST

CLOSED IN 2012

FORMER 40-GALLON
HYDRAULIC OIL UST
CLOSED IN 2012

OBSERVED CONCRETE COLUMNS AND
FOUNDATION

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
BURIED GASOLINE TANK

 IDENTIFIED ON 1919 SANBORN MAP

168 NORTH MAIN STREET
127 & 141 NORTH MAIN STREET

93 NORTH MAIN STREET

73 NORTH MAIN
STREET

108 NORTH MAIN
STREET

WATER STREET

N
O

R
T

H
 M

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

MACHINE SHOP

SG-9

SG-5

SG-6

SG-7

SG-8

SG-1

SG-2

SG-3

SG-4

GW-1

GW-2

GW-3

GW-4

GW-5

SB-1

SB-2

SB-3

SB-4
SB-5

VCGI, Maxar, MicrosoftSCALE: NOTEDDECEMBER, 2023

SITE PLAN AND SAMPLE LOCATIONS

11 NORTH MAIN STREET
NORTHFIELD, VT

FIGURE 3

³

40 0 4020

Feet

Legend

Site

Parcels

Historical Buildings

A
Groundwater Monitoring
Wells

Soil Borings

Soil Gas Point 9/7/23

Soil Gas Point 12/14/23

Decision Unit 2

Decision Unit 1

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 274



P
ath

: \\w
se03.local\W

S
E

\P
rojects\V

T
\C

V
R

P
C

\11 N
orth M

ain S
treet N

orthfield\3. D
raw

ings\S
ite P

lan\S
ite P

lan.aprx   M
ap

: P
roposed S

am
ple Locations U

ser: S
chuckers.D

aniel   S
aved

: 10/16/2023  9:33 A
M

   O
p

en
ed

: 10/16/2023  9:34 A
M

SB-1

SB-2

SB-3

SB-4

SB-5

DU-2A: 0.295
DU-2B: 0.244
DU-2C: 0.280
95% UCL: 0.30

DU-1A: 1.56
DU-1B: 1.08
DU-1C: 1.46
95% UCL: 2.0

SB-1: 0.304

SB-2: 0.87

SB-3: 0.003

SB-4: 0.514

DU-1

DU-2

VCGI, Maxar, MicrosoftSCALE: NOTEDOCTOBER, 2023

PAHS IN SOIL

11 NORTH MAIN STREET
NORTHFIELD, VT

FIGURE 4

³

40 0 4020

Feet

INFERRED DIRECTION OF
GROUNDWATER FLOW

Legend

Site

Parcels

Historical Buildings

Anticipated
Groundwater Flow

Soil Borings

Decision Unit 2

Decision Unit 1

Exceedance of non-resident VSS for B(a)P-TE: 1.54 (I-Rule, 2019)

Exceedance of urban background value for B(a)P-TE: 0.58 (I-Rule, 2019)

Detected above laboratory reporting limit.

Non-detect (U)

Notes:
All results reported in milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg)
VSS: Vermont Soil Standard
I-Rule: Investigation and Remediation of Contaminated Properties Rule
95% UCL: 95% Upper Confidence Level of the arithmetic mean
(Chebyshev method)

1.67

0.78

0.24

0.19

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 275



P
ath

: \\w
se03.local\W

S
E

\P
rojects\V

T
\C

V
R

P
C

\11 N
orth M

ain S
treet N

orthfield\3. D
raw

ings\S
ite P

lan\S
ite P

lan.aprx   M
ap

: S
oil G

as R
esults U

ser: S
chuckers.D

aniel   S
aved

: 1/5/2024  3:10 P
M

   O
p

en
ed

: 1/5/2024  3:14 P
M

A

A
A

A

A

DU-1
DU-2

168 NORTH MAIN STREET
127 & 141 NORTH MAIN STREET

93 NORTH MAIN STREET

73 NORTH MAIN
STREET

108 NORTH MAIN
STREET

WATER STREET

N
O

R
T

H
 M

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

Benzene: 0.69
Carbon tetrachloride: 1.3 U
Ethylbenzene: 0.87 U
Tetrachloroethene: 1.4 U

Benzene: 14
Carbon tetrachloride: 1.3 U
Ethylbenzene: 4.6
Tetrachloroethene: 27

Benzene: 5.8
Carbon tetrachloride: 1.3 U
Ethylbenzene: 0.87 U
Tetrachloroethene: 110

Benzene: 47
Carbon tetrachloride: 12
Ethylbenzene: 14
Tetrachloroethene: 10 U

Benzene: 1.4
Carbon tetrachloride: 1.3 U
Ethylbenzene: 0.87 U
Tetrachloroethene: 1.4 U

Benzene: 2.0
Carbon tetrachloride: 1.3 U
Ethylbenzene: 2.2
Tetrachloroethene: 1.4 U

Benzene: 0.64 U
Carbon tetrachloride: 1.3 U
Ethylbenzene: 0.87 U
Tetrachloroethene: 1.4 U

Benzene: 4.8
Carbon tetrachloride: 1.3 U
Ethylbenzene: 1.6
Tetrachloroethene: 1.4 U

AUTO
REP.

FILLING STATION

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF
"TANK" IDENTIFIED
IN 1919 SANBORN
MAPFORMER 500-GALLON #2 FUEL OIL UST

CLOSED IN 2012

FORMER 40-GALLON
HYDRAULIC OIL UST
CLOSED IN 2012

OBSERVED CONCRETE COLUMNS AND
FOUNDATION

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
BURIED GASOLINE TANK

 IDENTIFIED ON 1919 SANBORN MAP

168 NORTH MAIN STREET
127 & 141 NORTH MAIN STREET

93 NORTH MAIN STREET

73 NORTH MAIN
STREET

108 NORTH MAIN
STREET

WATER STREET

N
O

R
T

H
 M

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

MACHINE SHOP

SG-9

SG-5

SG-6

SG-7

SG-8

SG-1

SG-2

SG-3

SG-4

GW-1

GW-2

GW-3

GW-4

GW-5

SB-1

SB-2

SB-3

SB-4
SB-5

VCGI, Maxar, MicrosoftSCALE: NOTEDDECEMBER, 2023

SOIL GAS RESULTS

11 NORTH MAIN STREET
NORTHFIELD, VT

FIGURE 4

³

40 0 4020

Feet

Legend

Site

Parcels

Historical Buildings

A
Groundwater Monitoring
Wells

Soil Borings

Soil Gas Point 9/7/23

Soil Gas Point 12/14/23

Decision Unit 2

Decision Unit 1

Exceedance of Non-Resident VIS - SSG (I-Rule, 2019)

Exceedance of Resident VIS - SSG (I-Rule, 2019)

Below Resident VIS - SSG (I-Rule, 2019)

Non-detect (U)

Notes: All results reported in micrograms per cubic meter
(ug/mg3)
VIS - SSG: Vapor intrusion Standards - Subslab Soil Gas
I-Rule: Investigation and Remediation of Contaminated
Properties Rule

4.7

0.5

0.87

45

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 276



04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 277



 

 

 

 westonandsampson.com 

APPENDIX A 

 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 278



APPENDIX A-1

EVALUATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION ALTERNATIVES - SOIL

11 NORTH MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Technology Description Advantages Disadvantages
Compliant with Legal 

Requirements?

Protective of Human 

Health and 

Environment?

No Action Do nothing. No cost associated with this alternative.

Method does not provide a means of assessing risk over 

time associated with contaminants of concern that exceed 

applicable soil cleanup criteria.

The proposed residential redevelopment could not proceed 

and the property would remain vacant.

No No

Removal and Off-Site Disposal
PAH and lead contaminated soil would be excavated 

and transported for disposal at a Subtitle D landfill. 

No institutional controls or long-term 

maintenance required. No VTDEC notification 

required for future work that disturbs  soil.

Most costly alternative. Higher environmenal impact than 

other alternatives. Excavation and cleanup verification 

sampling are technically difficult to implement.

Yes Yes

Engineered Barrier

Install an engineered barrier/cap atop the impacted 

materials to mitigate the risk of direct exposure to 

contaminated soils.

Easy to implement with standard construction 

materials and practices.

Would require institutional control and notification to VTDEC 

of any future work that would disturb soils. Any such work 

would need to be completed in accordance with a VTDEC 

approved Corrective Action Plan. Requires ongoing 

maintenance over the lifespan of the barrier.

Yes Yes

Limited Soil Excavation/Disposal & 

Engineered Barrier

A limited volume of PAH and lead contaminated soil 

would be excavated and transported for disposal at a 

Subtitle D landfill. The soil volume for off-Site dispsoal 

would be determined based on the civil engineer cut/fill 

calculation for the proposed redevelopment. An 

engineered barrier/cap is installed atop remaining 

impacted materials to mitigate the risk of direct 

exposure to contaminated soils.

Easy to implement with standard construction 

materials and practices. Allows flexibility for 

soil mangement plan.

Would require institutional control and notification to VTDEC 

of any future work that would disturb soils. Any such work 

would need to be completed in accordance with a VTDEC 

approved Corrective Action Plan. Requires ongoing 

maintenance over the lifespan of the barrier.

Yes Yes

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2024_02 ECAA\Appendices\[Appendix A_Soil ECAA.xlsx]A-1 Soil

Page 1 of 2 Weston & Sampson

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 279



APPENDIX A-1

EVALUATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION ALTERNATIVES - SOIL

11 NORTH MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Technology

No Action

Removal and Off-Site Disposal

Engineered Barrier

Limited Soil Excavation/Disposal & 

Engineered Barrier

Achieves a Permanent 

or Temporary Solution?

Reduction of Toxicity, 

Mobility, or Volume of 

Contaminants?

Technically Feasible?
(If Yes) Economically 

Feasible?

Environmental Impact 

and Sustainability

Community 

Acceptance?
Climate Resiliency

Retain for Detailed 

Evaluation?

No No Yes Yes

Contamination would 

continue to pose a risk 

to human health and 

environment.

No

With no action, 

contaminated soil is at a 

greater risk of off-Site 

stransport via erosion 

from expected 

increased precipitation 

and extreme weather 

events.

No

Yes
Yes - reduces volume of 

PAHs and lead in soil
Yes No

Would require highest 

energy input of all 

alternatives to transport 

soil to disposal facility. 

Yes

The landfill cover would 

prevent erosion of 

contaminated soil from 

expected increased 

precipitation and 

extreme weather events.

Yes

Yes
Yes - reduces mobility of 

PAHs and lead in soil
Yes Yes

Could be implemented 

with relatively low energy 

input.

Yes

Engineered barriers, if 

maintained, would 

prevent erosion of 

contaminated soil from 

expected increased 

precipitation and 

extreme weather events.

Yes

Yes

Yes - reduces volume 

and mobility of PAHs 

and lead in soil

Yes Yes

Higher environmental 

impacts than 

engineered barriers but 

less than 

removal/disposal of all 

contaminated soil.

Yes

A combination of the 

landfill cover and 

engineered barrier 

would prevent erosion of 

contaminated soil as 

described above for 

Alternatives #2 and #3.

Yes

Page 2 of 2 Weston & Sampson

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 280



APPENDIX A-2

EVALUATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION ALTERNATIVES

11 NORTH MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Technology Description Advantages Disadvantages
Compliant with Legal 

Requirements?

Protective of Human 

Health and 

Environment?

Achieves a Permanent 

or Temporary Solution?

No Action Do nothing No cost associated with this alternative.

Method does not provide a means of assessing risk over 

time associated with contaminants of concern that exceed 

applicable soil gas cleanup criteria.

The proposed residential redevelopment could not proceed 

and the property would remain vacant.

No No No

Vapor Barrier (vapor-proof membrane)
Impermeable and chemical resistant vapor-proof 

membrane placed beneath building.
Yes Yes Yes

Vapor Barrier (spray-applied)
Rubberized asphalt emulsion for sealing vapor entry 

points.
Yes Yes Yes

Vapor Barrier (Passive Vented Floor)

Passively vented stone layer below proposed building 

slab. A vent is connected to the end of a vapor 

collection system to passively dissipate vapors 

collected under the building slab discharges to the 

atmosphere.

Prevents vapor intrusion passively. Can be 

combined with vapor-proof membrane or 

spray-applied vapor barrier. 

Not recommended as a sole mitigation method. Yes Yes Yes

Subslab Depressurization System (SSDS)

A centrifugal fan is driven by an electric motor and 

connected inline with a vapor collection system to 

create a vacuum that is applied under the building slab

Acceptable as a sole remedy. Provides a 

conservative approach when coupled with a 

vapor barrier and concrete slab.

Expensive to install and operate. Requires frequent 

inspection and maintenance of electric blower. Noise 

associated with electric blower can be a nuisance to Site 

occupants.

Yes Yes Yes

Soil Vapor Extraction (SVE) System

A vacuum is applied to the subsurface, removing 

volatile contaminants from the soil. If necessary, the 

recovered soil gas can then be treated before 

discharging to the atmosphere.

System could be turned off at some point in 

the future. Typical systems generally operate 

between 1 and 3 years. 

Generally more appropriate where subsurface materials are 

relatively permeable, contaminant mass is significant, and 

groundwater is deeper than oberved at the Site. Are more 

likely to require treatment for atmospheric discharge of 

extracted vapors.   
Yes Yes Yes

Vapor Barrier & Passive Ventilation

\\wse03.local\WSE\Projects\VT\CVRPC\11 North Main Street Northfield\2. Deliverables\2024_02 ECAA\Appendices\[Appendix A_VI ECAA.xls]A-2 Vapor

Prevents vapor intrusion passively. Easy to 

install. No long-term equipment maintenance, 

electric costs, or noise associated with an 

electric blower. Can easily be retrofitted with 

an electric blower if additional sub-slab 

depressurization is required. Can be 

combined with vented floor. 

Not recommended as a sole mitigation method.

Page 1 of 2 Weston & Sampson

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 281



APPENDIX A-2

EVALUATION OF CORRECTIVE ACTION ALTERNATIVES

11 NORTH MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Technology

No Action

Vapor Barrier (vapor-proof membrane)

Vapor Barrier (spray-applied)

Vapor Barrier (Passive Vented Floor)

Subslab Depressurization System (SSDS)

Soil Vapor Extraction (SVE) System

Vapor Barrier & Passive Ventilation

Reduction of Toxicity, 

Mobility, or Volume of 

Contaminants?

Technically Feasible?
(If Yes) Economically 

Feasible?

Environmental Impact 

and Sustainability

Community 

Acceptance?
Climate Resiliency

Retain for Detailed 

Evaluation?

No No Yes

Contamination would 

continue to pose a risk 

to human health and 

environment.

No

Expected increased 

infiltration of  

precipitation could result 

in transportation of soil 

gas, possibly resulting 

in groundwater impacts. 

No

Reduces mobility into 

building.
Yes Yes Yes Yes

Reduces mobility into 

building.
Yes Yes Yes Yes

Reduces mobility into 

building.
Yes Yes Yes Yes

Reduces mobility into 

building.
Yes Yes

SSDS systems would 

require significant 

ongoging electrical 

consumption in 

perpetuity

Yes Yes

Reduces mobility into 

building and reduces 

volume of contaminants.

No N/A

An SVE system would 

require significant 

electrical consumption 

until remdial action 

objects are achieved (1-

3 years)

Yes No

Membrane placement 

and/or passive vapor 

intrusion mitigation 

would not require 

ongoing energy 

consumption

Vapor barriers are 

installed in new 

construction to prevent 

infiltration of water 

vapors. All of the vapor 

barriers presented here 

are expected to 

withstand the effects of 

climate change.

Shallow groundwater 

elevations at the Site are 

expected to fluctuate 

with increased 

precipitation and 

extreme waether events  

and may make the 

operation of SSDS and 

SVE systems difficult 

Page 2 of 2 Weston & Sampson

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 282



 

 

 

 westonandsampson.com 

APPENDIX B 

 

 

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 283



APPENDIX B

ESTIMATED CORRECTIVE ACTION COSTS - REMOVAL AND OFF-SITE DISPOSAL

11 NORTH MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Description Unit Unit Price Quantity Total Amount

Construction Services

Contractor Mobilization/Demobilization LS 2,000$          1 2,000$                

Site Preparation LS 2,000$          1 2,000$                

Erosion Control LS 3,000$          1 3,000$                

Fencing/Site Security LS 2,000$          1 2,000$                

Soil Excavation/Loading Cu. Yds. 30$               5100 153,000$           

Transportation & Disposal Ton 80$               7700 616,000$           

Backfill Cu. Yds. 50$               5100 255,000$           

1,033,000$        

Environmental Professional Services

Project Coordination LS 25,000$       1 25,000$             

Waste Characterization Sampling/Analysis EA 2,250$          16 36,000$             

Environmental Professional Oversight Day 1,100$          20 22,000$             

Cleanup Verification Sampling LS 13,400$       1 13,400$             

Corrective Action Construction Completion Report LS 4,000$          1 4,000$                

100,400$           

1,133,400$        

283,350$           

1,417,000$       

Notes:

Total costs are rounded up to the closest $1,000

Costs prepared 2/16/2024. Future costs should be escalated appropriately.

Mobilization, site preparation, erosion control, and security costs based on professional experience

Estimated transport and disposal fee is $80/ton

Sixteen waste characterization samples are required for special waste profile

Approximately 40 cleanup verification samples required for PAH and lead analyses

Removal and Off-Site Disposal Cost

Removal and Off-Site Disposal Subtotal

Environmental Professional Service Subtotal

Project Subtotal

Contingency (25%)

Page 1 of 1 Weston & Sampson

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 284



APPENDIX B

ESTIMATED CORRECTIVE ACTION COSTS - ENGINEERED BARRIER INSTALLATION

11 NORTH MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Description Unit Unit Price Quantity Total Amount

Construction Services

Gravel Fill for Engineered Barrier Cu. Yds. 35$             370 12,963$         

Topsoil for Engineered Barrier Cu. Yds. 46$             50 2,300$           

Non-Woven Geotextile Indicator Layer SY 1.35$          1100 1,484$           

Contractor Labor/Equipment Cu. Yds. 18$             420 7,567$           

24,314$        

Environmental Professional Services

Project Coordination LS 4,000$        1 4,000$           

Environmental Professional Oversight Day 1,100$        5 5,500$           

Corrective Action Construction Completion Report LS 3,500$        1 3,500$           

13,000$        

Engineered Barrier Subtotal 37,314$        

9,328$           

47,000$        

Notes:

Total costs are rounded up to the closest $1,000

Costs prepared 2/16/2024. Future costs should be escalated appropriately.

Five inspections by environmental professional throughout engineered barrier construction

No additional costs for 8,000 square foot building slab to serve as an engineered barrier

Engineered Barrier Installation Subtotal

Environmental Professional Services Subtotal

Contingency (25%)

Equipment, System Installation Cost

Page 1 of 1 Weston & Sampson

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 285



APPENDIX B

ESTIMATED CORRECTIVE ACTION COSTS - LIMTIED SOIL EXCAVATION/DISPOSAL ENGINEERED BARRIER 

INSTALLATION

11 NORTH MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Description Unit Unit Price Quantity Total Amount

Construction Services

Soil Excavation/Loading Cu. Yds. 30$             300 9,000$           

Transportation & Disposal Ton 80$             410 32,800$         

Gravel Fill for Engineered Barrier Cu. Yds. 35$             370 12,963$         

Topsoil for Engineered Barrier Cu. Yds. 46$             50 2,300$           

Non-Woven Geotextile Indicator Layer SY 1.35$          1100 1,484$           

Contractor Labor/Equipment Cu. Yds. 18$             420 7,567$           

66,114$        

Environmental Professional Services

Project Coordination LS 5,000$        1 5,000$           

Environmental Professional Oversight Day 1,100$        8 8,800$           

Corrective Action Construction Completion Report LS 4,000$        1 4,000$           

17,800$        

Engineered Barrier Subtotal 83,914$        

20,978$        

105,000$      

Notes:

Total costs are rounded up to the closest $1,000

Costs prepared 2/16/2024. Future costs should be escalated appropriately.

Eight inspections by environmental professional during soil excavation and  engineered barrier construction

No additional costs for 8,000 square foot building slab to serve as an engineered barrier

Engineered Barrier Installation Subtotal

Environmental Professional Services Subtotal

Contingency (25%)

Equipment, System Installation Cost

Page 1 of 1 Weston & Sampson

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 286



APPENDIX B

ESTIMATED CORRECTIVE ACTION COSTS - VAPOR BARRIER AND PASSIVE VENTILATION

11 NORTH MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Description Unit Unit Price Quantity
Total 

Amount

Construction Services

Ventilation Layer Labor/Eqipment day 3,850$        3 11,550$      

4-inch Ventilation Layer Gravel cy 50$             100 5,000$        

2-inch ventilation pipe and fittings LS 2,500$        1 2,500$        

20-mil vapor barrier  Installation labor day 1,500$        3 4,500$        

20-mil vapor barrier LS 4,500.00$  1 4,500$        

28,050$     

Environmental Professional Services

Project Coordination LS 2,500$        1 2,500$        

Construction Oversight day 1,100$        3 3,300$        

Smoke Test Vapor Barrier LS 1,500$        1 1,500$        

Corrective Action Construction Completion Report LS 3,500$        1 3,500$        

10,800$     

Equipment, System Installation, and Monitoring Subtotal 38,850$     

9,713$        

49,000$     

Notes:

Total costs are rounded up to the closest $1,000

Costs prepared 2/16/2024. Future costs should be escalated appropriately.

Construction Subtotal

System Installation Subtotal

Contingency (25%)

Equipment, System Installation Cost

Page 1 of 1 Weston & Sampson

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 287



APPENDIX B

ESTIMATED CORRECTIVE ACTION COSTS - SSDS

11 NORTH MAIN STREET

NORTHFIELD, VERMONT

Description Unit Unit Price Quantity
Total 

Amount

Construction Services

Ventilation Layer Labor/Eqipment day 3,850$        3 11,550$      

4-inch Ventilation Layer Gravel cy 50$             100 5,000$        

2-inch ventilation pipe and fittings LS 2,500$        1 2,500$        

20-mil vapor barrier  Installation labor day 1,500$        3 4,500$        

20-mil vapor barrier LS 4,500.00$  1 4,500$        

Electric Blower (RadonAway GP501) Ea 200$           1 200$            

Electical Service Installation LS 750.00$     1 750$            

Monitoring Ports EA $65 4 260$            

29,260$     

Environmental Professional Services

Project Coordination LS 3,000$        1 3,000$        

Construction Oversight day 1,100$        4 4,400$        

Smoke Test Vapor Barrier LS 1,500$        1 1,500$        

Startup/Quarterly Monitoring (4 Events) day 1,500$        4 6,000$        

Startup/Quarterly Monitoring Reporting (4 Events) LS 2,000$        2 4,000$        

Initial Effluent Analysis Sample 450$           1 450$            

Corrective Action Construction Completion Report LS 3,500$        1 3,500$        

22,850$     

Equipment, System Installation, and Monitoring Subtotal 52,110$     

13,028$     

66,000$     

Notes:

Total costs are rounded up to the closest $1,000

Costs prepared 2/16/2024. Future costs should be escalated appropriately.

Construction Subtotal

System Installation Subtotal

Contingency (25%)

Equipment, System Installation Cost

Page 1 of 1 Weston & Sampson

04/15/24 Brownfields Advisory Committee Page 288


	01_23-07-31-Brownfields-minutes-draft
	2a_24-04-15 Brownfields program update
	2b_BRF State Program Award Letter - 18 S Main St. Barre Turning Point
	2c_11 North Main Street Phase II ESA-1
	2d_11 North Main ECCA



